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U T I L I  T I  € 5  I C  0 R P 0 R A T i 0 N 

March 28, 2006 

Ms. Blanca S. Bayo 
Commission Clerk 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

RE: Docket No. 041 263-GU, Consummation Report of Securities Issued by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake”) respectfully files this Consummation Report (original and three 

copies) on the issuance of securities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, in compliance with Rule 25-8.009, 

Florida Administrative Code. In satisfaction of the Consummation Report requirements, Chesapeake sets forth the 

following information: 

1. On December 1, 2004, the Florida Public Service Commission (“FPSC”) issued Order No. PSC-04- 

1 184-FOF-GU, which authorized Chesapeake to issue up to 1,434,175 shares of common stock for the  

purpose of administering Chesapeake’s Retirement Savings Plan, Performance Incentive Plan, 

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, the conversion of Chesapeake’s convertible 

debentures, and pursuant to Stock Purchase Warrants. The Order also authorized Chesapeake to 

issue up to 4,565,825 shares of common stock and up to $40 million in secured and/or unsecured debt 

for possible acquisitions. In addition, the Order authorized Chesapeake to issue up to $40 million in 

secured and/or unsecured debt to be used for general corporate purposes, including, but not limited to, 

working capital, retirement of short-term debt, retirement of long-term debt and capital improvements. 

Chesapeake was also authorized to issue up to 1,UUO,OOO shares of Chesapeake preferred stock for 

possible acquisitions, financing transactions, and other general corporate purposes, including potential 

distribution under the Company’s Shareholder Rights Agreement adopted by the Board of Directors on 

August 20, 1999. Chesapeake was also authorized by the Order to enter into agreements for Interest 

Rate Swap Products in an amount, in the aggregate not to exceed $30 million. 

2. In addition, on May 3, 2005, the FPSC issued Order No. PSC-05-0479-FOF-GU, which authorized 

Chesapeake to increase by 100,000, the number of shares of common stock autp@?j@%hb h&&-bkkdI‘ ? . r f*y 
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for issuance under its Director Stock Compensation Plan (DSCP) and Employee Stock Award Plan 

(ESAP) during the twelve months ended December 31 , 2005. On May 5,2005, at the Company’s 2005 

Annual Meeting, the shareholders approved the  new DSCP and the ESAP. The new DSCP replaced 

the prior plan that expired on December 31, 2004. Both the DSCP and ESAP were effective as of May 

5, 2005 and will continue in effect, unless terminated earlier by the Board of Directors, until December 

31,2075. 

3. Of the above-mentioned securities, and for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2005, 

Chesapeake has issued the following: 

(a) 21,071 shares of common stock were issued for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s Retirement Savings Plan. The average issuance price of these shares was 

$32.89 per share. Expenses associated with this issuance were negligible. 

(b) , 13,418 shares of common stock were issued for the Performance Incentive Plan. The 

average issuance price of these shares was $26.02 per share. Expenses associated with 

this issuance were negligible. 

(c) 41,175 shares of common stock were issued for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan and the 

subsequent Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan, i.e., the Amended 

Plan. The average issuance price of these shares was $30.23 per share. Expenses 

associated with this issuance were negligible. 

(d) 22,609 shares of common stock were issued for the conversion of debentures. The 

average issuance price of these shares was $’l7.01 per share. Expenses associated with 

th is  issuance were negligible. 

(e) 5,850 shares of common stock were issued for the Directors Stock Compensation Plan. 

The average issuance price of these shares was $24.68 per share. Expenses associated 

with this issuance were negligible. 
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( f )  On June 29, 2005, Chesapeake signed an agreement in principle with Prudential 

Investment Management, Inc. doing business as Prudential Capital, pursuant to which 

Prudential agreed in principle to purchase from Chesapeake, $20,000,000 in principal 

amount Unsecured Senior Notes issued by Chesapeake if Chesapeake elects to effect the 

sale of the Unsecured Senior Notes to Prudential at any time prior to January 15, 2007. 

The interest rate for the Unsecured Senior Notes was fixed at 5.50%. If the funding fails to 

occur by December 28, 2006, but occurs before January 15,2007, a delayed delivery fee 

will be charged to Chesapeake to offset Prudential’s hedging costs and to preserve its 

anticipated yield. If Chesapeake fails to issue the Notes by January 15, 2007, 

Chesapeake is required to pay Prudential a cancellation fee equal to the greater of (i) 

$50,000 of (ii)  the product of (a) the price increase determined by Prudential a s  the 

excess, if any, of the  ask price of t h e  Treasury Notes with the duration that most closely 

approximates the duration of the Notes proposed to be issued, on the date of cancellation, 

over the bid price of the Hedge Treasury Note (as determined by Prudential) on the date 

of the acceptance, divided by such bid price, and (b) the principal amount of such Notes. 

Chesapeake expects to use the Unsecured Senior Note proceeds to finance the 

expansion of Chesapeake’s natural gas transmission pipeline, expansion of the natural 

gas distribution system in Delaware and other capital expenditures to support the 

Company’s growth. 

As of December 31 , 2005, there is no balance for these Unsecured Senior Notes, as  they 

have not been issued. 

4. Schedules showing capitalization, pretax interest coverage and debt interest requirements as  of 

December 31,2005, are attached hereto a s  Exhibit A. 

5. A copy of the  application to the Delaware Public Service Commission requesting the authorization of 

75,000 shares to be issued under the Directors Stock Compensation Plan and 25,000 shares to be 

issued under the Employee Stock Award Plan, is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

6 .  A copy of the Order of t h e  Delaware Public Service Commission authorizing the issuance of 75,000 

shares under the Directors Stock Compensation Plan and 25,000 shares under  the Employee Stock 

Award Plan, is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 
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7. A copy of the Registration Statement relating to the issuance of 75,000 shares under the Directors 

Stock Compensation Plan, is attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

8. A copy of the Registration Statement relating to the  issuance of 25,000 shares under  the Employee 

Stock Award Plan, is attached hereto a s  Exhibit E. 

9. A copy of t h e  Delaware Public Service Commission Application for the issuance of up to $20,000,000 of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes, is attached hereto a s  Exhibit F. 

10. A copy of the  Order of the Delaware Public Service Commission authorizing the issuance of up to 

$20,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes, is attached hereto as 

Exhibit G. 

1 I. A copy of the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Agreement in Principle with Prudential Investment 

Management (doing business as Prudential Capital), is attached hereto a s  Exhibit H. 

12. Copies of the signed Opinions of Counsel with respect to the legality of the issuance of 75,000 shares 

under the Directors Stock Compensation Plan and 25,000 shares under  the Employee Stock Award 

Plan, are attached hereto under Exhibit I .  

13. Copies of the  signed Opinions of Counsel with respect to the legality of the issuance of up to 

$20,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes, are attached hereto 

under Exhibit J. 

14. Except for those agreements provided as Exhibits to this document, copies of all Plans, Agreements, 

registration filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and Orders of the Delaware Public 

Service Commission authorizing t h e  issuance of the above securities have been previously filed with 

the FPSC under Docket Nos. 030942-GU, 931712-GU, 961194-GU, 981213-GU, and 991631-GU, and 

are hereby incorporated by reference. 

15. Signed copies of the  Opinions of Counsel with respect to the legality of all other securities issued have 

been previously filed with the FPSC as  exhibits to the Consummation Reports of Securities issued by 
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Chesapeake Utilities, Docket Nos. 931 112-GU, 961 194-GU, and 991631-GU, dated April I ,  1994, 

March 27, 1998, and March 29,2001, respectively, and are hereby incorporated by reference. 

16. A copy of Chesapeake’s most current Form IO-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission is attached hereto as Exhibit K. 

Remainder of this page intentionally blank. 
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We respecffuily submit this Consummation Report on the issuance of securities by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 

Florida Public Service Commission Docket No. 041 263-GU, this 28th day of March 2006. 

Since re1 y , 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

?u T i\\?A 
Michael P. McMasters 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
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CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
Summary of Exhibits 

Exhibit Reference 

Exhibit A 

Exhibit B 

Exhibit C 

Exhibit D 

Exhibit E 

Exhibit F 

Exhibit G 

Exhibit H 

Exhibit I 

Exhibit J 

Description 

Schedules showing capitalization, pretax interest coverage and debt 
requirements as  of December 37,2005 

Delaware Public Service Commission Application authorizing the 
issuance of 75,000 shares under the Directors Stock Compensation 
Plan and 25,000 shares under the Employee Stock Award Plan 

Delaware Public Service Commission Order authorizing the issuance 
of 75,000 shares under the Directors Stock Compensation Plan and 
25,000 under the Employee Stock Award Plan 

Registration Statement relating to the issuance of 75,000 shares under 
the Directors Stock Compensation Plan 

Registration Statement relating to the issuance of 25,000 shares under 
the Employee Stock Award Plan 

Delaware Public Service Commission Application for the issuance of up 
to $20,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% Unsecured 
Senior Notes 

Delaware Public Service Commission Order authorizing the issuance 
of up to $20,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% 
Unsecured Senior Notes 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Agreement in Principle with Prudential 
Investment Management (doing business as Prudential Capital) 

Opinions of Counsel regarding the  legality of the increase of the 
100,000 shares for the issuance under the Directors Stock 
Compensation Plan and the Employee Stock Award Plan 

Opinions of Counsel with respect to the legality of the issuance of up to 
$20,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% Unsecured 
Senior Notes 

Exhibit K December 31,2005 Form 10-K 
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EXHIBIT A 

CHESAPEAKE UTILTIES CORPORATION 

Notes to Capitalization, Income and 
Pretax Interest Coverage Schedules 

As of December 31,2005 

The following adjustments have been made to capitalization: 

I. Common Stock - Number of shares (104,123) times par value ($0.4867 per share), with the shares 
issued for the following purposes: 

21,071 shares for the Retirement Savings Plan 
13,418 shares for the Performance Incentive Plan 
41 ,I 75 shares for the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan 
22,609 shares for the conversion of debentures 

5,850 shares for the Directors Stock Compensation Plan 

2. Additional Paid in Capital - Total cash value less the associated Common Stock amount for the following 
issuances: 

21,071 shares at $32.89 per share 
13,418 shares at $26.02 per share 
41 ,I 75 shares at $30.23 per share 
22,609 shares at $17+01 per share 

5,850 shares at $24.68 per share 

3. Short-Term Debt- 

a) Decrease by a total of $2,815,806 to reflect the paying down of short-term tines of credit with 
proceeds from the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, the Retirement Savings 
Plan, the Performance Incentive Plan, the conversion of certain debentures, and the Directors 
Stock Compensation Plan. 

8 



EXHIBIT A 
PAGE 2 of 3 

TYPE OF CAPITAL 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
Capitalization Ratios Actual & Pro Forma as of December 31 I 2004 

UNAUDITED 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

COMMON STOCK 

PAID IN CAPITAL 

RETAINED EARNINGS 

ACCUMULATED OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
OBLIGATION 

TREASURY STOCK 

PREFERRED STOCK 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

FIRST MORTGAGE BONDS 

CONVERT1 BLE DEBENTURES 

SENIOR NOTES 

OTHER 

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT 

TOTAL PERMANENT CAPITAL 

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD 

SHORT-TERM DEBT 

TOTAL CAP ITALIZATI 0 N 

ACTUAL 
BEFORE ISSUANCE 

PRO FORMA 
AFTER ISSUANCE 

AMOUNT Yo OF PRO FORMA AMOUNT 'h OF 
OUTSTANDING TOTAL ADJUSTMENT OUTSTANDING TOTAL 

$2,812,538 

$36,854,717 

$39,015,087 

($527,246) 

$81 6,044 

($1,008,696) 

$0 

$77,962,444 

$0 

$2,644,000 

$63,545,454 

$0 

$66,189,454 

$144, f 51,898 

$2,909,091 

$4,700,000 

1.85% 

24.28% 

25.71 % 

-0.35% 

0.54% 

-0.66% 

0.00% 

51.37% 

0.00% 

1.74% 

41 .87% 

0.00% 

43.61 % 

94.99% 

1.92% 

3.10% 

$50,677 

$2,765,A62 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$2,815,839 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$2,875,839 

$0 

($2,815,839) 

$2,863,215 

$39,619,879 

$39,015,087 

($527,246) 

$81 6,044 

($1,008,696) 

$0 

$80,778,283 

0 

$2,644,000 

$63,545,454 

$0 

$66,189,454 

$146,967,737 

$2,909,091 

$1,884,161 

I .m% 

26.11% 

25.71 % 

-0.35% 

0.54% 

-0.66% 

0.00% 

53.23% 

0.00% 

1.74% 

41.87% 

0.00% 

43.61 % 

96.84% 

1.92% 

1.24% 

$1 51.760390 1 O O . C J l  $Q 5151.760.994 too.oo% 



EXHIBIT A 
PAGE 3 of 3 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
Statement of Income and Pretax Interest Coverage 

Actual & Pro Forma for the Twelve Months Ended December 31.2004 (a) 

UNAUDITED 

Annualized Twelve Months 

Statement of Income 

1 Operating revenues 

2 Operating expenses before income taxes 

3 Income taxes (including Deferrals) 

4 Operating Income (1-(2+3)) 

5 Other Income, Net 

6 Income Before Interest Charges (4+5) 

7 Interest Charges 

8 Income from Continuing Operations (6-7) 

9 Preferred stock dividends 

I O  Earnings available to common equity (8-9) 

7 1 Pretax Interest Coverage ((3+6)/7) 

Actual 
Before Pro Forma 

Issuance Adjustment 

$177,955,441 

$1 57,985,695 

$570 1,090 

$14,268,656 

$549,156 

$14,817,812 

$5,268,145 

$9,549,667 

$0 

$9,549,667 

3.89 

$0 

$0 

$48,7a3 

($48,783) 

($48,783) 

1$129,6721 

$80,890 

$0 

$80,890 

N/A 

Pro Forma 
After 

Issuance 

$177,955,441 

$157,985,695 

$5,749,873 

$1 4,219,873 

$549,156 

$14,769,029 

$5,138,473 

$9,630,557 

$0 

$9,630,557 

3.99 

(a) Excludes discontinued operations. 



Exhibit B 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) 
CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION ) 

COMPANY STOCK 
FOR APPROVAL OF THE ISSUANCE OF ) P,S.C. DOCKET NO. 05- 

1 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (hereinafter sometimes called “Chesapeake” or 

“Applicant”) pursuant to 26 Del. C. section 215, makes the following application for 

approval by the Delaware Public Service Commission (“Commission”) of the 

issuance of up to 500,000 shares of Chesapeake common stock. In support of this 

Application, Chesapeake states the following: 

1. Chesapeake is a Delaware public utility with its principa! place of 

business at 909 Silver hake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904. All communication 

should be addressed to Applicant at the following address, Attention: Jeffrey R. 

Tietbohl, Controller - Natural Gas, 350 South Queen Street, P.O. Box 1769, Dover, 

Delaware 19904 or at the following e-mail address: jtietbohl@chpk.com. The 

respective telephone number and facsimile number are 302.734.6742 and 

302.734.601 I + 

2. Counsel for the Applicant is William A. Denman, Esquire, Parkowski, 

Guerke & Swayre P.A., I 1 6  West Water Street, P.O. Box 598, Dover, Delaware 

19903. Correspondence and other communications concerning this Application 

should be directed to counsel at the foregoing address, or at the following e-mail 



address: wdenman@pgsleqal.com. The respective telephone number and facsimile 

number are 302.678.3262 and 302.678.947 5. 

3. Chesapeake is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State 

of Delaware. Shares of 

common stock, 5,730,913 of which were outstanding as of December 31, 2004, are 

the only voting securities of Chesapeake. Each share is entitled to one vote. 

The voting stock of Chesapeake is publicly owned. 

4. Chesapeake’s Board of Director% has approved t h e  adoption of a 

Performance Incentive Plan (“PIP”), Directors Stock Compensation Plan (“DSCP”), 

and Employee Stock Award Plan (“ESAP”) for which approval for the issuance of up 

to 500,000 shares of Chesapeake common stock is being sought. T h e  Company 

will be seeking stockholder approval at its 2005 Annual Meeting. The exhibits 

attached to the 2005 Proxy describing each of the plans are attached hereto as 

Attachment A. As the stockholders have not yet approved the plans, the  Company 

has not filed formal registration statements with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission. Net proceeds from the issuance will be added to Chesapeake’s 

treasury and used for general corporate purposes. 

5. The proposed PIP would replace, effective January I, 2006, the prior 

PIP. The proposed PIP would allow for the issuance of restricted stock in the form 

of performance share awards to those key employees of the Company whom a 

designated committee, composed of independent directors chosen by the Board, 

determines are in positions to contribute significantly to the long-term growth, 

&v&prr?ent, 2nd financia! s!Jccpss Qf the Cnmpafiy. The prflpnsed PIP would 

encourage those employees t o  obtain proprietary interests in the Company and to 
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remain as employees of the Company as well as to assist the Company in recruiting 

able management personnel. No more than 25,000 shares can be awarded to an 

executive in any given year under the proposed PIP. By this Application, 

Chesapeake is seeking approval from the Commission to issue up to 400,000 

shares of common stock for the purpose of administering the proposed PIP. 

6. Chesapeake also requests approval from the Commission for the 

issuance of up to 75,000 shares of common stock for the DSCP. The DSCP would 

enhance the Company's ability to attract, motivate and retain as Non-Employee 

Directors persons of training, experience and ability, and to encourage the highest 

level of Non-Employee Director performance by providing such directors with a 

proprietary interest in the Company's growth and financial success. The Company 

acquired shares in the open market as compensation for Non-Employee Directors 

under the previous DSCP, which expired on December 31, 2004. Under the DSCP 

each Non-Employee Director who is elected as a director or whose service as a 

director will continue after the date of the respective Annual Meeting will receive, as 

compensation for services during the ensuing year, an award of no more than 1,200 

shares of common stock on the date of the respective Annual Meeting. For 2005, 

the Board of Directors approved, subject to the approval of the DSCP by the 

shareholders at the 2005 Annual Meeting, (I) an award of 600 shares of common 

stock to each Non-Employee Director and (2) an award of 150 additional shares to 

each chairman of a committee of the Board of Directors. 

7 .  C.heq-Jp&p reqlrests q-$m\./2! for the issuance of up to 25,mJQ 

shares of common stock for the ESAP. Historically, the Company has awarded 
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shares of Chesapeake common stock to the Company’s top performing manager 

and employee of the year. When the New York Stock Exchange adopted new equity 

compensation rules in 2003, the Company was no longer able to issue shares, as it 

did not have a formal plan that had received stockholder approval. In order to 

continue to grant these awards, and to have the flexibility to make other awards of 

stock to employees for exemplary performance, the Company has developed the 

ESAP. The maximum number of shares that can be issued from the ESAP in any 

one year is 5,000 shares. 

8. A copy of the opinion of counsel for Chesapeake with respect to the 

legality of the proposed issuance of common stock is attached hereto as Attachment 

B. 

9. Attached hereto as Attachment C and incorporated herein by reference 

is a schedule setting forth Chesapeake’s balance sheet and income statement for 

the twelve (12) months ended December 31, 2004, both before and after the 

issuance of the common stock. 

I O .  Attached hereto as Attachment D is a copy of Chesapeake’s annual 

report on Form IO-K for the calendar year ended December 31, 2004. This report 

has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

14. Pursuant to the Commission’s Minimum Filing Requirements - Part 

(D), attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference are the following 

schedules: 

a> Schedule No- I - r,apita!i-/at_inn ratios, actual and pra forma as  

of December 31, 2004. 
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b) Schedule No. 2 - Rate of return, actual and pro forma for the 

twelve (72) months ended December 31, 2004. 

Schedule No. 3 - Fixed charge coverage ratios for the twelve 

(12) months ended December 31,2004. 

c) 

12. Chesapeake represents that the proposed issuance of common stock 

is in accordance with law, for a proper purpose, and consistent with the public 

interest. 

WHEREFORE, Chesapeake prays as follows: 

A. That the Commission file this Application and make such investigation 

in this matter as it deems necessary; 

B. That the Commission approves the proposed issuance of common 

stock as described herein. 
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DATED: 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATlON 

By: q&ai){ e- 
Beth W. Cooper ' 
Treasurer & Assistant Secretary 

March 28, 2005 

PARKOWSKI, GUERKE & SWAYZE, P.A. 

By: 
William A. Denman 
1 16 West Water Street 
Dover, DE 19903 
Attorney for Applicant 

6 



DATED: March 28,2005 

STATE OF DELAWARE ) 
) 

COUNTY OF KENT ) 

BE IT REMEMBERED that on this 28th day of March, 2005, personally appeared 

before me, a notary public for the State and County aforesaid, Beth W. Cooper, who being 

by me duly sworn, did depose and say that she is Treasurer and Assistant Secretary of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and that insofar as the 

Application of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation states facts, and insofar as those facts are 

within her personal knowledge, they are true; and insofar as those facts are not within her 

personal knowledge, she believes them to be true; and that the attachments accompanying 

this application and attached hereto are true and correct copies of the originals of the 

aforesaid attachments, and that she has executed this Application on behalf of the 

Company and pursuant to the authorization of its Board of Directors. 

1 Beth W. Cooper 
Treasurer & Assistant Secretary 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me the day and year above written. 

10 l Z L t l d j  
Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
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Exhibit C 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

,OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION ) 

FOR APPROVAL OF THE ISSUANCE OF UP ) 
TO 5 0 0 , 0 0 0  SHARES OF COMMON STOCK ) 
(F ILED MARCH 2 8 ,  2 0 0 5 )  ) 

OF CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPOFLATION ) 
PSC DOCKET NO. 05-114 

ORDER NO. 6607 

AND NOW, on this 26th day of April, 2005; 

WHEREAS, by application dated March 28, 2005, Chesapeake Utilities 

Corporation ( "Chesapeake" or the "CompanyIt) , seeks Commission approval to 

issue up to 500,000 shares of new common stock to be used by the Company 

for administering the Company's revised Performance Incentive Plan, its 

revised Directors Stock Compensation Plan, and its Employee Stock Award 

Plan;  with the net proceeds from the issuance to be used for general  

corporate purposes; and 

r 

WHEREAS, the Commission having examined the Company's application 

and having made such investigation in connection with said matters as the 

Commission deemed necessary, and having heard the presentation of the 

Company and the Commission Staff at the Commission's meeting on April 26, 

2 0 0 5 ;  and 

WHEREAS, the Commission being limited in its authority with respect 

to utility financing and stock issuance applications pursuant to 26 Del. 

C .  5 215 under the holding of Diamond S t a t e  Tel. C o .  v. Public Service 

Commission, 367 A.2d 644 (Del. 1 9 7 6 ) ,  to the extent that, among other 

things, the f u t u r e  ra te  impact of the proposed financing is not deemed an 

appropriate consideration in making a determination concerning such 

applications; and 
L _  

(,, 



WHEREAS, t h e  Commission having been advised by S t a f f ,  and having 

determined, that the proposed issuance of 500,000 shares  of common stock 

by Chesapeake is in accordance with law, for a proper purpose, and 

consistent with the public interest; now, therefore, 

IT IS ORDERED THAT: 

1. The application filed by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation in 

this matter on or about March 28, 2005, is hereby approved and Chesapeake 

Utilities Corporation is hereby authorized to issue up to 500,000 new 

shares of its common stock. The proceeds from such new issuance of 

common stock shall be used for the purposes outlined in the application. 

2 .  Approval of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's application by 

the Commission shall not be construed as approving any capitalization 

ratios that result for any purposes or procedures involving ratemaking. 

Further, t h e  approval here shall not be construed as approving any 

por t ions  of the revised Performance Incentive Plan, the revised Directors 

Stock Compensation Plan, or the Employee Stock Award Plan f o r  the 

purposes of any f u t u r e  rate-making proceeding. This approval shall not 

waive the Commission's rules regarding the burden of proving the merits 

of any re lated issue in a later proceeding. Rather, the Commission's 

approval of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's application is limited to 

that which is necessary under 26 Del. C .  § 215 and shall not be construed 

as having any ratemaking effect in any later rate proceeding. 

3 .  Nothing in this Order shall be construed as a guarantee, 

warranty, or representation by the State of Delaware or by any agency, 

Cnn?TP.isSiOLrl, C.lr depzrtmen-t-, hereof, ?A!ith respec t  tG the Shares to be issued 

pursuant to the application and this Order.  
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4 .  Chesapeake Utilities Corporation shall, within t h i r t y  days of . 

each issuance under the plan ,  provide t h e  Commission notice, by l e t t e r ,  

of the  date and amount of such issuance. 

5 .  That the Commission reserves the jurisdiction and authority 

to enter  such f u r t h e r  Orders in t h i s  matter as may be deemed necessary 

or proper - 

F O R D E R  OF THE COMMISSION: 

kommissioner 

ATTEST.;, 

' 3  



Exhibit D 

As Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 5,2005 

Reg, No. 333-124446 
m 

SECURLTIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 

FORNJ[ S-8 
REGISTRATION STATEMENT 

UNDER 
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction of 
incorporation or organization) 

51-0064146 
(I.R.S. Employer 
Identification No .) 

909 SILVER LAKE BOULEVARD, DOVER, DELAWARE 19904 

(Address of principal executive offices, including Zip Code) 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITKES CORPORATION 
DlRECTORS STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN 

(Full titIe of the plan) 

MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT AND CFO 
CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
909 SILVER LAKE BOULEVARD 
DOVER, DELAWARE 19904 
(302) 734-6799 

Copies to: 
D. MICHAEL LEFEVER, ESQ. 
COVINGTON & BURLmG 
1201 PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE, N.W. 
P.O. BOX 7566 
WA SHNGTON, D. C. 20004- 75 66 
(202) 662-5276 

(Name, address, including zip code, 
and teiephone number, including area 

code, of agent for service) _~ - 
_ _ _ _ . _ ~  



CALCULATION REGISTRATION FEE 

Title of 
Securities 
to be 
Registered 

Amount 
to be 
Registered ( I )  

Common Stock, 75,000 
par value $0.4867 
per share 

Proposed 
Maximum 
Offering Aggregate 
Price Offering Registration 
Per Unit (2) Price Fee 

Amount of 

$26.60 $1,995,000 $234.81 

(1) 
Securities Act of 1933 Act, as amended (the “1933 Act”), based on the average of the high and low sale prices as 
reported in the consolidated reporting system on May 3,2005. 

Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457(h) under the 

(2) Pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “1933 Act”), as amended, the number of shares 
of Common Stock registered includes such additional number of shares of Common Stock as are required to prevent 
dilution arising from stock splits, stock dividends or similar transactions that results in an increase in the number of 
outstanding shares of Common Stock. 



Part I 

Omitted pursuant to the Note to Part 1 of Form S-8. 

Part I1 

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT 

Item 3. Incorporation of Documents by Reference. 

The following documents, heretofore filed by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (the “Registrant”) with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the “Exchange Act”), are incorporated by reference in this Registration Statement: 

The Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2004. 

The Registrant’s Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC OR January 19, February 24, March 1, 
March 2 and April 29,2005. 

The description of Common Stock contained in the Registrant’s registration statement filed under Section 
12(b) of the Exchange Act, including any amendments or reports filed for the purpose of updating such 
description. 

All documents filed by the Registrant pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 and 15(d) of the Exchange Act 
subsequent to the date of this Registration Statement and prior to the filing of a post-effective amendment that 
indicates that all securities offered have been sold or that deregisters all securities then remaining unsold shall be 
deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Registration Statement and to be part hereof from the date of filing of 
such documents. Any statement contained in this Registration Statement or in a document incorporated by 
reference in this registration statement shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this 
Registration Statement to the extent that a statement contained herein or incorporated by reference herein or in any 
subsequently filed document that is also incorporated by reference in this Registration Statement modifies or 
supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or 
superseded, to constitute a part of this Registration Statement. 

The financial statements incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Registrant 
for the year ended December 3 1,2004, have been so incorporated in reIiance on the reports of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as 
experts in auditing and accounting. 

Item 4. Description of Securities 

Not app Ii cable 

Item 5. Interests of Named Experts and Counsel. 
_ . ~ _ . i _ ~ ~  ~~~~ -~~ ~~ 

Not applicable 



Item 6. Indemnification of Directors and Officers. 

Under the Registrant’s Bylaws, each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party 
to any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact he is 
or was a director or officer of the Registrant, or is or was serving at the request of the Registrant as a director or 
officer of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise (including employee benefit 
plans), is entitled to indemnification and to be held harmless by the Registrant to the fullest extent permitted by the 
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”) against all expense, liabilities and loss (inchding 
attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines or penalties and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by 
such person in connection therewith, including liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933. These 
indemnification rights include the right to be paid by the Registrant the expenses incurred in defending any action, 
suit or proceeding in advance of its final disposition, subject to the receipt by the Registrant of an undertaking by or 
on behalf of such person to repay all amounts so advanced if it is ultimately determined that such person is not 
entitled to be indemnified. These indemnification rights under the Bylaws are not exclusive of any other 
indemnification right which any person may have or acquire under any law, bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders, 
disinterested directors or otherwise. 

Under Section 145 of the DGCL, a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is 
threatened to be made a party, to any action, suit, or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a director or 
officer of such corporation if such person acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in and 
not opposed to the best interest of the corporation and, with respect to a criminal action or proceeding, such person 
had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful, except that, in the case of any action or suit by or 
in the right of the corporation (such as a derivative action), no indemnification is permitted if the person shall be 
adjudged liable to the corporation (other than indemnification for such expenses as a court shall determine such 
person is fairly and reasonably entitled). 

Article Eleven of the Registrant’s Certificate of Incorporation provides that a director of the Registrant 
shall not be personally liable to the Registrant or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty 
as a director, except for liability (i) for breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to the Registrant or its stockholders, 
(ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentionaI misconduct or a knowing violation of law, 
(iii) under Section 174 of the DGCL, or (iv) for any transaction fiom which the director derived an improper 
personal benefit. 

The Registrant has in effect Iiability insurance policies covering certain claims against any director or 
officer of the Registrant by reason of certain breaches of duty, neglect, error, misstatement, omission or other act 
committed by such person in his capacity as director or oficer. 

Item 7. Exemption from Registration Claimed. 

Not applicable 

Item 8. Undertakings. 

(a) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes: 

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment 
to this Registration Statement: 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ ~ ~  _ . . . (I) to i E l C d m  pros@$T€iBT&piTed by Section1 O(a)(3)-ofthTSEiifitiTActof 1933, 

(ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the 
Registration Statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, 
individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set 
forth in the Registration Statement, 



(iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not 
previously disclosed in the Registration Statement or any material change to such 
information in the Registration Statement; 

Provided, however, that paragraphs (a)( l)(i) and (a)( l)(ii) do not apply if the information required 
to be incIuded in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports 
filed with or furnished to the SEC by the Registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement. 

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such 
post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the 
securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the 
initiaI bona fide offering thereof 

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities 
registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering. 

(b) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the 
Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the Registrant’s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) ofthe 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that is incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement shall be deemed to 
be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered thereby, and the offering of such securities at that 
time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. 

(c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to 
directors, officers and controlling persons of the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the 
Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is 
against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a 
claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses incurred or 
paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the Registrant in the successfid defense of any action, suit or 
proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controIIing person in connection with the securities being 
registered, the Registrant will, unIess in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling 
precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against 
public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue. 

Item 9. Exhibits. 

Exhibit 
Number 

5.1 

23.1 

23.2 

Description 

Opinion of Covington & Burling 

Consent of Covington & Burling 

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Reference 

Filed herewith 

Contained in Exhibit 5. I 

Filed herewith 



SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonabIe 
grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-8, and has duly caused this Registration 
Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Dover, State of 
Delaware, on the 5th day of May 2005. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: /s/ John R. Schimkuitis 

John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

_ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  



Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by 
the following persons in the capacities indicated on the 5th day of May 2005. 

/s/RaEph J Adkim 

Ralph J. Adkins 
- - - - . . - - - - - - - - -  

/s/ John R. Schimkaitis 

John R. Schimkaitis 
- + - - - - - - - - - - - -  

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (principal executive officer) 

/s/ Michael P. McMasters 
- - I - * - - - - - - - - - -  and principal accounting officer) 
MichaeI P. McMasters 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer 

/s/ Richard Bei-nstein Director 

Richard Bemstein 
- -  - - - - - - - - - - - -  

/s/ Thomas J. Bresnan 

Thomas J. Bresnan 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

/s/ Walter J. Coleimm 

Walter J* Coleman 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

J. Peter Martin 

/s/ Joseph E. Moore 

Joseph E. Moore 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

/s/ Cahiert A.  Morgan, Jr. 

Calved A. Morgan, Jr. 
- - - - - - - - _ - - - - -  

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 



/s/ Robert F. Rider 

Robert F. Rider 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

Director 

Director 
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Exhibit Index 
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Opinion of Covington & Burling 

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
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Exhibit 5 

[Covington & Burling Letterhead] 

May 5,2005 

Chesapeake UtiIities Corporation 
909 Silver Lake Boulevard 
Dover, Delaware 19904 

Gent 1 emen : 

This opinion is being furnished to you in connection with the registration of 75,000 shares of common 
stock, par value $.4867 per share (the "Shares"), of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the 
"Corporationt'), for offer and sale under the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Directors Stock Compensation PIan 
(the "Plan") pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form 5-8 (the "Registration Statement") to be filed on the date 
hereof with the Securities and Exchange Commission {the "Commission") under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended. 

We have acted as counsel to the Corporation in connection with the preparation of the Registration 
Statement, and have examined signed copies of the Registration Statement. We have also examined and relied upon 
(i) a copy of the Amended Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, (ii) a copy of the ByIaws of the 
Corporation, (iii) a copy of the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation at which the 
Plan was adopted and (iv) a copy of Order No. 6607 of the Public Service Commission of the State of Delaware, 
dated April 26,2005, approving the issuance of the Shares. 

We also have examined originals or copies, certified otherwise identified to our satisfaction, of such other 
documents, and have made such other investigations, as we have deemed necessary to form a basis for the opinion 
hereinafter expressed. In making such examination, we have assumed the genuineness of a11 signatures, the legal 
capacity of all natural persons, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, and the conformity to 
original documents of documents submitted to us as copies. As to all matters of fact relevant to our opinion, we have 
relied exclusively, without independent investigation or verification, upon the foregoing documents and on the 
certificates of pubIic officials and officials of the Company. 

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that the Shares have been duly authorized and, upon the 
issuance thereof in accordance with the terms of the Plan, the Shares will be validiy issued, fully paid and 
nonassessable. 

We assume no obligation to advise you of any changes in the foregoing subsequent to the delivery of this 
letter. This letter has been prepared solely for your use in connection with the registration of thc Shares and shall 
not be relied upon, quoted in whole or in part or otherwise be referred to, nor be filed with or furnished to any 
government agency or other person or entity, without the prior written consent of this firm, except that we hereby 
consent to the filing of this opinion as part of the Registration Statement. 

COVINGTON & BURLING 



Exhibit 23.2 

[PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Letterhead] 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT RlEGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in this Registration Statement on Form S-8 of our 
report dated March 16, 2005 relating to the financial statements, financial schedule, management’s assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, which appears in Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Annual Report 
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2004. 

Boston, M A  

May 5,2005 



Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by 
the following persons in the capacities indicated on the 5 day of May 2005. 

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (principal executive officer) 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer 
and principal accounting officer) 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

DC: 1779424-1 





CALCULATION REGISTRATION FEE 
Proposed 

Title of Maximum 
Securities Amount Offering Aggregate Amount of 
to be to be Price Offering Registration 
Registered Registered (1) Per Unit (2) Price Fee 

Common Stock, 25,000 $26.60 $665,000 $78.27 
par value $0.4867 
per share 

(1) 
Securities Act of 1933 Act, as amended (the “1933 Act”), based on the average of the high and low sale prices as 
reported in the consoIidated reporting system on May 3,2005. 

Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457(h) under the 

(2) Pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “1933 Act”), as amended, the number of shares 
of Common Stock registered includes such additional number of shares of Common Stock as are required to prevent 
dilution arising from stock splits, stock dividends or similar transactions that results in an increase in the number of 
outstanding shares of Common Stock. 



Part 1 

Omitted pursuant to the Note to Part I of Form S-8.  

Part I1 

INFORMATION REQUIF@,D IN THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT 

Item 3. Incorporation of Documents by Reference. 

The following documents, heretofore filed by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (the “Registrant”) with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the “Exchange Act”), are incorporated by reference in this Registration Statement: 

The Registrant’s Annual Report on Form IO-K for the year ended December 3 1,2004. 

The Registrant’s Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 19, February 24, March 1, 
March 2 and April 29,2005. 

The description of Common Stock contained in the Registrant’s registration statement filed under Section 
12(b) of the Exchange Act, including any amendments or reports filed for the purpose of updating such 
description. 

A11 documents filed by the Registrant pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 and 15(d) of the Exchange Act 
subsequent to the date of this Registration Statement and prior to the filing of a post-effective amendment that 
indicates that all securities offered have been sold or that deregisters all securities then remaining unsold shall be 
deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Registration Statement and to be part hereof from the date of filing of 
such documents. Any statement contained in this Registration Statement or in a document incorporated by reference 
in this registration statement shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this Registration 
Statement to the extent that a statement contained herein or incorporated by reference herein or in any subsequently 
filed document that is aIso incorporated by reference in this Registration Statement modifies or supersedes such 
statement. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to 
constitute a part of this Registration Statement. 

The financial statements incorporated by reference to the AnnuaI Report on Form 10-K of the Registrant 
for the year ended December 3 I, 2004, have been so incorporated in reliance on the reports of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as 
experts in auditing and accounting. 

Item 4. Description of Securities. 

Not appIicable 

Item 5. Interests of Named--Experts and Counsel. 

Not applicable 



Item 6. Indemnification of Directors and Officers. 

Under the Registrant’s Bylaws, each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party 
to any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact he is 
or was a director or officer of the Registrant, or is or was serving at the request of the Registrant as a director or 
officer of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise (including employee benefit 
plans), is entitled to indemnification and to be held harmless by the Registrant to the fullest extent permitted by the 
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”) against all expense, liabilities and loss (including 
attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines or penalties and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by 
such person in connection therewith, including liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933. These 
indemnification rights include the right to be paid by the Registrant the expenses incurred in defending any action, 
suit or proceeding in advance of its final disposition, subject to the receipt by the Registrant of an undertaking by or 
on behalf of such person to repay all amounts so advanced if it is ultimately determined that such person is not 
entitled to be indemnified. These indemnification rights under the Bylaws are not exclusive of any other 
indemnification right which any person may have or acquire under any law, bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders, 
disinterested directors or otherwise. 

Under Section 145 of the DGCL, a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is 
threatened to be made a party, to any action, suit, or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a director or 
officer of such corporation if such person acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in and 
not opposed to the best interest of the corporation and, with respect to a criminal action or proceeding, such person 
had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful, except that, in the case of any action or suit by or 
in the right of the corporation (such as a derivative action), no indemnification is permitted if the person shall be 
adjudged Iiable to the corporation (other than indemnification for such expenses as a court shall determine such 
person is fairly and reasonably entitled). 

Article Eleven of the Registrant’s Certificate of Incorporation provides that a director of the Registrant 
shall not be personally liable to the Registrant or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty 
as a director, except for liability (i) for breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to the Registrant or its stockholders, 
(ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, 
(iii) under Section 174 of the DGCL, or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper 
personal benefit. 

The Registrant has in effect liability insurance policies covering certain claims against any director or 
officer of the Registrant by reason of certain breaches of duty, neglect, error, misstatement, omission or other act 
committed by such person in his capacity as director or officer. 

Item 7. Exemption from Registration Claimed. 

Not applicable 

Item 8. Undertakings. 

(a) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes: 

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment 
to this Registration Statement: 

~ ~~~ ~~ ~ ~ ~ . - __ . .-- - -._ ~~ ~~~~ ~~ 

(i) to incIude any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933, 

(ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the 
Registration Statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, 
individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set 
forth in the Registration Statement, 



(iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not 
previously disclosed in the Registration Statement or any material change to such 
information in the Registration Statement; 

Provided, however, that paragraphs (a)( l)(i) and (a)( I)(ii) do not apply if the information required 
to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports 
filed with or hrnished to the SEC by the Registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement. 

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such 
post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the 
securities offered therein, and th,e offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the 
initial bona fide offering thereof. 

(3) To  remove fi-om registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities 
registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering. 

(b) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any 1iabiIity under the 
Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the Registrant’s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that is incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement shall be deemed to 
be a new registration statement reIating to the securities offered thereby, and the offering of such securities at that 
time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. 

(c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to 
directors, officers and controlling persons of the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the 
Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is 
against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. En the event that a 
claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses incurred or 
paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or 
proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being 
registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling 
precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against 
public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue. 

Item 9. Exhibits. 

Exhibit 
Number 

5.1 

23.1 

23.2 

Description 

Opinion of Covington & Burling 

Consent of Covington & 3urling 

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Reference 

Filed herewith 

Contained in Exhibit 5.1 

Filed herewith 



SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable 
grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements fox filing on Form S-8, and has duIy caused this Registration 
Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Dover, State of 
Delaware, on the 5th day of May 2005. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: /s/ John R. Schimkuitis 

John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

- - - _ - - - - - - _ _ I - _ _ _ _ - - - - - - - - -  



Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by 
the following persons in the capacities indicated on the 5th day of May 2005. 

/siRalph J, Adkins 

Ralph J. Adkins 

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (principal executive officer) 

/s/ Michael P. McMasters 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  and principal accounting officer) 
Michael P. McMasters 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal financia1 officer 

is/ Richard Bernstein Director 

Richard Bernstein 
- I - * - - - - - - - - - *  

/s/ Walter J.  Coleman 

Walter J. Coleman 
- - - - - - - c _ - d - - -  

/s/ Joseph E. Moore 

Joseph E. Moore 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

/s/ Culvert A. Morgan, Jr. 

Calvert A. Morgan, Jr. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

. . 



/s/ RsidoIph M Peim, Jr. 

Rudolph M. Peins, Jr. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - _  

Director 

/s/ Robert F Rider 

Robert F. Rider 
- - I - - - - - - c - _ - -  

Director 



Exhibit 
Number 

5.1. 

23.2 

Exhibit Index 

Description 

Opinion of Covington & Burling 

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Sequential 
PaPe Number 
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10 



Exhibit 5 

[Covington & Burling Letterhead] 

May 5,2005 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
909 Silver Lake Boulevard 
Dover, Delaware 19904 

Gentlemen: 

This opinion is being furnished to you in connection with the registration of 25,000 shares of common 
stock, par value $.4867 per share (the "Shares"), of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the 
"Corporation"), for offer and sale under the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Employee Stock Award Plan (the 
"Plan") pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-8 (the "Registration Statement") to be filed on the date 
hereof with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended. 

We have acted as counsel to the Corporation in connection with the preparation of the Registration 
Statement, and have examined signed copies of the Registration Statement. We have also examined and relied upon 
(i) a copy of the Amended Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, (ii) a copy of the Bylaws of the 
Corporation, (iii) a copy of the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation at which the 
Plan was adopted and (iv) a copy of Order No. 6607 of the Public Service Commission of the State of Delaware, 
dated April 26,2005, approving the issuance of the Shares. 

We also have examined originals or copies, certified otherwise identified to our satisfaction, of such other 
documents, and have made such other investigations, as we have deemed necessary to form a basis for the opinion 
hereinafter expressed. In m'aking such examination, we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the legal 
capacity of all natural persons, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, and the conformity to 
original documents of documents submitted to us as copies. As to all matters of fact relevant to our opinion, we have 
relied excIusiveIy, without independent investigation or verification, upon the foregoing documents and on the 
certificates of public officials and oficials of the Company. 

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that the Shares have been duly authorized and, upon the 
issuance thereof in accordance with the terms of the Plan, the Shares will be validly issued, h l l y  paid and 
nonassessabIe. 

We assume no obligation to advise you of any changes in the foregoing subsequent to the delivery of this 
letter. This letter has been prepared solely for your use in connection with the registration of the Shares and shall 
not be relied upon, quoted in whole or in part or otherwise be referred to, nor be filed with or furnished to any 
government agency or other person or entity, without the prior written consent of this fum, except that we hereby 
consent to the filing of this opinion as part of the Registration Statement. 

~ _. ~ . -  

Very truly yours, 

COVINGTON & BURLING 



Exhibit 23.2 

[PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Letterhead] 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTEFWI PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in this Registration Statement on Form S-8 of our 
report dated March 16, 2005 relating to the financial statements, financial schedule, management's assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, which appears in Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's Annual Report 
on Form IO-K for the year ended December 3 1,2004. 

Boston, M A  

M i  5, 2005 



Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, h s  Registration Statement has been signed by 
the following persons in the capacities indicated on the 5 day of May 2005. 

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

President, Chef Executive Officer and Director (principal executive officer) 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer 
and principal accounting officer) 

Michael P. hlcM&t&s 

Fbchard Bernstein 
Director 

J. Peter Martin 

& d A .  h7k#/* 
Calved A. Morgan, Jr 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 
~~ .-. 

DC: 1779424-1 



Exhibit F 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) 
CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION ) 
FOR APPROVAL OF THE ISSUANCE OF ) P.S.C. DOCKET NO. 05- 
LONG-TERM DEBT 1 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (hereinafter sometimes called “Chesapeake” or 

“Applicant”) pursuant to 26 Del. C. section 215, makes the following application for 

approval by the Delaware Pu biic Service Commission (“Commission”) of the  

issuance of up to $20,000,000 of Chesapeake unsecured Senior Notes. In supp~fl  

of this Application, Chesapeake states the following: 

I. Chesapeake is a Delaware public utility with its principal place of 

business at 909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904. All 

communications should be addressed to Applicant at the following address, 

Attention: Jeffrey R. Tietbohl, Director of Regional Business Planning and 

Deveiopment, 350 South Queen Street, P.O. Box 1769, Dover, Delaware 19904 or 

at the following e-mail address: jtietbohl@chpk.com. 

number and facsimile number are 302.734.6742 and 302.734.601 I .  

The respective telephone 

2. Counsel for the Applicant is William A. Denman, Esquire, Parkowski, 

Guerke & Swayze P.A., 1 I 6  West Water Street, P.O. Box 598, Dover, Delaware 

19903. Correspondence and other communications concerning this Application 

should be directed to counsel at the foregoing address, or at t h e  following e-mail 
. _. .. ~ 

~~ 



address: wdenman@pgslegal.com. The respective telephone number and facsimile 

number  are 302.678.3262 and 302.678.941 5. 

3. Chesapeake is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State 

of Delaware. Shares of 

common stock, 5,835,240 of which were outstanding as of June 30, 2005, are the 

only voting securities of Chesapeake. Each share is entitled to one vote. 

The voting stock of Chesapeake is publicly owned. 

4. On June 29, 2005, Chesapeake entered into an agreement in principle 

with Prudential Investment Management Inc., also known as Prudential Capital 

Group, (tcPrudential’’) pursuant to which Prudential has agreed in principle to 

purchase from t h e  Company $20,000,000 in principle amount unsecured Senior 

Notes issued by the Company if the Company elects to effect the  sale of the 

unsecured Senior Notes to Prudential at any time prior to January 15, 2007. A true 

a n d  correct copy of the Agreement and a draff of the proposed terms and conditions 

of the Notes are included as Attachment A. lncluded in the draft Summary of Terms 

and Conditions of t h e  Notes are the  following principal terms: 

a. Up to $20,000,000 of Chesapeake unsecured Senior Notes with a 

maturity of up to 14 years and an average iife of up to I O  years. 

b. Interest will be paid quarterly on the unpaid amount of t he  

unsecured Senior Notes. 

c. $2 million annually is principal repayments, beginning December 
~ 

28 ,  201 I and continuing through December 28,2020. 

5. Chesapeake expects to use the unsecured Senior Note proceeds to 

finance the  expansion of Chesapeake’s natural gas transmission pipeline, expansion 



I 

,-- 

._ ‘I 

of the natural gas distribution system in Delaware and other capital expenditures to 

support t h e  Company’s growth. 

6. The Board of Directors of Chesapeake authorized the officers of 

Chesapeake to proceed with the issuance of the unsecured Senior Notes on June 

29, 2005. Chesapeake selected the aforesaid form of financing because, in 

Chesapeake’s judgment, the long-term debt financing is consistent with the 

Co m pan y’s capita I req u ire m e n ts . 

7.  Chesapeake’s anticipated closing date is late December of 2006. The 

Company entered into this agreement with Prudential in June 2005 in order to 

secure t h e  most favorable terms possible in the current marketplace. The Company 

is requesting approval at this time, as it will be  executing the Note Agreement within 

the next several weeks. A current draft of the Note Agreement is included as 

Attach men t B . 

8. A copy of the opinion of counsel for Chesapeake with respect to the 

legality of the proposed issuance of long-term debt is attached hereto as Attachment 

C. 

9. Attached hereto as Attachment D and incorporated herein by reference 

is a schedule setting forth Chesapeake’s balance sheet and income statement for 

the twelve (12) months ended June 30, 2005, both before and after the issuance of 

the  long-term debt. 

I O .  Attached hereto-as Attachment E is a copy of Chesapeake’s annual 

report on Form IO-K for the calendar year ended December 31, 2004. Attached 

3 



hereto as Attachment F is Chesapeake’s most recent quarterly report on Form IO-Q. 

Both reports have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

11, Pursuant to the Commission’s Minimum Filing Requirements - Part 

(D), attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference are the following 

schedules: 

a) Schedule No. 1 - Capitalization ratios, actual and pro forma as 

of June 30,2005. 

Schedule No. 2 - Rate of return, actual and pro forma for the 

twelve (I 2) months ended June 30,2005. 

Schedule No. 3 - Fixed charge coverage ratios for the twelve 

(12) months ended June 30,2005. 

b) 

c) 

12. Chesapeake represents that the proposed issuance of long-term debt 
i 
- 

is in accordance with t h e  law, for a proper purpose, and consistent with the public 

interest. 

WHEREFORE, Chesapeake prays as follows: 

A. That the Commission file this Application and make such investigation 

in this matter as it deems necessary; 

EL That the Commission approve the proposed issuance of long-term 

debt as described herein. 

. -  

4 

... 



DATED: 

C H E SAP EAK E UT I L IT1 E S CO RPO RAT1 0 N 

By: 
Beth W. Cooper ' 
Vice President and Treasurer 

PARKOWSKI, GUERKE & SWAYZE, P.A. 

William A. Denman 
I 16 West Water Street 
Dover, DE I9903 
Attorney for Applicant 

August I O ,  2005 

5 



DATED: August 10,2005 

STATE OF DELAWARE ) 
) 

COUNTY OF KENT 1 

BE IT REMEMBERED that on this 10th day of August, 2005, personally appeared 

before me, a notary public forthe State and County aforesaid, Beth W. Cooper, who being 

by me duly sworn, did depose and say that she is Vice President and Treasurer of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and that insofar as the 

Application of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation states facts, and insofar as those facts are 

within her personal knowledge, they are true; and insofar as those facts are not within her 

personal knowledge, she believes them to be true; and that the attachments accompanying 

I _- 

! this application and attached hereto are true and correct copies of the originals of the 

aforesaid attachments, and that she has executed this Application on behalf of the 

Company and pursuant to the authorization of its Board of Directors. 

Beth W. Cooper * 

Vice President and Treasurer 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me the day and year above written. 

- -. Notary Public 
M y  Commission Expires: 2 % d i ) g  



Exhibit G 

STATE OF DELAWARE 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

) IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION 
OF CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION ) 

FOR APPROVAL OF THE ISSUANCE OF PSC DOCKET NO. 05-290 
LONG-TERM DEBT ) 

) (FILED AUGUST 10, 2 0 0 5 )  

ORDER NO. 6708 

This 

and Orders 

1. 

- 

6th day of September, 2005, the Commission finds, determines, 

the following: 

O n  August 10, 2005, Chesapeake -Utilities Corporation 

(TiChesapeakelt or “the Companyii) filed an application seeking approval for 

the Company to issue up to $20 million of unsecured Senior Notes. The 

Notes will have maturities ranging up to 14 years, with an average life 

of 10 years, According to the application, Prudential Investment 

Management, I n c . ,  has agreed to purchase the total amount of these Notes. 

The  proceeds from the debt will be used in various capital projects, 

including financing the expansion of Chesapeake‘s transmission pipeline, 

financing the growth of its Delaware distribution system, and supporting 

other projects related to t h e  Comp-any‘s growth. 

2 .  Staff  filed a memorandum recommending that the  Commission 

approve the request by Chesapeake to issue up to $20 million in long-term 

debt in t h e  form of unsecured Senior Notes. In addition, the Commission 

heard presentations by the Company and Staff at the Commission’s public 

meeting on September 6 ,  2 0 0 5 ;  

3 .  Historically, the Commission has been limited in its authority 

w i t h  respec t  to utility financing and stock i s suance  applications 

pursuant to 26 D e l .  C .  § 215. See Diamond State Tel. Co. v. Public 



Service Commission, D e l .  Supr . ,  3 6 7  A.2d 644 (1976) (holding that the 

f u t u r e  rate impact of the  proposed financing transaction is not 

appropriate consideration in making a determination concerning such 

section 215 application). Here, based on the application and Staff's 

memorandum, the Commission determines that the Company's proposed 

issuance of up to $20 million in unsecured Senior Notes fo r  the purposes 

set f o r t h  in the application is in accordance with law, for a proper 

purpose, and consistent with the public interest. Consequently, the 

application is granted and the debt issuance approved. 

Now, therefore, IT IS ORDERED: 

1. That, pursuant  to 26  Del. C. S 215(a) (21 ,  the  application 

f i l e d  by Chesapeake U t i l i t i e s  Corporation in this matter on August 10, 

2005, is hereby approved and Chesapeake Utilities Corporation is hereby 

authorized to issue up to $ 2 0  million in unsecured Senior N o t e s  with 

maturity dates of up to 14 years. The proceeds from such debt shall be 

used f o r  the purposes outlined in the application. 

2 .  That the approval of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's 

application shall not be construed as approving any capitalization ratios 

that result f o r  any purposes or procedures involving ratemaking; nor are 

the Commission's rules regarding the burden of proving the merits of any 

re la ted  issue waived hereby. Rather, t he  approval o€ Chesapeake 

Utilities Corporation's application is limited to that which is necessary 

under 26 Del. C .  § 215 and shall n o t  be construed as having any rate- 

making effect in any l a t e r  rate proceeding. -- - -  - . _. . . .. . . 

3 .  That nothing in this Order shall be construed a s  a guarantee, 

warranty, or representation by the State of Delaware or by any agency, 

2 



commission, or department hereof, with respect to the indebtedness to be 

issued pursuant to the application and this Order. 

4. That Chesapeake Utilities Corporation shall, within thirty 

days of the consummation of any debt transactions approved herein, 

provide t h e  Commission with copies of the loan agreements supporting the  

debt transactions. In addition, Chesapeake Utilities Corporation shall 

notify the Commission of any changes in the terms and conditions in the 

commitment l e t t e r  made prior to the consummation of such debt instrument. 

5 .  That the Commission reserves the jurisdiction and authority 

to enter such f u r t h e r  Orders  in t h i s  matter as may be deemed necessary 

or proper. 

BY j&DER OF THE COMMISSION: 

ATTEST : 
/ 

Vice Chair 

3 



. Prudential @ Financial Brian N. Thomas Exhibit H 
- 

Sr. Investment Vice President 

Prudential Capital Group 
2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 42DOE, Dallas TX 75201 
Tel214 720-6216 Fax 214 720-6299 
brian.thomas@prudential.com 

June 29,2005 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
909 Silver Lake Blvd. 
Dover, DE 19904 

Attention: Beth Cooper 
Assistant Vice President and Corporate Treasurer 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I am pleased to confirm the agreement in principle of Prudential 
Investment Management, Inc. andor one or more accounts managed by it and/or its 
affiliates (collectively, "Prudential"), subject to the conditions set forth below, to 
purchase $20,000,000 principal amount of 5.50% Senior Notes due 2020 (the "Notes") of 
the Company. Prudential's agreement in principle to purchase the Notes will expire on 
the Cancellation Date. The principal terms to be contained in the Note Agreement (the 
"Note Agreement") and the Notes would be as outlined in the attached preliminary term 
sheet. Unless otherwise defined, capitalized terms used in this letter have the meanings 
described in Annex 1 which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

Prudential's purchase of the Notes would be subject to (a) authorization of 
such purchase by (or pursuant to authority delegated by) the Investment Committee of 
Prudential's Board of Directors, (b) Prudential and the Company reaching final agreement 
upon terms, conditions, covenants and other provisions satisfactory to Prudential to be 
included in the Note Agreement and the Notes and the other documents relating to the 
proposed financing, (c) satisfactory completion of Prudential's due diligence investigation 
(including investigation of the financial condition and prospects of the Company), (d) the 
absence of any material adverse change in the condition (financial or otherwise) or 
prospects of the Company, (e) payment to Prudential at closing of the structuring fee 
specified in the attached term sheet and ( f )  the satisfaction of Prudential Capital's Law 
Department with the documentation, proceedings, legal opinions and other matters in 
connection with the proposed financing. 

On June 29, 2005, the interest rate was fixed on all of the Notes. If the 
Company does not issue the Notes: 



Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
June 29,2005 
Page 2 

(a) on or before December 28,2006, the Company will pay Prudential 
the Rate Lock Delayed Delivery Fee, and 

(b) by the Cancellation Date for any reason, then on the Cancellation 
Date the Company will pay Prudential the Cancellation Payment 
described in the attached t e m  sheet. 

We intend to retain the law fm of Schiff Hardin LLP to act as our special 
counsel in connection with the proposed financing. In addition, we may determine that it 
is necessary to retain other consultants of OUT choice to advise us in connection with the 
proposed financing. We understand that the fees, charges and disbursements of OUT 
special counsel and other consultants will be paid by the Company whether or not the 
proposed financing closes. If the fees and expenses incurred exceed $25,000, the $1 5,000 
Structuring Fee described in the term sheet will be reduced by 50% of the excess amount. 

If the terms and conditions described above are acceptable to you, please 
so indicate by signing the enclosed copy of this letter in the place provided and returning 
the same to me. 

Very truly yours, 

PRUDENTIAL INVESTMENT 
MANAGEMENT, N C .  

Accepted and agreed to: 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITES CORPORATION 



ANNEX 1 

DEFINITIONS 

"Cancellation Date" means the earlier of (i) the date Prudential receives the Company's 
notice that it does not intend to issue the Notes (or the next business day if Prudential 
receives that notice after 4:OO p.m. Eastem time) and (ii) January 15, 2007. 

"Rate Lock Delayed Delivery Fee" means the m o u n t  calculated as follows: 

(BEY - MMY) x DTS/360 x Full Price; 

where: 

BEY means the bond equivalent yield of the Notes; 

-9 DTS or Days to Settlement, means the number of days (a) fkom December 
28,2006, (b) to the date on which the Rate Lock Delayed Delivery Fee is 
to be paid pursuant to the terms of the Letter to which this Annex is 
attached; 

-Y MMY or Money Market Yield, means the yield of an alternative 
investment selected by Prudential on the date Prudential receives notice of 
a delay in the closing of the financing having a maturity date 
approximately equal to the rescheduled closing date (a new altemative 
investment will be selected each time the closing is delayed); and 

Full Price means (i) if the Notes are to be purchased at par, the principal 
mount  of the Notes for which the rate was fixed or (ii) if the Notes are to 
be purchased at a premium or discount, the purchase price, including any 
accrued interest. 

The Rate Lock Delayed Delivery Fee will never be less than zero and will be recalculated 
for the period following each delay of the closing date. 
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Exhibit I 

GEORGE F. CARDNER, 111 
OF COUNSEL 

WILMINGTON OFFICE 
800 KING STREET, SUITE 203 

WILMINGTON, DE 19801-0369 
302-654-3300 

FAX: 302-654-3033 

March 24,2005 

Bruce H. Burcat, Executive Director 
Delaware Public Service Commission 
Suite 100, Cannon Building 
861 Silver Lake Blvd. 
Dover, DE 19904 

RE: Application of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for the Approval of the Issuance 
of Company Stock 

Dear Mr. Burcat: 

We are Delaware counsel for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation ("Chesapeake") in connection 
with Chesapeake's Application for Commission approval of the issuance of up to 500,000 shares 
of Chesapeake's common stock. Chesapeake's Application is submitted pursuant to 26 Del. C. 
$215. 

We are familiar with the terms, interpretations, and application of 24 Del. C. $215 which sets 
forth the required, but limited findings to be made by the Commission in its consideration of 
such a proposed issuance of stock. We note the limited scope of Commission review, as 
determined by the Delaware Supreme Court in the Diamond State Telephone Company case, 347 
A.2d 644 (1976). Specifically, in the Diamond State Telephone Company case, the Delaware 
Supreme Court held that the powers legislated to the Commission pursuant to 26 Del. C. 5215 
were intended to be applied in cases of a proposed issuance of stock for an inadequate 
consideration or for some other improper purpose. In Diamond State, the Delaware Supreme 
Court stated that in the absence of a showing of improper consideration, fraud, bad faith, or self- 
dealing on the part of the members of a utility's board of directors in their decision to issue 
shares of stock for the purpose of raising needed monies, it would be improper for tlie 
Commission to substitute its judgment for that of the board of directors. 

Based upon our knowledge of tlie applicable statute, and its regulatory and judicial interpretation 
and application, it is our opinion that the proposed issuance of up to 500,000 shares of 



Chesapeake common stock for the purposes set forth in the aforesaid Application has been duly 
authorized by the Board of Directors of Chesapeake and is valid and in accordance with law, 
subject to the approval of the holders of a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of 
Chesapeake at Chesapeake's upcoming annual meeting, any necessary approval on the part of the 
Maryland and/or Florida Public Service Commissions, and satisfactory compliance by 
Chesapeake with all applicable federal securities laws. 

Based upon the statement of Chesapeake's intended purpose for the issuance of the common 
stock (as set forth in the Application), it is our opinion that the proposed issuance of coininon 
stock is for a proper purpose, and is consistent with the public interest, by enabling Chesapeake 
to fund its Performance Incentive Plan, Directors Stock Compensation Plan, and Employee Stock 
Award Plan. 

Accordingly, it is our opiiiioii that Chesapeake's pending Application for Commission approval 
pursuant to 26 Del. C. 5215 fully complies with the limited statutory requirements and findings 
necessary fur Commission approval. 

Very truly yours, 

Parkowski, Guerke & Swayze, PA.  

BY: WILLIAM A. DENMAN 

WAD/cl 
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GEORGE F. GARDNER, H I  
OF COUNSEL 

WILMINCTON OFFICE 
800 KING STREET, SUITE 203 

WILMINCTON, DE 19801-0369 
302-654-3300 

FAX: 302-654-3033 

August 9,2005 

Bruce H. Burcat, Executive Director 
Delaware Public Service Commission 
Suite 100, Cannon Building 
861 Silver Lake Blvd. 
Dover, DE 19904 

RE: Application of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation for the Approval of the Issuance of 
Long-Term Debt of up to $20,000,000 

Dear Mr. Burcat: 

We are Delaware counsel for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation ("Chesapeake") in connection 
with Chesapeake's Application for Commission approval of the issuance of up to $20,000,000 in 
long-term debt at a rate of 5.50%. Chesapeake's AppIication is submitted pursuant to 26 Del. C. 
$215. 

We are familiar with the terms, interpretations, and application of 26 Del. C. $215, which sets 
forth the required, but limited findings to be made by the Commission in its consideration of 
such a proposed issuance of debt. We note the limited scope of Commission review, as 
determined by the Delaware Supreme Court in the Diamond State Telephone Company case, 367 
A.2d 644 (1976). Specifically, in the Diamond State Telephone Company case, the Delaware 
Supreme Court held that the powers legislated to the Commission pursuant to 26 Del. C. $215 
were intended to be applied in cases of a proposed issuance of stock or debt for an inadequate 
consideration or for some other improper purpose. In Diamond State, the Delaware Supreme 
Court stated that in the absence of a showing of improper consideration, fraud, bad faith, or self- 
dealing on the part of the members of a utility's board of directors in their decision to issue 
shares of stock or debt for the purpose of raising needed monies, it would be improper for the 
Commission to substitute its judgment for that of the board of directors. 

Based upon our knowledge of the applicable statute, and its regulatory and judicia1 interpretation 
and application, it is our opinion that the proposed issuance of up to $20,000,000 of long-term 



debt at a rate of 5.50% for the purposes set forth in the aforesaid Application has been duly 
authorized by the Board of Directors of Chesapeake and is valid and in accordance with law, 
subject to any necessary approval on the part of the Maryland and/or Florida Public Service 
Commissions and satisfactory compliance by Chesapeake with all applicable federal securities 
laws. 

Based upon the statement of Chesapeake's intended purpose for the issuance of the long-term 
debt, it is our opinion that the proposed issuance of debt, as described in the Application, is for a 
proper purpose, and is consistent with the public interest, by enabling Chesapeake to retire short- 
term debt, that was incurred to fund the Company's capital expenditures program, including 
expansion of its natural gas transmission pipeline, expansion of the natural gas distribution 
system in Delaware and other capital expenditures to support the Company's growth. 

Accordingly, it is our opinion that Chesapeake's pending Application for Commission approval 
pursuant to 26 Del. C. 521 5 fully complies with the limited statutory requirements and findings 
necessary for Commission approval. 

Very truly yours, 

Parkowski, Guerke & Swayze, P.A. 

BY: WILLIAM A. DENMAN 

WADicl 



Exh bit K 

UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF 
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

F o r  the  Fiscal Year Ended: December 31,2005 Commission Fife Number:  001-11590 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)  

State of Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction of 

i n c o rp o ratio n o r or g a niz a ti o n 

51 -0064146 
(I.R.S. Employer 

Identification No.) 

909 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover. Delaware 19904 
(Address of principal executive offices. including zip code) 

3 02-734-679 9 
(Registrant’s telephone number,  including area code) 

Securities registered pursuant  to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

Title of each class 
Common Stock - par value per share $A867 

h a m e  of each exchange on which registered 
New k’ork Stock Exchange, Inc. 

Securities registered pursuant  to Section 12(g) of the Act: 
8.25% Convertible Debentures Due 2014 

(Title of class) 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer. as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes [ 1. N o  [XI. 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant IS  not required to file reports pursuant to Section I3 01’ Section I5(d) of the Act. Yes  [ 1. No [XI 

Indicate by check mark  whethcr the registrant ( 1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or  15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 during the yrececling 12 months (or fur  such shortei- period that thc registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has bee11 
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes [XI No [ ] 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein. and wllI not be 
contained. to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or inforination statements incorporated by reference in Part 111 of thls Fom? 
IO-K or any amendments to this Fonm IO-K [XI 



Indicate by check inark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of " 
accelerated filer and large accclerated filer * '  i n  RUIC 12b-2 of thc Exchange Act (Check onc). 
Large accclerated filer [ 1 Accelerated filer- [XI Non-accelerated filcr [ 1 

Indicate by check mal-h \\ hether the registrant 15 a shell company (as defined i n  K~ilc I311-7 oftlie Act) Yes 1 No 1x1 

The aggregate market value of the common shares held by non-affiliates of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation as of June 30, 2005, the last 
business day of its most recently completed second fiscal quarter, based on the last trade price on that date, as reported by the New York Stock 
Exchange, was approximately $ I70 million. 

As of March 2, 2006, 5,925,945 shares of common stock were outstanding. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated by reference in Part 111. 
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Part I 

Sa l e  tl a r bo r fo r F o rw a r (I -Look i 11 g S t ;I t e m e n t s 

References in this document to “Chesapeake,” “the Company,” Lrwe,’l “LIS” and “our” mean Chesapeake Utiiities Corporation and/or its wholly 
owned subsidiaries, as appropriate. Chesapeake Utilities Corporation has made statements in this Form I 0-K that are considered to be forward- 
looking statements. These statements are not inatters of historical fact. Sometimes they contain words such as “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” 
“plans,” “will” or “may,” and other similar words of a predictive nature. These statements relate to matters such as customer growth, changes in 
revenues or gross margins, capital cxpendihires, environmental remediation costs, regulatoiy approvals, market risks associated with our 
propane operations, the competitive position of the Company and other matters. It is important to understand that these forward-looking 
statements are not guarantees, but are subject to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could cause actual results to 
differ materially froin those in the forward-looking statements. 

ltem 1. Business. 

(a) General Development of Business 
Chesapeake is a diversified utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing, 
propane distribution and wholesale marketing, advanced information services and other related businesses. Chesapeake is a Delaware 
corporation that was formed in 1947. 

Chesapeake’s three natural gas distribution divisions serve approximately 54,800 residential, coininercial and industrial customers in central 
and southern Delaware, Maryland’s Eastern Shore and parts of Florida. The Company’s natural gas transmission subsidiary, Eastern Shore 
Nakiral Gas Company (“Eastern Shore” or “ESNG”), operates a 33 1 -mile interstate pipeline system that transports gas from various points in 
Pennsylvania to the Company’s Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions, as well as to other utilities and industrial customers in southein 
Pennsylvania, Delaware and on the Eastern Shore of Maryland. Our propane distribution operation serves approximately 32,900 customers in 
central and southern Delaware, the Eastern Shore of Maryland and Virginia, southeastern Pennsylvania, and parts of Florida. The advanced 
inforination services segment provides domestic and international clients with inforination technology related business services and solutions 
for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

(b) Financial Information about Industry Segments 
Financial infonnation by business segment is included in Item 8 nnder the heading “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note C.*’ 

fc) Narrative Description of Business 
Chesapeake is engaged in three primary business activities: natural gas distribution and transmission, propane distribution and wholesale 
marketing and advanced information services. In addition to the primary groups, Chesapeake has subsidiaries in other related businesses. 

(i) (a) Natural Cas Distrihufioi.r arid Trnrismission 
Gelzero 1 
Chesapeake distributes natural gas to residential. commercial and industrial customers in central arid southern Delaware, the Salisbury atid 
Cambridge. Maryland areas on Maryland‘s [{astcri-i Shore and parts of Florida. Thesc activities are conducted through thl-co utility 
divisions. one division i n  Delaware, anotheI- in Maryland and a third division in Floritla. ‘The Company also offers natural gas supply 
supply nianagrenient services in the state of floi-ida thioiigh i t s  subsidiary. Peninsula Energy Services Co~npany, Inc. (“PkSCO”). 

Delnwnr-e and Ma;vlnr7d. Chesapeake’s Delaware and Maryland utility divisions serve approximately 42,000 customers, of whrch 
approximately 4 1,800 are residential and comniercial customers purchasing gas priinarrly for heating purposes The iemamdel- are 
industrial customers For the y e a  2005, residential and coniinercial customers accounted for approximately 75% of thc volume deliver,ed 
by thc divisroiis and 68% of the divisions’ revenue 

- Page 1 - 



Florida , The Florida division distributes natwal gas to approximately 13,100 residential and commercial and 100 industrial customers i n  
Po I k, 0 s c c o I a. H i I I s b o I’U 1.1 g li  , Ci ads dc 11 . Ci i 1 c 11 I‘ is t , U 11 i o t i ,  f-1 o i ni c s. Jacks on D e so to, S LW an t i  e e .  L i b e rty a 11 cl C i tru s C o ~ r n  t i e s , C ur 1-e t i  t I y t h c 
industrial customers. w h i c h  purchase at id  ti-ansport gas on a firm basis, account for a p ~ ~ r ~ x i i i ~ a t e l y  90% of the volume delivei-ecl by the 
Florida division and  45% of the ~~cvenucs. These customers are pi.itiiai-ily engagecl in the citrus and phosphate inclustries and i n  clectr.ic 
cogeneration. PESCO provides natural gas supply iiiaiiageiiient services to 285 customers on the Company’s Florida division, which 
operates as Central Florida Gas arid an additional 424 customers on the Peoples Gas system, it subsidiary of TECO Energy, headquartered 
in Tampa, Florida. During 2005, Chesapeake foriiied a new wholly owned subsidiary, Peninsula Pipeline Company, Inc. to deliver natural 
gas to industrial customers by an intra-state pipeline. 

Eusjer-n $/qrre_The Company ’s wholly owned transmission subsidiary, Eastern Shore, owns and operates an interstate natural gas pipeline 
and provides open access transportation services for affiIiated and non-affiliated companies through an integrated gas pipeline extending 
froin southeastern Pennsylvania through Delaware to its terminus on the Eastem Shore of Maryland Eastern Shore also provides swing 
transportation service and contract storage services Eastern Shore’s rates and services are subject to regulation by the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Cominiss ion (“FERC”). 

Adeqrincy of Resozirces 
~ General , The Delaware and Maryland divisions have both firm and interruptible contracts with four interstate “open access” pipelines 
incIuding Eastern Shore. The divisions are directly interconnected with Eastern Shore and services upstream of Eastern Shore are 
contracted with Transcontinental Gas Pipeline Corporation {“Transco”), Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation (“Columbia”) and 
Columbia Gulf Transmission Company (“Gulf ’>, none of which are affiliates of tlie Company . The divisions use their firm transportation 
supply resources to meet a significant percentage of their projected demand requirements. In order to meet the difference between finn 
supply and firm demand, tlie divisions purchase natural gas supply on the spot market from various suppliers. This gas is transported by 
the upstream pipelines and delivered to the divisions’ interconnects with Eastern Shore. The divisions also have the capability to use 
propane-air peak-shaving to supplement or displace the spot market purchases. The Company believes that the availability of gas supply 
and transportation to the Delaware and Maryland divisions is adequate under existing arrangements to ineet the anticipated needs of their 
customers. 

Llelawgre-. The Delaware division’s contracts with Transco incIude: (a) firm transportation capacity of 9,029 dekatherms (“Dt”) per day, 
with provisioiis to continue from year to year, subject to six (6) months notice for termination; (b) firin transportation capacity of 3 1 1 Dt 
per day for December through Februaiy, expiring in 2006; (c) firm transportation capacity of 174 Dt per day, which expires in 2008; (d) 
finn transportation capacity of 1,842 Dt, currently released from Eastern Shore, which expires in 2006; (e) firin storage service, providing 
a total capacity of 142,830 Dt, with provisions to continue from year to year, subject to six (4 )  months notice for termination; and (0 firm 
storage service, providing a total capacity of 17,967 Dt, currently released from Eastern Shore, which expires in 2006. 

The Delaware division’s contracts with Columbia include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 880 Dt per day, which expires in 2014: (b) 
firm transportation capacity of 1,132 Dt pel day, which expires in 201 7; (c) firm transportation capacity of 549 Dt per day, which expires 
i n  201 8; ( d )  firm transportation capacity of 399 pel- clay, which expires in  201 9: (e) firiii storage service providing a peak clay entitIenient 
of 6,193 Dt and a total capacity of 298,195 Dt. which expires in 201 5 ;  (f) firm storage service, providing a peak day entitlement of 635 Dt 
and  a total capacity of 57,139 Dt, which expires i n  201 8; ( 8 )  firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 583 Dt and a total 
capacity of 52.460 [It, which expires in 201 9; i h )  firm storage service providing a peak day entitleincnt of 5 8 3  Dt and a total capacity of 
52.460 Dt, which expires in 2020; ( i )  Eimi storage service providing a peak day entitleinelit of 15 Dt and a total capacity of 1,350 Dt? which 
expires in 201 8: and (j) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 21 5 Dt and a total capacity of 10,646 Dt, which expires in 
20 I O .  Delaware’s contracts with Columbia for storage-related transportation provide quantities that are equivalent to the peak day 
entitlement for the period of October through March and are equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the peak day entitlement for the period of 
April through September. The terms of tlie storage-related transportation contracts mirror the storage services that they support. 
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The Delaware division’s contract with Gulf. which expires in 2009, provides firiii transportation capacity of 8x0 Dt per day for the period 
Novernbcr through Mal ch and 809 Ut p i  clay foi thc period ,4131 i I  t h i  ough Octobcr. 

The Delaware division’s contracts with Eastcrn Shore inclucic. (a)  fii-m transportation capacity of 43,757 Dt per- clay fot- t h o  periocl 
December through February, 42,565 Dt per day for the niontl-~s of November, March and April, and 33,489 Dt per day for the period May 
through October, with various expiration dates ranging from 2005 to 2017; (b) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 
2,455 Dt and a total capacity of 131,370 Dt, which expires in 2013; (c) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 580 Dt 
and a total capacity of 29,000 Dt, which cxpires in 2013; (a) fin11 storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 91 1 Dt and a total 
capacity of  5,708 Dt, which expires in 2006. 

The Delaware division currently has contracts for the purchase of firm natural gas supply with several suppliers. These supply contracts 
provide the availability of a rnaxiinum firm daily entitlement of 29,700 Dt and delivered on Transco, CoIumbia, and/or Gulf systems to 
Eastern Shore for redelivery under firm transportation contracts. The gas purchase contracts have various expiration dates and daily 
quantities may vary from day to day and month to month. 

M a y l g ~ d .  The Maryland division’s contracts with Transco include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 4,738 Dt per day, with provisions 
to continue froin year to year, subject to six (6) months notice for termination; (b) firm transportation capacity of 155 Dt per day for 
December through February, expiring in 2006; (c) firm transportation capacity of 973 Dt, currently released from Eastern Shore, which 
expires in 2006; (a) firm storage service providing a total capacity of 33,120 Dt, with provisions to continue from year to year, subject to 
six months notice for termination ; and (e) firin storage service, providing a total capacity of 5,484 Dt, currently released from Eastern 
Shore, which expires in 2006. 

The Maryland division’s contracts with Columbia include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 442 Dt per day, which expires in 2014; (b) 
firm trailsportation capacity of 908 Dt per day, which expires in 201 7; (c) firm transportation capacity of 350 Dt per day, which expires in 
2018; (d) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 3,142 Dt and a total capacity of 154,756 Dt, which expires in 2015; and 
(e) firin storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 521 Dt and a total capacity of 46,881 Dt, which expires in  201 8. The Marylancl 
division’s contracts with Columbia for storage-related transportation provide quantities that are equivalent to the peak day entitlement for 
the period October through March and are equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the peak day entitlement for the period April through 
September. The terms of the storage-related transportation contracts mirror the storage services that they support. 

The Maryland division’s contract with Gulf, which expires in 2009, provides firm transportation capacity of 590 Dt per day for the period 
November through March and 543 Dt per day for the period April through October. 

The Maryland division’s contracts with Eastern Shore include: (a) firm transportation capacity of 16,278 Dt per day for the period 
December through February, 15,554 Dt per day foi- the months of November, March and April and 10,993 Dt per day for the period May 
t l ~ r o ~ ~ g l i  Octobei-. with vat-ious expiration dates ranging froin 2006 to 20 15: (b) firm storage capacity providiiig a peak day cntitlement of 
1,428 Dt and  a total capacity of 70,665 Dt, which expires in 2013; (c) firm storage capacity providing a peak clay entitlement o f309  Dt and 
a total capacity of 15,500 Dt. which expires i n  201 3; and (d) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 569 Dt and a total 
capacity of 3,560 Dt, which cxpires in 3006. 
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‘The Maiyland division currently has contracts for the purchase of firm natural gas supply with several suppliers. These siipply coiitracts 
prov~cle the availability of  a maximum firm claily cntitleincnt of 7.500 Dt delivered on Ti-ansco. Columbia. and/or ( I L I I ~  sq’stfciiis to Eastcrn 
Sh ore for I-ed e 1 i very LI n clc I’ th  e M a ry 1 and  d I vi s i o 11 ‘ s tra 11s porta t i 011 con t I-ac ts . I- I1 c ?as p1ii.c 11 ase cor t rac t s ha \ ,c  1 7  a i -  i oii s ex 17 i 1.~1 I I on (la t i‘ t. ;I rI cl 
daily quantitics may v a r y  Fr-om day to day arid inonth to month. 

FlgcLdg- , The Florida division receives transportation service froiii Florida Gas Transmission Company (“FGT”), a major interstate 
pipeline. Chesapeake has contracts with FGT for: (a) daily firm transportation capacity of 27,579 Dt in November through April; 21,123 
Dt  in May through September, and 27,105 Dt in October, which expires in 2010; and (b) daily film transportation capacity of 1,000 Dt 
daily, which expires in 201 5 .  

The Florida division also began receiving transportation service from Gulfstream Natural Gas System (“Gul fstreain”), beginning in June 
2002. Chesapeake has a contract with Gulfstream for daily firm transportation capacity of 10,000 Dt daily. The contract with Gulfstream 
expires May 31,2022. 

PESCO currently has a contract with Eagle Energy Partners for the purchase of firm natural gas supply. This contract provides the 
availability of a maxiinuin firm daily entitlement of 7,500 MMBists. The gas purchase contraci expires in April 2006. 

Eastern Shore , Eastern Shore has 2,720 thousand cubic feet (“Mcf”) of firm transportation capacity under contract with Transco, which 
expires in 2008. Eastern Shore also has contracts with Transco for: (a) 5,406 Mcf of firm peak day entitlements and total storage capacity 
of 267,98 1 Mcf, which expires in 201 3;  and (b) 1,640 Mcf of film peak day entitlements and total storage capacity of 10,283 Mcf, which 
expires in 2006. 

Eastern Shore has retained the firm transportation capacity and firm storage services described above in order to pi-ovrde swing 
transportation service and storage service to those customers that requested such service 

Con rye f itio n 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Competition ’I 

Rates nnd Regrrlntinii 
General . Chesapeake’s natural gas distribution divisions are subject to regulation by the Delaware, Maryland and Florida Public Service 
Commissions with respect to various aspects of the business, including the rates for sales and transportation to all customers in each 
respective j~uisdiction. All of Chesapeake’s firm distribution sales rates are sub.ject to gas cost recovery mechanisms, which match 
revenues with gas costs and normally allow eventual f d l  recovery of gas costs. Adjustments under these mechanisms, which are limited to 
gas costs, require periodic filings and hearings with the relevant regulatory authority. 

Eastern Shore is sub-ject to I-egulatioii by the FERC as an interstate pipeline The FERC‘ regulates the provision o f  service, tcrins and 
conditioiis of service, and  the rates Eastern Shore can charge for its transportalion and  storage services. 

Management monitors the achieved rate of rctcrm in each jurisdiction in  ordcr to ensurc the timely filing o-f rate cases. 

R egnlato 13 1 Pro ceedirip 5 

See discussion of regulatory activities 111 ltein 7 under thc heading “Managciiient’s Discussion and  Analysis -- IieguiatoI-1, Activltles .’ 
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(i) (b) Propr im Distrihrrtion rind Wholesale Mnrlretirig 
Ge ~r e d  
Chewpeakc’s propatic distribution group consists o f  ( 1 ’l Sharp Eiicrgy. lnc (“Sharp knergy”), who11) ownccI iuhsidiar!l o f  C l i c saphe ,  
(3) Sharpgas, lnc  (“Shai pgai”) .  a wliolly owned subsid~ary of Shal p Enetgy, and  (3) Tri-County Gas Co . Iiuw-poi-atccl (“TI 1-County“), a 
wholly owned subsrdiary of Sharp Energy The propane wliolesale marketing gt aup consists of Xeron, Inc (“Xcron’’), a wholly owned 
subsidiaiy of Chesapeake 

Propane is a form of liquefied petroleuiii gas, which is typically extracted from natural gas or separated during the crude oil refining 
process. Although propane is a gas at norinal pressure, it is easily compressed into liquid form for storage and transportation Propane is a 
clean-burning fLie1, gaining increased recognition for its environmental superiority, safety, efficiency, transportability and ease of use 
relative to alternative forms of energy. Propane is sold primarily in suburban and rural areas, which are not served by natural gas 
distributors. Demand is typically much higher in the winter months and is significantly affected by seasonal variations, particularly the 
relative severity of winter temperatures, became of its use in residential and commercial heating. 

During 2005, our propane distribution operations served approxirnateIy 32,900 propane customers on the Delimrva Peninsula, 
southeastern Pennsylvania and in Florida and delivered approxiinately 26 inillion retail and wholesale gallons of propane. 

In May 1998, Chesapeake acquired Xeron, a natural gas liquids trading company located in Houston, Texas. Xeron markets propane to 
large independent and petrochemical companies, resellers and southeastern retail propane companies in the United States, Additional 
inforination on Xeron’s trading and wholesale marketing activities, market risks and the controls that liinit and monitor the risks are 
included in Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Market Risk.” 

The propane distribution business is affected by many factors, such as seasonality: the absence of price regulation, and competition among 
local providers. The propane wholesale marketing business is affected by wholesale price volatility and the supply and deinand for propane 
at a wholesale level 

AcIeyuncjJ c7J’Resource.Y 
The Cotnpany’s propane distribution operations purchase propane priniarily from suppliers, inchding major domestic oii coinpanies and 
independent producers of gas liquids and oil. Supplies of propane from these and other sources are readily available for purchasc by the 
Company. Supply contracts generally include minimum (not subject to take-or-pay premiums) and ~naxiniuin purchase provisions. 

The Company’s propane distribution operations use tnicks and railroad cars to transport propane from refineries. natural gas processing 
plants or pipeline terminals to its bulk storage facilities. From these facilities, propane is delivered in portable cylinders or by “bobtail” 
tnxks, owned and operated by the Company, to tanks located at the customer’s premises. 

Xeron does not own physical storage facilities or equipment to transport propane: however, it contracts for storagc and pipeline capacity to 
fiicilitate the sale of propane on a wholesale basis. 

Conzpctitimn 
Scc discussion on competition in ltcin 7 under the heading “Management‘s Discusion and Analysis ~~ C‘ompetition ’ *  
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Rat cs a11 d Rep‘latio I? 

T h e  propane distribution aiid wholesale niarketiny actis.ttics are n o t  sub-jject to any Federal or state pricing regulation. Transport operations 
are sub.ject to regulations concerning the transportation of hazarclous materials pron-~~ilgated uncler tlic Federal Motor Carrier Safety Act. 
\\ihicIi is aclrninistered by thc United States Dcyai-tmcnt o f  Transportation ancl eiiforced by the various states in which such opei-ations takc 
place. Propane distribution operations are also subject to state safety regulations relating to “hook-up” and placenient of propane tanks. 

The Company ’s propane operations are subject to all operating hazards normally associated with the handling, storage and transportation 
of coiiibustible liquids, such as the risk of personal injury a i d  property damage caused by fire. The Company carries general liability 
insurance in the amount of $35 million, but there is no assurance that such insurance will be adequate. 

(9 (c) Advanced IrzforInation Services 
General 
Chesapeake’s advanced infonnation services segment consists of BravePoint, Inc. (“BravePoint”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company. BravePoint, headquartered in Norcross, Georgia, provides domestic and international clients with information technology 
related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

Coiizp e tit io M 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Competition.” 

(i) (d) Other Stcbsidimies 
Skipjack, Inc. (“Skipjack”), Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. and Chesapeake Investment Company are wholly owned subsidiaries of 
Chesapeake Service Company. Skipjack and Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. own and lease office buildings in Delaware and Maryland to 
affiliates of Chesapeake Chesapeake Iiivestnient Company is a Delaware affiliated investment coiiipany. During 2004, Chesapeake 
formed a new wholly owned subsidiary, OnSight Energy, LLC (“OnSight”), to provide distributed encrgy solutions to customers requiring 
reliable, uninteri-tipted energy sources and/or those wishing to reduce energy costs 

(ii) Seasonal Nature of Biisiizess 
Revenues fi-oiii the Coinpany’s residential and cox71mercial natural gas sales and from its propane distr-ibution activities are affected by 
scasonal variations, since the nia-jority of these sales are to customers using the fLiels for hcating purposes. Revenues fiom these customers 
are accordiiigly affected by the mildness or severity of the heating season, 

(iii) Cnpitnl Budget 
A discussion of capital expenditures by business segment and capita1 expenditures for envrronmenta1 control facilities are included in Item 
7 under the heading “Management Discussion and Analysis - Liquidity and Capital Resources.” 

(iv) EIIZJJEOJWC‘S 
As of Deceiiibei- 3 1 . 2005. Chesapeake h a d  423 employees, including 1 8 5  in na t~ i ra l  gas, 140 i n  propane and 60 in advanced infcmiiation 
services. The remaining 38 employees are considered general and administrative and include officers of the Cori-~pany, treasury, 
accounting, internal audit, information technology, huinan resources ancl other acfniinistrative personnel. 
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(v) E.recrrtive Officers n f the Registrant 
Infimiation pertaining to the executive officers of the C o m p a n ~  I <  as fc'c,Ilows 

.luhn I<. Scliitnltaitis (age 5 8 )  Mr. Schiimkaitis is Pi-esiclent a n d  Chief Executive Officcr of Chcsapcakc and its subsidiaries. MI.. Schimkaitis 
assumed the role of Chief Executive Officer on Jaii~ia1-y I ,  1999. He has served as President since 1997. Prior to this, MI-. Schiiiikaitis 
served as President and Chief Operating Officer, Executive Vice President, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, 
Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretary of Chesapeake. 

Paid M-, Barbas (age 49) Mr. Barbas is Chief Operating Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. He was appointed to his current 
position effective January 1, 2006. He previously served as Executive Vice President and President of Chesapeake Service Company. He 
was appointed Executive Vice President in 2004 and served as Vice President and President of Chesapeake Service Company since joining 
the company in 2003. Prior to joining Chesapeake, Mr. Barbas was Executive Vice President of Allegheny Power. Mr. Barbas joined 
Allegheny Energy as President of Allegheny Ventures in I999 and was appointed Executive Vice President of Allegheny Power in 2001. 
Prior to 1999 Mi-. Barbas held a variety of executive positions within G.E. Capital. 

Michael P. ~ McMasters (age 47) Mr. McMasters is Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. 
He was appointed Senior Vice President in 2004 and has served as Chief Financial Officer since December 1996. He has previously held 
the positions of Vice President, Treasurer, Director of Accounting and Rates, and Controller. From 1992 to May 1994, MI. McMasters was 
employed as Director of Operations Planning for Equitable Gas Company. 

Stenhen C, ,7hmpson (age 45) Mr. Thompson is President of Eastern Shore Nahu-a1 Gas Company and Senior Vice President of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. Prior to becoming Senior Vice President in 2004, he served as Vice President of Chesapeake since May 
1997. He  has also served as Vice President, Director of Gas Supply and Marketing? Superintendent of Eastem Shore and Regional 
Manager for the Florida distribution operations. 

Beth W .  Cooper (age 39) Ms. Cooper is Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretai-y of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. Ms.  
Cooper has served as Corporate Secretary since July 2005. She previously served as Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretary, Director 
of Internal Audit, Director of Strategic Plannjng, Planning Consultant, Accounting Manager for Non-regulated Operations and Treasury 
Analyst. Prior to joining Chesapeake, she was employed as an auditor with Einst & Young's Entrepreneurial Scrvices Group. 

S. Robert Zola (age 5 3 )  Mr. Zolcl joined Sharp Energy in August of 2002 as President. Prior to joining Sharp Energy, Mr. Zola most 
recently served as Northeast Regional Managel- of Synergy Gas, now Cornerstone MLP, in Philadelphia, PA. During his 25-year career in 
the propane industry. Nlr. Zola also started Bluestreak Propane in Phoenix, AZ, which after successfully developing the business, was sold 
to Ferrei1 Gas. 

(vi) Financial I~?zf;7 mintion rr ho I I  t Geograplz ic A r-eos 
A11 of the Company's mateiial operations, customers, and assets occur and are located in the United States 

(d) Available Informatiou 
As a public coinpany, C'hesapcakke files annual, quarterly and othei- reports. as well as its annual proxy statcnient and othw information, witt i  
the Securities and Exchange C:oti~i-nission ("the SEC"'). The public may read and copy any InateriaIs that the Company files with the SEC at the 
SEC's Public Reference Rooin at I00 F Street. N.E. 
Washington, DC 20549-5546; and the p b l i c  may obtain information on  the operation of the Public Reference Room hy calling the SEC at 1 - 
800-SEC-0330. The SEC also inaintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information 
regarding the Company. The address of the SEC's Internet website is www.sec.gov. Chesapeake makes available, fi-ee of charge, on its Internet 
website its Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 1 0-Q, Current Reports on Form S-K and amendments to those reportsI as 
soon as reasonably practicablc after such reports are electronically filed with or fiirnished to the SEC. The address of Chesapeake's Internet 
website is www.chpk.com, The content of this website is not part of this report. 
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Chesapeake has a Business Code of Ethics and Conduct applicable to all employees, officers and  directors and a Code of Ethics for- Financial 
Officers. Copies of thc Business Coclo of Ethics and Conduct mil the Financial Office!- Code of tthrcs ai-e ax,ailablc on its website. Chesapeakc 
a I so a clop t cd Cor p o r a t e G c) v ern a 11 ce G ti i de I i n es 2111 d C h a rt c rs fo r t h e A u tl i t C oiim i t t e e C o 121 13 e n sa t i o 11 C ’ o 111 in i t te c . an d G o vel. n a 11 ce c‘ on1  TI it t e e 
of the Boai-cl of Directors. c a d i  of which satisfies thc I-eguiatory i.equii.cmcnts established by the Scciirrties a n d  Exchange Commission a n d  the 
New Y ork Stock Exchange (“NYSE”). The Board of Directors has also adopted “Corporate Governance Guideiines on Director 
Independence,” which conform to the N Y  SE listing standards on director independence. Each of these documents also is available on 
Chesapeake’s Internet website or iiiay be obtained by writing to: Corporate Secretaiy; c/o Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 909 Silver Lake 
Blvd.; Dover, DE 19904. 

If Chesapeake makes any aineiidiiient to, or grants a waiver of, any provision of the Business Code of Ethics and Conduct or the Financial 
Officer Code of Ethics appIicable to its principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, the 
amendment or waiver will be disclosed within five business days on the Company’s Internet wcbsite. 

Item 1A. Risk Factors. 

The following is a discussion of the primary factors that may affect the operations and/or financial performance of the regulated and 
unregulated businesses of Chesapeake. Refer to the section entitled “Mmagenzerzf ’s Disczission and Analysis of FirzanciaI Condition and 
Results of Uperatzor~s “ under ltein 7 of this report for an additional discussion of these and other related factors that affect the Company’s 
operations and/or financial performance The principal business, econoinic and other factors that affect the operations and/or financial 
performance of the Company include: 

Flactiintiorzs in weather Iinve the potential to adversely tiffbet the compuny ’s results of operntioizs, cicsh flows nizd financial condition. 
The Company’s regulated utility and propane distribution operations are weather sensitive, with a significant portion of I t s  revenues derived 
froni the delivery of nahrral gas and propane to residential and corninercial heating customers during the winter season. Generally, weather 
conditions directly influence the volume of natural gas and propane delivered by the regulated utility and propane distribution operations. 

Regrilrrtioit of Cltesnpecike, irzclrrdiizg clmiiges in the regulatory environment in geizernl, I ~ J ‘  nclverseljj icffect the cnnzpniv.y’s resiilts 
ope ratio lis, cash flows and. f ina ti cia1 con ditio 11. 

The state Public Service Coinmissions of Delaware, Maiyland and Florida regulate the natural gas distribution operations . The Conipany‘s 
natural gas transmission operation is regulated by the FERC. These regulatory commissions set the rates in their respective jurisdictions that the 
Company can charge customers for its rate-regulated services. Changes in these rates, as ordei-ed by regulatory commissions, affect the 
Company ’ s financ i a1 per fornian ce . 

The Company expects that regulatory commissions will continue to set the prices for delivery service that give it an opporhmity to earn a just 
and reasonable rate of return on the capital invested in its distribution systein and to recover reasonable operating expenses. 

The nnzoiint and avnilahility 4 f’natnral gas and propme supplies lire d$ficult to predict, which miiy reduce 0111” enrniiigs. 
Nahiral gas and propane production can be impacted by factors outsidc of the Company’s conti-01, such as weather and refinery closings. ‘rIlc 
C’ompany believes i t  has aclcquatc resources to meet its C L I S ~ ~ I W X ’ S  needs. See discussion on adequacy of resources iii Item 1 under the heading 
*‘ Bus i ness - N arra tiv e I l e x  1.1 p t io ti of B LIS In e s s . ’‘ 
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Clzestrpeake relies o n  direct coniiectioizs to interstate pipelines and s f n m q e  capacity. J f '  these piyelines or storage fi-lcilities were tinable to 
ilcliwr,fur a i q !  reciso~i it corrld i ~ i i p i r  Ches~lpcnkc's uhility to irzeet its ciistoiize!.s'.fiili requirenrrnts. 
Chesapeake is responsible for acquirinz both sufficient natural gas supplies and interstate pipeline aiicl c;tor-age capacity to meet customer 
reqiirrements. As such, Chesapeake must contract for- i-eliable and adequate clelivci-y capacity to its clisti-ibution system, while considering thc 
dynamics of the interstate yipeliiie and storage capacity mal-ket, its own on-system peak-shaving facilities, as well as the characteristics of i t s  

cu s t om er bas e. 

Local distribution companies, including Chesapeake, along with other participants in the energy industry, have raised 'concerns regarding the 
gradual depletion in the availability of additional upstream interstate pipeline and storage capacity. Diminishing pipeline and storage capacity is 
a business issue that must be inanaged by the Company, whose custoiner base has grown at an annual rate between seven and nine percent. 
This rate of growth is expected to continue. To help maintain the adequacy of pipeline and storage capacity for its growing customer base, the 
Company has contracted with various interstate pipeline and storage companies for the acquisition of additional existing capacity, as well as, 
the construction of new capacity by ESNG. The Company will continue to monitor other opportunities to acquire 01' participate in obtaining 
additional pipeline and storage capacity that will improve or maintain the high level of service expected by its customer base. 

Natural gas and propane conzmodiljl price changes nzny affect the operatiizg costs and conipetitive positions of' tlie company Is natural gas 
and propane disfsihction operations, which coiild ndvemely ajfect its results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

Natural Gas 
Increased prices of natural gas are being driven by increased demand that is exceeding the growth in available supply. As discussed above, the 
fall 2005 hurricane season significantly reduced the current and anticipated availability of natural gas supply froin the Gulf Coast region, 
causing a dramatic rise in natural gas prices during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005. The higher n a h d  gas prices resulted in significant 
iiicreases in the cost of gas billed to customers during the upcoming 2005-2006 winter heating season. Under its regulated gas cost recoveiy 
mechanisms, Chesapeake records cost of gas expense equal to the cost of gas recovered in revenues from customers. Accordingly, an increase 
in the cost of gas due to an increase in the purchase price of the natural gas coininodity generally has no direct effect on the regulated utility's 
net revenues and net income. However, net income may be reduced due to higher expenses that may be incurred for uncollectible custoinel- 
accounts, as well as lower voluines of natural gas deliveries to firm customers that may result due to lower nahiral gas consumption caused by 
customer conservation. Increases in the price of natural gas also can affect the Company's operating cash flows, as well as the coiiipetitiveness 
of natural gas as an energy source. 

Propane 
The level of profitability in the retail propane business is largely dependent on the difference between retail sales price and product cost. The 
unit cost of propane is subject to volatile changes as a result of  product supply or other market conditions, including, but not limiter1 to, 
economic and political factors impacting crude oil and natural gas supply or pricing. Product cost changes can occur rapidly over a short period 
of time and can impact profitability. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to pass on product cost increases filly or 
immediately, particularly when product costs increase or decrease rapidly. Therefore, average retail sales prices can vary significantly fl-om 

yeai- to ycar as product costs fluctuate with propane, fuel oil, crude oil and natural gas coininodity market conditions. I n  addition, in periocls of 
sustained higher commodity prices, as was exper-iencecl in fiscal 2005, retail sales volumes may be negatively impacted by customer 
conservation efforts and increased amounts o f  uncollectecl accounts. 

Tlie wykacenient qf'less efficieiit gas crpplicinces iviih Jiwre e i ieqy effkient npp'lini?ces will resrrlt irr i~ decline qf comuinytion per CIl.Yt{)Flztlr, 

wizicl? will lend to redrrced revenues. 
Natural gas and propane supply requirements may be affected by changes in nahiraI gas and propane consumption by end-use customers. 
Natural gas and propane usage per- custoiner will decline as customers replace older, less efficient gas appliances with more efficient 
appliances. In addition, homebuilders in each of the growth areas are installing the newer, more efficient appliances in the homes they build. 
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Each qf' Cliesclpenke I s  scgmei~ts competes in ci competitive enviroiznient and / n q '  De firced with losing cirstomerv to a coii~petitnr. 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under thc hcacling "Managciiient's Discussion and Anal> SIS - Competition.' 

A ch nng e iir CIf c w i p  e irk e 's rryy ro r led rate u t  ecli ct I? isms , fo I' r e m  very (? f ' eii vir ( I  I I 111 en t ( I  I rei11 eclici tio 17 costs ( I  r jbrnr C'I' 111 [I 11 ufir ctrt re I -  g:is sites 
could crdversely qfjkct the coiripariy 's results of operations, cash Jaws aizclfiiinizcial coiiditioiz. 
The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations related to environmental matters. These evolving 
laws and regulations may require expenditures over a long time frame to control environmental effects. Refer to Note M of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion of these matters. 

A clzangc iiz the econoinic coiiditioiis aiid interest rates could adversely affect tlie compmy 's results of operations aiid cash flows. 
The Company and its subsidiaries operate in one of the fastest growing regions in the nation. The continued prosperity of this region, supported 
by a relatively low interest-rate environment, has allowed our regulated utility to expand its delivery seivices to its customer base at a rate of 
growth approximately twice the national industry average during the past five years. A downturn in the economy of the region in which we 
operate, or a significant increase in interest rates, which cannot be predicted with accuracy, might adversely affect the Company's ability to 
grow its regulated utility customer base and other businesses at the same rate they have grown in the recent past. 

The Company has been operating in a relatively low interest-rate environment in the recent past as it relates to long-term debt financings. 
Short-term interest rates had been relatively low in relation to historical levels; however, actions and coiiimunications by the Federal Reserve in 
the past year have resulted in increases in short-tenii interest rates. A rise in interest rates without the recovery of the higher- cost of debt in the 
sales and/or transportation rates the Company charges I t s  utility customers couid adversely affect hh i re  eai-nings. A rise in short-term interest 
rates would negatively affect the results of operations, which depend on short-term debt to finance accounts receivable and storage gas 
inventories. 

IiiJatioii /Deflation conditions may impact Chesapeake 's results qf'operntions, cash ,#lows, n i t ~ ~ ~ n a r i c i a l  position. 
See discussion on competition in ltein 7 under the heading "Manageii-tent's Discussion and Analysis ~ Inflation." 

Clinrzges in tecliiio fogy could adversely @ect the Coizpnny 's ctdvaiiced inforination services segnten f 's resrilts of' operations, ccish f h u s ,  
cui dfii i  cut cinl con ditio 17. 
The advanced information services segment participates in  a market that is charactei-ized by rapidly changing technology and accelerating 
product introduction cycles. The success of o w  advanced information services segment clepetids upon our ability to address the rapidly 
changing needs of our customers by developing and supplying high-quality, cost-effective products, product enhancements and services on a 
timely basis, and by keeping pace with technological developments and emerging industry standards. 

The Conipnny 's propane wholesale and inarketing operntioii has credit risk that coiild adverse[y @ect tlie Compcrizy 's results of opercrtioizs, 
cn sh Jo ws, n n d f i i z  n ii c in f con clition. 
The propane wholesale and marketing opei aiioii extends ct ectrt to its counter-parties Despite prudent credit policies, the Coiiipany I:, eupnsed 
to the risk that i f  may not be able to collect amounts owed to i t  If the counter-party to such a transaction fails to perfoi m and any collateral the 
Company has secured is inadequate, the Conipany could experience financial losses 

CIt escipeli lie 's cise of der ivn live iiistrnnt en ts co ir  lrl nciverse~~ 7 uffect th e coi?ipaiiy 's res ii its of '  opcrr a f io i ts.  

The Company's propanc distribution operation uses derivative instruments, including forwards. swaps, and puts, to heclse propane price risk, 
Fluchlating propane prices cause earntngs and  financing costs of Chesapeake to be impacted. The use of derivative instruments that are not 
perfectly matched to the exposure could advcrsely affect the Company's results of operations. cash flows, and financial conclitions. 
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ltem 1 B. Unresolved Staff Comments. 

N u n c .  

ltem 2. Properties 

(a) General 
The Coinpany owns offices and operates facilities in the following Iocations: Pocoiiioke, Salisbury, Cambridge and Princess Anne, Maiyland; 
Dover, Seaforcl, Laurel and Georgetown, Delaware; and Winter Haven, Florida. Chesapeake rents office space in Dover and Ocean View, 
Delaware; Jupiter and Lecanto, Florida; Chincoteague and Belle Haven, Virginia, Easton, and Salisbury, Maryland; Honey Brook and 
Allentown, Pennsylvania; Houston, Texas; and Atlanta, Georgia. In general, the Company believes that Its properties are adequate for the uses 
for which they are employed. Capacity and utilization of the Company’s facilities can vary significantly due to the seasonal nature of the 
natural gas and propane distribution businesses. 

(b) Natural Gas Distribution 
Chesapeake owns over 880 iiiiles of natural gas distribution mains (together with related service lines, meters and regulators) located in its 
Delaware and Maryland service areas and 695 miles of natural gas distribution mains (and related equipment) in its central Florida service 
areas. Chesapeake also owns facilities in Delaware and Maryland for propane-air injection during periods of peak demand. 

(c) Natural Gas Transmission 
Eastern Shoie owns and operates approxiinately 33 1 miles of transiiiission pipelines extending from supply interconnects at Parkesbw-g, 
Pennsylvania; Dalevrlle, Pennsylvania and Hockessin, Delaware to approximately 75 delivery points 111 southeastem Pennsylvania, Delaware 
and the eastern shore of Maryland 

(d) Propane Distribution and Wholesale Marketing 
The company’s Delinarva-based propane distribution operation owns bulk propane storage facilities wi tli an aggregate capacity of 
approximately 2.0 million gallons at 42 plant facilities in Delaware, Maryland and Virginia, Iocated on real estate that is either owned or leased. 
Tlrc Company’s Florida-based propane distribution operation owns three bulk propane storage facilities with a total capacity of 66,000 gal Ions. 
Xeroii does riot own physical storage facilities or equipinent to  transport propane; however, it leases propane storage capacity and pipeline 
capacity. 

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings 

(a) General 
The Company and  its subsidiaries are involvcd in various legal actions and  claims arising in the normal course of business. The Company is 
also involved in certain legal and administrative proceedings before various goveI-mnental agencies concerning rates. I n  the opinion of 
iiianageinent, the ultimate disposition of thesc proceedings wil I not have a material cffect on  our consolidated financial position. 

(b) E t i  vi ro n ni en tal 
S e e  cltscussion of environiiiental coiiim~tmeiits and  contingencies 111 Item 8 under the hcading “Notes to Consnliclatccl Financial Statements -- 
Note M ’’ 

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders. 

None 
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Part I 1  

Item 5 .  Market  for the Registrant’s Cornnioii Ecltiit), Relatecl Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases o f  Equity Securities. 

(a) Common Stock Price Ranges, Common Stock Dividends and Shareholder Information: 
The Company’s Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CPK.” The high, low and closing prices of 
Chesapeake’s Coininon Stock and dividends declared per share for each calendar quarter during the years 2005 and 2004 were as follows: 

Ouarter Ended 

Dividends 
Declared 

High Low Close Per Share 
~ ~~ 

2005 
March 31 !$ 27.5900 $ 25.8300 $ 26.6000 $ 0.2800 
June 30 30.9500 23.6000 30.5800 0.2850 

35.6000 59.5000 35 0.2850 
December 31 35.7799 30.3227 30.8000 0.2850 

2004 
March 31 $ 26.5100 $ 24.3000 $ 25.6200 $ 0.2750 

26.2000 20.4200 22.7000 0.2800 
25.4000 22.1000 25.1000 0.2800 

December 3 I 27 5500 24.5000 26.7000 0.2800 

Dividend payments are payable at the discretion of our Board o f  Directors. Future payment of dividends. and the ainount of these dividends, 
will depend on ow financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, and other factors. We sold no securities during the year 2005 
that were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

Indentures to the long-term debt of the Conipany contain various restrictions. The most stringent restrictions state that the Company nll1st 

maintain equity of at least 40 percent of total capitalization and the pro-forma fixed charge coverage ratio niust be at least I .5 times. 

At December 3 1, 2005, there were approximately 2.026 shareholders of record of the Coimnon Stock 
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(b) Purchases of Equity Securities bj, the Issuer 
The following table sets forth information on pLircIiases by or on behalf of Chesapeakc 0 shai-es of its Coiiinion Stock diii-irig the quarter cndccl 
December 3 I .  200.5. 

Total 
Number of 

Shares 
Period Purchased 

295 
5 

Total 
Number of 

Shares 
P u r c h a s ed 
as Part of 
Publicly 

Announced 
Average Phns  O r  

Price Paid Programs 
per Share (2) 

$ 36.00 0 

Maximum 
Number of 

Shares 
T h a t  May 

Yet Be 
Purchased 
Under the 
Plans or 

Programs 
(2 1 

0 
November 1, 2005 through November 30, 
2005 O $  0.00 0 0 
December 1, 2005 through December 3 1, 
2005 0 s  0.00 0 0 

Total 295 $ 36.00 0 0 

(‘1 Chesapeake purchased shares of stock on the open market to add to shares held in a Rabbi Trust to 
adjust the balance to the contractual value. 295 shares were pi-chased through executive dividend 
cleferrah 

12) Chesapeake has 110 publicly announced plans or programs to repurchase its shares. 

See discussiun on compensation plans of Chesapeake and its subsidiaries under which shares of Chesapeake coininon stock are authorized ~ O I -  

issuance in Item 12 under the heading “Security Ownership of Ceitain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. 
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ltem 6. Selected Financial D a t a  

For the Y e w s  Ended Uecernbei- 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 I ”  2001 ( I )  

Operating (in tIzoiism?ds of ~lollars,~ (’) 

Revenues 
Natural gas distribution and transiiiission $ 166,582 $ 124,246 $ 110,247 $ 93,588 $ 107,418 
Propane 
Advanced in forinati on s s y s tein s 

48,976 4 1,500 41,029 29,238 35,742 
14,140 12,427 12,578 12,764 14,104 

Other and eliminations (68) (218) (286) (334) (113) 
Total revenues $ 229,630 $ 177,955 $ 163,568 $ 135,256 $ 157,151 

Operating income 
Nat~iral gas distribution and transmission $ 17,234 $ 17,091 $ 16,653 $ 14,973 $ 14,405 

3,209 2,364 3,875 2 913 
formations systems 1,197 387 692 343 517 

Other and eliminations 128 9 23 7 3 86 
Total operating income $ 21,530 $ 19,970 $ 21,579 $ 16,605 $ 16,221 

Net income from continuing operations $ 10,468 $ 9,550 $ 10,079 $ 7,535 $ 7,341 

Assets (in tlzo~~snnds qf dollars) 
Gross property, plant and equipment $ 280,345 $ 250,267 $ 231,919 $ 229,128 9; 216,903 
Net property, plant and equipment (4) $ 201,504 $ 377,053 $ 167,872 $ 166,846 $ 161,014 
Total assets 141 $ 295,980 $ 241,938 $ 222,058 $ 223,721 $ 222,229 
Capital expenditures $ 33,423 $ 17,830 $ 11,822 $ 13,836 $ 26,293 

Capitalization (in thnuscinds of‘dollnrs) 
Stockholders’ equity $ 84,757 $ 77,962 $ 72,939 $ 67,350 $ 57,517 
Long-term debt, net of current Iiiahmties 58,991 66,190 69,416 73,408 48,409 
To tal capitalization $ 143,748 $ 144,152 $ 142,355 $ 140,758 $ 115,926 

Current portion of long-term debt $ 4,929 $ 2,909 $ 3,665 $ 3,938 $ 2,686 
Short-term debt 35,482 5,002 3,515 10,900 42,100 
Total capitalization and short-term financing $ 184,159 $ 152,063 $ 149,535 $ 155,596 $ 160,712 

The years 2002, 2001,2000 and 1999 have been restated in order to reflect the Company’s Delaware 
and Maryland natural gas divisions on the ‘‘ accmal” rather than the “as billed” revenue recognition 
method . 

(31The years 1998, 1997, and 1996 have not been restated to reflect the “accrual” revenue iecognition 
method due to the 1niinaterlalIty of the impact on the Company’s f inancd results. 

( j )  These amounts exclude the iesults of water services due to their reclassification to discontinued 
operations The assets of all of the water businesses were sold in 2004 and 2003. 

‘’I The years 2005, 2004. 2003, 2002 and 2001 teflect the results of aclopting SFAS 143. 
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

For the Years Ended December 31. 

Operating (in tlzonsaiids qfdo1Ea1-s) 
Revenues 

Natural gas distribution and transiiiission 
Propane 
Advanced informations systems 
Other and eliminations 

Total revenues 

$ 101,138 $ 75,637 $ 68,770 $ 88,108 $ 90,044 
31,780 25,199 23,377 28,614 36,727 
12,390 13,53 1 10,33 1 7,786 7,230 

(131) (14) (15) (182) (243) 
$ 145,177 $ 114,353 $ 102,463 $ 124,326 $ 133,758 

Operating income 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $. 12,798 $ 10,388 $ 8,820 $ 9,240 $ 9,627 

2,622 5 1,137 2,668 
Advanced informations systems 336 1,316 1056 

liminations 816 485 
Total operating income $ 16.085 $ 14,975 $ 11.586 $ 11,981 $ 13,911 

Net income from contrnuing operations $ 7,665 $ 8,372 $ 5,329 $ 5,812 $ 7,764 

Assets (in thoiisnnds qf dollars) 
Gross property, plant and equipment $ 192,925 $ 172,068 $ 152,991 $ 144,251 $ 134,001 
Net property, pIaiit and equipment (4) $ 131,466 $ 117,663 $ 104,266 $ 99,879 $ 94,014 
Total assets (4) $ 211,764 $ 166,958 $ 145.029 $ 145,719 $ 155,786 
Capital expenditures (3) $ 22,057 $ 21,365 $ 12,516 $ 13,471 $ 15,399 

Capitalization (in tho iisnn ds of’ dollars) 
Stockholders’ equity $ 64,669 $ 60,714 $ 56,356 $ 53,656 $ 50,700 
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 50.921 33.777 37.597 38.226 28.984 

~~ ~ 

Total capitalization $ 115,590 $ 94,491 $ 93,953 $ 91,882 $ 79,684 

Current portion of long-tenn debt $ 2,665 $ 2,665 $ 520 $ 1,051 $ 3,526 
Short-terni debt 25,400 23,000 11,600 7,600 12,735 
Total capitalization and short-term fiiiaiicing $ 143,655 $ 120,156 $ 106,073 $ 100,533 $ 95,945 

( ‘ 1  The years 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999 have been restated in order to reflect the Co~iipany’s Delaware 
and Maryland natural gas divisions on the “acc i~a l ’~  rather than the LLas billed” revenue recognition 
method. 

(’) The years 1998, 1997, and 1996 have not been restated to reflect the “accrual” revenue recognition 
method due to the iiiiiiiatel-iality of the impact on the Company’s financial results 

i ’ )  These ainounts exclude the results of water services due to their reclassification to discontinued 
operations. The assets of all of the water businesses were sold in 2004 and 2003. 

(‘’The years 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001 reflect the results of adopting SFAS 143 
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f t e m  6. Selected Financial Data 

For the Years Elided December 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 ( I '  2001 ' I '  

Comnion Stock Data and Ratios 
Basic eamirigs per share fi-om 
continuing operations ( 3 )  $ 1.79 $ 1.66 $ 1.80 $ 1.37 $ 1.37 
Diluted earnings per share from 
continuing operations $ 1.77 $ 1.64 $ 1.76 $ 1.37 $ 1 35 

from 
12.9% 12.7% 14.4% 1 1.2% 11.1% 

Common equity / total capitalization 59.0% 54 1% 5 58 2% 
Common equity / total capitalization 
and short-term financing 46.0% 51.3% 48.8% 43.3% 42 0% 

Book value per share $ 14.41 $ 13.49 $ 12.89 $ 12.16 $ 12.45 

$ 35.780 $ 27.550 $ 26.700 $ 21.990 $ 19.900 
Low 00 $ 20.420 $ 18.400 $ 16.500 $ 17.375 
Close $ 30.800 $ 26700 $ 26.050 $ 18.300 $ 19.800 

Average number of shares 
outstanding 5,836,463 5,735,405 5,610,592 5,489,424 5,367.433 
Shares outstanding at year-end 5,845,571 5,730,801 5,612,935 5,500,357 5,394,5 16 
Registered coininon shareholders 2,026 2,026 2,069 2,130 2,171 

Cash dividends declared per share $ 1.14 $ 1.12 $ 1.10 $ 1.10 $ 1.10 
Dividend yield (annualized) (4) 3.7%" 4.2% 4.2% 6.0% 5.6% 
Payout ratio fi-om continuing 
operations (3) (5) 63.7% 67.5% 61.1% 80.3% 80.3% 

Additional Data 
Customers 

Natural gas cl is ti- I bu  t io ti a iicl 

Propane distribution 35,367 34,888 34,894 34,566 35,530 
ti atismission 54,786 50,S78 17,649 45.133 42,711 

Voluin es 
Natural gas deliveries (in MMCF) 34,981 3 1,430 29,375 27,935 27,264 
Propane distribution (in thousands 
of gallons) 26,178 24,979 25,147 21,185 23,080 

Heating degree-days (Delmarva 
Peninsula) 4,792 4,553 4,715 4,161 4,3 68 

Propane bulk storage capacity (in 
thousands of galIons) 2,3 15 2,045 2, I95 2,151 1,958 



Total employees ( 3 )  423 42 6 439 455 458 

( ’  The years 2002, 200 1 ,  2000 and 1999 have been restated 111 ui~cici to I eflect the Company’s Delaware 
and Maryland riahu-al gas divisions on the “accrual” rather than the “as billed’* revenue recognition 
111 e tho d. 

(2i The years 1998, 1997, and 1996 have not been restated to reflect the “accrual” revenue recognition 
method due to the iminateriality of the impact on the Company’s financial results. 

(3i These amounts exclude the results of water services due to their recktssification to discontinued 
operations. The assets of all of the water businesses were sold in 2004 and 2003. 

(41 Dividend yield (annualized) is calculated by inultiplying the fourth quarter dividend declared by four 
(4), then dividing that amount by the closing coininon stock price at December 3 1.  

viding cash dividends declared per 
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Item 6 .  Selected Financial Data 

For the ]’ears Ended December 31, 2000 ( I ’  1999 ( I ’  1998 f 2 )  1997 ( ‘ j  1996 
Common Stock Data and Ratios 

Basic earnings per. share from 
continuing opei-ations (31 $ 1.46 $ 1.63 $ 1 0 5  $ 1 17 $ 1.58 
Diluted eainings per share from 
continuing operations ( 3 )  $ 1.43 $ 1.59 $ 2.04 $ 1.15 $ 1.54 

Return on average equity from 
continuing operations (3) 12.2% 14.3% 9.7% 11.1% 16.1% 

63.6% / total capitalization 55.9% 64.3% .O% 58.4% 
Comnion equity / total capitalization 
and short-term financing 45.0% 50.5% 53.1% 53.4% 52.8% 

Book value per share $ 12.21 $ 11.71 $ 11.06 $ 10.72 $ 10.26 

Market price : 
High $ 18.875 $ 19.813 $ 20.500 $ 21.750 $ 18.000 
Low $ 36.250 $ 14.875 $ 16.500 $ 16.250 $ 15.125 
Close $ 18.625 9; 18375 $ 18313 $ 20.500 9; 16.875 

Average nuinber of shares 

Shares outstanding at  ycar-cncl 5,290,001 5,186,546 5.093,788 5,004,078 1,939,5 15 
Registered cominoii shareholders 2,166 2,2 12 2,27 1 2,178 2,2 13 

out stand in g 5,249,439 5,144,449 5,060,328 4,972,086 4 , 9 1 2 ~  36 

Cash drvidends declaredper share $ 1.07 $ 1.03 $ 1.00 $ 0.97 $ 0.93 

Payout ratio from continuing 
Dividend yield (annualized) (4) 5.8% 5.7% 5.5% 4.7% 5.5% 

operations (3) (j) 73.3% 63.2% 95 2% 82.9% 58.9% 

Additional Data 
Customers 

Natural  gas ct istribiition and 

Propane distribution 35,543 35,267 34,113 33,123 31,961 
transinission 40.854 39,029 37.125 35,797 34,7 13 

Voluines 
Natural gas deliveries (in MMCF) 30,830 27.383 2 1,400 23.297 24,835 
Prop an e di s tr i bu t i on (i 11 t I1 o m  an d s 
of gallons) 28,469 27,788 25,979 26,682 29,975 

Heating degree-days (Delmarva 
Peninsula) 4,730 4,082 3,704 4,430 4,? 17 

Propane bulk storage capacity (in 
thousands of gallons) 1,928 1,926 1,890 1,866 1,860 



Total employees ( 3 )  47 1 466 43 I 397 338 

( ‘ ’The  years 2002, 2001, 2000 and  1999 have been iestated in oidei to reflect the Comliany’s DclawaIe 
and Maryland natural gas divisions on the “accrual” rather than the “as billed” revenue i.ecognition 
met11 o d . 

(21 The years 1998, 1997, and 1996 have not been restated to reflect the “accrual” revenue recognition 
method due to the iiiiinateriality of the impact on the Cornpany ’ s financial results. 

Ul These amounts exclude the results of water services due to their reclassification to discontinued 
operations. The assets of all of the water businesses were soId in 2004 and 2003. 

(4) Dividend yield (annualized) is calculated by multiplying the fourth quarter dividend declared by four 
(4), then dividing that aiiiount by the closing coininon stock price at December 3 1. 

(5) The payout ratio 
share (for the y 

culnted by dividing cash dividends declared per 
om continuing operations. 
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lteni 7. Management’s 13iscusqion and Analysis of‘ Financial Condition and Results of Oper-ations 

Business Description 

Chesapeake Utilities Coi-poration (“Chesapeake” or “the Company”) is a diversified utilrty coinpany engaged in natnral gas distribution, 
transmission and marketing, propane distribution and wholesale marketing. advanced information services and other related businesses. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Chesapeake’s reported financial condition and results of operations are affected by the accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that are 
used in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements. Because most of Chesapeake’s businesses are regulated, the accounting methods 
used by Chesapeake must coinply with the requirements of the regulatory bodies; therefore, the choices available are limited by these 
regulatory requirements. Management believes that the following policies require significant estimates or other judgments of matters that are 
inherently uncertain. These poIicies and their application have been discussed with Chesapeake’s Audit Committee. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
Chesapeake records certain assets and liabilities in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 7 1 
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” Costs are deferred when there is a probable expectation that they will be 
recovered in fiiture revenues as a result of the regulatory process. At December 31, 2005, Chesapeake had recorded regulatory assets of $5.6 
million, including $4.0 inillion for under-recovered purchased gas costs, $7 12,000 for tax-related regulatory assets, and $304,000 for 
conservation cost recovery. The Company has recorded regulatory liabilities totaling $1 9.3 million, including $16.7 illillion for acci-ued asset 
removal cost, $1.4 inillion for self-insurance, $483,000 for cash idcash out, arid $328.000 for tax-related regulatory assets at December 3 I ,  
2005. If the Company were required to terminate application of SFAS No. 71, it would be required to recognize all such deferred amounts as 
a charge to earnings, net of applicable income taxes. Such a charge could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of 
operations. 

Vnlriatin 11 of‘En viroiTineritaf A ssets nnd Liabilities 
As more M l y  clescr-ibed in Note M to the Financial Statements, Chesapeake has completed its responsibilities 1-elated to one environmental 
site and is currently participating in the investigation, assessment or remediation of three other former gas inanufacturing plant sites. 
Amounts have been recorded as environmental liabilities and associated environmental regulatory assets based oil estimates of firture costs 
provided by independent consultants. There is uncertainty in these amounts because the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) or state 
authority may not have selected the final remediation methods. Additionally, there is uncertainty due to the outcoine of legal remedies sought 
from other potentially responsible patties. At December 3 1 ,  2005, Chesapeake had recorded environmental regulatory assets of $195,000 and 
a regulatory liability of $298,000 for over-collections and an additional liability of $353,000 foi- environmental costs. 

Propnize Wholesale Mnrlie firzg Contracfs 
Chesapeake’s propanc wholesale marketing operation enters into forward and ftitures contracts that are considel-ed derivatives under SFAS 
No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instniments and Hedging Activities.” hi accordance with the pi.onounceniciit, open positions arc 
marked to market prices at the end of each reporting period and unrea~ized gains or losses are recorded in the C‘onsolichted Statement of 
Income as revenue. The contracts all mature within one year, a n d  are aliiivst exclusively for propane coinmoclities with delivery points of Mt. 
Belvieu, Texas, Conway, Kansas and Hattiesburg, Mississippi. Management estimates the market valuation based on I-efei-cnces to exchange- 
traded futures prices, historical differentials and actual tracliiig activity at the end of the reporting period. At December 3 1 2005, these 
contracts had net unrealized gains of $46,000 that was recorded in the financial stateinents. At  December 3 1 ,  2004, these contracts had net 
unrealized losses of $182.000 that were recorded in the financial statements. 
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U p e r a t i q  Revenues 
Iievenues for the natuIa1 gas ciisti.ibutiun opcrationx of the Company are bascd on rates appi-ovecl bq the p~ibiic scvvicc co~iimissions of  thc 
jurisdictions in which we operate The natural  gas transmission operation’s revenlies arc based on rates ap1?1’oved by the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (“FERC”).  Ciistoinei-s’ basc rates  nay not be clianged without formal approval by thcsc comimjssions. mow eve^-, the 
regulatory authorities have granted the Company’s regulated natural gas distribution operations the ability to negotiate rates with customers 
that have coiiipetitive alternatives using approved methodologies. In addition, the natural gas transmission operation can negotiate rates 
above or below the FERC approved tariff rates. 

Chesapeake’s natural gas distribution operations in Delaware and Maryland each have a gas cost recovery inechanisrn that provides for the 
adjustiiient of rates charged to custoiners as gas costs fluctLiate. These ainounts are collected or refiinded through adjustments to rates III 

subsequent periods. 

The Company charges flexible rates to the natural gas distribution’s industrial intemiptible customers to make thein competitive with 
alternative types of fiiel. Based on pricing, these customers can choose natural gas or alternative types of supply. Neither the Company nor 
the interruptible custoiner is contractually obIigated to deliver or receive natural gas. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation records trading activity, on a net mark-to-market basis in the Company’s income statement, for 
open contracts. The natural gas segment recognizes revenue on an accnial basis. The propane distribution, advanced inforination services and 
other segments record revenue in the period the products are delivered and/or services are rendered. 

Goodwill Impnkment 
112 accordance with SFAS No 142, “Goodwill and Other- Intangible Assets,’’ Chesapeake no longer amortizes goodwill. Instead, goodwill is 
tested for impairment at least annually. In addition, goodwill of a reporting unit IS tested for impairnient between annual tests if an event 
occurs or circumstances change that W O L I I ~  more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. 

The initial test was performed upon adoption o f  SFAS No. 142 on January I. 2002, and again a t  the end of each subsequent year These tests 
were based on subjective measurements, including discounted cash flows of expected fLmre operating resuIts and market valuations of 
similar businesses. The propane unit had $674,000 in  goodwill at both December 31. 2005 and 2004. Testing for 2005 and 2004 has 
iriclicatecl that no impairment has occun-ed. 

Results of Operations 

Net lncome & Diluted Earnings Per Share Summary 

For the Years Ended December Increase Increase 
31, 2005 2004 (decrease) 2004 2003 (decrease) 

Net Income * 
Continuing operations $ 10,468 $ 9,550 $ 918 $ 9,550 $ 10,080 ($530) 
Discontinued operations (121) 121 (121) (788) 66 7 

Total Net Income $ 10,468 $ 9,429 $ 1,039 $ 9,429 $ 9,292 $ 137 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 
Continuing operations $ 1.77 $ 1.64 $ 0.13 $ 1.64 $ 1.76 ($0.12) 
Discontinuecl operations - (0.02) 0.02 (0.02) (0.13) 0.1 1 

Total Earnings Per Share $ 1.77 $ 1.62 $ 0.15 $ 1.62 $ 1.63 ($0.01) 
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The Company’s net income from continuing operations increased $9 18,000. or 10 percent, in 2005 cornpared to 2004. Net income fro121 
continuing opcrations was $ 1  0 .5  ii i i l l iuii ,  o r  $ 1  .77  pet’ sliiii-e (diluted). compared to a net inconic from continuing operations of $9.6 iiiiIIiol1, 01- 

$ 1  .64 per shai-c (diluted) for 2004 

Net income from continuing opei-ations for 2004 was $11.6 million, or $1 .64 per share (diluted), a decline of $530,000 comparec] to net ilicol1ie 
from continuing operations of $10.1 inillion, or $1.76 per share (diluted), for 2003. 

During 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business and had sold the assets of six of seven dealerships by December 3 1 ,  2003. 
The remaining operation was sold in 2004. The resuIts of water services were classified as discontinued operations for years 2004 aiid 2003. 
Discontinued operations experienced losses of $0.02 and $0.13 ‘per share (diluted) for 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

Operating lncome Summary (in thousands) 

For the Years Ended December Increase In crease 
31, 2005 2004 (decrease) 2004 2003 (decrease) 

Nahiral gas distribution & 
transmission $ 17,236 $ 17,091 $ 145 $ 17,091 $ 16,653 $ 438 
Propane 3,209 2,364 845 2,364 3,875 (1,511) 
Advanced information services 1,197 3x7 810 387 692 (305)  
Other & eliiniiiatioiis (112) 128 (240) 1 9 (23 11 

Total Operating Income $ 21,530 $ 19,970 $ 1,560 $ 19,970 $ 21,579 ($1,609) 

The improvement in results for 2005 was primarily driven by, 

The Lightweight Association Manageiiient Processing Systems (“LAMPSTM”) product, including the sale of its property rights, 
contributed $622,000 to operating income in 2005 for the Company’s advanced information services segment The LAMPS product 
was an jnteinally developed software that was developed aiid marketed specifically for REALTOR@ Associations. 
The Delmarva and Florida natural gas distribution operations experienced strong residential customer growth of 8.7 ~ ~ e r c e n t  a l~d 7.1 
percent, respectively, in 2005. 
Temperatures on the Delrnarva Peninsula were 5 percent colder than 2004, which led to increased contributions from the Company’s 
natural gas and propane clistribution operations. This increase was offset by conservation efforts by customers. 
The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of 9 percent due to additional transportation capacity contracts 
that went into effect in November 2004. 
A 100 percent increase of the number of customers for the Company’s natural gas marketing operation. 
An inci-ease of I .  1 million gallons sold by the Deliiiarva propane distribution operation. 

linprovement in Chesapeake’s 2005 overall results coiiipared to 2004 was priiiiarily related to a $924,000 pre-tax gain on the sale of its 
LAMPSTbf by the Company’s advanced information service operation, continued strong customer gi.owth, and colclev weather, wl~ich led to 
increased contributions from the Coiiilpany’s iiahlral gas and propanc operations. The Compaiiy’s natural gas operations experienced an 
increase of 7.9 percent in rcsidential customers. Weather, measured in heating degree-days, was 5 percent colder than 2004. The gross iiiargin 
increases from growth ancl weathei- was partially offset by cnei-gy conservation efforts by customers in  light of increased natural gas and 
propane costs and also, a n  increase in operating expenses. 

Chesapeake’s 2004 results reflected strong cwtoiner’ 91-owtli, warmer weather as compared to 2003, customers’ energy conservation and costs 
incurred to comply with Sarbanes-Oxley. Weather, measured in heating degree-days, was 4 percent wanner than 2003. Management estiinates 
that warmer weather negatively impacted gross margin by $566,000. The natural gas segment was able to offset the iinpact of wamer  weather 
through customer growth of 7 percent. Additionally, the Company incurred approximately $600,000 of. expenses through December 3 I . 2004 
related to compliance with Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley. These costs include increinental audit fees, expansion of the Internal Auclit 
Department and the temporary hiring of an outside consul tatit. The iiicrease in operating income fi-om the Coinpany’s natural gas operations 
was more than offset by decreases in the propane and advanced information services businesses. 
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Natural Gas D ist rib uti0 M n 12 d Tr nnsm issio 11 

The natural gas distribution and transmission segment earned operating income of $1 7.2 inillion for 2005, $1 7.1 million for 2004, and $16.7 
million for 2003, resulting in increases of $145,000 for 2005 and $438,000 for 2004. 

Natural Gas Distribution and Transmission (in thousands) 

For the Years Ended December Increase Increase 
31, 2005 2004 (decrease) 2004 2003 (decrease) 
Revenue $ 166,582 $ 124,246 $ 42,336 $ 124, 110,247 $ 13,999 
Cost of gas 116,178 77,456 38,722 77,456 65,495 11,961 
Gross margin 50,404 46,790 3,614 46,790 44,752 

Operations & maintenance 2 21,129 2,745 21,129 19,893 1,236 
Depreciation & ainortization 5,682 5,418 264 5,418 5,188 23 0 

Other taxes 3,612 3,152 460 3,152 3,018 134 
Other operating expenses 33,168 29,699 3,469 29,699 28,099 1,600 

Total Operating Income 9; 17,236 $ 17,091 $ 145 $ 17,091 $ 16,653 $ 438 

Natural Gas Heating Degree-Day (HDD) and Customer Analysis 

For the Years Ended December Increase increase 
31? 2005 2004 (decrease) 2004 2003 (decrease) 
Heating degree-day data - 
D elinarva 

Actual HDD 
10-year average HDD 

4,792 4,553 23 9 4,553 4,7 15 ( 162) 
4,436 4,383 53 4,383 4,409 (26) 

Estimated gross inargin per HDD $ 2,234 $ 1,800 $ 434 $ 1,800 $ 1,680 9; 120 

Estiinated dollars per resicfential 
c u s t o in el- add e d : 

Gross margin $ 372 $ 372 $ 0 $ 372 $ 360 $ 12 
Other operating expenses $ 106 $ 104 $ 2 $ 104 $ 100 $ 4 

Average nuiiiber of residential 
customers 

De 1 in aiv a 37,346 34,352 2,994 34,352 31,996 2,356 
F1 ori da 11,717 10,9 10 807 10,910 10,189 72 1 

Total 49.063 45.262 3.801 45.262 42.185 3.077 

2005 Cornpared to 2004 
Revenue and cost of gas increased in 2005 coinpared to 2004, priinarily due to changes in natural gas coiiiinodity prices. Jncreased prices of 
~iatural gas costs are being driven by increased demand that is exceeding the growth of avaiiable supply. The fall 2005 hurricane season 
significantly reduced the current and anticipated availability of natural gas supply from the Gulf Coast region, causing a dramatic rise in 
natural gas prices during the fourth quarter of 2005. Commodity cost changes are passed on to the ratepayers through a gas cost recovery or 
purchased gas cost adjustment in all jurisdictions; therefore, they have limited impact on the Company's profitability. However, highel- 



coimnodity prices may cause customers to reduce their energy consumption through conservation efforts and may cause the Company to 
have higher uncollectible accounts 
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Nakiral gas gross mal-gin incrcasecl $3.6 million, or 7 .7  percent, for 3005 compared to 2004. The natural gas transmission operation achicvcd 
gross iiiargin gowth  of $ I .4 million, or 9 percent, priimarily clue to aciclitional contracts siywcl i n  Novei-nber 2004 foi- transpoi-tation capacity 
pi-o v i de cl to its fi rni c LIS tom e rs. I n ad di tion, th  c Company ' s capita I i n ~ ' c s  tn i  en ts c 17 ab I ccl t ti e natura I gas ti-a n sin i ss i o 11 ope ra t ions to cx ec II te 
additional transportation capacity contracts in November 2005. These additional contracts will contribute approximately $53,000 monthly to 
gross margins. An increase of $980,000 in other operating expenses partially offset the increased gross margin. The factors contributing to 
the increase in expenses are associated with higher customer counts caused by continued economic growth, as well as higher depreciation 
and property taxes due to an increase in the level of capital investments. 

Gross margin for the natural gas marketing operation increased $506,000, or 39 percent, for 2005 compared to 2004 as the number of 
customers to which it provides supply management services increased 100 percent. The increase in the number of customers is attributed to 
the additional customers that are on the Peoples Gas system for which the Coinpany provides services. The increase in gross margin was 
partially offset by an increase of $352,000 in other operating expenses due to higher levels of staff and other operating costs necessary to 
support the increase in business. 

Gross inargin for the Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions increased $1.2 million, as temperahires in 2005 were 5 percent colder 
and the number of residential customers increased 8.7 percent. An increase in gross margin from the colder weather of $534,000 was offset 
by a decrease of $65 1,000 in gas deliveries to customers as a resuIt of conservation efforts in response to the higher gas prices . Gross margin 
for the Florida distribution operations increased $579,000, priinarily due to changes in the customer rate design and a 7.4 percent increase in 
the number of residential customers served. The Company estimates the rate design changes contributed $322,000 in additional gross margin 
and resulted in the Florida division collecting a greater percentage of reveiiues from fixed charges, rather than variable charges based upon 
consumption. Other operating expense for the nahiral gas distribution operations increased $2. I inillion in 2005. Some of the key 
components of the increase in other operating expenses in 2005, compared to 2004, include the following: 

The incremeiital operating and maintenance cost of supporting the residential customers added by the Delinarva and Florida 
distribution operations was approximately $403,000. 
In response to higher nak~ral gas prices, the Company increased its alIowance for uncollectible accounts by $98,000. 
The cost of providing health care for our employees increased $180,000. 
Costs of line location activities increased $177,000. 
With the additronal capital investments, depreciation expense, asset removal cost, and property taxes increased $225,000, $ I 3 0,000, 
and  $3 19,000, respectively. 

20-04 Corn-pared to 2003 
Gross margin grew by $2.0 million in 2004 compared to 2003. The Company estimates that wanner weather reduced gross margin by 
$292,000. After adjusting for the effect of weather, gross margin would have increased 5.3 percent. The Company estimates that residential 
and commerciai growth foi- the distribution operations generated $ 1  . 1 million of gross margin increase. The Company adclccl 3,077 
residential customers, an increase of 7 percent. in 2004. This groi47th was net of lower consumption per customer, which reflects custoiiier 
conservation efforts in light of higher energy costs and a highei- m i x  of apartments rather than single family homes in the customer adclitions 
for some di\iisions. Additionally, the natural gas supply and nianagemenl sei-vices operation increased y o s s  iuargin by $565,000, primarily 
through industrial customer growth and resale of seasonal excess capacity on upstream pipelines. The natural gas  transmission operatlo11 also 
achievecl gross mar-gin growth of $7 16,000, due to aclclitional timsportation services provided to its firm customers. 
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Hislier other operating expenses pai-tially offset the gross margin increase Operating expenses increased $1.6 million, or 5 7 percent, which 
iiicktictes $383.000 of expenses related to Sdmics-OxIey Section 404 compliance iiiiple~iientation Thc highci other operating expctises 
rcflcct the costs to support custorner growth 

Propa ne 
During 2005, the propane segment increased operating income by $845,000, or 36 percent, over 2004. In addition, gross margin increased 
$2.6 million, which more than offset the increase of $1.7 inillion of operating expenses. During 2004, the propane segment experienced a 
decrease of $1.5 inillion in operating income coinpared to 2003, reflecting a gross margin decrease of $1,9 million, partially offset by a 
decrease in operating expenses of $41 1,000. 

Propane (in thousands) 

For the Years Ended December Increase Increase 
2005 2004 (decrease) 2004 2003 (decrease) 31, 

Revenue $ 48,976 $ 41,500 $ 7,476 $ 41,500 47 1 
Cost of sales 30,041 25,155 4,886 25,155 2,393 

Gross margin 18 2,590 (1,922) 

Operations & maintenance 13,355 11,718 1,437 11,718 12,053 (3 3 5 )  

Other taxes 797 739 58 73 9 833 (94) 
Other operating expenses 15,726 I3,98 1 1,745 13,981 14,392 141 1 )  

Depreciation & amortization 1,574 1,524 , 50 1,524 1,506 18 

Total Operating Income $ 3,209 $ 2,364 $ 845 $ 2,364 $ 3,875 ($1,511) 

Propane Heating Degree-Day (HDD) Analysis - Delmarva 

For the Years Ended December Increase Increase 
31, 2005 2004 (decrease) 2004 2003 (decrease) 
Heating degree-days 

A c tuai 4,792 4,553 23 9 4,553 4.7 15 (162) 
1 0-year average 4,436 4,383 53 4,3 83 4,409 (26) 

Estiinated gross margin per HDD $ 1,743 $ 1,691 $ 52 $ 1,691 $ 1,670 $ 21 

2005 Compared to 2004 
The increases in revenues and cost of sales in 2005 compared to 2004 were caused both by increases in volumes and by Increases in the 

commodib prices of propanc Commodity price chmges ale passed on to the customci subject to coinpetitive inarket conditions 

The gross i-nargiii increase for the propane segment was due priiiiariiy to an increase of $1 .K million for the Dehiiarva distribution operatioiis. 
Volunics sold in 2005 increased 1 .I million gallons 01- 5 yei-cent. T~i ipe i -a t~ i i -e~  in 2005 werc 5 percent colder than 2004, causing a11 
estimated gross margin increase of $4 1 7,000. Additionally, the gross margin pet- tetail gallon impr-ovecf by $0.0342 in  2005 compared to 
2004. Gross inargrn per gallon increased as a result of inarket prices rising greater tlian the Company’s inventory price per gallon. This trend 
will reverse when market prices decrease and move closer to the Company’s inventory price per gallon. The g o s s  margin increase was 
pa-tially offset by increased other operating expenses of $1  . S  million. The higher other operating costs are attributable to the Pennsylvania 
start-up costs and expenses related to higher earnings, such as incentive compensation and other taxes, employee benefits, insurance, vehicle 
-fuel and maintenance expenses, and a iion-recurring credit of $100,000 for- vehicle insurance audits in 2004. The start-up costs accounted for 
$722.000, or approxiiiiately- 49 percent, of the increase in operating expenses. 
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Gross mal-gin for the Florida propaiie distribution operations increased $385,000, or 45 percent, in 2005 compared to 2004. The increase in 
cross margin was  attained ft-on1 311 increase of 27%) in the average ri~iinbei- of customers. which contributed to the $267,000 in  propane sales 
gross niargin. ant1 a n  increase of $ 1  I X ? O O O  in house-piping sales. Florida pi-opaiie also expericnced a n  increase in  other opemting expenses. 
The higher expenses o f  $ 147,000 werc attributed to business yx"li, such ax pay-011, vehicle fuel and niainlcnance, insurance, a n d  
clepreciation expense. 

The Coinpany's propane wholesale marketing operation experienced an increase in gross inargm of $445.000 and an increase of $121,000 in 
other operating expenses, leading to an iinproveinent of $323,000 in operating income over 2004. Wholesale price volatility created trading 
opportunities during the third and fourth quarters of the year; however, these were partially offset by reduced trading activities particularly in 
the first half of the year when the wholesale marketing operation followed a conservative marketing strategy, which lowered risk and 
earnings, in light of continued high wholesale price levels. 

2004 Compared to 2003 
Increases in revenues and cost of sales in 2004 were caused by an increase in the coxnmodity prices of propane, partially offset by lower sales 
volumes due to wanner weather Commodity price changes are generally passed on to the customer, subject to competitive market 
conditions High commodity prices may cause customers to reduce their energy consumption through conservation efforts and may cause 
higher bad debt expense. 

Propane distribution gross margin declined $1.2 million and propane wholesale marketing gross margin fell by $71 0,000. The Company 
estimates that warmer weather negatively impacted gross margin by $274,000. After adjusting for the impact of weather, gross inargin 
decreased 9 percent. Lower retai1 gross tnargin per gallon in the distribution business reduced gross inargin by approximately $493,000. In 
addition, lower sales volu~nes, not attributable to the weather, reduced gross margin by approximately $197,000, including $172,000 related 
to customers in the poultry industry. The closing of  a poultry processing plant in the fourth quarter of 2003 is estimated to have reduced gross 
margin by $129,000. The plant is not expected to reopen. An outbreak of avian influenza on the Deliiiarva Peninsula in the first quarter of 
2004 also contributed to the lower sales volumes. The influenza outbreak was contained. Volumes were also down partially due to customers 
conserving energy in light of higher energy costs. Finally, gross margin earned from a non-recurring service project in 2003 contributed 
$192,000 to the decline in gross margin. 

The Company's propane wholesale niarket~ng operation contributed $373,000 to operating income. howeve]. this was a decrease of 
$533,000 compared to 2003. Thts reflects a coiiservative strategy taken rn the wholesale marketing operation, due to the high level of energy 
prices. 

Other operating expenses decreased $4 1 1,000 despite additional costs of $142,000 associated with the implementation of Sarbanes-Oxley 
Section 404 compliance procedures. The decrease included reductions in incentive compensation, revenue-related taxes and lower delivery 
costs. 

Advuii ced I n  fb  r m m  f ion Scr. vices 
The advanced information services segment provides domestic a id  international clients with information technology related business 
services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. 'Thc advanced inforniation scrvices business contributed operating 
income of $ I .2 million for 2005, $387,000 for 2004, and $692,000 for 2003. 
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Advanced i n fo  r m at i o 11 Services ( i  n t h 011 sands) 

1 ncrease For the Years  Ended Deceniber 
31, 2005 1004 (decrease) 2004 2003 (decrease) 

Revenue $ 14,140 $ 12,427 $ 1,713 $ 12,427 $ 12,578 ($151) 

Increase 

Cost of sales 7,181 7,015 166 7,015 7,01 8 ( 3 )  
Gross margin 6,959 5,4 12 1,547 5,412 5,560 (148) 

Operations & maintenance 5,129 4,405 724 4,405 4,196 209 

482 28 482 1 
Other operating expenses 5,762 5,025 737 5,025 4,868 157 

Total Operating Income $ 1,137 $ 387 $ 810 $ 387 $ 692 ($305) 

n & amortization 123 138 (15) 138 I91 ( 5 3 )  

~ 2005 Compared to 2004 
The advanced information services segment had operating income of $1.2 million and $387,000 for years 2005 and 2004, respectively The 
results for 2005 and 2004 include revenues and costs related to the LAMPS TM product that was sold in October 2005 The sale resuIted in a 
$924,000 pre-tax gain 

Revenues for 2005 increased $1.7 million to $14.1 million compared to revenues of $12.4 million for 2004. The 2005 and 2004 revenue 
figures include $2.4 inillion and $149,000 of revenue relating to the LAMPS TM product for those respective years. Decreases in consultiiig 
revenues for the eBusiness group of $793,000 and lower sales of Progress software licenses of $285,000 account for the decrease in revenue 
when compared to 2004. This decrease is partially offset by the performance revenue of $238,000 received in the third quarter 2005 and an 
increase of $317,000 in consulting revenues for the Enterprise Solutions group. The perfonnance revenue is related to the sale of the 
webproEX software to QAD that took place in 2003. As part of the sale agreement, Chesapeake receives a percentage of revenues after 
certain annual revenue and performance targets have been reached by QAD . 

Cost of sales for 2005 increased $1 65,000 to $7.2 million, compared to $7.0 iiiillion for 2004. The increase in cost of sales is attributed to the 
LAMPS TM product. The 2005 and 2004 cost of sales figures includes $51 1,000 and $345,000 of cost for the LAMPS TM product. Other 
operating expenses increased $738,000 in 2005 to $5.8 million, compared to $5.0 million in 2004. The increase i n  other opei-ating cost Is 
attributed to the increase of costs relating to the LAMPS TM product. The costs associated with the LAMPS product for 2005 and 2004 are 
$1.2 million and $575,000 respectively. The remaining increase is primarily due to health care claims and office rent, which were offset by 
cost containment measures implemented in the second quarter of 2005 to reduce operating expenses. 

2004 compared to 2003 
The decrease i n  gross margin and operating income in 2004 was due to the non-recurring revenue recorded in 2003 on the sale of some rights 
to one of the Company’s intei-nally-developed software products to a third party software provider. Absent the sale, gross margin would have 
increased by $35 1,000: however: the increase was partially offset by higher costs associated with continued investment in the Company’s 
LA MPSsrbt p r ocluc t an cl S a rha 11 es -Ox I ey comp 1 ian ce costs o f $6 0,000. 

0 t h  er Operations (urd Elintiricitions 
Other operations and eliniiiiating entries generated an operating loss of $1 12,000 for 2005 compared to income of $128,000 for 2004. Other 
operations consist primarily of subsidiaries that own real estate leased to other Company subsidiaries. I n  addition, in August 2004 the 
Company formed OnSiglit Energy, LLC (“OnSight”) to provide distributed energy services. The increase in revenues in 2005 is primarily 
attributect to OnSight completing its first contract in the second quarter of 2005, Other operating expenses increased in 2005 as a result of a 
full year of operation by OnSight, coiiiyal-ed to a partiaI year in 2004. EIiniinations are entries required to eliminate activities between 
business segments fiom the consolidated results. 
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Other Operations & Eliminations ( in  thousands) 

For the Years Ended December Increase I nc I-ease 
31, 200s 2004 (decrease) 2004 2 003 (d ec re  as e) 

Revenue $ 763 $ 647 $ 116 $ 647 $ 702 ( $ 5 5 )  

Gross margin 447 647 647 702 (55) 

Cost of sales 116 116 

Operations & maintenance 472 279 193 279 79 200 
Depreciation & amortization 220 210 10 210 23 8 (28) 

63 34 63 55 8 
552 23 7 552 3 72 180 

95 ($237)$ 

33 ($ 

($112)$ 128 ($240)$ 128 $ 359 ($231) 

Discontinued Operations 

In 2003, Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business. Six of seven water dealerships were sold during 2003 and the remaining 
operation was sold in October 2004. The results of the water companies’ operations, for all periods presented in the consolidated incollie 
statements, have been reclassified to discontinued operations and shown net of tax. For 2004, the discontinued operations experienced a net 
Ioss of $121,000, compared to a net loss of $78S,OO0 for 2003. The Coiiipany did not have any discontinued operations in 2005. 

lnconie Taxes 

Operating income taxes increased in 2005 compared to 2004, due to increased taxable income. Operating income taxes decreased in 2004 
coinpared to 2003, due to decreased income. The effective current federal income tax rate for 2005 was 3596, whereas the rate for both 2004 
and 2003 was 34%. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company benefited of $223,000, $205,000, and 197,000, respectively, from a change in 
the tax law that allows tax deductions for dividends paid on Company stock held in Employee Stock Ownership Plans (“ESOP”). 

Other Income 

Other 1nco111e was $383,000, $549,000 and $238,000 for the years 2005, 2004 and  2003, respectively. The other income amounts for the years 
2005 and 2003 consist of interest income. compared to interest income and gains fi-om the sale of assets for the year 2004 

Interest Expense 

TotaI interest expense for 2007 decreased approximately $135,OOO, or 2.6 percent, compared to 2004. The decrease reflects the decrease 111 the 
average long-tenn debt balance. The average long-tem debt balance during 2005 was $67.4 inilIion with a weighted average interest rate of 7.2 
percent, compared to $7 1.3 million with a weighted average interest rate of 7.2 percent in 2004. The average short-term borrowing balance in 
2005 was $5.7 million, an increase from $870,000 in 2004. The weighted average interest rate for shor-term borrowing increased from 3.7 
percent for 2004 to 4.6 percent for 2005 

Total interest expense for 2004 decreased approximately $43 8,000, or 8 percent, compared to 2003. The decrease reflects the decrease in the 
avei-age long-term debt balance. The average long-term debt balance during 2004 was $71.3 million with a weighted average interest rate of 7.2 
percent, conipared to $75.4 niillioii wi th  a weighted average interest rate of 7.2 percent in 2003. The average short-term borrowing balance i n  
2004 was $870,000, a decrease from $3.5 inilIion in 2003. The weighted average interest rate for short-term borrowing increased from 2.4 
percent for 2003 to 3.7 percent for 2004. 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Chesapeake's capita[ recpiirements 1-eflect the capit"l-intcnsive nature of  its business and are pr-incipnlly attributable to its investment in new 
plant ancl equipinent a n d  tlic retiremcnt of outstaiidin~ debt. The Company rclies on cash generated from operations and short-tern1 borrowing 
to meet noi-mal working capital requirements ancl to temporarily finance capital expenditures. During 2005, net cash provided by operating 
activities was $13.3 million, cash used by investing activities was $32.8 inillion and cash provided by financing activities was $20.4 million. 

During 2004, net cash provided by operating activities was $23.4 million, cash used by investing activities was $16.9 million and cash used by 
financing activities was $8.0 million. 

As of December 31, 2005, the Board of Directors has authorized the Company to borrow up to $50.0 miIlion of short-term debt from various 
banks and trust companies. On December 31, 2005, Chesapeake had five unsecured bank lines of credit with three financia1 institutions, 
totaling $65 .O million. These bank lines provide funds for the Company's short-terin cash needs to meet seasonal working capital requirements 
and to temporarily fund portions of its capital expenditures. Two of the bank lines, totaling $1 5.0 inillion, are committed. The other three lines 
are subject to the banks' availability of fiinds. The outstanding balances of short-term borrowing at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $35.5 
million and $5.0 million, respectively. In 2005 and 2004, Chesapeake used f h d s  provided by operations and financing to fund net investing. 

Chesapeake has budgeted $54.4 inillion for capital expenditures during 2006. This amount includes $20.8 million for natural gas distribution, 
$26.7 inillion for natural gas transmission, $5.7 million for propane distribution and wholesale marketing, $178,000 for advanced inforiiiation 
services and $1 .O million for other operations. The natural gas distribution and transmission expenditures are for expansion and improvement 
of facilities. The propane expenditures are to support customer growth and for the replacement of equipment. The advanced inforination 
services expenditures are for computer hardware, software and related equipment. The other category includes genera1 plant, computer software 
and hardware. Financing for the 2006 capital expenditure program is expected from short-term borrowing, cash provided by operating 
activities, and other sources. The capital expenditure program is subject to continuous review and modification. Actual capital requirements 
rnay vary from the above estimates due to a number of factors, including acquisition opportunities, changing economic conditions, customer 
growth in existing areas, regulation, new growth opportunities and availability of capital. 

Chesapeake expects to incur approximately $300.000 in 2006 and $25,000 in 2007 for enviionii7ental-felated expenchtures AcIditionaI 
expenditures rnay be required in future years (sec Note M to the Consolidated Financial Statements) Maiiageinent does not expect financing of 
future environmental-related expenditures to have a material adverse effect on the financial gosltion or capltal resources of the Coinpany 

Capital Structure 

As of December 31, 2005, coininon equity represented 59.0 percent of total capitalization, compared to 54.1 percent in 2004. If short-term 
borrowing and the current portion of long-term debt were included in total capitalization, the equity component of the Company's capitalization 
would have been 46.0 percent arid 5 1.3 percent, respectively. Chesapeake remains committed to niaintaining a sound capital stiuctut-e and 
strong credit ratings to provide the financial flexibility needed to access the capital markets when required. This commitment, along with 
adequate and timely rate relief for the Company's regulated operations, is intended to ensure that Chesapeake will be able to attract capital 
from outside sources at a reasonable cost. The Coinpany belie\?es that the achievement of these ob-jectives will provide benefits to customers 
and creditors. as we11 as to thc Company's investors. 
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

The primary cli-ivers for the Company‘s opei-ating cash flows are cash payments received fr-om gas customer-s, offset by payments inade by the 
Conipany for gas costs, operation and maintenance expenses, taxes and interest costs. 

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $13.3 million, $23.4 million and $23.0 inillion for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. A description of certain material changes in working capital from December 3 1, 2004 to December 3 1 , 2005 is listed below: 

Accounts receivable and accrued revenue increased $16.8 million. The increase in receivables is attributed to higher gas and propane 
sale invoices in response to the higher nahml gas and propane prices. 
Propane inventory, storage gas and other inventory increased $5.7 million, primarily due to higher propane and natural gas prices. 
The Company used $1.2 million of cash to purchase investments for the Rabbi Tnist associated with the Company’s Supplemental 
Executive Retirement Savings Plan. See Note E on Investments in ltem 8 under the heading “Financial Statements and Supplemental 
Data”. 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities increased $15.3 inillion largely to fiind the higher natural gas and propane purchases 
due mostly to higher prices. 

During 2004, propane inventoiy, storage gas, and other inventory rose $1.7 inillion due to higher natural gas costs and increased storage 
capacity. During 2004 and 2003, Accounts receivable and accrued revenue increased $11.7 million and $3.6 million, respectively, priinarily in 
response to higher gas and propane sale invoices in response to the higher natural gas and propane prices. Accounts payable and other accrued 
liabilities increased $1 1.1 million and $564,000, respectively, in 2004 and 2003 due to higher natural gas and propane purchases. 

Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities 

Cash flows received from financing totaled $20.4 million for 2005 and the cash used in financing activities totaled $8.0 inillion and $16.4 
miIlinn for fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively. During fiscal year 2005, the Conipany increased the net amount of cash borrowed under its 
short-term lines of credits by $29.6 million, Additionally, the Company paid coininon stock dividends totaling $5.8 million and reduced its 
outstanding long-term notes payable baIance by $4.8 million. 

Cash flows used in financing activities during year 2004 reflected a $3.7 iiiillion repayment of long-term notes payable, coupled with comm~~on 
stock dividend payments totaling $5.6 million. Additionally during year 2004, the Company increased the net ainom~t of cash borrowed fi-om 
its short-term lines of credits by $1.2 inillion During year 2003, cash flows used in financing activities reflected a $3.9 ~iiillion repayment of 
long-term notes payable, a $7.4 million net repayment of short-term lines of credit, and payment of cominon stock dividends totaling $5.4 
million. 

On June 29, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement in principle with Pmdential Investment Management lnc. Subsequently, the 
Company executecl a Note Agreement, dated October 18, 2005. with three institutional investors (The Prudential insurance Company of 
America, Pi-cidential Retirement Insurance atid Aniiuity Conipany and United Omaha Life Insurance Company), pursuant to which the investors 
agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase froin the Coinpany $20 million in principal of 5 .S percent Senior Notes (the “Notes”) issued 
by the Company; provided, that the Company elects to effect the sale of the Notes at any time prior to Januai-y 15* 2007. The terms of the Notes 
will i-cquire annual principal repayments of $2  million beginning on the fifth anniversary of the issuance of the Notes. 
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Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities 

Net cash flows used i n  investing activities totalecl $32 8 million, $ 1  6.9 million ancl $5.9 million dui-ing fiscal years 2005. 2004 ancI 2003. 
respectively. In fiscal years 2005, 2004 a n d  2003, $33.0  million, % 17.8 iiiillion and $1 1.8 million, respectively, of cash was Litilizcd for capital 
expendihwes. Additions to property, plant and equipment in 2005 were primarily for natural gas transmission ($1 5.0 million), natural gas 
distribution ($1 3.3 million) and propane distribution ($3.8 million). 111 both 2005 and 2004, the natural gas distribution expenditures were used 
primarily to fund expansioii and facilities improvenients. Natural gas transmission capital expenditures related primarily to expanding the 
Company’s transmission system. Additionally, cash of $240,000, $370,000 and $2.2 inillion was received in 
respectively, for the recoveiy of environmental costs through rates charged to custoiners. The year 2003 included 
received froin the sale of discontinued operations. 

Contractual Obligations 

We have the following contractual obligations and other coininercial coininitnients as of December 3 I ,  2005: 

Payments Due by Period 
Less than 1 More than 

Contractual Obligations year 1 - 3 years 3 - 5 years 5 years Total 
Long-teim debt ,091 $15,312,727 $13,312,727 $30,364,909 $ 63,919,454 

ing leases (2) 645,576 1,062,394 692,741 2,376,302 4,777,013 
se obligations (3) 

Transmission capacity 7,585,816 12,497,472 11,890,259 25,015,062 56,988,609 
Storage - Natural Gas 1,422,987 2,709,353 2,696,217 6,518,563 13,347,120 

Forward purchase contracts - 
C oimn o di ti e s 20,012,976 - 20,012,976 

Propane (4) 21,622,201 - 21,622,201 
U 11 fLin cled benefits (j) 259,399 528,995 551,782 2,678,755 4,018,W 1 
Funded benefits (6) 68,680 129,697 1 I 1,08 1 1,376,178 1,685,636 
Total Contractual Obligations $56,546,726 $32,240,638 $29,254,807 $68,329,769 $186,371,940 

Principal payments on long-term debt, see Note H, ‘‘ Long-Term Debt,” in the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of this item. The expected interest payments 
on long-term debt are $4.5 million, $7.7 million, $5.7 million and $7.2 million, respectively, for the 
periods indicated above. Expected interest payinelits for all periods total $25.1 million. 

(*) See Note J,  “Lease Obligations,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional 
discussion of this item. 

‘j’ See Note N,  “Other Cominitnieiits and Contingencies,” i n  the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
S t a ten1 en t s foi- fLii-t her in forniati on. 

(41 The Coinpany has also entered into forward sale contracts. See “Market Risk” of the Management‘s 
Discussion and Analysis for fwther inforination. 
The Coinpany has recorded long-term liabilities of $4.0 nillion at December 3 1, 2005 for mfuiicled 
post-rctiretiient benefit plans. The arnounts spccified in the table arc based 011 expected payments to 
current retirees ancl assumes a retirement age of 65 for currently active employees. There are many 
factors that would cause actual payments to differ from these amounts. including early retirement, fiiture 
health care costs that differ froin past experience and discount rates implicit in calculations. 

benefits. These liabilities have been fiinded using a Rabbi Tmst and an asset in the same amount is 
recorded under Investments on the Balance Sheet. The defined benefit pension plan was closed to new 
participants on January 1, 1999 and participants in the plan 011 that date were given tlie option to leave 
the plan. See Note K, “Employee Benefit Plans, ” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
for fiirther information 011 the plan. Since the plan modification, no additional filnding has been required 
froin the Coimpany and none is expected for the next five years, based on factors in effect at December 
3 1, 2005. However, this is subject to change based on the actual rehim earned by the plan assets and 
other actuarial assumptions, such as the discount rate and long-tenn expected rate of rehiiii on plan 
assets. 

(6’ The Company has recorded long-teim liabilities of $1.7 inillion at December 3 1, 2005 for fiinded 

years 2005, 2004, and 2003, 
cash proceeds of $3.7 inillion 
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Off: Bnlan ce SI? eet A rmiigenien ts 
The Cotiipatiy has issucd corpoi-ate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale mar-kcting subsidiary. acfvanced infoI”ion 
services, and the Florida natut.al gas supply and management scrviccs subsidiary. These corporate guarantees provide for thc paynient of 
propane and natural gas putchases a n d  office rent i n  the event of the subsidiaries’ default. Tlic liabilities for these purchases arc incluclecl i l l  

our Consolidated Financia1 Statements. The guarantees at December 3 I ,  2005, totaled $ 1  1.2 million and expire on various dates in 2006. 

The Company has issued a letter of credit to its main insurance company for $694,000, which expires May 3 1, 2006. The letter of credit was 
provided as security for claims amounts below the deductibles on the Company’s policies. 

Regula tory Activities 

The Company’s natural gas distribution operations are subject to regulation by the Delaware, Maryland and Florida Public Service 
Commissions. The natural gas transmission operation is subject to regulation by the FERC. 

Delawa~2pOn October 3, 2005, the Delaware division filed its annual Gas Sales Service Rates (“GSR’) application that was effective for 
service rendered on and after November 1, 2005 with the Delaware Public Service Coinmission (“Delaware PSC”). On October 11, 2005, the 
Dehware PSC approved the GSR charges, subject to fiill evidentiary hearings and a final decision. An evidentiary hearing is currently 
scheduled for April 6, 2006, with a final decision by the Delaware PSC expected during the second or third quarter of 2006. 

On Novenibei- I ,  2005, the Delaware division filed with the Delaware PSC its annual Environniental Rider (“E,”) Rate application that was 
effective for service rendered on and after December 1, 2005. The Delaware PSC granted approval of the ER rate at its regularly scheduled 
meeting on November 8, 2005, subject to full evidentiary hearings and a final decision. Art evidentiary hearing is currently schedrrled for April 
5 ,  2006, with a final decision by the Delaware PSC expected during the second or third quarter of 2006. 

On September 2, 2005, the Delaware division filed an application with the Delaware PSC requesting approval of an alternative rate design and 
rate structure i n  oucler to provide natural gas service to prospective customers in eastern Sussex County. While Chesapeake does provide natural 
gas service to residents and businesses in  portions of Sussex County, uindel- the Company’s current tariff and traditional ratemaking processes, 
tmkil-al gas has not been exteiided to the State of Delaware’s recently targeted growth areas in eastern Sussex County. In April 2002, Governor 
Ruth Ann Miniier established the Delaware Energy Task Force (“Task Force”), whose mission was to address the State of Delaware’s Io11g- 
term and short-term energy challenges. I n  September 2003, the Task Force issued its final report to the Governor that included a strategy 
related to enhancing the availability of natural gas within tlie State by evaluating possible incentives for expanding residential and coiniiiercial 
natural gas service. Chesapeake believes its current proposal to implement a rate design that will enable the Company to provide nahlral gas as 
a viable energy choice to a broad number of prospective custoiners within eastern Sussex County is consistent with the Task Force 
recornmendation. While the Company cannot predict the outcome of its application at this time, the Company anticipates a final decision froin 
the Delaware PSC regarding its application during the first half of 2006. 

Marylaiid. On December 8, 2005, the Maiylancl Public Service Corninission (“MatYla~id PSC”) held an evidentiaiy hearing to determine the 
reasonableness of the Maryland division’s four q~iarterly gas cost recovery filings cfuriiig tlie twelve nionths ended September 30, 2005. 011 
Ianuary 12, 2006, the Hearing Examiner issued proposed findings approving the quarterly gas cost recovery rates as filed by the Maryland 
division, permitting complete i.ecover-y of its purchased gas costs for the period under review. The Maiyland PSC did not receive any appeals 
or \-witten exceptions to the proposed finclings and as a I-esult a final order was issued 011 February 14, 2006. 

Florida. On August 25, 2004, the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida Public Service Commission (“Florida PSC”’) for authorization 
to restnichire rates and establish new custoiiier classifications. The filing was revenue-neutral, but would allow the Florida division to collect a 
greater percentage of revenues fi.0111 fixed charges, rather than variable charges based upon consumption. On February I 2005, the Florida PSC 
voted to appi-ove the petition? as modified by the PSC staff. The Florida PSC issued a final order on Febmary 22, 2005. 
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On May 16, 2005, the Florida division f’iled for approval of a Special Contract with the Department of Management Services, an agency of the 
State of Florida, for sei.i:icc to tlic M/asliington Correction Institution (“WCI”).  The Florida Public Scrvlce Commission approvecl the 
C‘oinpny’s request on .luIy 19. 2005. and sei-vice to the existing WCI facility is cxpec.ted to beyin during the first quarter of 2006. WC’I i:, 
locatect in Washingtori County i n  the Flot-ida panhandle and would heconic tlic thirteenth county served by the Coinpany’s Florida division. 

On September 2, 2005, the Florida division filed a petition for a Declaratory Statement with the FPSC for a determination that Peninsula 
Pipeline Coiiipany, Inc. (“PPC”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, qualifies as a natural gas transmission company under the 
Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Intrastate Regulatory Act. The Florida PSC approved this Petition at its December 20, 2005 agenda 
conference, and a final order was issued on January 4,  2006. A determination that PPC does quaIify as a natural gas transmission company 
would provide opportunities for investment to deliver gas service to industrial customers in Florida by an intra-state pipeline, instead of through 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, to certain niche inarkets. 

Eastern Shore . During October 2002, Eastem Shore filed for recovery of gas s~ipply realignment costs, which totaled $196,000 (including 
interest), associated with the implementation of FERC Order No. 636. At that time, the FERC deferred review of the filing pending settlement 
of a related matter concerning another transmission company. Chesapeake understands that the other matter has now been resolved and Eastern 
Shore intends to resubniit its gas supply realigninent filing during first quarter of 2006. 

On April 1, 2003, Eastern Shore filed an application for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity (“Application”) before the FERC 
requesting authorization to construct the necessary facilities to enable Eastern Shore to provide additional daily firm transportation capacity of 
15,100 dekathenns over a three-year period commencing November 1, 2003, On October 8, 2003, the FERC issued an order granting Eastern 
Shore the authority to construct and operate certain pipeline and measurement facilities in its service territories as requested. Phases I and 11 of 
the Application began providing services November 1, 2003 and 2004, respectively. On December 22, 2004, Eastem Shore filed to amend the 
above-referenced Application to seek FERC authorization to construct and operate new pipeline facilities to provide an additional 7,450 
dekathemis of daily firin transportation service, as requested by its custoiners, to be available November 1, 2005. On June 27, 2005, the FERC: 
issued an Order Amending Certificate, granting approval to Eastern Shore to construct and operate the additional pipeline facilities requested. 
Phase 111 began November I ,  2005. 

On December 9, 2005, Eastern Shore filed revised tariff sheets to replace its existing fixed price penalties with penalties that are the higher of a 
fixed price or a inultiple of a daily index price. The revised penalties are applicable to customers who violate operational Flow Orders and 
customers who take unauthorized overrun quantities that couIcl threaten the operational integrity of the pipeline, or to Eastern Shore’s ability to 
rendei- reliable service. By letter order clated January 6, 2006, the FERC accepted Eastern Shore’s proposed changes, effective Decembel. 2 I ,  
2005. 

Eastern Shore is also following the FERC’s recent rulemaking pertaining to creditworthiness standards for customers of interstate natural gas 
pipelines. FERC has not yet issued its final rules in this proceeding. Upon such issuance. Eastern Shore will evaluate its currently effective 
tariff creditworthiness provisions to determine whether any actions will need to be taken to conform to the FERC’s f ina l  rules. 

En v i ro II m en t a I M at ter s 

The Company continues to w-ork with federal and state environnieutal agencies t o  assess the environmental impact and explore corrective 
action at three other environniental sites (see Note M to the Consolidated Financial Statements}. The Company believes that future costs 
associated with thesc sitcs will bc recoverable in  rates or through sharing arrangements n.ith, or contributions by, other responsible parties. 
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Market Risk 

Market risk represents the potential loss arising fiom adverse changes in market rates 2 n d  pi-ices. Long-term debt is subject to potential losses 
based on thc changc In intel-est ratcs. Tlic Company’s long-term debt consists of first moi-tgagc boncls, senior notes ancl convertible debentures 
(see Note H to the Consolidated Financial Statements foi- annual maturities of consolidated long-tern2 debt). All of Chesapeake’s long-term 
debt is fixed-rate debt and was not entered into for trading purposes. The cariying value of the Company’s long-term debt, including current 
maturities, was $63.9 million at December 31, 2005, as compared to a fair value of $68.5 million, based mainly on current market prices or 
discounted cash flows using current rates for siinilar issues with sii-nilai- terms and remaining mahirlties. The Company evaluates whether to 
refinance existing debt or permanently fiiiance existing short-term borrowing based in part on the fluctuation in interest rates. 

The Coinpany’s propane distribution business is exposed to market risk as a result of propane storage activities and entering into fixed price 
contracts for supply. The Coinpany can store up to approximately four inillion gallons of propane (including leased storage and rail cars) 
during the winter season to meet its custoiiiers’ peak requirements and to serve metered customers. Decreases in the wholesale price of propane 
may cause the value of stored propane to decline. To mitigate the impact of price fluchrations, the Company has adopted a Risk Management 
Policy that allows the propane distribution operation to enter into fair value hedges of its inventory. At December 31, 2005, the propane 
distribution operation had entered into a put contract to protect the value of 2. I million gallons of propane inventory from a drop in fair value. 
The Coinpany settled the put in January 2006, which resulted in a benefit of $28,000. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation is a party to natural gas liquids (“NGL”) forward contracts, primarily propane contracts, with 
various third parties. These contracts require that the propane wholesale marketing operation purchase or sell NGL at a fixed price at fixed 
fLiture dates. At expiration, the contracts are settled by the delivery of NGL to the Company or the counter party or booking out the transaction 
(booking out is a procedure for finaiicially settling a contract in lieu of the physical delivery of energy). The propane wholesale marketing 
operation also enters into futures contracts that are traded on the New York Mercantile Exchange. In certain cases, the futures contracts are 
settled by the payment of a net amount equal to the difference between the current market price of the firhires contract and the original contract 
price. 

The forward atid ftitures contracts are entei-ecl into for trading and wholesale marketing purposes. The propane wholesale inarketing operation is 
subject to coniiiiodity price risk on its open positions to the extent that market prices for NGL. deviate fi-om fixed contract settlement amounts. 
Market risk associated with the trading of futures and fotward contracts are nionitorecl daily for compliance with Chesapeake’s Risk 
Management Policy, which inclucles volumetric limits for open positions. To manage exposures to changing market prices, open positions are 
marked LIP or down to market prices ancl reviewed by oversight officials on a daily basis. Additionally, the Risk Management Cornnittee 
reviews periodic reports on market and crecli t risk, approves any exceptions to the Risk Management Policy (within the limits established by 
the Board of Directors) and authorizes the use of any new types of contracts. Quantitative information on the forward and futures contracts at 
December 31, 2005 and 2004 is shown in the following charts. 
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W eig 11 t ed 
f ive  rage 
c 0 I1 t I-a c t Quantity i n  Es ti ni a t e d 

At December. 31,7005 gallons 13’1 arket P r-ices Prices 

Forward Contracts 
$1 0350- 

$1.0100 - 
Sale 20,794,200 $1.1013 $1 .071a 

Purchase 20,202,000 $1.0450 $1.0703 

Estimated market prices and weighted aveyagp contvclcf prices are in dol la i~  per gallon. 
A l l  contracts expire ii7 2006. 

Weighted 
Average 

Quantity in Estimated Contract 
At December 31,2004 gallons Market Prices Prices 
Forward C antr acts 

Sale 

Purchase 

Futures Contracts 

Sale 

Pur chas e 

$0.7725 - 

$0.7300 - 
1 O,O44,5 10 $0.7750 

9,975,000 $0.7500 

$0.7450 - 
378,000 $0.7500 

420,000 $0.7300 
$0.7200 - 

$0.7828 

$0.8007 

$0.7868 

$0.7500 

The Company’s natural gas distribution operations have entered into agreements with natural gas suppliers to purchase nahiral gas for resale to 
their customers Purchases under these contracts ettliei do not meet the definition of derivatives 111 SFAS N o  I33 o r  are considered “norliial 
purchases and sales” under SFAS No 138 and are not marked to market. 

Competition 

The Company’s natural gas operations compete with other foims of energy including electricity, oil and propane. The principal coiii1jetitive 
factors are price, and to a lesser extent, accessibility. The Company’s natural gas distribution operations have several large volume industrial 
customers that have the capacity to use fliel oil as an alternative to natural gas. When oil pi-ices decline, these interruptible customers convert to 
oil to satisfy their fuel requirements. Lower levels in  interruptible sales occur when oil prices are lower relative to the price of natural gas. Oil 
prices, as well as thc prices of electricity and other bels, are subject to fluchiation for a variety of rcasons; therefore, ftiture competiti\ie 
conditions arc not prcdictable. To address this uncertainty, the C:ompmy uscs flexible pricing a~-i-angements 0 1 1  both the supply and sales side of 
this business to tiiaxiinize sales volumes. As a result of the transmission business’ conversion to open access and the Florida division’s 
restructuring of its services, their businesses have shifted from providing competitive sales service to providing transportation and contl-act 
storage services. 

The Coinpany’s nahiral gas distribution operations located in Delaware, Marylaiid and Florida offer transpol-tation services to certain 
coiiimel-cia1 and industrial customers. I n  2002, the Florida operation extended transportation service to resiclential customers. Wit11 
transportation service available 011 the Company’s distribution systems, the Company is competing with third party suppliers to sell gas to 
industrial customers. As it relates to transportation services, the Coiiipany’s competitors include the interstate transmission coinpany i f  the 
distribution custonier is iocated close enough to the transmission company’s pipeIine to make a connection economically feasible. The 
customers at risk arc usually large volume commercial and industrial customers with the financial resources and capability to bypass the 
distribution operations in this manner. I n  certain situations, the distribution operations may adjust services and rates for these customers to 
retain their business. The Company expects to contiiiue to expand the availability of transportation service to additiona1 classes of distribution 
customers in the fLiture. The Company established a natural gas sales and supply operation in Florida to coiiipete for customers eligibIe for 
transportation services. The Coinpany also provides sales service in Delaware. 
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The Company’s propane distribution opei-ations compete with several other propane distributors in their- service territories. primarily on the 
basis of service and price, enipliasizing rcliahility of sei-vicc ancl responsiveness. Coinpetitiun is generally fi-om local outlets of‘ national 
distribution companies and local businesses, because tlistr-itxitors located in close proximity to customers i ncu r  lower- costs of providing 
service. Pimpane competes with electricity as an cner’gy S O ~ I I W .  because it is typically lcss expensive than elcctncitp, based on cq~iivaient BTU 
value. Propane also competes with home heating oil as an energy source. Since nahiraI gas has historically been less expensive than propane, 
propane is generally not distributed in geographic areas serviced by n a h d  gas pipeline or distribution systems. 

The propane wholesale mal-keting operation competes against various marketers, inany of which have significantly greater resources and are 
able to obtain price or volumetric advantages. 

The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors having substantially greater 
resources available to them than does the Company. I n  addition, changes in the advanced information services business are occurring rapidly, 
which could adversely iinpact the markets for the products and services offered by these businesses. This segment competes 011 the basis of 
technological expertise, reputation and price. 

Inflation 

Inflation affects the cost of labor, products and services required for operation, maintenance and capital improveinents. While the impact of 
inflation has remained low in recent years, natural gas and propane prices are subject to rapid fluctuations. Fluctuations in natural gas prices are 
passed on to customers through the gas cost recovery inechanisin in the Company’s tariffs. To help cope with the effects of inflation on its 
capital investments and returns, the Company seeks rate relief from regulatory commissions for regulated operations while monitoring the 
returns of its unregulated business operations To compensate for fluctuations in propane gas prices, Chesapeake adjusts its propane selling 
prices to the extent allowed by the market. 

Recent Pronouncements 

In December 2004, the FASB released a revision (“Share-Based Payment”) to SFAS N o .  I23 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” 
referred to as SFAS No. 123R. 111 April 2005, the SEC approved a new rule that delayed the effective date for- SFAS No. 123R until the first 
annual period beginning after June 15, 2005. This Stateineril establishes financial accounting and r-eporting standards for stock-based employee 
coinpensation plans. Those plans include all arrangements by wliicli employees receive shares of stock or other equity instruments of the 
employel- or the employer incurs liabilities to einployees in amounts based 011 the price of tlie employer’s stock. Examples are stoc,k purchase 
plans, stock options, restricted stock and stock appreciation rights. The adoption of this pronouncement will not have a inaterial impact on the 
Company’s financial statements. 

’ 

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 47 (“FIN No. 47’7, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations,” 
interpretation of SFAS No. 143. FIN No.  47 clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement obligation refei-s to a legal obligation to perfor111 
m i  asset t-etirement activity in which the timing ancl (01-) methotl of settlement are conditional on a fiihire event that may or may not bc \j.Tiitjlin 
the control of the entity The obligation to perforin the asset retrrement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the tiining 
and (or) method of settlement. Thus, tlie timing and (or )  method of settlement inay be conditional on a f h r e  evcnt. FIN N o .  47 aIso clarifies 
when a n  entity would have sufficient infon-nation to r-easonablp estimate the fail- value of an asset retirement obligation. Thc Compan!. adoptcd 
FIN N o .  47 during the fourth quarter of 2005 and it did not have a material impact on its financial statements. 

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, ”Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - a replaceisent of APB Opinion No.  20 and 
FASB Statement No. 3”. SFAS No. I 54 priniarily requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements for the direct effects 
of changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the 
change. This statement applies to all voluntary changes in  accounting principle and also applies to changes required by an accounting 
pronouncement in tlie unusual instance that tlie pronouncemenl does not include specific transition provisions. The statement is effective for 
accounting changes and corrections of errors made i n  fiscal years beginning after Deceinber 15, 2005. Tlie Company is requited to aclopt the 
provision of SFAS No. 154. as applicabIe, beginning in fiscal year 2006. 



Cautionary Statem en t 

Chesapeake has niade statements in this reliort tha t  are considered to be foiwarcl-looking statements. These stateinents aIc not matters o f  
historical fact. Somclimcs they contain woids such as “lxlieves,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,”  “will” 01- “may,” and other similar ivords of a 
predictive nature. These statements relate to matters such as custo~ner growth, changes in revenues OI- gross margin, capital expendihires, 
environmental reniediatioii costs, regulatory approvals, market risks associated with the Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation, 
competition, inflation and other matters. It is important to understand that these foiward-looking statements are not. guarantees but are subject 
to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could cause achial results to differ materially from those in the forward- 
looking stateinents. These factors include, among other things: 

o the temperature sensitivity of the natural gas and propane businesses; 
o the effect of spot, forward and futures market prices on the Company’s distribution, wholesale marketing and energy trading 

o the effects of competition on the Company’s unregulated and regulated businesses; 
o the effect of changes in federal, state or local regulatory and tax requirements, including deregulation; 
o the effect of accounting changes; 
o the effect of changes in benefit plan assumptions; 
o the effect of compliance with environmental regulations or the remediation of environmental damage; 
o the effects of general econoinic conditions on the Company and its customers; 
o the ability of the Company’s new and planned facilities and acquisitions to generate expected revenues; and 
o the Company’s ability to obtain the rate relief and cost recovery requested from utility regulators and the trining of the requested 

businesses; 

regulatory actions 
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. 

Inforination concerning quaiititativc and qLialitativc disclosurc about market risk is included i n  Itciii 7 uiider thc heading “Managenlcnt’s 
Discussion and Analysis ~ Markct  Risk ’’ 

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemental Data. 

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control ovei- financial reporting, as such term is defined in 
Exchange Act R ~ i l e ~  13a-l5(f). A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made onIy in accordance with 
authorizations of inanageiiient and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, 
Chesapeake’s management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria 
established in a report entitled “Internal Control - Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadtvay Commission. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstateiiients. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to ftiture periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Chesapeake’s management has 
evaluated and concluded that Chesapeake’s intenla1 control over financial reporting was effective as of December 3 1,2005. 

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of Chesapeake’s internal control ovei financial reporting as of December 3 1, 2005 has been 
audited by Price~7atcrhouseCoopers LLP,  an independent registered public accounting firin, as stated in thew report which is included hci ein 
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Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Board of Dircctors and  Stocltholders 
of Chesapeake W tillties Corporation 

We have coinpleted integrated audits of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s 2005 and 2004 consolidated financfal statements and of its intenial 
control over financial reporting as of December 3 I ,  2005, and an audit of its 2003 financial statements in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below. 

Consolid~ijted financial statements and financial statement schedule 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statenients listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)( 1)  present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations 
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Iteln 
15(a)(2) presents fairly, in a11 material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated 
financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted OUT 

audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Coinpany Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An andit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and discIosures in the 
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Internal control over financial reporting 

Also. in oui- opinion, ~nanagernent’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reportin2 appeal-ing 
under Item 8, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 3 1 ,  2005. based on criteria 
estab] islied in 1uteri7nl Cot7ti-d - hteg~-nfed / ; ~ . ~ I ~ Z ~ I W I - / C  issued by the Coinmi ttee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Coinniissio~i 
(COSO), is fairly stated, in a11 material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in o w  opinion, the CoInpany maintained, in all inaterial 
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria estabiished in I n t e ~ n l  C O l 7 f l - O l  - 
I17legmled Fr77rnewor.lc issued by the COSO. The Company’s inanagenient is responsible for maintaining effective internal control ove~. 
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express 
opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Coinpany ’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 
We conducted  OH^ audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and pel-foi-in the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethei- 
efFective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting 
in c 1 u d e s ob ta i n i ng an un d e rs ta n cli n g of in te m a1 con tro 1 over fi 11 an cia 1 rep or t i n g , eva I u a ti n g 111 a 11 ageni en t ’ s asses s t i i  en t , testing and ev a 1 uat i n g 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and perforining such other procedures as we consider necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoL1llting 
principles. A company’s intenial control over financial repoi-ting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and clispositioiis of the assets of the company; (ii) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance wit11 gelierally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expendihires of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
nianagement and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorizecl 
acquisition, use. or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of an?.; 
evaluation of effectivcness to htui-e periods ai-e subject to the risk that conti.ols may bccomc inadequate becausc o f  chances In conclitions. 01- 

t h a t  the degree of compl iance  with the policies or procedures m a y  deteriorate. 

/s/ PrjccwaterhouseCoopers LLP 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Boston, MA 
March 6,  2006 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

For the  Years Ended December 3 I .  2005 2004 2003 
~~ 

Operating Revenues $229,629,736 $177,955,441 $ 1  63,567,592 

Operatiiig Expenses 
Cost of sales, excluding costs below 
Operations 
Maintenance 

153,514,739 109,626,377 95,246,819 
40,: 81,649 3 5,146,595 33,526,804 

1,818,981 1,518,774 1,737,855 
Depreciation and amortization 7,568,209 7,257,538 7,089,836 
Other taxes 5.015.459 4.436.41 1 4,386.878 

1 192 

21,530,499 19,969,746 2 1 3  

0 th r expenses 549,l 56 23 8,439 

Interest charges 5,133,495 5,268,145 5,705,911 

Income Before Income Taxes 16,779,630 15,250,757 16, 

lncome taxes 4,312,016 5,701,090 6,032,445 

Net lnconie from Continuing Operations 10,467,614 9,549,667 10,079,483 

Loss froiii discontinued operations, net of tax benefit of $0, 
$59,75 1 and $74,997 - (1 20,900) (787,607) 

Net h o m e  $ 10,467,614 $ 9,428,767 $ 9,291,876 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock: 
Bas& 

From continuing operations $ 1.79 $ 1.66 $ 1.80 
Froin discontinued operations (0.02) (0.14) 

Net liicome $ 1.79 $ 1.64 $ I .66 

D i luted 
F 1'0 m con t i nu I ng op era t I o 11 s $ 1.77 $ 1.64 $ 1.76 

From discontinued operations (0.02) (0.131 
N et I 11 come $ 1.77 $ 1.62 $ I .63 
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Consolidated Statements o f  Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

Operwtirtg Activities 
N et In c o 111 e 
Adjustnients to reconcile net incoine to net operating cash: 

Depreciation and ainortizati on 
Depreciation and accretion included in other costs 
Deferred income taxes, net 
Unrealized (loss) gain on coinniodity contracts 
Einp lo y ee bene fits and coinpen s ati on 
Other, net 

200s 2004 

$ 10,467,614 8 9,428,767 

7,568,209 7,257,538 
2,705,619 2,611,779 
1,510,776 4,559.207 
(227,193) 353,183 

1,621,607 1,536,586 
(62,692) 67,079 

2003 

$ 9,291,876 

8,030,399 
2,46 8,647 
2,397,594 

457,901 
2,042,093 

15,874 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Sale (purchase) of inve 1,242,563) 
ed revenue 6,831,750) (1 1,723, (3,5 65,3 63) 

(466,472) 

36,703 (221,137) (3 16,425) 

247,600 428,964 (101,373) 

Regul at ory as sets (1,719,184) 428,5 I 6  116,153 

(102,562) (168,898) 43,844 

Accounts payable and other acci-ued liabilities 15,258,551 11,079,661 564,270 
(2,006,763) (229,237) 25,090 Income taxes receivable (payable) 

Accnied interest (42,3 74) (5 1,272) (47,464) 
Customer deposits and refunds 78 1 665,549 1 2 8,7 04 
A c cni e d coin 13 ens a ti on 875,342 (794,194) 9 10,587 
Regul atory I i a b i li ti es 144,499 (1 9 1,266) 466,923 
Env~ronmental and other iiabilities 328,383 12,721 550,977 

Net  cash provided by operating activities 13,288,563 23,35 1,454 23,013,895 

I11 vesting A ctivities 
Property, plant and equipment expenditures (33,008,235) ( I  7,784,240) (1 1,790,364) 
Sale of iiivestinents 135,170 
Sale of discontinued operations 41 5,707 3,732,649 
Envii oilmental recoveries and other 240,336 369,719 2,127,248 

N e t  cash used by investing activities (32,767,899) ( I  6,863,644) (5,930,467) 

Fiiinticii?g Activities 
Commoi~ stock divide ti cls (5,789,179) (5,560.5 3 5 )  (5,403 3 3  6) 

Change in cash overdrafts due to outstanding checks 874,083 ( 143,720) (46,853) 
Net borrowing (repayment) under line of credit 
agreein en ts 29,606,400 1, I 84,743 (7,384,743) 
Repayment of long-tei-m debt (4,794,827) (3,6 6 5,5 8 9> (3,945,6 1 7 )  

Net cash used by financing activities 20,355,233 (7,984,550) (16,433,203) 

Issuance of stock for Dividend Reuivestment Plan 458,756 200.5s 1 347.546 

Net hicrease (Decrease) iri Cash cind  C w h  Equivalents 875,897 (1,496,740) 650,225 
Cnsk and Cmlz Eqiiivalmts - Begimiiig y f Period 1,611,761 3,1O8,5O 1 2,453,276 
Cnsh nml  Ccrsh Equivnleiits - Emi of’ Period $ 2,487,658 $ 1,611,761 $ 3,108,501 

Sup p 1 em en t a1 D is c I o s u re of Cash F 1 ow i 11 form a ti o n 
Cash paid for interest $ 5,052,013 $ 5,280,299 $ 5,648,332 
Cash paid for income taxes $ 6,342,476 $ 1,977,223 $ 3,767,816 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Assets 
At December 31, 200s 2004 
Property, Plant and Equipment 

Natural gas distribution and transmission 
Propane 

$220,685,461 $19%,3@6,668 
41,563,810 38,344,983 

Advanced in formation s e r vi ces 1,221,177 1,480,779 
Other plant ,275,729 9,368,153 

TotaI property, plant and equipment 

In S 85,635 386,422 

Cash and cash equivalents ,658 1,611,761 
for uncollectible accounts of 

Accrued revenue 4,716,383 5229,955 
Propane inventory, at average cost 6,332,956 4,654,119 
Other inventory, at average cost 
Regulatory assets 
Storage gas prepayments 
Income taxes receivable 

1,538,936 1,056,530 
4,434,828 2,435,284 
8,628,179 5,085,382 
2,725,840 71 9,078 

Prepaid expenses 2,021,164 1,759,643 
Other current assets 1,596,797 459,908 

Total current assets 88,766,752 59,950,348 

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 
Goodwill 674,451 674,45 1 

Long-term receivables 961,434 1,209,034 
Other regulatory asscts 1 , I  78,232 1,542,711 

1,003,393 902,28 1 Other deferred charges 

Total deferred charges and other assets 4,023,193 4,548,471 

Other intangible assets, net 205,683 21 9,964 

Total Assets $295,979,875 $24 1,93 8,428 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Capitalization and Liahilities 
i l l  December 31. 2005 2004 

C a pita1 iza tio n 
Stockholders' q u i  ty 

Coininon Stock, par value $.4867 per share; (authorized 12,000,000 
shares) ('1 
Additional paid-m capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 

$ 2,863,212 $ 2,812,538 
39,619,549 36,854,717 
42,854,894 39,015,087 

(575,151) (527,246) 
794,535 8 16,044 

(797.156) (1 .O08.696) 
~~ ~ 

84,757,183 77,962,444 

Long-term debt, net o f  riti 4 
Total capitalization 143,747,546 144,151,898 

Current Liabilities 
Current portion of long-term debt ,091 2,909,091 
Sh ort-teim borrowing 35,482,241 5,001,758 
Accounts payable 4544 5,22 8 3 0,9 3 8,27 2 
Customer deposits and refmds 
Accmed iiiteres t 
Di viclends p y a b  le 1,676,395 1 ,h 17,245 
Deferred income taxes payable I, 150,828 57 1.876 
Accrued c oinp ens at i 011 3,793,244 2,680,370 
Regulatory liabilities 550,546 571,111 
Otlier accrued liabilities 3,560,055 1,800,540 

Total current liabilities 102,487,349 5 1,369,576 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes payable 
Deferred investment tax credits 
Othcl- regulatory liabilities 
Environmental 1 ia bi li tie s 
Accnted pension costs 
Accrued asset removal cost 

24,248,624 23,350,414 
367,055 437,909 

2,008,779 1,578,374 
352,504 46 1,656 

3,099,852 3,007,949 
16,727,268 15,024,849 

0 the I' I I abi 1 it i es 2,940,838 3 , j  55,803 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 49,744,950 46,416,954 

Otlier Comniitments and Contingencies (Note N)  

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $295,979,575 $241,938,428 

( I )  Shares issued were 5,883,099 and 5,778,976 for- 2005 a n d  2004, 
respectively . 

Shares outstanding were 5,883,002 and 5,769,558 for 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. 
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Consolidated Statements o f  Stockholders' Equity 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 
Common Stock 
Balance - beginning of year $ 2,812,538 $ 2,754,748 $ 2,694,935 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 20,038 20,125 24,888 
Retirement Savings Plan 10,255 19,058 21,047 
Conversion of debentures 11,004 9,060 9,144 
Performance shares and options exercised ( ' I  9,377 9,547 4,734 

63,212 2,812,538 2,754,748 

Additional Paid 
Balance - beginning of year 36,854,717 34,176,361 3 3,756,983 

nvestinent Plan 

Conversion of debentures 
Performance shares and options exercised ( ' I  484,170 427,3 82 143,224 

Balance - end of year 619,849 36,854,717 34,176,361 

Retained Earnings 
Balance - beginning of year 39,015,087 36,008,246 32,898,283 

Net inc oine 10,467,614 9,428,747 4,291,876 
Cash dividends ('1 (6,627,807) (6,403,450) (6,181,913) 
Loss on issuance of treasury stock (1 8,476) 

Balance - end of yeai- 42,854,894 39,015,087 36,008,246 

A c c u ni u 1 ate c l  0 the r C o mp r e 11 en si v e 1 n c o m e 
Balance - beginning of year (527,246) 

MinimLun pension liability adjustment, net of tax (50,905) (527,246) 
Balance - end of year (578,151) (527,246) 0 

Deferred Compensation Obligation 
Balance - beginning of year 816,044 913,639 71 1,109 

New deferrals 130,426 296,790 202,580 
Payout of cleferred compensation (15 1,935) (394,435) 

Balance - end of yea1 794,535 8 16,044 913,689 

Treasury Stock 
Balance - beginning of year (1,008,696) (91 3,689) (71 1,109) 

New deferrals related to compensation obligation (130,426) (296,790) (202,580) 
Purchase of treasury stock (182,292) (344,753) 
Sale and distribution of treasury stock 524,258 546,536 

Balance - end of year (797,156) (1.008,696) (913,689) 

Total Stockholders' Equity $84,757,183 S; 77,962,444 $ 72,939,355 

( ' I  liicludes amounts for shares issued for Directors ' compensation. 
(?) Cash dividends dedarecl per share for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $1.14, $1.12 and $1 .  I O ,  respectively. 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive 
Income 



For the Years Ended December- 31, 2005 2004 
~ 

Net i IICOIII e $ 10,467,614 $ 9.428,767 
Mlinimui-1i pension liability acllustincnt, net of tax of 
$33.61 5 and $347,726, i-espcctivcly ( S O , C , O S )  (527,246) 

Co m pl-e h ens ive 1 n corn e $ 10,416,709 $ 8,901,521 

2003 

$ 9,291,876 

$ 9.291.876 
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Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 
Cut-rent Income T a x  E s p i s e  

Federal 
State 

$ 3,687,800 $ 1,221,155 $ 4,168,433 
789,233 618,916 94 8,023 

Investment tax credit adjustments, net (54,SI 6) (54,8 16) (54,8 16) 
Total current income tax expense 4,422,217 1,785,255 5,061,640 

Total lncome Tax Expense $ 6,312,016 $ 5,701,090 $ 6,032,445 

Reconciliation of Effective Income Tax Rates 
$ 5,185,257 $ 5,478,056 

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 708,192 '736,176 737,370 

Other (269,047) (220,343 ) 1 
Total Income Tax Expense $ 6,312,016 $ 5,701,090 $ 6,032,445 

Effective income tax rate 37.6?4 37.4% 37.4% 

At December 31, 2005 2004 
Deferred Income Taxes 

Deferred income tax liabilities: 
Propci-ty, plant and equipment $26,795,452 $25,736,718 
Deferred gas costs 
Other 

Total deferred income tax liabilities 

Deferred income tax assets: 
Pens 1 on an cl other einp lo ye e b en e fi t s 2,289,370 1,9 14,402 
Self insurance 575,3 03 535,755 
En vi 1-0 n In e tit a 1 costs 181,734 83.510 
Other 626,788 629,965 

Total dekrred income tax assets 3,673,195 3,163,632 
~~ - 

Deferred lncoine Taxes Per Consolidated Balance Sheet $25,399,452 $23,922,290 

( ' 1  Includes $146,000, $386,000 and $ 1  13,000 of defened state income taxes for the years 2005, 2004 and 
2003, respectively. 
1') Federal income taxes were recorded at 35% for the year 2005. They were recorcled at 34% in both 
2004 and 2003. 
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A. Summary of Accouriting Policies 

Nuttire of’ Brrsiness 
Chesapeake Utilities Corpoi.ation (“Clicsapcakc” or “the Company”) is engaged in natural gas distribution to approximately 54,800 custonlcrs 
located in central and southern Delaware, Maiyland’s Eastern Shore and Florida. The Conipany ‘s Imhiral gas transmission subsidiary operates 
an intrastate pipeline from various points in Pennsylvania and northem Delaware to the Company’s Delaware and Maryland distribution 
divisions, as well as other utility and industrial customers in Pennsylvania, Delaware and the Eastern Shore of Maryland. The Company’s 
propane distribution and wholesale marketing segment provides distribution service to approximately 32,900 custoiners in central and southern 
Delaware, the Eastern Shore of Maryland, southeastern Pennsylvania, central Florida and the Eastern Shore of Virginia, and markets propane to 
wholesale customers including large independent oil and petrochemical companies, resellers and propane distribution companies in the 
southeastem United States. The advanced information sei-vices segment provides domestic and international clients with information 
technology related business services and sohtions for both enterprise and e-business applications. 

Priizciplcs of Consolidntiari 
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. The Conipany does not have 
any ownership interests in investments accounted for using the equity method or any variable interests in a variable interest entity. All 
significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

System of Accourzts 
The natural gas distribution divisions of the Company located in Delaware, Maryland and Florida are subject to regulation by their respective 
public service commissions with respect to their rates for service, maintenance of their accounting records and various other matters. Eastern 
Shore Natural Gas Company is an open access pipeline and is subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatoiy Cornmission (“FERC”). 
Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which give appropriate recognition to the 
rateinaking and accounting practices and policies of the various commissions. The propane, advanced information services and other business 
segments are not subject to regulation with respect to rates or maintenance of accounting records. 

Property, Plcrnt, Eyuipnient niid Deprecintion 
Utility property is stated at origind cost while the assets of the non-utility segments ai-e recoded at cost. The costs of repairs and ininor 
replacements are charged against income as incurred and the costs of major renewals and betterments are capitalized. Upon retirement O r  

disposition of non-utility property, the gain or loss, net of salvage value, is charged to income. The provision for depreciation is computed 
using the straight-line method at rates that amortize the unrecovered cost of depreciable property over the estimated remaining useful life of the 
asset. Depreciation and amortization expenses are provided at an aniiual rate for each segment. The three-year average rates were 3 percent for 
natural gas distribution and transmission, 5 percent for propane, 1 1. percent for advanced information services and 7 percent for general plant. 
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At December 31. 2005 2004 Useful Life 
~ ~~ 

Plant i n  service 
Mains $113,111.408 $ 99.154,938 

Compressor station 
equ ipiii en t 23,853,871 23,766,105 
Liqtefied petroleum gas 
equipment 22,162,867 21,483,969 
Meters and meter 
ins tallations 15,165,212 13,456,918 
Measuring and regulating 
station equipment 
Office furniture and 
equipment 9,572,926 10,17 1,180 
Transportation equipment 
Structures and 
improvements 9 9,177,011 

Land and land rights 5 4,703, 
Propane bulk plants and 
tanks 
Various 

Services - utility 29,OI 0,008 25,733,797 

Total plant in service 272,746,177 247,500,583 
Plus construction work in 
progress 7,59 2,766,209 
Less accumulated 
deureciation (78,840,413) (73213.405) 

~~ 

24-37 years 
14-25 years 

28 years 

30-39 years 
Propane 15-33 years, Nahiral gas 17-49 

years 

17-37 years 
Non-regulated 3- 10 years, Regulated 3-20 

2-11 years 

5-44 years (21 

years 

assets 

15 - 40 years 
Various 

Net property, plant and 
eauiuinent $201.504.295 $177,053 I87 

(’ Certain iimnatei-ial account balances may fall outside this range. 

The regulated operations compute depreciation in accordance with rates approved by either- the state 
Public Service Commission or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. These rates are based on 
depreciation studies and may change periodically upon receiving approval from the appropriate 
regulatory body. The depreciation rates shown above are based on the remaining usefiil lives of the 
assets at the time of the depreciation study, rather than their original lives. The depreciation rates are 
composite, straight-line rates appjiecl to the average investment for cach class of depreciable property 
and are adjusted for anticipated cost of removal less salvage value. 

The non-regulated operations coinpute depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated 
usefiil life of the asset. 

t 2 1  Irictudes buildings, structures used in  connection with natural gas a n d  propane oycrations, 
i niprove m en ts to those faci 1 i ties an GI I ease h o I d i nip rove men t s . 

Cask and Cash Eqtrivnlents 
The Company’s policy is to invest cash In excess of operating requireinents in overnight income producing accounts. Such amounts are stated 
at cost, which approximates market value. Investments with an original maturity of three ~nonths  or less  lien pi-chased are considered cas11 
equivalents. 

111 ven to r ies 
The Company uses the average cost method to value propane and materials and supplies inventory The applrance inventory IS valued at first-111 
first-out (“FJFO”) If the market prices drop below cost, inventoiy balances that are subject to price risk are adjusted to market values. 

Reguliitory Assets, Linbilities miif Esyerrilitrrres 
The Company accounts for its regulated operations in accordance wi th  SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of 
Regulation.” This staiidard includes accounting principles for companies whose rates are determined by independent third-party regulators. 
When setting rates, regulators often make decisions, the economics of which require coinpanies to defer costs or revenues in different periods 
than lnay be appropriate for unregulated enterprises. When this situation occurs, the regulated utility defers the associated costs as assets 



(regulatory assets) on the balance sheet, and records them as expense on the income stateinelit as i t  collects revenues. Further, regulators can 
also impose liabilities upon a company for amounts prcviously collected fi.0111 customcrs, a n d  for recovery of costs that  are expected to bc 
incurred in the future (regulatory liabilities). 

,4t December 3 1 .  2 0 0  and  2004, the regulated utility operations had recorded the f b l l o \ v i n ~  regulatory assets and liabilities 011 the Halancc 
Shccts. These assets a n d  liabilities will be recognized as t-evctiues and expenses in filturc pc~~iocls as thcy arc i.c~flcctecI i n  customers’ ratcs 
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At December 31, 2005 2004 
Regulatory Assets 
Current 

Underrecovered purchased gas costs $ 4,016,522 $ 3,479,358 
Conservation cost recovery 303,930 186,234 
Swing transportation imbalances 454 32,707 
Flex rate asset 113,922 736,985 

Total current 4,434,828 2,43 5,284 

Income tax related amounts due from customers 711,961 71 1,961 
89,258 200,746 

Deferred gas supply 

,739 194,529 

Total non-current 1,178,232 1,542,741 

$ 5,613,060 $ 3,978,025 Total Regulatory Assets 

Regulatory Liabilities 
Current: 

Self insurance - current 
Shared interruptible margins 
Operational flow or der penalties 
Swine transnortation imbalances 

$ 44,221 $ 127,000 
3,039 135,098 
7,831 130,338 

495.455 178.675 
Total current 550,546 571,1 1 1  

N on -C u r r e 11 t 
S elf insurance - 1 ong - t erm 1,383,247 1,22 I ,  101 
Income tax related amounts due to customers 327,893 324,974 
Environmental overcollections 297,639 32,299 

To tal no n -cui-ren t 2,008,779 1578.374 

Accnied asset reinoval cost 16,727,268 15,024,849 

Total Regulatofy Liabilities $19,286,593 $ I7,I 74,334 

Included it7 the regulatory assets listed above are $ 1  .X million oE which arc accniing interest. Of the remainins reglatory assets, $2.7 11Iillion 
will be collected in approximately one to two years, $360,000 will be collected within approximately 3 to 10 year-s, a n d  $779,000 are awaiting 
regulatory approval for recoveiy, but once approved are expected to be collected within 12 months. 

As required by SFAS No. 7 1 ,  the Company monitors its regulatory and competitive environineiit to determine whether the I-ecoveiy of its 
regulatoiy assets continues to be probable. If the Coinpanp were to determine that recovery of these assets is no longer probable, i t  would write 
off the assets against earnings. The Company believes that SFAS No. 71 continues to apply to its regulated operations, and that the recovery of 
its regulatory assets is probable. 

Goodwill and Other Intnngible Assets 
Goodwill and other intangible assets are associated with the acquisition of non-utility companies. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill 
is not amortized, but is tested for impairment on an annual basis cliid when events change. Other intangible assets are amortized on a straight- 
line basis over their estimated ecorioinic useful lives. 
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Other- Dqji.r.red cI?(trgL‘s 
Othei- deferi-ecl chai-ges inclucle discount, preiiiitiim a n d  rssuancc costs associated with long-term debt. Debt costs are defeiwcl, then amortized to 
interest expense over the orisinal lives of the r’espectivc debt issuanccs. Dcfcrred post- employnient bcnefi ts arc acl~jiisted based on current age, 
the present value of the pro-jected annual benefit received and estiimted Iife expectancy. 

Inconte T a e s  arid Investment Tax Credit Adjrrstiizeizts 
The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return. Income tax expense allocated to the Company’s subsidiaries i s  based upon their 
respective taxable incoiiies and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial statements bases and tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and are measured using current effective income tax rates. The portions of the Company’s deferred tax liabilities 
applicable to utility operations, which have not been reflected in current service rates, represent income taxes recoverable through future rates. 
Investment tax credits on utility property have been deferred and are allocated to income ratably over the lives of the subject property. 

FiitaJlcia[ Instruments 
Xeron, Inc. (“Xeron”), the Company’s propane wholesale marketing operation, engages in trading activities using forward and futures contracts 
which have been accounted for using the mark-to-market method of accounting. Under inark-to-market accounting, the Coinpany’ s trading 
contracts are recorded at fair value, net of future servicing costs, The changes in market price are recognized as gains or losses in revenues on 
the income statement in the period of change. The resulting unrealized gains and losses are recorded as assets or liabilities, respectively. There 
were unrealized gains of $46,000 and unrealized losses of $182,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Trading liabilities are 
recorded in other accrued liabilities. Trading assets are recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets. 

The Company’s natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into agreements with natural gas and propane suppliers to 
purchase gas for resale to their customers. Purchases under these contracts either do not meet the definition of derivatives in SFAS No 133 or 
are considered “norinal prcliases and sales” under SFAS No. 138 and are accounted for on an acci-ual basiy 

The propane distribution operation has entered into fair value hedges of its inventory, in order to mitigate the impact of wholesale price 
fluctuations. At December 3 1 , 2005, propane distribution had entei-eci into a p ~ t  contract to protect 2.1 million galloiis of propane inventov 
from a drop in value below the strike price of the put. The Coiiipany settled the put in January 2006, which resulted in a benefit of $28,000. 
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Earnings Per Slznre 
7’hc calculations of both basic and diluted eai-nirigs per share From continuing operations are presentccl in tlic lollon’lng chart 

For the Period Ended December 31, 200s 2004 2003 
Calculation of Basic Earnings Pel- Share from 
Continuing Operations: 

Ill come fi-om continuing opera ti on s $ 10,467,614 $ 9,549,667 $ 10,079,483 
Weighted average shares outstanding 5,836,463 5,735,405 5,610,592 

Basic Earnings Per Share from Continuing Operations $ 1.79 $ 1.66 $ 1.80 

lation of Diluted Earnings Per Share from 

9,667 $ 10,079,483 
9,097 157,557 

$10,591,173 $ 9,688,764 $ 10,237,040 

5,836,463 5,735,405 5,610,592 
Effect of dilutive securities 
Stock options 1,784 1,361 
Warrants 11,711 7 900 5,481 

vertible debentures 144,378 184,532 
Adjusted denominator - Diluted 5,992,552 5,907,555 5,801,966 

Diluted Earnings Per Share from Continuing Operations 9; 1.77 $ 1.64 $ 1.76  

Operating Reveiiiies 
Revenues for the natural gas distribution operations of the Coiiipany are based on rates approved by the various public service coiiiiiiissioiis. 
The natural gas transmission operation’s revenues are based on rates approved by the FERC. Customers’ base rates may not be changed 
without formal approval by these commissions; however, the regulatory authorities have granted our regulated natural gas distribution 
operations the ability to negotiate rates with custoiners that have competitive alternatives using approved ~nethodologies. In  addition, the 
naixral gas transmission operation can negotiate rates above or below the FERC-approved tariff rates. 

Chesapeake’s Maiyland and Delaware natural gas distribution operations each have a gas cost recovery mechanism that provides for tile 
ncl.justment of rates cliargecl to customers as gas costs fluctuate. Thcsc amounts are collccted or refiiridecl through adjustments to ratcs in 
subs eque 11 t per i od s . 

The C‘oiii~~any charges flexihle rates to the natural gas distribution’s industrial interi-uptible customers to conipetc with alternative typcs of fiic[. 
Based on pricing, these customers can choose natural gas or alternative types of supply. Neither the Company nor- the interruptible customei- is 
contractually obligated to deliver 01- receive natural gas. 

The propane wholesaie marketing operation records trading activity net 011 the Coinpany’s income statement, on a mark-to-market basls, for 
open contracts The propane distributron, advanced information services and other segments record revenue in the perlod the products are 
delivered and/or seivices are rendered 

Certcth Risks rind Urwwtcrinties 
The financial statements arc prepared in coiiforinity with generally accepted accounting principles that require inanageinent to make estimates 
in measuring assets and liabilities m c l  related revenues and expenses (sec Notcs M and N to the Consolidated Financial Stateiiienls rur 
significant estimates). These estimates involve judgments with respect to, among other things, various future economic factors that are difficult 
to predict and are beyond the control of the Company; therefore, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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The Company records certain assets and liabilities in accordance with SFAS No. 7 1 .  If the Coinyany were required to terminate application of 
SFAS No, 7 1 for its i’egulatecl operations, a l l  such cleferi-ed amounts would be iwxgiiizecl in the inconic statcrnent at that time. This could result 
i n  a charge to earnings, net of applicablc income taxes. which coiilcl be material. 

FA SB Sta teirz a i  ts [ I  1zc1 0th er A ritiz o ritntive Prono im cein ents 
In December 2004, the FASB released a revision (“Share-Based Payment”) to SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ 
referred to as SFAS N o .  123R. In April 2005, the SEC approved a new iiile that delayed the effective date for SFAS No. 123R until the first 
aiinual period beginning after June 15, 2005. This Statement establishes financial accounting and reporting standards for stock-based employee 
compensation plans. Those plans include all arrangements by which employees receive shares of stock or other equity instniinents of the 
einployer or the einployer incurs liabilities to employees in amounts based on the price of the employer’s stock, Examples are stock purchase 
plans, stock options, restricted stock and stock appreciation rights. The Company adoption of this pronounceinent will not have a material 
iinpact on the financial statements. 

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 47 (“FIN No. 47”), “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations” an 
interpretation of SFAS No. 143. FIN No. 47 clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement obligation refers to a legal obligation to perform 
an asset retirement activity in which the timing and (or) method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within 
the control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing 
and (or) method of settlement. Thus, the timing and (or) method of settlement may be conditional on a future event. FIN No. 47 also clarifies 
when an entity would have sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation. The Company adopted 
FIN No.  47 in the fourth quarter of 2005. The adoption of this interpretation did not have a inaterial impact on the company’s financial 
statements. 

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - a replacement of APB Opinion No ,  20 and 
FASB Statement No. 3”. SFAS 154 primarily requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements for the direct effects of 
changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. 
This statement applies to all voluntaiy changes in accounting principle and also applies to changes required by an accounting pronouncement in 
the unusual instance that the pronounceiiient does not include specific transition provisions. The statement is effective for accounting changes 
and corrections of errors macle in fiscal years beginning aftei- December 15. 2005. The Company is required to adopt the provision of SFAS 
154. as applicable, beginning in fiscal year 2006. 

Reclnssificntinit qf’Prior Years ’ Anzoriizts 
Certain prior years’ amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation 

B. Business Dispositions and Discontinued Operations 

During 7003. Chesapeake decicled to exit the water services business a n d  sold six of its seveIi operations. The remaining operation was 
disposed of in  October 2004. At December 3 1 ~ 2005. Chesapeake owned one piece of property that was fonnerly used by a water subsidiary. 
That property was listed for sale at December 3 1 ,  2005 and subsequently sold in January 2006. The results of operations for all water service 
husiiiesses have been teclassified to discontinued operations for all periods presented. A loss of $52,000 and a gain of$12,000, net of tax, were 
recorded .for 2004 and 2003. respectively, on the sale of the water operations The C:ompany did not have any discontinued operations in 2005. 
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Operating revenues for. discontinued operations were $1.1 million and $9.8 million for 2004 and 2003, respectively. Operating losses for 
cliscontinued operations were $94,000 and  $9 I 7,000 for 2004 and 2003, respectively. The bniance sheet includccl the following cliscontiiiuecl 
operations fc7r December 3 1 , 2004: 

Net p~'opcr-ty, plant, a n d  eqLlip1ct1t of $ It;4,000; 
Cash and other current assets were $5,000 and $63,000, respectively; 
Coininon stock, additional paid-in capital, and retained deficits were $51,000, $3.9 million, and $6.5 million, respectively; and 

e Due to affiliates and other current liabilities were $2.7 illillion and $45,000, respectively. 
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C .  S eg ni e 11 t I t i  f‘u mi a ti o n 

The following table presents information about the Compang.’s I-eportablc scgmcnts. Thc table escludcs discontinuccl opcrations 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 
Operating Revenues, Unaffiliated Customers 

N a t ~ ~ r a I  gas distribution and transmission 
Prop m e  

$166,388,562 $124,073,939 $1 10,071,054 
48,975,349 41,499,687 41,029,121 

Advanced inforination services 14,121,441 12,38 1,815 12,476,746 
($9,329) 

Total operating revenues, unaffiliated customers $229,629,736 $ 3  77,9 5 5,44 1 $ I 63 ,S 67,5 92 

Intersegment Revenues 
Natural gas distributi $ 
Propane 
Advanced informati 
Other 618.492 647.378 71 1.159 

Operating Income 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $ 17,235,810 $ 17,091,360 $ 16,653,111 
Propane 3,209,388 2,363,884 3,875,35 1 
Advanced inforination services 1,196,544 387,193 69 1,909 
Other and eliininations (1 11,243) 127,309 359,029 

Total operating income $ 21,530,499 $ 19,969,746 $ 21,579,400 

D e p r eci a t io n an d Amortization 
Nat~rral gas distribution and transinissiori 
Propane 
Advance d in foriiiation sei-vi c es 

$ s,6az,i37 $ 5,418,007 $ 5,188,273 
1,574,357 1,524,016 1,506,201 

122,569 138,007 190,548 
Other and eliminations 189,146 177,508 204,8 14 

Total depreciation and amortization $ 7,568,209 9; 7,257,538 $ 7,089,836 

Capital Expenditures 
Natural gas distribution and transmission $ 28,433,671 $ 13,945,214 $ 9,078,043 
P r Op a J l  C 3,955.799 3,395.1 90 2,244,583 
Advanced I 11 foi in at I on s e1 v 1 ce s 294,792 84,185 76,934 
Other 739,079 404,94 1 422.7 89 

~~ ~ ~~ 

Total capital expenditures $ 33,423,341 $ 17,829,530 $ 11,822,339 

f ’ A11 significant intersegment revenues are billed at market rates and have been eliminatecl fro111 
coiisoliclatecl reveniies. 

At December 31, 2005 2004 2003 
Identifiable Assets 
N a tu ra I gas distribution and trans 17-1 is s 1 on 
Propane 

$225,667,049 $184,4 12,30 I $1 70,758,784 
57,344,859 47.53 1 .io6 38,3s9,25 1 

A dvancecl inform at ion sew ices 2,042,902 2,387,440 2,912,733 
Other 10,905,065 7,379,794 7,791,796 

Total identifiable assets $295,979,875 $241,710,641 $21 9,822,564 
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Chesapeake uses the management approach to identify operating segments. Chesapeake organizes its business around differences in products or 
services and the operating results of‘ each segment are regularly reviewed by the Companv’s chicr operating decision maker i n  ot-del- to make 
decisions about 1-esoui-ccs and to assess per.formance. The segments are evaluated based on their prc-tax operating income. 

The Company’s operations are all domestic The advanced information services segment has infi equent transactions with foreign companies, 
located primarily in Canada, which are denominated and paid in U.S dollars. These transactions are iiiiinaterial to the consolidated revenues 

D. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Various items within the balance sheet are considered to be financial instniinents because they are cash or are to be settled in cash. The 
carrying values of these items generally approximate their fair value (see Note E to the Consolidated Financial Statements for disclosure of fair 
value of investments). The Conipany’s open forward and futures contracts at December 31, 2005 had a gain in fair value of $46,000 and at 
December 31, 2004 had a loss in fair value of $182,000 based on market rates. The fair value of tlie Company’s long-term debt is estimated 
using a discounted cash flow methodology. The Company’s long-term debt at December 3 1, 2005, including current maturities, had an 
estimated fair value of $68.5 million as compared to a carrying value of $63.9 million. At December 31, 2004, the estimated fair value was 
approximately $74.8 million as compared to a carrying value of $69.1 million. These estimates are based on published corporate borrowing 
rates for debt instniments with similar terms and average niatsirities. 

E. Investments 

The investment balances at December 3 I ,  2005 and 2004, represent a Rabbi Tnrst (“the trust”) associated with the Company’s Supplemental 
Executive Retirement Savings Plan. In accordance with SFAS No.  11 5 ,  “Accounting for Certain lnvestments in Debt and Equity Securities,” 
the Company classifies these investments as trading securities. As a result of classifying them as trading securities, we are required to report the 
securities at their fail- value, with any unredized gains and losses iiicIuded in other income. We also have an associated liability that is recorded 
and adjusted each month, along with other expense, for the gains and losses incurred by the tmst. 

F. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill is tested for impairment at least annuaily. In addition, goodwill of a reporting unit is tested for 
impairment between aiinual tests if an event occurs or circunistances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting 
unit below its cariying value. The propane unit had $674,000 in goodwill for the two years ended December 3 I ,  2005 and 2004. Testing for 
2005 and 2004 has indicated that no impaimient has occmred. 



The carrying value and accuinulated aiiiortization of intangible assets subject to amortization for the two years ended December 3 I ,  2005 are as 
fo I I 0 ws : 

December 31,2005 December 31,2004 
Gross Gross 

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization 

Customer lists $ 115,333 $ 67,845 $ 115,333 $ 60,155 
Acquisition costs 263,659 105,465 263,659 98,873 
To tal $ 8 

Amortization of intangible assets was $14,000 and $15,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The estimated 
annual amortization of intangibles is $14,000 per year for each of the years 2006 through 2010, respectively. 

G. StockhoIders’ Equity 

The changes in the common stock shares issued and outstanding are shown in the table below: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 
Common 

2005 

Shares issued - beginning of period balance 
Dividend Reinvestment Plan (2) 

Retirement Savings Plan 
Conversion of debentures 

5,778,976 
41,175 
21,071 
22,609 

Peribrniance shares anc~ options exerciseti (3) 19,268 

5,883,099 Shares issued - end of period balance t4) 

2004 

5,660,594 
40,993 
39,157 
18,616 
19,616 

5,778,976 

2003 

5,537,710 
51,125 
43,245 
18,788 
9,726 

5,660,5 94 

Treasury shares - beginning of period balance (9,418) 
Purchases (4,852) (1 5,3 16) 
Dividend Reinvestment PIan 2,142 
Retirement Savings Plan 12,031 
Other issuances 5,898 

Treasury Shares - end of period balance (971 (9,418) 

Total Shatcs Outstanding 5,883,002 5,769,558 5,660,594 

( I )  I2,000,000 shares are authorized at a par value of $0 4867 per. share 
(I) Includes shares pm-cliawl with reinvested dividends and optional cash payments. 
13) Includes shares issued for Dii ectors ’ compensation 
14) Includes 37,528,4X,I 75, and 47,659 shares at Decembei 3 1 ,  2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, held i n  

a Rabbi Tnist established by the Company ielating to the Supplemental Executive Retirement Savings 
Plan. 

In 2000 and 2001 the Company entered into agreements with an investment banker to assist in identifying acquisition candidates. Under the 
agreements, the Coiiipariy issued warrants to the investnient banker to purchase 15,000 share of Chesapeake stock in 2000 at an exercise price 
of $1 8.00 pel- share and 15,000 in 2001 at an exercise pi-ice of $1 8.25 per- share. The warrants are exercisable during a seven-year period after 
the grant date. At December 3 I ~ 2005, the Company had outstanding warra-nts of 30,000 at an average exercise price of $1 8.125 per share - 
15,000 warrants expire 111 2007 and the remaining i5.000 expire i n  2008. 



H .  Long-term Debt  

Tlic outstanding long-tci-ni clcbt, net of currciit maturities, is as shown bclow 

At December 31. 2005 2004 
~~ ~ ~~ ~~ ~ 

Uncollateralized senior notes: 
7 97% note, due Febniary 1, 2008 $ 2,000,000 $ 3,000,000 
6.91% note, due October 1, 201 0 3,636,363 4,545,454 
6.85% note, due January I, 2012 5,000,000 6,000,000 

16,000,000 20,000,000 
30,000,000 30,000,000 

54, 2,644,000 
Convertible debentures: 

Total Long-Term Debt $58,990,363 $66,189,454 

Annual matzlrities of comolidnted long- fern? debt for the next five years are ns 
follo+ls $4,929,09I for. 2006, $7,656,364.f01- 2007, $7,656,364 for 2008. $6,656,364 
for 2009 and $6,656,364 for 2010 

The convertible debentures may be converted, at the option of the holder, Into shares of the Company’s co~iiinon stock at a conversion price of 
$1 7.01 per share. During 2005 and 2004, debenhires totaling $385,000 and $317,000, respectively, were converted to stock. The debentures ai-e 
also redeemabk for cash at the option of the holder, subject to an annual non-cumulative iiiaximuni limitation of $200,000. During 2005, 
debentures totaling $5,000 were redeemed for cash. In 2004, no debentures were redeemed for cash At the Company’s option, the debentures 
may he redeemed at stated amounts 

On June 29, 2005, the Coinpany entered into an agreement in principal with Ptztdenfial Investment Management inc SubsequentIy, the 
Company executed a Note Agreement, ctatcd October 18, 2005, with three institutional investors (The Piudential Insurance Company of 
America, Pi-Ltdential Retireinelit Insurance and Annuity Company and United Onlaha Life Insurance Company), pursuant to which the investors 
agreed. subject to certain conditions, to purchase fiom the Company $20 million in principal of 5.5 percent Senior Notes (the “Notes”) issued 
by the Company provided that the Company elects to effect the sale of the Notes at any time prior to January 15, 2007. The terms of the Notes 
will require annual principal repayments of $2 million beginning on the fifth anniversary of the issuance of the Notes. 

Indentures to the long-term debt of the Company and its subsidiaries contain various restrictions. The most stringent restrictions state that the 
Company must maintain equity of at least 40 percent of total capitalization and the pro-forma fixed charge coverage ratio must be 1 . S  times. 
The Coinpaiiy is in compliance with all of its cicbt covenants. 

I .  Short-term Borrowing 

As of December 3 1 ~ 2005, the Board of Directors (“Board”) had authorized the Company to borrow up to $50.0 million fi-om various batiks atld 
trust coiiipanies under short-term lines of credit. As of December 3 1 ,  2005, the Company had three uncoiiiiiiitted and two coiiimittecl, short- 
term bank lines of credit totaling $65 .O million, none of which required coinpensating balances. Under these lines of credit, the Company had 
short-term debt outstanding of approximately $35.5 million and $5.0 inIllion at December 3 1, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The annual 
weighted average interest rates were 4.6 percent for 2005 and 3.7 percent for 2004. The Coinpany aIso Iiacl a letter of credit outstanding i l l  the 
amount of $694,000 that reduced the an~ounts available under the lines of credit. 
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J .  Lease Obligations 

The Company has entei-ed into several operating lease arrangemcnts for office space a t  various locations. eq~iipment and pipeline faci tities. 
Kent expense rehtcd to thcse lcascs was $837,000, $934,000 and $ 1 . 1  million for 2005. 2004 aiicl 2003, I-espectively. F L ~ ~ L I K  niiiiiniLiiii 
payments under the Company’s current lease agreements are $446,000, $597,000, $466,000, $395,000 and $298,000 for the years of 2006 
through 201 0, respectively; and $2.4 million thereafter, totaling $4.8 million. 

K. Employee Benefit Plans 

Retirement Plan s 

Before 1999, Company employees generally participated in both a defined benefit Pension Plan and a Retirement Savings Plan. Effective 
January 1, 1999, the Company restructured its retirement prograni to compete more effectively with similar businesses. As part of this 
restructuring, the Coinpany closed the defined benefit Pension Plan to new participants. Employees who participated in the defined benefit 
Pension Plan at that time were given the option of remaining in (and continuing to accrue benefits under) the Pension Plan or receiving an 
enhanced matching contribution in the Retirement Savings PIan. 

Because the defined benefit Pension Plan was not open to new participants, the number of active participants in that plan decreased and is 
approaching the miniilium number needed for the Pension Plan to maintain its tax-qualified status. To avoid jeopardizing the tax-qualified 
stahis of the Pension Plan, the Company’s Board of Directors amended the defined benefit Pension Plan on September 24,2004. To ensure that 
the Company continues to provide appropriate levels of benefits to the Company’s employees, the Board amended the defined benefit Pension 
Plan and the Retirement Savings Plan, effective January I ,  2005, so that Pension Plan participants who are actively einployed by the Company 
on that date (1) receive two additional years of benefit service credit to be used in calculating their Pension Plan benefit (subject to the Peiisjon 
Plan’s limit of 35 years of benefit service credit), (2) have the option to receive their Pension Plan benefit in the form of a luinp win at the time 
they retire, and (3) are eligible to receive the enhanced matching contribution in the Retirement Savings Plan. I n  addition, effective January 1. 
2005, the Board amended the defined benefit Pension Plan so that participants will not accrue any additional benefits under that plan. These 
changes were communicated to the Company’s einployees during the first week of  November 2004. As a result of the amendments to the 
Pcnsion Plan. a gain o f  approximately $172,000 (after tax) was recorded during 2004. 

Defined Benefit Pensioii Plan 
As described above, effective Januaiy 1 ,  2005, the defined benefit Pension Plan was frozen with respect to additional years of service or 
additional compensation. Benefits under the plan were based on each participant’s years of service and highest average compensation, prior to 
the freeze. The Company’s funding policy provides that payments to the tiustee shall be equal to the miniilium fiinding requireinents of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The Company does not expect to be required to make any funding payments in 2006. The 
nieasurement dates for the Pension Plan were December 3 I .  2005 and 2004, respectively. 

The following schedule summarizes the assets of the Pension Plan, by investment type, at December 3 1,  2005 and 2004. 

At December 31, 200s 2004 
Asset Category 

Equity securities 76.12‘!4 72.64% 
Debt securities 23.28% 12.91% 
Other 0.60% 14.45% 

TotaI 100.00% 100.00% 
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The investment policy of the Plan calls for an allocation of assets between equity ancl debt instmments with equity being 60 percent and debt at 
40 percent, but allowing for- a variance of 30 percent in citlier clirection. Additionally, as changes are macle to  Iiolchngs, cash, money market 
funcls of- Uiiitcd States Treasuiy Bills niay bc l i c lc l  tcmpoi.arily by the f h c l .  Investments in the following are ~mdiibited: options, guaral1teecl 
i nvestment contracts, real estate, venture capital, private placements, fuhires, commodities, liniitecl prtnci-ships and Chcsapeake stock. 
Additionally, short selling and margin transactions are prohibited. During 2004, Chesapeeke inodified its investment policy to a l l o ~  the 
Employee Benefits Committee to reallocate investments to better match the expected life of the plan. 

The following schedule sets forth the fimded status of the Pension Plan at December 31, 2005 and 2004: 

At December 31, 2005 2004 
C fit obligation 
Benefit obligation - beginning of year $12,053,063 $1 1,948,755 

Service cost 338,352 
Interest cost 645,740 690,620 

388,979 573,639 
28,895 

Effect of curtailment/settleinent - (2,171,289) 
Benefits paid (717,056) (43 1,609) 

12,399,621 12,053,063 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets - beginning of year 
Actual return on plan assets 400,674 1,227,309 
Benefits paid ,056) (43 1,609) 

Fair value of plan assets - end of year 11,780,866 12,097,248 

Funded status 
Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net actuarial gain 

(61 8,755) 44,185 
(34,259) (3 8,958) 

(1 29.739) (850.224) 
1v et a nio u n t a c c r u ed (X782,7,53) (S844.997) 

Assumptions: 
D is co un t rate 5.25'?4 5.50% 
Rate of compensation increase 4.00'X) 4.00% 
Expected return on plan assets 6.00'%, 7.88% 

The assumptions used for the discount rate of the plan were reviewed by the Company a n d  lowered fi-om 5 . 5  percent to 5.25 percent, i.eflectjI1g 
a reduction in the interest rates of high quality bonds and reflecting the expected life of the plan. due to the lump suin payment option, 
Additionally, the average expected return on plan assets for the qualified plan was lawel-ed from 7.88 pcrceiit to 6 percent due to the ac]optio~l 
of a change in the investment policy that allows for a higher level of investment in  bonds and a lower level of equity investiiients. There was no 
change in the assumed compensation rate increases. The accuinulated benefit obligation was $12.4 inillion and $12. I million at December 3 1 ,  
2005 and 2004, respectively. 



Net periodic pension costs for- the defined benefit Pension Pian for 2005, 2004 and 2003 include the components as shown below: 

For the Years Etided December 31. 2005 2004 21103 
. - -~ 

Components of net periodic pension cost: 
Service cost $ 0 $ 338,352 $ 325,366 
Interest cost 645,740 690,620 684,239 
Expected return on assets (703,285) (869,336) (784,476) 
Amortization of 

Transition assets - (11,328) (15,104) 
(4,699) (4,699) 991 

Net periodic pension cost (benefit) ($62,244) $ 143,609 $ 205,326 

The following actuarial assumptions were used in calculating net periodic pension cost or benefit. 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 

mP 
Discount rate 5.50% 5.88% 6.50% 
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.50% 
Expected return on plan assets 6.00% 7.88% 8.50% 

Executive Excess Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Company also sponsors an unfunded executive excess defined benefit pension plan. As noted above, this plan was frozen with respect to 
additional years of service and additional compensation as of December 3 1 ,  2004. Benefits under the plan were based on each participant’s 
years of service and highest average compensation, prior to the freeze. The accumulated benefit obligation was $2.3 million and $2.2 million at 
December 3 1, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Accnied pension costs at December 3 1 ,  2005 include $959,000 related to a minimum peiisioll 
liability. The miiiimum pension liability is a component of other comprehensive income. 

Net periodic pension costs for the executive excess benefit pension plan for 2005, 2004 and 2003 inchde thc components as shown below: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 2004 2003 
Components of net periodic pen 
Service cost $ 0 $ 105,913 $ 107,877 
lnterest cost 119,658 87,568 80,039 
Amortization o f  

Piior service cost 2,090 2,787 
Actriarial loss 49,319 21,699 18,677 

Net periodic pension cost !.% 168,977 $ 217,270 $ 209,380 



The following scliedule sets foith the stahis of the executive excess benefit pla~i:  

At December 31, 2005 2004 
Change in benefit obligatjon: 
Benefit obligation - beginning of year $ 2,162,952 $ 1,406,190 

Service cost 105,913 
Interest cost 
Actuarial loss 
Amendments 
Effect of curtailinen t/s e ttlemen t 

119,658 87,568 
133,839 713,225 

60,000 
(1 84,844) 

Benefits paid (93,9 7 8) (25,100) 
8 ene 

Fair value of plan assets - beginning of year 
er contributions 93,978 25, 

(93,978) (25,100) 

Funded status (2,322,471) (2,162,952) 
Unrecognized net a c t u a r d  loss 959,492 874,972 

0 )  

Assumptio~is: 
Discount rate 5.2 5 '/o 5.50% 
Rate of compensation increase 4.00°/o 4.00% 

The assuinptions used for the discount rate of the plan were reviewed by the Coinpany and lowered from 5.5 percent to 5.25 percent, reflecting 
a reduction in the interest rates of high q ~ ~ a l i t y  bonds aiicl a reduction in the expected life of the plan. There was 110 change in  the assunJed pay 
rate increases. The measurement dates for the executive excess benefit plan were December 3 1 ,  2005 and 2004, respectively. 

Other Post-Retirement Benefits 

The Company sponsors a defined benefit post-retirement health care and life insurancc plan that covers substantially all employees 

Net periodic post-retirement costs for 2005. 2004 and 2003 include the following components' 

For the Years Ended December 31, 200s 2004 2003 
Components of net periodic post-retirement 
cost: 
Service cost $ 6,257 $ 5,354 $ 5,138 
Interest cost 77,872 86,883 85,3 19 
Amortization of: 

Trails ition obligation 27,859 27,859 27,859 

Actuarial loss 88,291 78,900 66,27 1 

$ 200,279 $ 198,996 $ 184,587 Net periodic post-retirement cost 
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The following schedule sets forth the stahis of the post-retirement health care and life insurance plan 

At December 31, 200s 2004 
C 11 a iige i n be 11 ef7 t ob Lig a t ion : 
Benefit obligation - beginning of year $ 1,599,280 $ 1,471,664 

Retirees (59,152) 91,747 
Fully-eligible active ernployees (31,761) 22,07 1 
Other active 26,317 13,798 

Benefit obligation - end of year $ 1,534,684 $ 1,599,280 

Funded status 
Unrecognized transition obligation 

($1,534,684) ($1,599,280) 
22,282 50,141 

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 751,450 899,228 
crue 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate 5.25% 5.50% 

The health care inflation rate for 2005 is assumed to be 8 percent for medical and 10 percent for prescription drugs. These rates are projected to 
gradually decrease to ultimate rates of 5 and 6 percent, respectively, by the year 2009. A one percentage point increase in the health care 
inflation rate fi-om the assumed rate would increase the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation by approximately $204,000 as of 
Januaiy I ,  2006, and would increase the aggregate of the seivice cost and interest cost components of the net periodic post-retirement benefit 
cost for 2006 by approxiinately $13,000. A one percentage point decrease in the health care inflation rate from the assumed rate would decrease 
the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation by approximately $1 49,000 as of January 1 ,  2006, and would decrease the aggregate of the 
service cost and interest cost coniponents of the net periodic post-retiremen t benefit cost for 2006 by approximately $ 1  1,000. The measurement 
dates were Deceiiiber 3 I ,  2005 and 2004, respectively. 

Est in1 a tecl F 11 t u re Ben e fi t Payments 

The: schedule below shows the estiinated future benefit payments for each of the years 2006 through 2010 and the aggregate of thc next five 
years for each of the plans previously described. 

Executive 
Excess 

Defined Defined Other 
Be n e fi t Ben e fi t Post- 
Pension Pension Retirement 
Plan ('1  PI^ (2) Benefits ( 2 )  

2006 $ 440,904 $ 89,204 $ 146,051 
2007 713,051 88,490 152,321 
2008 
2009 
2010 

851,435 87,782 152,114 
1,431,421 87,080 155,098 

895,710 86,384 174,932 
Years 201 I through 2015 4,089,216 692,464 987,030 

j The pension plan is fLinded; therefore, benefit payments are expected to be paid 

Benefit payments are expected to be paid out of the general fLinds of the Company. 
out of the plan assets 

Re ti rem e nt Sa v i 11 gs P 1 an 

The Company sponsors a 40 I (k) Retirement Savings Plan, which provides participants a inechanism for making contributions for retirement 
savings. Each participant may make pre-tax contributions of up to 15 percent of eligible base compensation, subject to Internal Revenue 
Service limitations. These participants were eligibIe for the enhanced matching described below effective January 1 ,  2005. 



- Page h l  - 



Effcctivc Janiiary I . 1999. the Cotiipaiiy bcgnn offering an enhanceci 4U I (  li) p l a n  to all new employees, as wcll as existing employees that 
elected to no longei. participate i n  the defined benefit p l a n .  The Company iiialtes matching contributions on a basis of LIP to six percent of each 
employee’s prc-tax cornpeiisation for the year. The match is between I O 0  percent and 200 percent, based 011 a combination of the employee’s 
age and years of sewice. The first 100 percent of the funds are matched with Chesapeake coiiiiiion stock. Tlie remaining match is invested in 
the Company’s 401 (k) plan according to each employee’s election options. 

On December 1 ,  2001, the Company converted the 401 (kj fiiiid holding Chesapeake stock to an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”). 

Effective, Januaiy 1, 1999, the Company began offering a non-qualified supplemental employee retirement savings plan open to Company 
executives over a specific income threshold. Participants receive a cash only matching contribution percentage equivalent to their 401 (k) match 
level. All contributions and matched fiinds earn interest incoine monthly. 

The Company’s contributions to the 401(k) plans totaled $1,68 1,000, $1,497,000 and $1,444,000 for the years ended December 3 1 ,  2005, 2004 
and 2003, respectively. As of December 3 1,2005,  there are 11 1,738 shares reserved to fund future contributions to the Retirement Savings 
Plan. 

L. Executive Incentive Plans 

A Performance Incentive Plan (“the Plan”) adopted in 1992 and amended in April 1948 allows for the granting of performance shares, stock 
options and stock appreciation rights to certain officers of the Company. The Company now uses perfonnance shares exclusively. All stock 
options granted in prior years were exercised as o f  December 3 1 ,  2005 and all stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) were exercised prior to 
December 3 1,  2003. 

Tlie Plan enables participants the right to earn performance shares upon the Company‘s achievement of certain performance goals, as set forth 
in the specific agreements, and the individual ’s achievement of goals set annually for each executive. The Company recoi-ded coinpensation 
expense of $701,000, $490,000 and $726,000 associated with these perfonnance shares in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively 

I J ~  1997, the Company executed Stock Option Agreements for a three-year performance period ending December 3 1, 2000, with certain 
executive officers. One-half of these options became exercisable over time and the other half became exercisable if certain performance targets 
were achieved. SFAS No. 123 requires the disclosure of pro forma net incoine and earnings per share as if fair value based accounting had been 
used to account for the stock-based coinpensation costs. The assumptions used in calcurating the pro forma information were: dividend yield, 
4.73 percent; expected volatility, 15.53 percent; risk-free interest rate, 5.89 percent; and an expected life of four years. No options have been 
granted since 1997; therefore, there is no pro forma impact for 2005, 2004 or 2003. The weighted average exercise price of outstanding options 
was $20.50 for all years presented AI1 outstanding options were exercisecl as of December 31, 2005. 

Changes in outstaiding options are shown on the chart below. 

200s 2004 2003 
Number Number N U M  ber 

of Option o f  Option o f  Option 
shares Price shares Price shares Price 

Balance - beginning of 
year 17,537 $ 20.50 29,490 $ 20.50 41,948 $ 20 50 

Options exercised (17,537)$ 20.50 (1 1,834)$ 20.50 (12,458)$ 20 50 
Ovtioiis forteited (119)$ 20.50 

17,537 !$ 20.50 29,490 $ 20.50 

17,537 $ 20.50 29,490 $ 20.50 
------ ------ Balance - end of year 

Exercisable ------ 
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I n  2000, the Company replaced the third year of this Stock Option Agreement with Stock Appreciation Rights. The SARs were awarded based 
on performance with a m inim~tm number- of SARs ostablishecl for each participant. During 200 1 and 2000, thc Company pi-anted IO,h50 aiid 
13,150 SARs, rcspectively. i n  coii.juiiction with the agrecnicnt During 2003, all SARs were exercisccl. 

As of December 3 1 ,  2005, there were 293?48 1 shares reserved for issuance under the terms of the Coiiipany’s Performance Incentive Plan. 

M. Environmental Commitments and Contingencies 

Chesapeake is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing enviroiiinental quality and pollution control. These laws and 
regulations require the Company to remove or remedy the effect on the environment of the disposal or release of specified substances at current 
and former operating sites. 

In 2004, Chesapeake received a Certificate of Completion for remedial work at one former gas manufacturing plant site and is currently 
participating in the investigation, assessment or remediation of two other former gas manufachiring plant sites. These sites are located in three 
different jurisdictions. The Company has accrued liabilities for three sites referred to respectively as the Dover Gas Light, Salisbury Town Gas 
Light and the Winter Haven Coal Gas sites. The Coinpany is currently in discussions with the Maiyland Department of the Environment 
(“MDE”) regarding the possible responsibilities of the Company with respect to a former gas manufacturing plant site in Cambridge, Maryland. 

Dover Gas Light Site 

The Dover Gas Light site is a former inanufactured gas plant site located in Dover, Delaware. On January 15, 2004, the Company received a 
Certificate of Completion of Work fiom the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) regarding this site. This coiicluded 
Chesapeake’s remedial action obligation related to this site and relieves Chesapeake froin liability for ftitnre remediation at the site, unless 
previously unknown conditions are discovered at the site, or information previously unknown to the EPA is received that indicates the remedial 
action that has been taken is not sufficiently protective. These contingencies are standard and are required by the United States in all liability 
settlements. 

The Company has reviewed its remediation costs incurred to date fot- the Dover Cas Light site and has concluded that all costs incurred have 
been paid. The Company does not expect any future environmental expenditures for this site. Through December 3 1 ,  2005, the Coinpany has 
incurred approximately $9.7 inillion in costs related to envjroninental testing and remedial action studies at the site. Approximately $9.9 
inillion has been recovered through December 2005 froin other parties or through rates. As of December 3 1, 2005, a regulatory liability of 
approximately $298,000, representing the over-recovery portion of the clean-up costs, has been recorded. The over-recovery is temporary and 
will be refiinded by the Company to customers in fliture rates. 

Salisbury Town Gas Light Site 

In cooperation with the MDE, the Coiiipany has co~iipletecl remediation of the Salisbury Town Gas Light site, located in Salisbury, Marylantl, 
where i t  was determined that a fa-mer nianufactured gas plant had caused localized ground-water- contamination. During 1996, the Company 
completed constmction and began Air- Spal-ging and Soil-Vapor Extraction (“ASISVE”) remediation procedures. Chesapeake has been 
reporting the remediation and monitoring results to the PIDE on an  ongoing basis since 1996. I n  February 2002. the MDE granted pertnissioI1 
to pernianentiy decommission the A S E V E  system and to discontinue all on-site and off-site well monitoring, except for one well that is being 
maintained for continued prncluct monitoring and recovery. I n  November 2002, Chesapeake submitted a letter to the MDE requesting N o  
Flirther Action (“NFA”) determination. The Company has been in discussions with the MDE regarding such request and is waiting on a 

determination from the MDE. 

- Page 63 I 



The Company has adjusted the liability with respect to tlie Salisbury Town Gas Light site to $2,300 at December 3 1 ,  2005. This amount is 
based on the estimatccl costs t o  perform liinited product monitoring and I-ccovel-y efforts and fiilf:ll ongoing reporting requirements. A 
corr-csponding regulatoiy asset has been recorded, reflecting the Company’s belief that costs incurrecl wili be recoverable in base 1-ates. 

Through December 3 I , 2005, the Company has incurred approximately $2.9 inillion for remedial actions and environmental studies at the 
SaIisbury Town Gas Light site. Of this amount, approxiinately $1  .& inillion has been recovered through insurance proceeds or in rates, The 
Company expects to recover tlie reinainiiig costs through rates. 

Winter  Haven Coal Gas Site 

The Winter Haven Coal Gas site is located in Winter Haven, Florida. Chesapeake has been working with the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (“FDEP”) in assessing this coal gas site. In May 1996, the Company filed an Air Sparging and Soil Vapor Extraction 
Pilot Study Work Plan (the “Work Plan”) for the Winter Haven site with the FDEP. The Work Plan described the Company’s proposal to 
undertake an ASiSVE pilot study to evaluate the site. After discussions with the FDEP, the Company filed a modified AS/SVE Pilot Study 
Work PIan, the description of the scope of work to coinplete the site assessment activities and a report describing a limited sediiiient 
investigation performed in 1997. In December 1998, the FDEP approved the AS/SVE Pilot Study Work Plan, which the Company completed 
during the third quarter of 1999. In Febmary 2001, the Company filed a Remedial Action Plan (XM“’) with the FDEP to address the 
contamination of the subsurface soil and ground-water in a portion of the site. The FDEP approved the RAP on May 4, 2001. Construction of 
the ASEVE system was completed in the fourth quarter of 2002 and the system is now fblly operational. 

The FDEP has indicated that the Company may be required to reniediate sediments along the shoreline of Lake Shipy, immediately west of the 
Winter Haven site. Based on studies performed to date, the Company objects to the FDEP’s suggestion that the sediments have been 
contaminated and require remediation. Early estimates by the Company’s environmental consultant indicate that some of the corrective 
measures discussed by the FDEP may cost as inuch as $1 million. Given the Company’s view as to the absence of ecological effects, the 
Company believes that cost expenditures of this magnitude are unwarranted and plans to vigorously oppose any requirements that it undertake 
corrective measures in the offshore sediments. Chesapeake anticipates that it will be several years before this issue is resolved. At this time, the 
Company has not recorded a liability for sediment remediation. The outcome of this matter cannot be predicted at this time. 

The Company has accrued a liabifity of $350,000 ,as of December 3 I 2005 for the Winter Haven site. Through December 3 1 ,  2005, the 
Company has incurred approxiinately $1.5 inillion of environmental costs associated with the Winter Haven site. At December 3 1 ,  2005 the 
Coinpany had collected through rates $1 58,000 in excess of costs incurred. A regulatoiy asset of approxiimately $1 93,000, representing the 
uncollected portion of the estiniated clean-up costs, has also been recorded. The Company expects to recover the remaining costs through rates. 

Other 

The Company is i n  discussions with the MDE regarding the possible responsibilities of the Coinpany fol- reinediation of a gas manufachiring 
ptant site located i n  Cambridge, Maryland ‘Thc outcomc of this matter- cannot be determined at thts tniie 

N. Other Commitments and Contiiigencies 

Application of Florida Gross Receipts Tax 

The Company provides natural gas supply and management services through its affiliate, Peninsula Energy Services Company, Inc. 
(“PESCO”), to commercial and industrial customers located in Florida. Substantially all of the natura1 gas purchased by PESCO’s custoiiiers is 
sold to the customers at delivery points located outside the State of Florida and because title to the gas typically passes outside Florida, PESCO 
does not collect gross receipts taxes fi-om its customers. The Conipany understands that the Florida Department of Reveiiue has alleged that 
other companies in the natural gas marketing industry should have collected the gross receipts tax from the purchasers of the gas under similar 
circumstances. On .lune 8, 2005 new legislation was enacted that establishes the responsibilities of regulated utilities, inchcling Chesapeake 
(d/b/a/ Central Florida Gas), as well as unr-eguiated natural gas marketers, such as PESCO. for the collection of the gross receipts tax. The law 
also contains amnesty provisions reIating to the failure to collect gross receipts taxes on sales made prior to January 1 ,  2006. While the 
Coinpany does not believe that it has any liability, it has prepared the required amnesty docuiiients to be submitted to the Department of 
Revenue for both Chesapeake and PESCO during the fourth quarter of 2005. The Company received a conditional approval of its ainnesty 
docuinents from the Florida Department of Reveiiue in a letter dated October 18, 2005. This conditional approval is stated in the Company’s 
amnesty application and is expressly conditioned 011 those facts being accurate. 
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Natural Gas and  Propane Supply 

The Coiiipany’s natui.al gas and propane distribution operations have enter-ed into contractual cnmmitments fot. gas from var-ious suppiiers. The 
contracts have various cxpiration dates. I n  Novcnibel- 2004, the Company I-enewecl its contract with an energy mar-keting i1 t lCl  I-isk nianageiiient 
company to iuanage a portion of the Company’s riatural gas transportation and storage capacity. The contract expires March 3 1 ,  2007. 

Corporate Guarantees 

The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing subsidiary, advanced information services 
subsidiaiy, and its Florida natural gas supply and management services subsidiary. The corporate guarantees provide for the payment of 
propane and natLiral gas purchases and office rent in the event of the subsidiaiy’s default. The aggregate amount of the obligations guaranteed 
at December 3 1, 2005 totaled $1  1.2 million, with the guarantees expiring on various dates in 2006. All payables of the subsidiaries are 
recorded in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The Company has issued a letter of credit to Its primary insurance company for $694,000, which expires June 1, 2006. The letter of credit was 
provided as security for claims amounts below the deductibles on the Company’s policies. 

Other 

The Coinpany is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the norinal course of business. The Company is also involved in certain 
legal and administrative proceedings before various goveinmental agencies concerning rates. ln the opinion of management, the ultimate 
disposition of these proceedings will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the 
Company . 



0. Quarter ly  Financial  Data (Unaucliterl) 

In thc opinion of the Company, the quarterly financial infot-tiiation shown below incluclcs all actjustments ncccssary For a fait- prcscntation of 
the operations for such periods. Due to the seasonal nature of the Company’s business, there are substantial variations in operations reported on 
a quarterly basis 

For the Quarters Ended March 31 

2005 
Operating Revenue 
Operating Income 

$ 77,845,248 
11,504,343 

Net Income (Loss) 
From continuing oDerations $ 6.232.796 

Net Income (Loss) $ 6,232,796 

Earnings per share: 
Basic 

From continuing operations $ 1.08 
Net Income (Loss) $ 1.08 

D i luted 

; $ 1.05 
Net Income (Loss) $ 1.05 

2004 
Operating Revenue 
Operating Income 

Net Income (Loss) 
From continumg operations 
From discoiitinued merations 

Earnings per share: 
Basic 

Froin continuing operations 
Fro111 discontinued operations 

Net Income (Loss) 

D i I u te d 
From continuing operati on s 
F roiii discontinued orierations 

September December 
June 30 30 31 

$42,220,377 $35,155,121 $74,408,990 
2,324,945 (99,149) 7,800,360 

$ 795,924 ($693,774) $ 4,132,668 
$ 795,924 ($693,774) $ 4,132,668 

$ 0.14 ($0.12) $ 0.70 
$ 0.14 ($0.12) $ 0.70 

$ 0.14 ($0.12) s 0.69 
~ ~~ 

9; 0.14 ($0.12) $ 0.69 

$ 63,762,360 $ 34,292.972 $ 26,614,699 $ 53,285,410 
10,699,307 2,162,794 282,738 6,824,907 

$ 5,773,534 $ 61 1.518 ($584,171) $ 3,748,786 
134.33 5 )  19,148 (72,04 1 ) (3 3,672) 

$ 5,739,199 

$ 1.01 

$ 1.01 

9; 0.99 
(0.01 i 

$ 630,666 ($656,212) $ 3,715,1 14 

$ 0 1 1  ($0.10) $ 0.65 

$ 0.1 1 ($0.11) $ 0.64 

(0.0 1 ) (0.01) 

$ 0.1 1 ($0.10) $ 0.64 
(0.01 1 (0.01) 

Net Income (Loss) $9 0.98 $ 0.1 1 ($0.11) $ 0.63 
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ltem 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. 

Nonc 

ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures. 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, with the participation of other Company officials, have evaluated the 
Coiiipany’s “disclosure controls and procedures” (as such term is defined under Rule 13a-I5(e) and 15d - 15(e) promulgated under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of December 3 1,  2005. Based upon their evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disdosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 3 I ,  2005. 

Changes in lnternal Controls 
During the fiscal quarter of the Company ended December 31, 2005, there was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting that has inaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Management’s Report on Internal ControI Over Financial Reporting 
See Management’s Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplemental Data.” 

Item 9B. Other Information. 

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 5 ,  2005, discussing the Compensation Committee’s (the “Committee”) 
actions on November 30, 2005, including their approval of the compensation arrangements relating to the executive officers of the Company 
for 2006. 

On November 30, 2005, the Coininittee approved awards under the Company‘s Performance Incentive Plan to John R .  Schimkaitis, President 
arid Chief Executive Officer; Paul M .  Barbas, Executive Vice Presiclent and Chief Operating Officer; and Michael P.  McMasters, Senior Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer. According to the terms of the awards, each executive officer is entitled to earn up to a specified number 
of shares of the Company’s coinnioii stock (“Contingent Perforinance Shares”) depending on the extent to which pre-established performance 
goals (the “Performance Goals”) are achieved d~rring the year ended December 3 I ,  2006 (the “2006 Award Year”). In addition, any Contingent 
Performance Shares that are not earned by the applicable executive officer during the 2006 Award Year may be eamed in 2007 or 2008, if in 
either of those two succeeding years cumulative pre-established Perforinance Goals are achieved over, respectively, the three-year period 
ending in that year. 

On November 30, 2005. the Cornpensatioii Committee also appro~wl  awards unc le i -  the Company’s Performance Incentive Plan to ( 1 )  Stephen 
C. Thompson, Senior Vice President, and (ii) S .  Robert Zola, President of Sharp Energy,’lnc., a Company subsidiary, for the three-year pei-iod 
ending December 3 1 .  2008. For a performance period beginning Jaiiuary 1 ,  2006 and ending December 3 1 ,  2006, each executive officer is 
entitled to earn, in the form of shares of restricted stock, up to 30 percent of the annual award of Contingent Perfoi-lnance Shares i f  the 
Company achieves certain Pel-formance Goals. The second compoiient consists of pet-.foi-iiiance awards pursuant to which the reniailiing 70 
percent of the annual award of Contingent Perfomiance Shares will be ear-necl, if certain Performance Goals for- the three-year period ending 
December 3 1 , 2008 for each of the respective business units for which they are inclividually responsible, are achieved. 
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Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated hereiii by reference to the portions of the Proxy Statement, captioned “lnfonnation 
Regarding the Board of Directors and Nominees,” “Corporate Governance Practices and Stockholder Communications - Nomination of 
Directors,” “Committees of the Board - Audit Committee” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” to be filed not 
later than March 31, 2006 in connection with the Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 2, 2006 

The information required by this Item with respect to executive officers is, pursuant to instruction 3 of paragraph (b) of Item 401 of Regulation 
S-K, set forth in Part 1 of this Foiin 10-K under “Executive Officers of the Registrant.” 

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for Financial Officers, which applies to its principal executive officer, principal financial officer, 
principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. The inforination set forth under Item I hereof concerning 
the Code of Ethics for Financial Officers is incorporated herein by reference. 

Item 1.1. Executive Compensation. 

The inforination required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned “Director 
Compensation” and “Management Compensation” in the Proxy Statement to be filed not later than March 3 1 ,  2006, in connection with the 
Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 2, 2006. 

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Stateinent captioiietl “Beneficial 
Ownership of Chesapeake’s Securities” to be filed not later than March 3 1: 2006 in connection w i t h  the Company’s .Annual Meeting to be held 
on May 2, 2006. 
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The following table sets foith information as oi‘ December 3 I , 2005, wi th  Iespecl to cumpensatioii plans of Chesapeake a i d  i t s  subsidial-les 
undei- which shares of Cliesapeake conimon stock are authorized for issuance* 

l a )  (W ic )  
Nuinber of 
securities 
remaining 

avaiIable for 
Nuinber of Weighted fiihire issuance 

securities to be average under equity 
issued upon exercise compensation 
exercise of price of plans 
outstanding ou tstandiiig (excluding 

options, opt ions, s ecur it ies 
warrants and warrants and reflected in 

rights rights column (a)) 

sation plans approv 
Equity compensation plans not approved by security 
holders 30,000 (3) $18.125 0 

se shares under the 1992 Performance Incentive Plan, as amended, were 

(2) Includes 293,48 I shares under the 1992 Performance Incentive Plan. 
2001, the Company entered into agreements with an investment banker to assist in 
qursition caiidiates Undei- the agreements, the Coinpaiiy issued warrants to the investment 

banker to purchase 15,000 shares of Chesapeake stock in 2001 at a price of $1 8.25 per share and 15,000 
shares in 2000 at a price of $1 8.00. The warrants are exercisable during a seven-year period after the 
date granted. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions. 

None 

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services. 

Tile inforination requiiecl by this Item IS incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Pioxy Statcinent captioned “Fees and Servrces o f  
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP” to be filed not later than March 3 1 .  2006, in coniiection with the Company’s Annual Meeting to be held on May 
2.2006 



Part iv 

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules. 

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report: 
1. Financial Statements: 

o Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Finn 
o Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 
o Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 3 1,2005 and December 3 1, 2004 
o Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 3 1, 2005, 2004 and 2003 
o Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years ended December 3 1 ,  2005, 2004 and 2003 
o Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes for each of the three years ended December 3 1, 2005, 2004 and 2003 
o Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2. Financial Statement Schedules - Schedule I1 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

All other schedules are omitted because they are not required, are inapplicable or the information is otherwise shown in the financial statements 
or notes thereto. 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K: 
e Sale of LAMPS (Item 8.01 1 

Earnings press release dated November 4, 2004 (Items 2.02 and 9.01) 
Compensation Coininittee approval of Compensation Arrangements (Item 1.01 ’) 
Approval of Paul M Barbas to Chief Operatmg Officer (lteni 5 021 

(c) Exhibits: 

Exhibit 3(a) Arnended Bylaws of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, effective Febmary 24, 2005, 1s incorporated herern by reference 
to Exhibit 3 of the Conipany’s Annual Report on Foi-tii 10-K for the year ended Decembei- 31. 2004, File No 00 1-1 1590. 

Exhibit 4(a) Form of Indenture between the Conipany and Boatmen’s Tnist Company, Trustee, with respect to the 8 114% 
Convertible Debentures is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Registration Statement 011 Form 
S-2, Reg. No 33-26582, filed on January 13, 1989. 

Exhibit 4( b) Note Agreement dated February 9, 1993, by and between the Company and Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance 
Company and MML Pension liisurance Company, with respect to $10 inillion of 7.97’Yo Unsecured Senior Notes due 
February 1 .  2008, is incorporated herein by refet-ence to Exhibit 4 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form IO-K fol- the 
year ended Uecciiiber 3 I ,  1992, File No. 0-593. 

Exhibit 4( c) Note Purcliase Agreement entered into by the Company on October 2,  1995, pursuant to which the Company privately 
placed $10 inillion of its 6.91% Senior Notes clue in 2010, is not being filed herewith, in accordance with lteiii 601(b)(4)(iii) 
of Regulation S-IC. The Coinlimy hereby agrees to fLirnish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upoii request. 

Exhibit 4(d) Note Puichase Agreeiiient entered into by the Coiiipany on Decembei 15, 1997, pursuant to which the Company 
privately placed $10 million of its 6 85% Senior Notes due 2012, IS  not being filed herewith, 111 accordance with Item 601(b) 
(4)(11t) of.Regulation S-K The Company hereby agrees to fiirnish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upon iequest 
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Exhibit 4ie) 

Exhibit 4(f) 

Ex hi bi t 4 (g ) 

Exhibit 4(h) 

"Exhibit 1 0(a) 

*Exhibit 1 O(b) 

*Exhibit 1 0(c) 

:%Exhibit 1 0(d) 

*Exhibit I 0(e) 

*Exhibit 1 0( f, 

*Exhibit 1 0(g) 

* Exhibit 1 O( 11) 

"Exhibit 1 0(i) 

*Exhibit 1 O(i) 

*Ex hi bit 1 O( k )  

Note Purcliase Agreement entered into by the Company on December 27, 2000, pursuant to which the Company 
privately placed $20 million of its 7.83'!.;, Senior Notes ctuc 3015, is not being filed heren-ith, in accorclance with Item 601 ( b )  
(4)(i i i)  of Regulatior S-K. The Company hereby ayi-ees to fiirnish 21 copy of that agreement to the SEC Lipon request. 

Note Agreement entered into by the Coinpany on October 3 1 ,  2002, pursuant to which the Company privately placed 
$30 niillion of its 6.64% Senior Notes due 2017, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2 of the Company's Current 
Report on Forin 8-K, filed Noveiiiber 6, 2002, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Agreement in principle between Piiidential Investment Management, Inc. and Chesapeake Utilities Coi-poration related 
to the prospective purchase by Prudential of $20 million of 5.5% Senior Notes dated June 29, 2005, is incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Coinpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2005, File No. 001- 
11 590. 

Note Agreement entered into by the Coinpany on October 18, 2005, pursuant to which the Company, on or before 
December 28, 2006, will privately place $20 inilIion of its 5.5% Senior Notes due 2020, is filed herewith as Exhibit 4.1. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2006, by and between Sharp Energy, Inc. and S. Robert Zola, is 
filed herewith as Exhibit 10.1, 

Form of Performance Share Agreement dated November 9, 2004, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Performance Incentive PIan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and each of John R. Schimkaitis, Michael P. 
McMasters and Paul Barbas, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10. I of the Company's Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Performance Share Agreement dated December 30, 2005, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance 
Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and each of John R .  Schimkaitis, Paul M .  Barbas and  
Michael P.  McMasters, is filed herewith as Exhibit 10.2. 

Perfonnance Share AgIeeiiient dated December 23, 2005, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance 
Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Stephen C.  Thompson, is filed herewith as Exhibit 10.3. 

Performance Share Agreement dated December 26, 2005, pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance 
Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and S. Robert Zola, is filed herewith as Exhibit 10.4. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Cash Bonus Incentive Plan dated January 1, 2005, is incorporated herein by 
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Annual Repoit on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1 2004, File No. 
001-1 1590. 

Executive Officer Coinpensation Arrangements. filed herewith as Exhibit 10.5. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Directors Stock Coinpensation Plan, adopted i n  2005. is incorporated hei-ein by 
reference to the Company's Proxy Statement dated March 28, 2005 in connection with the Company's Annual Meeting held 
on Map 5 ,  2005, File No. 00 I - I  1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Employee Stock Award Plan, adopted in 2005, is incorporated herein by reference 
to the Company's Proxy Statement dated March 28, 2005 in connection with the Coinpany's Annual Meeting held on May 5 ,  
2005. File No.  001 -1 1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan. adopted i n  2005, I S  incorpoiated herein by ref-erence to 
tlie Company's Proxy Statement dated M a c h  28, 2005 117 connection wlth the Company's Annual Meeting held 011 May 5. 
2005, File N o  001 - 1  1590 

Non-Employee Director Coinpensation Anangenieiits, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the 
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1 ,  2004, File No. 001 -1 1590. 
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Exhibit 12 

Exhibit  21 

Exhibit 2 3 

Exhibit 3 I .  1 

Exhibit 3 1.2 

Exhibit 32.1 

Exhibit 32.2 

C'oiiiputation of Ratio of Earning to Fixed Charges, filed herewith. 

Subsidiai-ies UT the Kegistr-ant. filed herewith 

Consent of Inclependent Registered Public Accounting Finn, filed herewith 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-I 4(a), 
dated March 6, 2006, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a- 14(a), 
dated March 6, 2006, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, dated 
March 6, 2006, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, dated 
March 6, 2006, filed herewith. 

* Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requireineiits of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Chesapeake Utilities Corporation has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

By: / s i  John R. Schimkaitis 
John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Date: March 6, 2006 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons 011 behalf of 
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

/ s i  Ralph J .  Adkins 
Ralph J.  Adkins, Chainman of the Board 
and Director 
Date. February 23, 2006 

/s/n/lichael P McMasters 
Michael P McMasters, Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 
Date. March 6 ,  2006 

/s/ Thomas J Bi-esnan 
Thoinas J .  Eresnail, Director 
Date: March 6, 2006 

/ s i  J .  Peter Martin 
J .  Peter Martin, Director 
Date. Fcbruary 23, 2006 

/s/ Calvcrt A. Morgan, JI-. 
Caiverl A .  Morgan, Ji-., Director 
Date: February 23, 2006 

/ s i  John R. Schimkaitis 
John R. Schimkaitis, President, 
Chief Executive Officer and Director 
Date: March 6, 2006 

/ s i  RichRrd Bernstein 
R 1 chard B erns t e i n , Direct o r 
Date: Febniaiy 23, 2006 

/ s i  Waltei- J .  Coleman 
Walter J. Coleman, Director 
Date: February 23, 2006 

i s /  Joseph E. Moore, Esq 
Joseph E. Moore, Esq.. Director 
Date. Fcbruary 23, 2006 

/ s i  Rudolph M.  Peins, Jr .  
Rudolph M .  Peins, Jr., Directoi 
Date. Febmaty 23, 2006 

is/ Robert F Rider 
Robert F. Rider, Director 
Date. Febi-uary 23, 2006 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation arid 
Subsidiaries 
Schedule I 1  
Valuation a nd Qualifying Accounts 

Additions 
Balance 

at Other Balance 
Beginning Charged ACcounts Deductions at End of 

For the Year Ended December 31, of Year to Income ('I (2) Year 

Reserve Deducted From 
Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts 

2005 
2004 
2003 

(' Recoveries. 
(2) Uncollectible accounts charged off. 



Exhibit 4.1 

EXECUTlON COP\' 

CHESAPEAKE UTlLlTIES CORPORATION 

909 Silver Lake Boulevard 

Dover, Delaware 19904 

NOTE AGREEMENT 

$20,000,000 

5.50% Senior Notes 
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As of October 18. 2005 

To thc I’u~-chnsci.s I istccl i n  the 

attach cd P 11 1-c ti as CI- S ch ed 11 I e 

Ladies and Geiitleiiien: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “ C ~ m p m y _  ”j, hereby agrees with the purchasers listed in the attached 
Purchasei- Schedule (collectively, the ‘‘ Pyrchgsejs ” and, indrvidually, a “ Purchaser ”) as folIows: 

SECTION 1. PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTES 

Secfioii 1.1 issue of Notes. 

The Company will authorize the issue of $20,000,000 principal amount of its 5.50% Senior Notes due on the Maturity Date (the “ 
Notes ”). Each Note will bear interest on the unpaid principal balance thereof, from the date of the Note or the most recent date to which 
interest thereon has been paid, untiI the same is due and payable, at an annual rate of 5.50% (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of  twelve 
30-day months), payable quarterly on each Quarterly Interest Payment Date, beginning with the first Quarterly Interest Payment Date to occur 
after the Closing Date. The Notes will be subject to certain mandatory principal repayments prior to maturity, as provided in Section 2.1- and 
will niahire on the Maturity Date. Payments of principal, Make Whole Amount, if any, and, to the extent pennitted by law, interest not paid 
when due will bear interest from the date such payment was due until paid at a rate per annum froin time to time equal to the greater of (i) 
7.50% or (ii)  the rate of interest publicly announced by JPMorgan Chase Bank from time to time in New York City as its Prime Rate. The 
Notes will be registered notes in the form set out in Exhibit A .  

Section 1.2 The Closii?g. 

The Company agrees to sell to each Purchaser and each Purchaser agrees to purchase from the Company, in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement, the principal amount of the Notes indicated for such Purchaser on the Purchaser Schedule attached hereto at par. 
The closing of the sale and purchase of the Notes will be held a t  I 0 : O O  a.m. on the Closing Date, at the offices of Schiff Harclin LLP, 6600 
Sears Tower, Chicago, Illinois. On the Closing Date. the Company will deliver to each Purchaser one or more Notes, as specified in the 
Purchaser Schedule attached hereto in the aggregate amount of each Purchaser’s purchase, dated the Closing Date and payable to such 
Purchaser or such  Purchaser’s noininee(s), if any, listed in the Purchaser Schedule, against payment in iiniiiediately available f h d s .  Each 
Purchaser’s obligations hereunder are several and not joint and no Purchaser shall have any obligation or liability to any Person for the 
performance or nonperformance by any other Purchaser hereunder. 

Whether 01- not  the Notes are sold, the Coiiipany will: upoii presentation to the Company of documentation in reasonable detail, pay 
thc following expcnses relating to this Agreement. including: 

( a )  thc cost of reproducing this Agreement and the Notes: 

(b 1 the reasonable fees and disbursements (inclucling the cost of obtaining the private placement number) of the Puj-chasers’ 
special counsel; 

cc> the cost of any fees of agents, brokers 01- dealers or otherwise incui-I-ecl in connection with the sale of the Notes pursuatit to 

this Agreement but not with respect to any subsequent resale; 

(4 each Purchaser’s reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in negotiating this Agreement: 

( e )  the cost of delivering to or from any Purchaser’s home office, insured to any Purchaser’s satisfaction, the Notes purchasecl 
by any Purchaser, any Note surrendered by any Purchasei- to the Cornpany pursuant to this Agreeinent and any Note issued to any Purchaser in 
substihition 01- replacement for a surrendered Nore; and 

(f) all costs (including reasonable fees and expenses of counsel) related to proposed or actual modifications of, or proposed or  
actual consents under, this Agreement. 



The obligations of the Company under this Section I .3 shall survive the payment of tlie Notes and the termination of this Agreement, 
and shall continue regardless of whethex or not the Closing Date occurs and whether or not any Purchaser has purchased Notes hereunder. 

Each  Purchaser’s obligation to ptirchasc and pay for the Notes to bc purchased by such Put-chaser. hercundcr is subject to the 
satisfaction, on 01- before the Closing Date, of the following conditions: 

(a) Certain Documents . Such Purchaser shall have received the following dated the Closing Date: 

(i> The Notes to be purchased by such Purchaser. 

(ii) Certified copies of the resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Company approving this Agreement 
and the Notes, and of all documents evidencing other necessary corporate action and governmental approvals, if any, with 
respect to this Agreement and the Notes. 

(ii i) A certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Company certifying the names and true 
signatures of the officers of the Company authorized to sign this Agreement and the Notes and the other documents to be 
deIivered hereunder. 

(iv) Certified copies of the Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of the Company. 

(V I  Good standing certificates for the Company from each of the Secretary of State of Delaware? the 
Secretary of State of Maryland, and the Secretary of State of Floricla, dated of a recent date. 

(17) Opinion of Purchase_l-s’ Sp_cial Couns_el Such Purchaser shall have received f?om Sch~ff  Hardin LLP, who are acting as 
special counsel foi the Purchasers in connection with this transaction, a favorable opinion satisfactory to the Purcliasers as to such matters as 
thc Purchasers may request 

(c> Opiiiion of Company’., Special and Local Counsel Such Puichasei shall have received fioin Covtngtoii & Bui ling, who 
ai e acting as special councel for the Company in connection wlth t h s  transactlon, a favorable opinion satisfactory to the Pui chasers 
substantially in the foim of Exhiblt B-1 hereto, fiom Parkowski, Guerke and Swayze, who are acting as Delawaie counsel for the Company in 
connection wrtli this transaction, a favoiablc opinion satisfactory to the Purchasers substatitlally in the foim of Exhrblt B-2 hereto, froin DLA 
Pipe1 Ruclnick G a y  US LLP, who are acting as Maryland counsel for the Coinpany i n  connection w ~ t h  thls transaction, a favorable opinion 
satisfactory to the Purchasers substantially in the form of E&ibit_B-3 hereto, and from Rose, Sundstroin & Bentley, LLP, who are acting as 
Florida counsel for the Coinpany in connection with this transaction, a favorable opinion satisfactory to the Purchaseis substantially in the form 
of Exhibit B-4 heieto The Company liereby directs each such comisel to deIivei such opinions, agrees that the issuance and sale of any Notes 
wlll constitute a ieconfirmation of such direction, and understands and agiees that each Pur cliasei will t ely on such opinions 

( 4  Representations and Warranties; No Default. The representations and warranties contained in Section 6 shall be tnie on 
and as of the Closing Date, except to the extent of changes caused by the transactions herein contemplated; there shall exist on the Closing Date 
no Event  of Default 01- Default; and the C’oimpany shall have delivered to such Purchaser an Officer’s Certificate, dated the Closing Date, to 
both such effects. The cleliveiy of such Officei-’s Certificate will constitute the repeating of such representations a n d  warranties by the 
Conipany as of the Closing Date. 

(e> Purchc?~e PerLnltted By Applicable Laws . The purchase of and payinent for the Notes to be purchased by such Purchaser 
011 the Closing Date on the tei-ins and conditions herein provided (including the use of the proceeds of such Notes by the Company) shall not 
violate any applicable law or governmental regulation (including, without limitation, Section 5 of the Securities Act 01- Regulation T, U or X of 
the Board of Governors of tlie Federal Reserve System) and shall not subject such Purchaser to any tax, penalty, liability or other onerous 
conclitioii under or pursuant to any applicable law or governmental regulation, and such Purchaser shall have received such certificates 01- other 
evidence as it may reasonably request to establish compliance with this condition. The order of the Florida Public Service Commission referred 
to in Sec.tion 6 , lO  shall have been obtained. The orders of the Delaware and Florida State Coininissions referred to in Section 6,lO shall be 
satisfactoiy to such Purchaser and sliall be final and in full force and effect on the Closing Date. No appeal, review or contest of either thereof 
shall be pending on the Closing Date, and, as of the Closing Date, the time for appeal or to seek review or reconsideration of such orders shall 
have expired. Any conditions contained in either order shall have been satisfied to such Purchaser’s reasonable satisfaction. Such Purchaser and 
its special counsel shall have received copies of such documents and papers (including, without limitation, a certified or attested copy of such 
orclers) as such Purchaser may reasonably request in connection therewith or as a basis for the Purchasers’ special counsel’s closing opinion, all 
in forin and substance satisfactory to such Purchaser and the Purchasers’ special counsel. 



(f) Stlluchiring Fee . The Company shall have paid to each Purchaser, by wire transfer of iinmediately available f h h ,  such 
Purchaser’s I-atable portion (in proportion to the aggregate principal amount of the Notes to be purchased by such Purchaser) of a structuring 
fee in the aggrepte  amount, for all  Purchasers. equal to ( i )  $1 5,000, minus (ii) 50% of the amount. if any, by which the fees and disburseii~ents 
of Purchasers’ special counsel related to  the preparation of this Agreement payable by the Company under Section 1.3(b) exceeds $35,000 
(pi-oviclecl that such  sti-uctui-ing fee shall not be less than zero). 

(g 1 Delayed Delivery Fee . The Company shall have paid to each Purchaser, by wire traiisfer of iinmediately available ftinds, 
any Delayed Delivery Fee due to such Pmchaser under Section 2.5. 

(h 1 Diversification Event No  Diversification Event shall have occurred. 

(1) Pjoceedin$s . All corporate and other proceedings taken or to be taken in connection with the transactions contemplated 
hereby and all documents incident thereto shall be satisfactory in substance and form to such Purchaser, and such Purchaser shall have received 
all such counterpart originals or certified or other copies of such documents as it may reasonably request. 

SECTION 2. PAYMENTS 

Section 2.1 Reqirrl-ed Paymem 

(a> Until the Notes are paid in fiill, the Company will pay $2,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Notes on each 
Annual Principal Ainortization Date. The entire outstanding principal amount and unpaid interest thereon shall be dtre and payable on the 
Mahirity Date. Prepayments on each holder’s Notes under Section 2.2- shall be applied to mandatory payments on such Notes in inverse order 
of mahirity and the Company’s obligation to make the payments required by this Section. 2.1- shall not be reduced by any payment pursuant to 
Section 2.2. . Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon any payment of less than all of the outstanding Notes pursuant to Section.2.1L(b) hereof or 
any acquisition of aiiy Notes by the Company or any Subsidiaiy or Affiliate permitted by Sect.on 9.6(b)-.hereof, the principal ainount of such 
required. prepayment of the Notes becoming due under this Section 2.1 on or after the clay of such payment or acquisition shall be reduced in 
the same proportion as the aggregate unpaid principal amount of the Notes is reduced as a result of  such prepayment or purchase. 

(b 1 Jf? at any time, the aggregate net book value of all assets that are ~ t s e d  111 the regulated utilities business segments of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries is less than 50% of Consolidated Total Assets (a  “ Diveisification Event ”), any holder of any of the Notes then 
outstanding may elect, at its option, by notice to the Company, to declaie the outstanding Notes held by such holder to be due and payable on 
the next business day after the 30th day following such notice (the “ Recpired Payinent Date ”). Upon such election by any holder of the Notes, 
the Coinpany will pay the aggregate principal amount of such holder’s Notes on the Required Payment Date, together with interest accrued to 
the Required Payment Date on such principal amount, and a preiniuiii equal to the Make Whole Amount, if any, applicable to such payment 
Upon the occurrence of a Diversification Event, the Company shall deliver to each holder of the outstanding Notes a notice that such event has 
occurred and the reason or reasons for such occurrence 

(a) At a Premium , The Company may prepay the Notes in whole or part, at m y  time and from time to time, in multipies of 
$1 00,000, by payment of 100% of the principal amount then being prepaid, together with interest acct-Lied to the date of prepayment on the 
principal amount being prepaid and a pi-emium equal to the Make Whole Amount, if any, applicable to sncli prepayment; provided that 110 

partial prepayment shall be in an amount less than ( i )  $1,000,000 or ( i i )  the aggregate principal amount remaining outstanding, whichever is 
less. 

(b 1 Notice of Optmnal Prepayment The Company will give written notice of any optional prepayment of the Notes to each 
holder of Notes at least 15 but not more than 45 days before the date fixed for piepayment, specifying (1)  such date (the “ Prepaylmgnt Date ”), 
and (2) the amount of principal and interest with respect to the Notes arid such holder’s Notes to be prepaid on such date Any such notice of 
prepayment will be irievocable Upon the giving of such notice by the Conipany, the principal ainouiit of the Notes specified i n  the notice, 
togethei with inteiest accrued to the Piepayment Date on such piincipal amount, and a preinium equal to the Make Whole Amount, if any, 
applicable to such payment, shall be due and payable on the Prepayment Date, and the Coiiipany shall pay such aniouiit 011 the Prepayment 
Date The Coinpany shall, on 01 before the day on wlirch it gives written notice of any  piepayment puisuant to Section 2 2(a) , give teleplionlc 
notrce of the principal amounts of the Note to be prepaid and the prepayment date to each Purchaser which shall have designated a recipient of 
such notices in the Puichaser Schedule attached heieto 01 by notice 111 writing to the Company 

Sectiori 2.3 Poi-fin1 Pcrynzent Prv Rota. 

If there is more than one Note outstanding, the principal amount of each required or optional partial payiiient of the Notes, other than a 
prepayinent pursuant to Section 2.l(b) , will be allocated aiiiong the Notes at the time outstanding in proportion, as nearly as practicable, to the 



respective outstancling principal amounts of the Notes 

If the Closing Date is December 28, 2006 and the Company fails to tcncier to any Pui-clinser the Notes to be purchasccl by such 
Purchaser on December 2s. 2006, or any of the conditions spccified in Section I .4 shall not have becn fulfilled on December 28, 2006, tlie 
Company shall, prior to 1:OO P.M., New York City local time, 011 December 28, 2006, notify Pixicldential (which notification shall be deemed 
received by each Purchaser) in writing whether (i j  such closing of the purchase or sale of the Notes is to be rescheduled (such rescheduled date 
to be a Business Day not before December 29, 2006 and not later than January 15, 2007 (the ‘‘ Rescheduled Closing Date” )) and certify to 
Prudential (which certification shall be for the benefit of each Purchaser) that the Company reasonably believes that it will be able to comply 
with the conditions set forth in Section 1.4 on such Rescheduled Closing Date and that the Company will pay the Delayed Delivery Fee in 
accordance with Section 2.5 or (ii) such closing is to be canceled. In the event that the Company shall fail to give the notice referred to in the 
preceding sentence, the Company shall be deemed to have elected that such closing is to be cancelled as of December 28, 2006. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contraiy appearing in this Agreement, the Company may not elect to reschedule the closing on more than one 
occasion, unless the Purchasei-s shall have otherwise consented in writing. 

Section 2.5 Delayed Delivery Fee. 

If the closing of the purchase and sale of the Note(s) to be sold to any Purchaser is delayed for any reason beyond December 28, 2006, 
then, except as otherwise provided in Section 2.7, the Company will pay to such Purchaser on the Cancellation Date or achial closing date of 
such purchase and sale, a fee (herein called the “ Delayed Delivery Fee” ) calculated as follows: 

(BEY - MMY) X DTS1360 X PA 

where “BEY” means Bond Equivalent Yield, Le., the bond equivalent yield per annuin of the Notes; “MMY” means Money Market Yield, 
i.e., the yieId per annum on a coimmercial paper investment of the highest quality selected by Prudential and having a maturity date or dates the 
same as, or closest to, the Rescheduled Closing Date or Rescheduled Closing Dates for such the Notes (a new altei-native investment being 
selected by Prudential each time such closing is delayed); “DTS” means Days to Settlement, i.e., the number of actual days elapsed fr-nm arid 
including December 28, 2006 to but excluding the date of such payment; and “PA” means Principal Amount, Le.. the principal amount of the 
Note for which such calculation is being made. In no case shall the Delayed Delivery Fee be less than zero. Nothing contained hercin shall 
obligate any Purchaser to purchase any Note on any day other than the Closing Date, as the same may be rcscheduled from time to time by 
mutual agreement of the Company and the Purchasers. 

Section 2.6 Coi7cellntior.l Fee. 

If the Company at any time notifies Prudential in writing that the Coinpany is canceling the closing of the purchase and saIe of the 
Notes, if the Company is deemed to have elected pursuant to the penultimate sentence of Section 2.4 that the closing of the purchase and sale of 
the Notes is to be canceled, 01- if the Closing Date is rescheduled to a Rescheduled Closing Date pursuant to Section 2.4 but the Company fails 
to tendel. to any Purchaser the Notes to be purchased by such Put-chaser- on such Reschedulecl Closing Date or any of tlie conditions specifiecl jn 
Section 1.4 shall not have been either fdfilled or expressly ~vaivecl in writing by tlie Pnrchasers on such Rescheclulecl Closing Date and such 
closing does not occur on such Rescheduled Closing Date (the date of any such notification 01’ dcenied election or such Kesclieduled Closing 
Date, as the case may be, being herein called the “ Cancellation Date” ), then, except as othcrwise provicled in Section 2 .7 ,  the Company wilt 
pay to each Purchaser on the Cancellation Date in iininediatcly available funds an ainount (the ‘‘ Cancellation Fee” ) calculated as foliows: 

PI X PA 

where “PI” means Price Increase, i.e., the quotient (expressed in decimals) obtained by dividing (a) the excess of the ask price (as determined 
by Prudential) of the Hedze Treasury Note(s) on the Cancellation Date over the bid price (as determined by Piuclential) of the Hedge Treasury 
Notes(s) on June 29, 2005 by (b) such bid price; and “PA” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.5; provided, however, the Cancellation 
Fee shall be no less than $50,000. The foi-egoing bid and ask prices sliall be as reported by TradeWeb LLC (or, if such data for any reason 
ceases to be available through TradeWeb LLC, any publicly available source of similar inarket data). Each price shall be rounded to the second 
decimal place. In iio case shall the Cancellation Fee be less than $50,000. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2.5 or 2.6,  in the event that eithei (i) all conditions set forth in Section 1.4 have bee11 
satisfied on the Closing Date but any Purchaser reftises to purchase the Notes to be purchased by such Purchaser liereunder, or ( 1 1 )  a n y  
Purchaser refuses to purchase the Notes to be purchased by such Purchaser hereunder on the grounds that such purchase would violate any 
applicable law or government regulation binding on such Purchaser or subject such Purchaser to any tax, penalty, liability or other oner0ilS 



condition under or pursuant to any such applicable Iaw or governmental regulation, no Cancellation Fee or Delayed Delivery Fee will 
be payable to such Purchaser. 

SECTION 3 .  INFC>IIIVlATION AS TO COPIPANY 

The Company will deliver in duplicate to each Purchaser, if at the time such Purchaser or such Purchaser’s iioininee holds any Notes 
(or if such Purchaser is obligated to purchase any Notes), and to each other Institutional Holder of outstanding Notes: 

( 4  Qgarterly Statemer&--as soon as practicable and in any event within sixty (60) days after the end of each of the first three 
quarterly fiscal periods in each fisca1 year of the Company: 

(i> a consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries as at the end of such quarter and as at 
the end of the corresponding quarter in the most recently completed fiscal year and a consolidating balance sheet of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries as of the end of such quarter, and 

(ii) consolidated statements of income, retained earnings and cash flows of the Coinpany and its Subsidiaries 
for that quarter and for the portion of the fiscal year ending with such quarter, and for the corresponding periods in the prior 
fiscal year and consolidating statements of income, retained earnings and cash flows of the Coinpany and its Subsidiaries for 
such quarter and for the portion of the fiscal year ending with such quarter, 

setting forth in the statements of income for each fiscal period, the specific dollar amounts of depreciation charged, lease rental expense and 
interest expense on Indebtedness, accompanied by a certificate signed by a principal financial officer of the Company stating that such financial 
statements present fairly the financial condition of the companies being reported upon and have been prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles consistently applied, with such adjustments as may be required to present fairly the financial statements therein 
contained; provided that if the Company is subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the delivery to such recipients of the 
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q containing such information within the specified time period shall satisfy this requirement; 

(b) Annual Statements --as soon as practicable and in any event within one hundred twenty (120) days after the encl of each 
fiscal year of the Company: 

(1 1 a consolidated and consolidating balance sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries, as at the end of that 
fiscal year, and 

(ii)  consolidated and consolidating statements of income, retained earnings and cash flows of the Company 
and its Subsidiaries, for that year, 

setting forth in  the case of S U C I I  consoIidated financial statements, the figures for the previous Fiscal ycar i n  comparative form. and  setting f o r t ] ~  
in such statements of income, the specific dollar amounts of depreciation charged, lease rental expense, and interest expense on Indebtedness, 
and accompanied in the case of such consoliclatecl financia1 statements by- an opinion of  a firm of independent public accountants of recogiiizec] 
national standing stating t h a t  such financia1 statements present fiLii-ly the tesults of the operations and financial condition of the co111panies 
being reported upon and have been prepai-ed in accor-dance with generally accepted accounting principles coiisistently applied (except for 
changes in application i n  which such accountants concur); provided that if the Co~iipa~iy is sub-ject to the reporting requirements o f  the 
Exchange Act, the delivery to such recipients of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form IO-K containing sucli inforination within tile 
specified time period shall satisfy this 1-equireinent; 

ic) Audit Reports --promptly upon receipt thereof, one copy of each other report submitted to the Coiiipany or any Subsidiary 
by independent accountants in connection with any annual, interim or special audit made by them of the books of the Company or any 
Subsidiary; 

(4 SEC and Other Reports --promptly upon their becoming available, copies of each periodic report (including Forlns 8-K, 
1 0-K, and 1 0-Q, proxy stateinent and registration statement or prospectus (other than registration statements on Form 5-8 and any 
corresponding prospectus) relating to Securities of the Company filed with 01- delivered to any securities exchange, the Securities and E x c l ~ a ~ ~ g e  
Cominission or any successor agency, and promptly upon transniission thereof, copies of such other financial statements, notices and reports, it 
any, as the Company or any Subsidiary shall send to its public stockholders; 

(e> Annual Regulatoq Reports --promptly upon their becoming available, copies of each annual report required to be filed ~ J I  

the Coinpany or any Subsidiary with any of the State Commissions or with the FERC; 



(0 Notice o f  Default or Event of Default -- iiniiieclrately upon becoming aware of the existcnce of any Default or Event of 
Default. a notice describing 111 i-easonablc detail its naturc and what actmi the affected Company or Subsidiary IS taking or proposes to take 
w i t h  respect thereto, 

(gj  Notice of  Claimed Default --immediately upon becoming aware that the holcler of any Note 01' of any other evidence of 
Indebtedness or other Security of the Company or any Subsidiaiy has given notice [or taken any other action) with respect to a claimed default, 
breach, Default or Event of Default, a notice describing in reasonable detail the notice given (or action taken) and in reasonable detail the 
nature of the claimed default, breach, Default or Event of Default and what action the affected Company or Subsidiaiy is taking or proposes to 
take with respect thereto; 

(h) Report on Proceedings --promptly upon the Company's making public information with respect to (1) any proposed or 
pending investigation of it or any Subsidiary by any governmental authority or agency, or (2) any court or administrative proceeding, which in 
either case involves the possibility of inaterially and adversely affecting the Properties, business, prospects, profits or financial condition of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, a notice specifying its nature aiid the action the Company is taking with respect thereto; and 

(i> Requested 1nfolm.attLm. --with reasonable promptness, any other data and information which may be reasonaldy requested 
from t h e  to time, including without limitation any information required to be made available at any time to any prospective transferee of any 
Notes in order to satisfy the requireinents of Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

Section 3.2 OffEcei- 's Cert$cates. 

With each set of financial statements delivered pwsuant to Section 3.1('a) or 3.llb) , the Company will deliver to each Purchaser a 
certificate signed by its Chief Financial Officer and setting forth. 

(a> Covenant Compl7Llr2nce --the information reqLiired in order to establish compliance with Section 4 during the period covered 
by the financial statements then berng fiimished; and 

(b) Default OT Event of Default --that the signer has reviewed the relevant tenns of this Agreement and has made, or caused to 
be made, under the signer's supervision, a review of the transactions and condition of the Company aiid its Subsidlalies from the beginning of 
the period covered by the financial statements then being kmished and that the review has not disclosed the existence of any Default 01 

Event of Default or, if a Default or Event of Default exists, describing its nature 

Secfion 3 3 Accountants ' Cei.@cifes 

Each set of annual financial statements delivered pursuant to Section 3.U_b) will be accompanied by a certificate of the accountants 
who certify such financial statements, stating that, in making the audit necessaiy to the certification of such financial statements, they have 
reviewed this Agreement and obtained no ]<nowledge of any Event of Default or Default, or, if they have obtained knowledge of any Event of 
Default 01 Default, specifying the nature and period of exiqtence thereof 

The Company will permit each Purchaser's I-epresentatives, while such Purchaser or such Purchasei-'s nominee holds any Note, ancl 
the representatives of any other Iiistih~tional Holder of the Notes to visit and inspect any of the Properties of the Coinpany or any Subsidiary, to 
examine and make copies and extracts of all their books of account, records, reports and other papers, and to discuss their respective affairs, 
finances and accounts with their respective officers, eiiiployees with management duties and independent public accountants (and by this 
provision the Company authorizes said accountants to so discuss the finances and affairs of the Company and its Subsidiaries), a11 lipon 
reasonable notice, at reasonable times and as often as may be reasonably requested. Any holder making any visit or inspection pursuant to this 
Section 3.4 shall pay its own costs and expenses thereof unless, at the time of such visit or inspection, there shall exist a Default 01' Event of 
Default, in which event the Coiiipaiiy shall bear the costs and expenses thereof. 

SECTION 4. COMPANY BUSINESS COVENANTS 

The Coinpaiiy covenants that on ancl after the date of this Agreement until the Notes are paid in f L d 1 :  

The Company shall, and shall cause each Subsidiary to, pay, before they become delinquent, 



(a) all taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies imposed upon it or its Property, and 

(13 1 all claims 01 demands of matc~-ialinen, mechanics, carriers, warehousemen, landlords and other- like Persons which, if 
unpaid, might result 111 the  creation of a Licn upon its PI-opcrty. 

provicted that items of the fo i~go tng  clcscription need not be paid \.~lliile bcing contested in good faith and  by appropriate proceedings and 
provicfed f~irther that adequate book reserves have been established with respect thereto and povided. fLirtlter that the owning coinpany's title 
to, and its right to use, its Property is not materially adversely affected thereby. 

Sectioii 4 2 Maiv lennnce of Properties a i d  CoiForate Exis fer? ce 

The Company shall, and shall cause each Subsidiary to: 

(4 __ Prope~ty --maintain its Property in good condition and make all necessary renewals, replacements, additions, betterments 
and improvements thereto; 

(b) ~ Insurance --maintain, with financially sound and reputable insurers, insurance with respect to its Properties and business 
against such casualties and contingencies, of such types (including public liability, larceny, embezzlement or other criininal misappropriation 
insurance) and in such amounts as is custoniary in the case of corporations of established reputations engaged in the same or a similar business 
and similarly situated; 

(4 Financial Records --keep tme books of records and accounts in which full and correct entries will be iiiade of all Its 
business transactions, and will reflect in its financial statements adequate accnials and appropriations to reserves, all in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

(4 Corpomte Existence and Rights --do or cause to be done all things necessary (a) to preserve and keep in full force and 
effect Its existence, rights and francliises and jb) except as provided in Section 4.10 or 4.1 I , to maintain each Subsidiary as a Subsidiary; and 

( e )  Compliance with Law --comply with all laws (including but  not limited to environmental laws), ordinances, or 
govei-ninental i-ules and regulations (including, without limitation, federal, state and local environmental laws, niles and regulations) to which rt 
is subject and maintain any licenses, permits, franchises or other governmental authorizations necessaiy to the ownership of  its Properties 01- to 
the conduct of its business, if the failure to so coinply or the failure to so maintain might materially adversely affect the Properties, business, 
prospects, profits or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company and its Subsidiaries or the ability of the Company to perform its 
obligations set forth in this Agreement and in the Notes. 

Section 4 3 Pq)meiit of Notes and Maintenance of Office 

The Company will punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal and interest (and premium, if any) to beconle clue in  respect of the 
Notes according to the terms thereof and will iiiaintaiti an office at the address of the Coriipany set forth in Section 9.1 where notices. 
presentations and delilands in respect of this Agreement or the Notes may be macle upon it. Such office shall be maintained at such addl-css 
until such time as the Company shall notifq' the holders of the Notes of a change of location of sucli office within such State. 

The Company wil l ,  for each fiscal year of the Company, inaintain Consolidated Net Eainings AvailabIe for Fixed Charges at not less 
than 120% of Consolidated Fixed Charges. 

The Company will at all times iiiaintain Consolidated Net Worth at not less than $50.000,000. 

The Company will not. nor will it pelinit any of its Subsidiaries to, create, incur, assume, become liable for, or guaranty, or perniit any 
of  1ts Property to become subject to, any Funded Indebtedness (and in the case of a Subsidiary, Current Indebtedness) other than: 

(1) Funded indebtedness represented by the Notes and the outstanding Indebtedness set forth in Schedule 
4 .6 ,  



(ii) Unsecured Funded Indebtedness of the Company, if after giving effect thereto and to any concurrent 
transactions, the aggregate principal aniount of outstanding secured ancl unsecuied Funded Indebtedness of the Company an(] 
secured ancl unsecured Currcnt ancl Funded Indebtedness of the Subsidiaries (excluding Indebtedness owccl by a Subsicliary to 
the Company or A Wholly-Owned Subsicliary) does not exceed 65"h of Total Capitalizatwn. and 

( 1 1 1 )  Pur chase h/loncy lnclebtedncss of the C'oiiipany 01 a Subsidiaiy and uiisecurcd C wrent or kundcd 
Indebtedness of a Subsidiary, if after giving effect thereto and to any concurrent transactions, (a> the conditions set foith ~n 
Section 4 6(ii) are satisfied, and (b) the aggregate principal amount of outstanding Purchase Money Iiidebtedness of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries and the unsecured Current and Funded Indebtedness of the Subsidiaries, excluding Cun-ent or 
Funded Iiidebtedness owed by a Subsidiary to the Company or a Wholly-Owned Subsidiaiy, does not  exceed 20% of 
Consolidated Tangible Net Worth 

Secfiou 4.7 Guaranties 

The Company will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, become liable for or permit any of its Property to become subject to any 
Guaranty except Guaranties under which the maximum aggregate amount of Indebtedness, dividend or other obligation being guaranteed can 
be mathematically determined at the time of issuance. Each Guaranty permitted by this Section 4.7 inust comply with the applicable 
requirements of Section 4.6 above. 

Section 4.8 Liens nnd Enczmibr-mces 

The Company wilI not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, cause or permit or agree or consent to cause or permit in the fiitlI1-e 

(upon the happening of a contingency or otherwise), any of its Property, whether now owned or subsequently acquired, to be subject to a Lien 
except: 

(a) Liens securing the payment of taxes, assessments or governmental charges or levies or the demands of 
suppliers, mechanics, carriers, warehousers, landlords and other like Persons, prgvidedthat payment thereof is not at the time 
requirecl by Section 4.1 , 

(b) Liens incurred or deposits made in the ordinary course of business ( i >  in connection with workel-'s 
compensation, unemploynient insurance, social security and other like laws, or (i i)  to secure the performance of letters of 
credit, bids, tenders, sales contracts, leases, statutory obligations, surety, appeaI and perforriiance bonds and other similar 
obligations, in each case not incurred in connection with the borrowing of money, the obtaining of advances or the payilleiit 
of the deferred purchase price of Property; 

(c) attachment, judginent and other similar Liens arising in connection with court proceedings, provided that 
(i) execution ancl other enforcement are effectively stayed, (ii) all claims which the Liens secure are being actively contested 
in good faith and by appropriate proceedings, (iii) adequate book reserves have been established with respect thereto, and ( I V )  

the owning conipany's right to use, its Pi-opei-ty is not niaterially advci-sely affected thereby; 

(a Liens on Property of a Subsidiary, provided that they secure only obIigations owing to the Compariy or a 
Wholly-Owned Subsidiaiy: 

( e )  the Liens existing at the date of this Agreement which are set foith in Schedule 4.8(e) : 

(0 Liens securing Purchase Moiiey Indebtedness of the Coinpany or a Subsidmy, provlded (I) the 
incurrence of such Purchase Money Indebtedness is then permitted by Section 4 6 , and ( i i )  after giving effect to the 
incuirence of such Pui chase Money lndebtedness and to any concurrent transactions, the aggiegate amount of outstaidng 
Purchase Money Indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries and the unsecured Current and Funded Indebtedness of 
the Subsicliaries (excluding Indebtedness owed by a Subsidiai-y to the Company or a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary) does not 
exceed 20% of Consolidated Tangible Net Worth, and provided fiirther that no such Lien shall extend to 01 cover any 
Piopeity not originally subject thereto, other than 1niprovements to the Property originally subject thereto. and 

(€9 other Liens securing obligations that in the aggregate do not exceed $1 00,000, 

Section 4.9 Restricted Pnyieiits. 

Except as provided in this Section 4.9 , the Coiiipany will not, and the Coiiipany will not permit any Subsidiary to, 



( 4  declare or pay any dividends, either in cash or property, 011 any shares of capital stock of the Company (except dividends 
payable solely i n  shares of capital stock of the Company); 

(b) directly or indirectly, purchase, ~-edeeni 01- retire any sharc of capital stock of the Cotnpany or any warrants, I-ights 01- 
options to p~~rcliase or  acquii’c any shares of capitat stock of the Company (otliei- than shares of capital stock or warrants, rights 01’ options to 
purchase or acquire shares of capital stock issued to employees, directors or agcnts of the coiii11any pursuant to a benefit or conipensation plan 
or agreement of the Company); or 

(4 make any other payment or distribution, either directly or indirectly, in respect of capital stock of the Company (such 
declarations, payments, redemptions or retirements being called ‘‘ Restricted PayJ1ent-s ”), 

if at the tiine of any such Restricted Payment and after giving effect thereto, the aggregate amount of all Restricted Payments made, paid or 
declared since the Closing Date would exceed the sum of (xj $10,000,000 plus (y) 100% of Consolidated Net Income for the period beginning 
on January I ,  2003 and ending on the date of the proposed Restricted Payment, computed on a cumulative basis (or if Consolidated Net Income 
is a deficit figure for the period, then minus 100% of such deficit). 

Section 4.10 Sale of PI-operty and Szrbsidiary Stock. 

(4 The Company will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, except in the ordinary course of business, sell, lease, transfer 
or otherwise dispose of any of its assets (not including Excluded Assets); provide-d that the foregoing restriction does not apply to the sale of 
assets for a cash consideration to a Person other than an Affiliate, if all of the following conditions are met: 

0 )  the amount o f  such assets (valued at net book value), together with all other assets of the Company and 
Subsidiaries previously disposed of (other than in the ordinary course of business) as permitted by thls Section 4 1 O(a) and 
the assets of any Subsidiary disposed of as permitted by Section 4.1 O@)(i1_) during the fiscal year in which the disposition 
occurs does not exceed 10% of Consolidated Total Assets as of the end of the fiscal year then most recently ended; provided 
that assets, as so valued, may be sold in excess o f  10% of Consolidated Total Assets in any fiscal year if either (1 )  within one 
year o f  such sale. the proceeds from the sale of such asset5 are used, or committed by the Company’s Board of Dircctors to 
be used, to acquiie other assets of at least equivalent value and earning powei, or (2) with the written consent of the holders 
of the Notes, the proceeds from saIe of such assets are used immediately upon receipt to prepay pro lata the Notes under 
Section 2 2(a) hereof and other senior Funded Indebtedness of the Company; and 

(ii) in the opinion o f  the Company’s Board of Directors, the sale is for fair value and is in the best interest of 
the Company; arid 

(iii) 
Default would exist. 

immediately after the consuinination of the sale, and after giving effect thereto, no Default or Event of 

(b 1 The Co inp t ly  will not, and  will not permit any Subsidiary to, dispose of its investment in any Subsidiaiy, a n d  the 
Company will not, and will not perinit any Subsidiary to, issue or transfer any shares of a Subsidiary’s capital stock or aiiy other Securities 
exchangeable 01’ convertible into such Subsidiaiy’s stock (such stock and other Securities being called ‘‘ Subsidiary Stock ”), if the effect would 
be to reduce the direct or  indirect proportionate interest of the Company in the outstanding Subsidiary Stock of the Subsidiary whose shares are 
the sub.ject of the transaction, provided that these restrictions do not apply to (x) the issue of directors’ qualifying shares or (y) the sale for a 
cash consideration to a Pet-son other than an Affiliate of the entire investment of- the Conipany and its other Subsidiaries ( i )  in any Excluded 
Assets or ( i i )  in aiiy other Subsidiary provided the Coiiipany would be permittecl to dispose of all of the assets of such other Subsidiaiy at the 
time in  compliance with the conditions specified in paragraphs (i), ( i i)  and ( i i i )  of Section-4. I O(g) . 

Section 4 I1 Merger a i d  Co MS o l i d d o  11 

The Company wilI not, and will not pennit any Subsidiaiy to. be a p i t y  to any merger or consolidation or sell, lease 01 otlie~wlse 
tiansfer all 01 substantially all of its Property, provided that the Company may merge or consolidate with, or sell substantially all of its assets 
to, anothei corporation if all of the following conditions are inet 

c i >  the surviving or acquiring corporation is organized under the laws of the United States or a jurisdiction 
thereof, 

(ii) the surviving or acquiring corporation, if not the Company, expressly and unconditionally assumes in 
writing the covenants and obligations to be perfoi-mecl by the Company under the Notes and this Agreement, such assumption 
to be in a form acceptable to the holder or holders of not less than 66-2/3% in principal amount of all Notes at the time 



outstanding, and 

( i i i  j the surviving or acquiring coi-poration could. iinruecliately after giving effect to the transaction, incur at 
least $ 1.00 of additional Funded Indebtedness pursuant to Section 4.6(ii) . and at the time of such transaction a n d  
iininecliately after giving effect thereto, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing: and 

piovided , f u r - e l  , that any Substdiaiy may inerge oi consoIidate with 01 into the Company 01 any othei Subsidiary so long as (x) immediately 
after giving effect to the transaction, the Company can incur at least $1  00 of additional Funded Indebtedness consistent with Section 4 6(11), 

(y) at the time of such transaction and iniiiiediately after giving effect thereto, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be 
continuing, and (z) in any merger or consolidation involving the Company, the Company shall be the surviviiig 01 continuing corporation 

Section 4.12 Ti-ansac t io ns with A f f i  E ia tes . 

The Company will not, and will not pennit any Subsidiary to, enter into any transaction (including the purchase, sale or exchange of 
Property or the rendering of any service) with any Affiliate except in the ordinary course of and pursuant to the reasonable requirements of 
such Coinpany’s or Subsidiary’s business and upon fair and reasonable terim which are at least as favorable to the Company or the Subsidiary 
as would be obtained in a comparable ann’s-length transaction with a non-Affiliate. 

Section 4. I3  Loans, Advances and Inves tnz ents. 

The Company will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, inake or permit to remain outstanding any investment in any Property or 
own, purchase or acquire any stock, obligations or securities of, or any other interest in, or make any capital contribution to, or inake or permit 
to remain outstanding any loan or advance to, any Person, (herein collectively referred to as “ 1.nvestJnents ”) except that the Company or a 
Subsidiary may make or permit to remain outstanding Permitted Investments. 

Section 4. I 4  Sole-Leaseback. 

Without the written consent of the holder 01’ holders of not less than 66-2/3”/0 in principal amount of all Notes at the time outstanding, 
neither the Coimpany nor any Subsidiary will sell and lease back (whether or not under a Financing Lease) any Property. 

(a> The Coriipany will iiot perimit the present value of all employee benefits vested under all Defined Benefit Plans iiiaintained 
by the Company and its Subsidiaries, determined as of the end of any Defined Benefit Plan year, to exceed the present value of the assets 
allocable to such vested benefits as of such date of determination; 

04 All assuinptrons and methods used to detenmne the actuarial valuation of vested employee benefits under Defined Benefit 
Plans and the present value of assets of Defined Benefit Plans shall be reasonable i n  the good faith judgment of the Company and shall coinply 
mi th  all requirements of la t i ,  pio\ided , liowevei , that foi purposes of the fooregotng thc Company shall be entitled to iely u p o n  the independent 
actuaries for its Defined Benefit Plans. and 

(c) 
maintained by it to: 

The Conipany will not permit at any time, and will not perinit any Subsidiary at any  time to permit. any Perision Pla~l 

( 9  engage in any “prohibited transaction” as such term is defined in section 4975 of the Code or described ~n 
section 406 of ERISA; 

(ii) incur any “accumulated fliiiding deficiency” as such term is defined i n  section 302 of ERISA, whether or 
not waived; or 

(iii) teiiiiinate under circuiiistances which could result in the iiiiposition of a Lien on the Property of the 
Company or any Subsidiary pursuant to section 4068 of ERISA. 

Secfiou 4. I6 Use of Pi-oceenlr 

Neither the Coiiipaiiy tior any Subsidiary owns or has any present intention of acquiring any “iiiargin stock’‘ as defined in Regulation 
U (12 CFR Pal? 221) of the Board of Governoi-s of the Federal Reserve System (herein called “margin stock”). The proceeds of sale of the 
Notes will be used to refinance outstanding short-tenn debt previously used to fund capital expenditures and for general corporate purposes, 
including to flmd capital expenditures. None of such proceeds will be used, directly or indirectly, for the purpose, whether irnniediate, 



incidental or ultimate, of purchasing or cariying any margin stock or for the purpose of maintaining, reducing or retiring any 
lnclebteclriess which was originally incurred to purchase or carry any stock that is cun-ently a margin stock or for any other purpose which might 
constitute this transaction a “puipose credit” within the meaning of such Replation U. Neither the Company nor any agent acting on its behaIf 
has takcn or will t ake  any action which tiiiglit cause this Agrccment or the Notes to violate Kegulation T, Regulation U or a n y  other vegulation 
of the Hoard of Governors of the Federal Keservc Sysletii or to violate the Exchange Act, in cach case as in effect now or as the same niay 
hereafter he in cffcct. 

Section 4. I 7  Terrorism Snnc t io 17s R egiiln t iom , 

The Coiiipany will not and will not permit any Subsidiary to (a) become a Person described or designated in the Specially Designated 
Nationals and Blocked Persons List of the Office of Foreign Assets Control or in Section I of the Anti-Terrorism Order or (b) knowingly 
engage in any dealings or transactions with any such Person. 

SECTION 5 .  DEFAULT 

Section 5.1 Nature of Default. 

An “ Event of Default ” shall exist if any of the following occurs and is continuing: 

(a) Principal, Preiniuin or Interest Payments --failure to pay principal or Make Whole Amount on any Note on or before the 
date the piyment is clue, or failure to pay interest on any Note on or before the fifth day after the payment is due; 

(b) 
4.14 ,4 .15 o r 4  1 7 ,  

&each of Particular Covenants --failure to comply with any covenant contained in Sectiom4.4 through 4 d o r  Secoon 

(c> Other Breaches --failure to comply with any other provision of this Agreement, which continues for more than 30 days 
after it  first becomes known to the chief executive officer, president, chief financial officer or treasurer of the Company; 

i4 Default on Indebtedness or Other Security -- failure by the Coinpany or any Subsidiaiy to make one or more payments due 
on aggregate indebtedness exceeding $1,000,000, 01 any event, other than the givmg of a notice of voluntary prepayment, shall occur or any 
condition shall exist, the effect of which event or condrtion IS to cause (or permit one or more Persons to cause) more than $1,000,000 of 
aggregate indebtedness or other Securities of the Company or any Subsidiary to become due before its (or their) stated maturity or before its (or 
their) regularly sclieduled dates of payment; 

(e) I n v o l u . n ~ ~ r ~ . ~ . a ~ 1 L ~ ~ t ~ . y ~ ~ P r o c e e  dings-, E tc . --a custodian, receiver , li qui da tor o I- trust e e of the Camp any or any Subsidiary, 
or of any of the Property of either, is appointed or takes possession and such appointiiient or possession remains in effect for more than 60 
days; or the Coinpany or any Subsidiary generally fails to pay its debts as they become due; or the Company or any Subsidiary is adjudicated 
banknrpt or insolvent: or an order for relief is entered under the Federal Bankr~iptcy Code against the Company or any Subsidiary; 01- any ofthe 
Property of either is scqticsterecl by court order and the order remains in effect for more than 60 days; or a petition i s  filed against the Compa11y 
or any Subsidiary under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency. read-justment of debt. dissolution or liquidation law of any 
jurisdiction, tvhcther now 01’ subsequently in effect, and is not clismissecl within 60 clays after- filing; 

(f, Voluntaly Banknyt.Gy. .Proceedings, Etc. --the Company or any Subsidiary files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or 
seeking relief under any provision of any bankruptcy, i-eorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation 
law of any jurisdiction, whether now or subsequently in effect; or consents to the filing of any petition against it under any such jaw; 01- 
consents to the appointment of or taking possession by a custodian, receiver, trustee or liquidator of the Company, or a Subsidiary, or of all or 
any part of the Property of either; or makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; 

(9) Warranties or Representations --any warranty, representation or other statement by 01 on behalf of the Company contained 
in this Agreement 01 111 any document, certificate or instrument furnished 111 compliance with or 111 reference to this Agreement shall prove to 
have been false or mrsleading in any material respect on the date as of which it  was made; or 

(11 1 Undischargecl Final Judgments --a final judgment for the payment of inoiiey I S  outstanding against one or more of tlie 
Company and ~ t s  Subsidiaries and lias been outstanding for more than 60 days fiom the date of rts entry and has not been discharged in f d l  0 1  

effectively stayed 

Secfioii j 2 Default Remedies. 

(a) Acceleratjon --If an Event of Default of the type described in Sec’cjon.s %](e)  or S . l ( f )  shall occur, the, entire outstanding 



principal a m o u t  of the Notes shall autoinatically become due and payable, without the taking of any action on the part of any holder 
of the Notes or any other Person and without the giving of any notice with respect thereto. If an Event of Default of the type described in 
Section 5 . l ( a )  exists, any holder of Notes may, at its option, exercise any right, power or remedy pennitted by law, including the tight, by 
noticc to the C‘oinpany, to declare the Notes heic l  by such holder to be immccliately due and payable. If any other Event of Default exists. the 
holdci- o r  holders of a t  least 66-2/3% i n  outstanding principal amount of the Notes (exclusive of Notes ojvi-ted by the Company, Subsidiaries 
and Affiliates) inay, at its or their option. cxercise any right, power 01’ remecly pcnnitted by law, including the right, by notice to the Company, 
to declare all the outstanding Notes to be immediately due and payable. Upon each such acceleration, the principal of the Notes declared due or 
autoinatically becoming due shall be iinmediately payable, together with all accrued interest and the Make Whole Amount, if any, applicable 
thereto, and the Company will irninediately make payment, without any presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of which 
are hereby expressly waived. 

No  course of dealing or delay or failure to exercise any right on the part of any holder of the Notes shall operate as a waiver of such 
right or otherwise prejudice such holder’s rights, powers or remedies. The Company will pay or reimburse the holders of the Notes for a11 costs 
and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) incurred by them in collecting any sums due on the Notes or in otherwise enforcing any of 
their rights. 

(b) Annulment-qf Acceleration --In the event of each declaration or automatic acceleration pursuant to Section 5.2(a) , the 
holder or holders of at least 75% of the outstanding principal amount of the Notes (exclusive of Notes owned by the Company, Subsidiaries 
and Affiliates) inay annul such declaration or automatic acceleration and its consequences if no judgment or decree has been entered for the 
payiiient of any amount due pursuant to such declaration or automatic acceleration and if all s~iins payable under the Notes and under this 
Agreeiiient (except any principal or interest on the Notes which has become payable solely by reason of such declaration or automatic 
acceleration) shall have been duly paid. 

Section 5.3 0th  er- Remedies. 

If any Event of Default or Default shall occur and be continuing, the holder of any Note may proceed to protect and enforce its rights 
under this Agreement and such Note by exercising such remedies as are available to such holder in respect thereof under applicable law, either 
by suit in equity or by actioii at law, or both, whether for. specific perforinance of any covenant or other agreement contained in this Agreement 
or in aid of the exercise of any power granted in this Agreement. No remedy conferred in this Agreement upon any Purchaser or any other 
holder of any Note is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, aiid each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in 
addition to every other remedy conferred herein or now or hereafter existing at law or i n  equity or by statute or othenvise. 

SECTION 6. REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES 

The Company represents, covenants and warrants as follows: 

Section 6. I Orgmimtioi~,  Etc 

( a )  Due Organization, Foreign Qualificatlpns, Stock. Ownership The Company IS a corporation duly organized and existing in 
good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware, and is qualified to do business and is in good standing in the States of Florida and 
Maiyland. which are the only jurisdictions where the ownership by it of propci-ty 01’ the nature of the business conducted by it makes such 
qualification necessary. Each Subsidiary o.f the Company is duly orpiiized and existing i n  good standing under the 1m.s of the jurisdictions in 
w’hicli i t  is incorporated. Neither the ownership by any Subsidiary of property or the nature of the business conducted by any Subsidiary 
reciuires any Subsidiaiy to be qualified to clo business in any jurisdiction in which i t  is not already qLiallfiecl to clo business. The names of the 
SLibsicliaries of the Company and the jurisdiction of incorporation of such (i) as of the date of this Agreement are listed on Schedule 6 . l (a)  
hereto, and (ii) as of the date upon when this representation is repeated as provided in Section 1.4(d), as such Schedule may have been up.ktted 
by the deliveiy by the Company to the Purchasers of an updated version thereof on 01- before such date. 

(b) Power and Authority. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has all requisite corporate power to conduct their 
respective businesses as currently conducted aiid as currently proposed to be coiiductecl. The Company has a11 requisite corporate power to 
execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreeiiient and the Notes. The execution, deliveiy and performance of the obligations of 
the Company under this Agreement and the Notes have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on the part of the Company. The 
Coiiipany has duly executed and delivered this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid arid binding obligation of the 
Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms subject, as to enforceability, to applicable laws relating to bankiuptcy, 
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium. or other siinilar laws affecting creditor’s rights generally and subject to general principles of equity. As 
of the Closing Date, the Company sliall have duly executed and delivered the Notes being issued on such Closing Date, and such Notes shall be 
the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Coiiipany enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms subject, as to 
enforceability, to applicable laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting creditor’s 
rights generally and subject to general principles of equity. 



The Company has ,furnisliecl each Pui-chaser with the following financial stateiiients, identified by a principal f'inancial officer of thc 
c'onipaiiy: ( i )  a consolidatccl balance sheet of the Company and  its Subsicliar-ies as at Decembei. 31 in  each  of the five fiscal years of the 
Company i n a t  reccntly conipietccl prior to the date as of which this representation is macle or I-cpeatecl as provicled i n  Section 1.4(d) (othcl- than 
fiscal years completed within 90 days prior to such date for which audited financial statements have not been released) and consolidated 
statements of income, stockholders' equity and cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiaries for each such year, accoiiipanied by the opinion 
thereon of PricewaterhouseCoopers, L.L.P. (or, in the case of financial statements delivered subsequent to the date of this Agreement, 
accompanied by the opinion thereon of a registered public accounting finn of national standing); and (ii) a consolidated balance sheet of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries as at the end of each quarterly period ended after December 30, 2004 and prior to the date this representation is 
made or repeated as provided in Section 1.4(d) (other than quarterIy periods completed within 45 days prior to such date for which financial 
statements have not been released) and consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the year-to-date periods 
ended on each such date, prepared by the Company. Such financial statements (including any related schedules and/or notes) are true and 
correct in all material respects (subject, as to interim statements, to changes resulting from audits and year-end adjustments), have been 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently followed throughout the periods involved and show a11 
liabilities, direct and contingent, of the Company and its Subsidiaries required to be shown in accordance with such principles. The balance 
sheets fairly present the condition of the Company and its Subsidiaries as at the dates thereof, and the statements of income, stockholders' 
equity and cash flows fairly present the results of the operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries and their cash flows for the periods 
indicated. There has been no material adverse change in the business, condition (financial or otherwise) or operations of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries taken as a whole since December 3 1,2004. 

Section 6.3 Actioiis Per?ding. 

Except as disclosed in the Company's Form IO-K most recently filed with the Securities and Exchange Coniinission before the date of 
this Agreement or subsequent Forms 10-Q or Forms 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Cornmission before the date of this 
Agreement, there is no action, suit, investigation or proceeding pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened against the Company 
or any of its Subsidiaries. or any properties or rights of the Coinpmny or any of its Subsidiaries, by or before any court, arbitrator or  
administrative or governmenta1 body not covered by insurance which could reasonably be expected to result in any material adverse change i n  
the business, condition (financial 01- otherwise) or operations of the Conipany and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. 

Sectioiz 6.4 Ozitsfai?ding Iiidebtedness. 

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has outstanding an4 Indebtedness except as permitted by Section 4.6 There does not 
exist any default under the provisions of any instnunent evidencing such Debt or of any agreement relating thereto 

S e c t i o ~  6 5 Title to Properties 

The Company has and each of its Subsidiaries has good and  marketabic title to its respective real properties (other than  pr-operties 
which it leases) a ~ i d  good title to all of its other respective properties and assets, including the properties and assets reflected in the balance 
sheet as of Decenibcr 31, 2004 referred to i n  Section 6.2 (other than  properties and assets disposed of in the ordinary C O L I ~ S ~  of business), 
subject to no Lien of m y  kind except Liens pel-mittecl by Section 4 .8  . ,411 leases necessaiy in any niatet-la1 r-espect for tlie conduct of the 

respective businesses of tlie Company and its Subsidiaries are valid and subsisting and are in f d l  force and effect. 

Secfion 6 6 Taxes 

The Company has and each of its Subsidiaries has filed all federal, state and other income tax retums which, to the knowledge of the 
officers of the Coinpany, are required to be filed, and each has paid all taxes as shown on such returns and on all assessments received by ~t to 
the extent that such taxes have become due, except such taxes as are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedrngs for which 
adequate reserves have been established in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Secfioii 6 7 Corpjlic tirig Agreeruents nncl Other- A4atfei.s 

Neither the execution nor delivery of this Agreement or the Notes. nor the offering, issuance and sale of the Notes, nor fulfillment of 
nor coinpliance with the terms and provisions hereof and of the Notes will conflict with, or result in a breach of the terms, conditions 01. 

provisions of, or constitute a default under, or result in any violation of, or result in the creation of any Lien upon any of  the properties or assets 
of the Coinpany or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to, the charter or by-laws of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, any award of any 
arbitrator or any agreement (including any agreement with stockholders), instmment, order, judgment, decree, statute, law, rule or regulation to 
which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is subject. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to, or otherwise subject to 



any provision contained in, any instrument evidencing Indebtedness of the Company or such Subsidiary, any agreement relating 
thereto or any other contract or agreement (including its charter) which limits the ainount of, or othei-wise imposes restrictions on the incurring 
of, Debt of  the Company of the type to be evidenced by the Notes except as set forth in thc agr-eements listed in Schedule 6.7 attached hcreto. 

Neither the Coinpany nor any agent acting on its behalf has, directly or indirectly, offered the Notes or any similar security of the 
Company for sale to, or solicited any offers to buy the Notes or any similar security of the Coinpany from, or otherwise approached or 
negotiated with respect thereto with, any Person other than institutional investors, and neither the Company nor any agent acting on its behalf 
has taken or will take any action which would subject the issuance or sale of the Notes to the provisions of Section 5 of the Securities Act or to 
the provisions of any securities or Blue Sky law of any applicable jurisdiction. 

Section 6.9 ERISA. 

No accumulated funding deficiency (as defined in section 302 of ERISA and section 412 of the Code), whether or not waived, exists 
with respect to any Pension Plan (other than a Multieinployer Plan). No liability to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation has been or is 
expected by the Company or any ERISA Affiliate to be incurred with respect to any Pension Plan (other than a Multiemployer Plan) by the 
Company, any Subsidiary or any ERISA Affiliate which is or would be materially adverse to the business, condition (financial or otherwise) or 
operations of the Coinpany and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. Neither the Company, any Subsidiary nor any ERISA Affiliate has incurred 
or presently expects to incur any withdrawal liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect to any Multieinployer Plan which is or would be 
materially adverse to the business, condition (financial or otherwise) or operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. The 
execution and delivery of this Agreement and the issuance and sale of the Notes will be exempt fiom, or will not involve any transaction which 
is subject to, the prohibitions of section 406 of ERISA and will not involve any transaction in connection with which a penalty could be 
imposed under section 502(i) of ERISA or a tax could be imposed pursuant to section 4975 of the Code. The representation by the Company in 
the next preceding sentence is made in reliance upon and subject to the accuracy of each Purchaser’s representation in Section-9.5 . 

Section 6 10 Goverimzental Consent. 

Neither the nature of the Company or of a n y  Subsidiary. nor any of their respective businesses or properties, nor any relationship 
between the Company 01- any Subsidiary and any other Person, nor any circumstance in connection with the offering, issuance, sale or delivery 
of the Notes is such as to I-equire any authorization, consent, approval, exemption or other action by or notice to 01- filing with any court or 
administrative or govemmental body, including, without limitation, the Maryland State Commission, (other than routine filings after the date of 
closing with the Securities and Exchange Coiniiiission and/oi- state Blue Sky authorities, if any) in connection with the execution and delivery 
of this Agreement, the offering, issuance, sale or delivery of the Notes or firlfillment of or compliance with the ternis and provisions hereof or 
of the Notes, other than (a) Order No. 6708 of the Public Service Coininission of the State of Delaware entered in PSC Docket No, 05-290 
dated September 6, 2005, which order has been duly issued, is final and in full force and effect, no appeal, review or contest thereof is pending 
and the time for appeal or to seek review or reconsideration thereof has expired, and (b) an order of the Florida Public Service Commission. 
The Company has cleliverecl to each Purchaser true and complete copies of such order of the Publrc Service Commission of the State of 
Delaware and, prior to the Closing Date, the Company will have delivered to each Pur-chaser a true and complete copy of such ordcr of Flol-ida 
Pub 1 i c S erv i c e Coinni 1 ss ion. 

Except as disclosed i n  the Company’s Form 10-ti most recently filed with the Securities and Excliange Coinmission before the date of 
this Agreement 01- subsequent Foi-nis IO-Q or Forms 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission before the date of this 
Agreement, the Coinpanp and its Subsidiaries and all of their respective properties and facihties have complied at all times and in all respects 
with all federal, state, local and regional statutes, laws, ordinances and judicial or administrative orders, judgments, idings and regulations 
relating to protection of the environinent except, in any such case, where failure to comply would not reasonably be expected to result in a 
inaterial adverse effect on the business, Condition (financial or otherwise) or operations of the Conlpany and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. 

The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has all such valid and sufficient franchises, licenses, permits, operating rights, certificates 
of convenience and necessity, other authorizations from federal, state, regional, municipal and other local regulatory bodies or adininistrative 
agencies or other governmental bodies having jurisdiction over the Company or any of its Subsidiaries 01- any of its respective properties, 
easelllents and rights-of-way as are necessary for the ownership, operation and maintenance of its respective businesses and respective 
properties, subject to minor exceptions and deficiencies which do not rnateriaIly affect its business and operations considered as a whole or any 
inaterial part thereof, and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in violation of any thereof in any inaterial respect. 



Section 6.  I 3  Disc Ioszrr-e. 

Neither this Agreement nor any other document, certificate or statement fimiished to any Purchascr by or on behalf of the Conipany in 
connection herewith contains any untrue statement of a material fact 01- omits to state a material fact iiecessary i i i  urclei- to make the statements 
contained herein ancl therein not misleacling. There is no fact peculiar to the Company or any of i t s  Subsidiaries v - h i c h  inatei-ially adversely 
affects or i n  the future may (so fat  as the Conipany can now forcsec) materially adversely affect thc business, property or assets, or financial 
condition of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries taken as a whole and which has not been set forth in this Agreement or in the other 
documents, certificates and statements furnished to each Purchaser by or on behalf of the Company prior to the date hereof in connection with 
the transactions contemplated hereby. 

Section 6. I 4  Regtilatory Status of Company; Ti-zisf IiidentLire Act. 

The Company is not an “mvestment company” or a coinpany “controlled” by an “investment company,” within the meaning of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. The Company is riot a “holding company” or a “subsidiary company” or an “affiliate” of a 
“holding company” within the meaning of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended, or the Energy Policy Act of 2005, 
and is not a “public utility” within the meaning of the Federal Power Act, as amended. By purchasing the Notes, no Purchaser will be (a) a 
“public utility company,” a “holding company” or an “affiliate” of a “holding company” or a “subsidiary company” of a “holding company” 
within the meaning of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended, or the Energy P o k y  Act of 2005, (b) a “transmitting 
utility” or an “electric utility” within the meaning of the Federal Power Act, as amended, (c) a “public utility” or an “electric utility” under 
Delaware law, Florida law, Maryland law or the law of any other state or (d) subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, the Public Service Coni~nission of the State of Delaware, the Public Service Commission of the State of Florida or any other 
commission or person in any other state. 

Sectior7 6.15. ForeigM Assefs Conti-ol Repzilntions, Etc. 

(4 The use of the proceeds of the sale of the Notes by the Company hereunder will not violate the Trading with the Enemy 
Act, as amended, or any of the foreign assets control regulations o f  the United States Treasury Department (3 1 CFR, Subtitle B, Chapter V, as 
amended) or any enabling legislation or executive order relating thereto. 

(b) Neither. the Company nor any Subsidiary (1) is a Person described or designated in the Specially Designated Nationals and 
Blocked Persons List of the Office of Foreign Assets Control or in Section 1 of the Anti-Terrorism Order or ( i i )  to its knowledge, engages i n  
any dealings 01- transactions with any such Person. The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance, in ail inaterial respects, with the USA 
Patriot Act. 

(c) No part of the proceeds froin thc sale of the Notes hereunder will be used, directly or indirectly, for any payments to any 
govemmental official or employee, political party, official of a politica1 party, candidate fox politicd office, or anyone else acting in an official 
capacity, in order to obtain, retain or direct business or obtain any improper advantage, in violation of the United States Foreign Corrupt 
Practices ,4ct of 1977, as amended. 

No Bonds are outstanding. The First Mortgage indenture has been terminated and discharged and n o  fk-ther Bonds may be issucd 
t 11 ere u nde r . 

SECTION 7 .  INTEKPRETATION OF THIS AGREEMENT 

Section 7. I Tei-iv,c Defined 

As used in this Agreeinent (including Exhibits and Schedules), the following terms have the t-espective meaniiigs set forth below or in 

the Section indicatecl. Unless the context otheiwise requires, (a )  words denoting the singular number only shall include the plural and vice versa 
ancl (b) references to a gender shall include all genders. 

Affiliate --means a Person (other than a Subsidiary) ( I  1 which directly or indirectly controls, 01- is controlled by, or is under coininon 
control with, the Company, (2) which owns 5% or more of the Voting Stock of the Company or 13) 5% or more of the Voting Stock {or in  the 
case of a Person which IS not a corporation, 5% or more of the equity interest) of which is owned by the Company or a Subsidiary. The term 
“control” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, 
whether through the ownership of Voting Stock, by contract or otherwise. 

A_geeLnent --means this Note Agreement dated as of October 18, 2005 between the Company and each Purchaser (including Exhibits 



and Schedules), as amended or modified from t~ ine  to time. 

Annual Principal Amortization Dates --means ( i )  i f  the Closing Date is p r io~  to December 28, 2006, then the dates which arc the 5 tll 

6 tll , 7 t h  , 8 l l l  , c) Ill , 10 ‘I’ 1 I ‘I’ , 12 ‘I’ and 13 “’ aniitial aiinivcrsaiy dates of the Closing Date. 01 (11) i f  the C‘losing Date IS on 01- aftei 
December 28. 2006, then December 28, 201 1 ,  December. 75 2012,  Decembei 38, 2013, December 28,  2014, December 28, 201 5 ,  
December 28, 20 16, Dcccmbet 28, 201 7,  Dcccmbct 2s. 201 8 a i d  Deceiiibcr 28, 20 I9 

Anti+Terrorism Order --means Executive Order No. I 3,224 of September 24, 200 1 ,  Blocking Property and Prohibiting Transactions 
with Persons Who Commit, Threaten to Commit or Support Terrorism, 66 U.S. Fed. Reg. 49, 079 (2001), as amended. 

Bpnds --has the meaning that was specified in the First Mortgage Indenture. 

__ Business ~- ._ Day --means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which commercial banks in New York City are required or 
authorized to be cIosed. 

Called Principal --means, with respect to any Note, the principal of such Note that is to be prepaid pursuant to Section 2.2(‘a’-or is 
declared to be due and payable pursuant to Sestion 2.l(b) or 5.2(a) , as the context requires. 

-~ Cancellation-Date -- SectLop2A. 

Cauceljation Fee_-- Section 2.6 . 

~ Closing ~~~ Date --means (i) except as otherwise provided in clause (ii) of this definition, the Business Day prior to December 28, 2006 
specified as the “Closing Date” in a notice given to the Purchasers by the Company no less than 10 Business Days prior to and no more than 25 
Business Days prior to the date so specified in such notice as the CIosing Date, or (ii) if (a )  the Company has provided a notice of a Closing 
Date pursuant to clause ( i )  of this definition but the Company fails to tender to any Purchaser the Notes to be purchased by such Purchaser on 
such Closing Date or any of the conditions specified in Section 1.4 shall not have been fulfilled on such Closing Date, or (b) the Company has 
not provided a notice of a Closing Date pursuant to clause ( i )  of this definition prior to Noveinber 29, 2006, then December 28, 2006, or, if the 
closing of the pLu-chase and sale of the Notes is rescheduled pursuant to Section 2.4, the Rescheduled CLosing Date. The Coinyany may give 
only one notice pursuant to clause (i> of this definition and any additional notices that may be given by the Company shall be ineffective. 

Code --means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

Cgl~fild~ntht!. ~~~fmj>.aun~o,n~ --means information delivered to any Purchaser by or on behalf of the Coinpany or any Subsidiary in 
connection with the transactions contemplated by or otlienvise pursuant to this Agreement that is proprietary in nature and that was clearly 
marked or labeled or otherwise adequately identified when received by such Purchaser as being confidential information of the Company or 
such Subsidiary, provided that such term does not include information that (a) was publicly known or otherwise known to sucl-~ Purchaser prior 
to the time of such disclosure, (b) subsequently becomes publicly known through no act 01- oinission by such Purchaser or any person acting on 
such Purchaser’s behaIf, (c) otlieiwise becomes known to such Purchaser other than through disclosure by the Company 01- any  SubsicIia1-y 01. 

(a) constitutes financial statements delivered to such Purchaser under Section 3.1 that arc otherwise publicly available. 

Coinpany --Preamble. 

Consolidated Fixed Charges --for any period, means the net amount deducted, i n  cletermining Consolidated Net lncoi11e fo~.  such 
period, for interest on Indebtedness and lease rental expense of the Company and its Subsidiaries. 

Consolidated Net EaLnings Available for Fixed Charges --for any period, means Consolidated Net Income for such period plus the net 
ainount deducted in the deterinination thereof for (i) interest on Indebtedness, (ii) lease rental expense and (111) income taxes. 

Consolidated Net Income --foi any period, means the gross revenue of the Company and its Subsidiaries determined on a consoildated 
basts iniiius all proper expeiises (including m o m e  taxes) cleterimned on a consolidated basis for such period, but m any event exclucling 

( 1  ) any gain or loss on the sale of Investinents 01’ fixed assets, and any taxes on such exchided gain or loss; 

(2) any proceeds from life insurance; 

(3) any portion of the net earnings of any Subsidiary which for any reason is unavailable to pay dividends to the Company 01’ a n y  
other Subsidiary; 



any gain arising from any write-up or reappraisal of assets; 

any cleferrcd oi other crcdit r-cprcscnling the cxcess of equity of an acquired Pcrson ovcr thc ainount invested by the 
C o m p a n y  and i t s  Subsidiai ies i n  such Pcrson; 

any gain arising from the acquisition of any Securities of the Company or any Subsidiary; 

net earnings of any Person (other than a Subsidiaiy) in which the Company or any Subsidiary has an ownership interest 
unless those net earnings have actually been received by the Coinpany or the Subsidiary in the form of cash distributions or, 
to the extent of their fair market value, in the foi-m of any other freely transferable Property; and 

earnings of any Person accrued prior to the date it becomes a Subsidiary or its assets are acquired by the Company or a 
Subsidiary . 

~- Consolidated ~~~ - ~ Net Worth --means as of any date, the sum of the amounts that would be shown on a consolidated balance sheet of the 
Coinpany and its Subsidiaries at such date for (i) capital stock, (ii) capital surplus and (iii) retained eamings. 

Conn_solida&d Tangible Nej Worth --means as of any date Consolidated Net Worth at such date a inuxthe amount at which any assets 
other than Tangible Assets would be shown on a consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries at such date 

~- Consolidated ~- Total Assex--means as of any date the aggregate amount at which the assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries would 
be shown on a consolidated balance sheet at such date. 

Current Iiidebtedness --with respect to any Person, means a11 liabilities for borrowed money and all liabilities secured by any Lien 
existing on Property owned by that Person (whether or not those IiabiIities have been assumed) which, in either case, are payable on demand or 
within one year from their creation, plus the aggregate ainount of Guaranties by that Person of all such liabilities of other Persons, except: 

(1) any liabilities which are renewable or extendible at the option of the debtor to a date more than one year from the datc of 
creation thereof; and 

(2) any liabilities which, although payable within one year, constitute principal payments on indebtedness expressed to mature 
more than one year firom the date of its creation. 

Default --means an event or condition which will. with the lapse of time or the giving of notice or both, become an Event of Default. 

Defined Benefit Plan --means a plan (within the ineanrng of section 4001(a)( 15) of ERISA) that is covered by Title JV of ERISA 

Delayed Delivery Fee -- Section 2.5 . 

Discounted Value --means, with respect to the Callecl Princilml of any Note, the amount obtained by discounting all Remaining 
Scheduled Payments with t-espect to such Called Principal fi-om their respective schcdulecl duc dates to the Settlement Date with respect t o  such 
Called Principal, in accoi-dance with accepted financial practice and at a discount factor (as converted to reflect the periodic basis on which 
interest on such Note is payable, if interest is payable other than o n  a semi-annual basis) equal to the Reinvestment Yield with respect to such 
Called Principal. 

Diversification Event -- Sect1011 2 .1  (b) 

Energy Policy Act of 2005 --means the Energy Policy Act of 2005. 

ERISA --iiicans the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. as amencled. 

ERISA Affiliate -- shall mean auy corporation which is a member- of the same controlled group of corporations as the Company \\iithili 

the meaning of section 414(b) of the Code, or any trade or business which is under c o n ”  control with the Company within the mean in^ of 
section 41 4(b) of the Code. 

Event of Default -- Section-5. I 



Exchange Act --means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

Excluded Assets -- means ( i )  each of the following Subsidiaries or the assets of any of the following Subsidiaries: Sharp Water, lnc.: 
Sani Shaniiahan Well Co., lnc.: Sliai-p Watei- of Minnesota, Inc.: Shai-11 Water of Iclalio, Inc.: Brav-ePoint, Inc.; Skipjack, Inc.; Eastern Shoi-c 
Real Estate, Inc.; aQuality C‘oiii1miy, I tic.; Peninsula Pipeline Company, Inc.: Peninsula Energy Ser-vices C’oinpainy> lnc.; and OnSiglit Energy 
LLC ancl ( i i )  any Subsidiary that the Company may create or acquire after the clatc hereof which is not (x) a “public utility coinpany,’‘ a 
“holding company” or an “affiliate” of a “holding company” or a “subsidiaiy coinpany” of a “holding coinpaiiy” within the meaning of the 
Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended, or the Energy Policy Act of 2005 01- (y) a “ti-ansmitting utility” within the ineaning 
of the Federal Power Act, as amended. 

FERC --means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or a successor thereto. 

FinancinxL-gase.. --means any lease which is shown or is required to be shown in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles as a liability on a balance sheet of the lessee thereunder. 

Financing Lease ObliRatiog---means the obligation of the lessee under a Financing Lease. The ainount of a Financing Lease 
Obligation at any date is the amount at which the lessee’s liability under the Lease would be required to be shown on its balance sheet at such 
date. 

Fijst M-oytgage In?entu~-e --means the Indenhire formerly in effect dated as of December 1, 1959, between Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation and Fidelity-Baltimore National Bank, Tnistee, as amended ancl supplemented. 

Funded Indebtedness --with respect to any Person, means without duplication: 

(1 ) its liabilities for borrowed money, other than Current Indebtedness; 

(2) liabilities secured by any Lien existing on Property owned by the Person (whether or not those liabilities have been assumed); 

(3) the aggregatc amount of Guaranties by the Person, other than Guaranties which constitute Current Indebtedness; and 

(4) its Financing Lease Obligations. 

Guaranty - with respect to any Person, iiieans all guaranties of, and all other obligations which i n  effect guaranty, any indebtedness, 
dividend or other obligation of any othei Person (the “primary obligor”) m any niaiiner (except any indebtedness or other obligation of any 
Subsidiary or any Funded Indebtedness of the Company), lncludiiig obligations incurred thI ough an agreement, contingent or otherwise, by 
such Person. 

( 1  ) IO p rchase  such indebtedness or obligation 01- any Pi-oper-ty constituting secui-ity therefor: 

(2) to advance or supply f h d s  

(A)  for  the purchase or payment of such indebtedness or obligation, or 

(B) to maintain working capital or any balance sheet or income statement condition; 

(C) to lease Property, or to purchase Securities or other Propei-t~7 or services, primarily for- the purpose of assuring the 
owner of such indebtedness 01- obligation of tlie ability of the primary oblisor to make payment of the indebtedness 
or obligation; or 

(D) otherwise to assure the owner of such indebtedness or obligation, or tlie primary obligor, against loss: 

but excluding endorsements in the ordinaiy course of business of negotiable instmnients for deposit or collection. 

The amount of any Guaranty shall be deemed to be the inaxmuin amount for which such Person may be liable, upon the occurrence of 
any contiiigeiicy or otheiwise, under or by virtue of the Guaranty. 

Hedge Treasi1i-y Notejs) --means, with respect to any Note, the United States Treasury Note or Notes whose duration (as determined 



by Prudential) most closely matches the duration of such Note. 

In d e b te d 11 e s s -- me an s C ti 1-rei1 t Indebtedness a ti d F~iii de d I n  deb te d t i  e ss 

Institrttional Holdei. --incans a “qualified institutional buyer” as clcfinecl in Regulation 230.144A issued pursuant to the Securities Act 
of 1933> as amcndecl. 

Investments -- S e c t i o n a 3  . 

Lien --means any interest iii Property securing an obligation owed to, or a chiin by, a Person other than the owner of the Property, 
whether the interest is based on common law, statute or contract (including the security interest lien arising froin a mortgage, encumbrance, 
pledge, conditional sale or trust receipt or a lease, consignment 01- bailment for security purposes). The term “Lien” shall not include minor 
reservations, exceptions, encroachments, easements, rights-of-way, covenants, conditions, restrictions and other minor title exceptions affecting 
Property, provided that they do not constitute security for a monetary obligation. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Company or a 
Subsidiary shall be deemed to be the owner of any Property which it has acquired or holds subject to a Financing Lease or a conditional sale 
agreement or other arrangement pursuant to which title to the Property has been retained by or vested in some other Person for security 
purposes, and such retention or vesting shall be deemed to be a Lien. 

Make Whole Ainougt --means, with respect to any Note, an amount equal to the excess, if any, of the Discounted Value of the Called 
Principal of such Note over the sum of (i) such Called Principal plus (ii) interest accrued thereon as of (including interest due on) the 
Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal. The Make Whole Amount shall In no event be less than zero. 

Mahinty p a t e  --means (i) if the Closing Date is prior to December 28, 2006, then the date which is the 14 t” annual anniversary date of 
the Closing Date, or (ii) if the Closing Date is on or after December 28, 2006, then December 28, 2020. 

Notes -- Se_c_tion 1,l . 

Pension Plan --means any “einploycc pencroii benefit plan” ( a 7  Such term is definer1 in Section 3 of E R I S A )  maintained by thc 
Company and Its Related Persons, or in which eniployees of the Coinpany or any Related Peison are entitled to participate, as from tiine to 
time in effect 

Permitted investments --means: 

(1)  Investments in any Person outstanding on the date hereof, which are set forth in Schedule 7.1 hercto; 

(2) Investments in any Person which is or would iinmediately thereafter become a Subsidiary or a division of the Company or a 
Subsidiary. whether by acquisition of stock, indebtedness, other obIigation or Security, or by loan, Guaranty, advance, caliital 
contribution, or otherwisc; 

( 3  j Investments in cash equivalent short-tenn investments maturing within one yea1 of acquisition; 

(4) Investments in  mutxal fLinds which invest only i n  either nmney market securities or direct obligations of thc Unitecl States of 
America 01’ any of its agencies, or obligations fiilly guaranteed by the United States of America, which mature within three 
years from the date acquired; 

( 5 )  Investinents in related industries; 

(6) Direct obligations of the United States of Ainerica or any of its agencies, or obligations fully guaranteed by the United States 
o f  America, pro.vided that such obligations maisire within otie year froiii the ifate acquired; 

( 7 )  Negotiable certificates of deposit maturing within one year from the date acquired and issued by a bank or tmst company 
organized under the laws of the United States or any of its states, and having capital, S L I I - ~ ~ U S  and undivided profits 
aggregating at least $100,000,000; 

(8) coniinercial paper rated A-1 01- better by Standard & Poor’s Corporation on the date of acquisition and maturing not inore 
than 270 days from the date of creation thereof; and 

(9) other investments in an aggregate amount not in excess of 20% of Consolidated Net Worth at any one time. 



P e rs o 11 -- ni cans an i n cli v 1 du a 1, part ti ers h i p , c o rp ora t i o ti, 1 i in it ed I i a b i 1 i t y c o nip an y , t i u  s t or un in corpo ra t e d organ I zat i o n , an cl a 
government or a governmental agency or political subdivision. 

Prcpayi icn t  Date -- Seclion ?.2(b) 

Process Agent -- Section 7.4 . 

Property --means any interest in any kind of property or asset, whether real, personal or mixed, or tangible or intangible. 

Prudential --means Prudential Investinent Management, Inc. 

Purchasg --Preamble. 

Purchase Money Indebtedness --means Indebtedness of the Coinpany which is secured by a Lien on Property of the Company which 
either existed at the time of the original acquisition of the Property by the Company or was granted or retained rn connection with the 
acquisition or iinproveinent of the Property by the Company in order to facilitate the financing of such acquisition or improvement. 

Quarterly Igtetest Payment Dale --means (i) if the Closing Date is prior to December 28, 2006, then each date which is a numerically 
corresponding date of the Closing Date in each 3 I d  month anniversary of the Closing Date in each year (provided that if there IS no such 
numerically corresponding date in any such 3 rd month, then the last date of such 3 rcl month), or (ii) if the Closing Date is on or after December 
28, 2006, then each March 28, June 28, September 28 and Decembel 28 in each year. 

Reinvestment Yield --means, with respect to the Called Principal of any Note, 0.50% over the yield to mahirity implied by (i) the 
yields reported as of 10 :OO a.m. (New York City local time) on the Business Day next preceding the Settlemelit Date with respect to such 
Called Principal for actively traded U.S. Treasury securities having a mahirity equal to the Remaining Average Life of such Called Principal as 
of such Settlement Date on the display designated as "Page PX1" on the Bloomberg Financial Services Screen (or such other display as may 
replace Page PX1 on the Bloomberg Financial Services Screen or, if Bloomberg Financial Services shall cease to report such yields 01' shall 
cease to be the customary source of information for calculating make-whole amounts on privately placed notes, then such source as is then the 
custoniary source of such information), or if such yields shall not be reported as of such time or the yields reported as of such time shall not be 
ascertainable, ( i i )  the Treasury Constant Maturity Series yields reported, for the latest clay for which such yields shall have been so reported as 
of the Business Day next preceding the Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal, in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H. 15 (519) 
(or any cornparable successor publication) for actively traded U. S. Treasury securities having a constant maturity equal to the Remaining 
Average Life of such Called Principal as of such Settlement Date. Such implied yield shall be determined, if necessary, by (a) converting US. 
Ti-eas~iry bill quotations to bond equivalent yields in accordance with accepted financial practice and (b) interpolating linearly between yields 
reported for various niahirities. The Reinvestment Yield shall be rounded to that number of decimal places as appears in the coupon of the 
appI icable Note. 

Related Person --means any Person {whcther or not Incoi-poratecl) ~ l i i c h  IS Ltnder common control ith thc Company within the 
meaning of section 414(c) of the Internal Iicvenue Code of 1986, as amended, or of scction 4001 (b) of  ERISA. 

Remaining Average Life --means, wi th  respect to the Called Principal of any Note, the number of years (calcrrlated to the nearest one- 
twelfth year) obtained by dividing (I )  such Called Principal into ( i i )  the sum of the products obtained by inultipiying (a) each Remaining 
Scheduled Payment of such Called Principal (but not of interest thereon) by (b) the numbei- of years (calculated to the nearest one-twelfth year) 
which will elapse between the Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal and the sclied~iled due date of such Remaining Scheduled 
P ay iii en t . 

Remaining Scheduled Payments --means, with respect to the Called P rmc ip l  of any Note, all paynients of such Called Principal and 
interest thereon that would be due on oi aftei the Settlement Date with respect to such Called Principal if no payment of such Called Principal 
we1 e inade pi io1 to its scheduled due clate 

Required Payment Date -- Section 2 1 jb) 

Rescheduled Closing Date -- Section 2.4 . 

Restricted Payments -- Section 4 9 



Secjirity --shall have the same meaning as in Section 2(1) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

Settlement Date --~neans,  with respect to the Called Principal of any Note, the date on which such Called Principal is to be prepaicl 
pursuant to Section ? . ? (a )  01' is cleclai-erl to be due and payable put-sttanr to Section 2.1 ( b )  oI 5.2(a) , as the context I-equir-es. 

Source -- Sectioii 9.5 

State Conlmissions --means the Delaware, Florida and Maryland public utilities C O I ~ M I S S I O ~ S  or other bodies which reguIate the t ates 
of the Company 01' its Subsidiaries as a natura1 gas distribution conipany 01 otherwise 

Subsidiary_ --means any corporation organized under the laws of any State of the United States of America, which conducts the major 
portion of its business in and makes the major portion of its sales to Persons located in the United States of America, and not less than 80% of 
the total combined voting power of all classes of Voting Stock, and 80% of all other equity securities, of which shall, at the time as of which 
any determination is being made, be owned by the Company either directly or through Subsidiaries. 

subsidiary Stock -- Section 4.10 . 

Tangible Assets --means all assets except: 

(1) deferred assets, other than prepaid insurance and prepaid taxes; 

(2) patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade names, franchises, good will, experimental expense and other siinilar intangibles; 

(3) treasury stock; 

(4) unamortized debt discount and expense; and 

(5) assets located and notes and receivables due from obligors domiciled outside the United States of America or Canada 

Total Capitalizatioii --means at any date, the aggregate amount at that date, as determined on a consolidated basis, of the Funcled 
Indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries, plus Consolidated Net Worth. 

USA Patjot  Act --means United States Public Law 107-56, Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools 
Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism (USA PATRIOT ACT) Act of 2001, as amended from time to time, and the niles and regulations 
promulgated thereunder fi-om time to time in effect. 

Voting Stock --means Securities, the holders of which are ordinarily. in the absence of contingenc~es, entitled to elect the corporate 
d 1 re  c t or s (or P ers oils 13 e r fomi I 11 g s 1 111 1 I at' fii t i  c t I ons ) 

Wholly-Owned Subsidiary --means any Subsidiary whose financial results are consolidated with the financial results of the Coinpny,  
and all of the equity Securities of which (except director's qualifying shares) are owiiccl by the Company and/oi- onc or inore Wholly-Owncd 
Subsidiaries of the Company. 

The character or amount of any asset or liability or item of income or expense required to be determined under this Agreement and 
each consolidation or other accounting computation required to be made under this Agreement, shaI1 be determined 01- made in accordance wit11 
gellerally accepted accounting principles at the time in effect, to the extent applicable, except where such principles are inconsistent with tile 
requirements of this Agreement. 

Where any provision 111 this Agreement refers to any action which any Pel-son is prohibited from taking, the provision shall be 
applicable whether the action is taken directly or indirectly by such Person, including actions taken by, or on behalf of, any partnership in 
which such Person is a genera1 partner and all liabilities of such partnerships shall be considered liabilities of such Person under this 
Agreement. 



This Agreement shall be construed and cnforced in accordance with, and the rights of the parties shall be governed by, the law of the 
State of New York. The Conipany irrevocably agrees that any legal action or proccecling with respect to this Agreement or the Notes may be 
brought in the courts of the State of New York or a n y  court of the United States of Amcrica located in  the State of New York, ancl ,  by 
execution a i d  clcli\,ct-y of this Agreement, the Company accepts for itself, generally and unconclitionally, and  agrees to submit to the 
jurisdiction of each of thc above-mentioned courts and irrcvncably waives, to the fullest extcnt permitted by law, any objection which it niay 
now 01- later have based on venue or.fol-zm;l 17077 ~ m i w i i e ~ ~  with respect to any action instituted therein. The Company hereby irrevocably 
appoints Corporation Service Company (the “ Process Agent ”), with an office on the date hereof at 80 State Street, 6th Floor, Albany, New 
York 12207-2543, United States, as its agent to receive, on the Company’s behalf and on behalf of the Company’s property, service of copies 
of the summons and complaint and aiiy other process which inay be served in any such action or proceeding. Such service may be made by 
mailing or delivering a copy of such process to the Company in care of the Process Agent at the Process Agent’s above address, and the 
Company hereby irrevocably authorizes and directs the Process Agent to accept such service on its behalf. 

SECTION 8. PURCHASERS’ SPECIAL RIGHTS 

Section 8.1 Nute Payment. 

The Company agrees that, so long as any Purchaser shall hold any Note, it will make payments of principal of, interest on and aiiy 
Make Whole Amount payable with respect to such Note, which coinply with the terms of this Agreement, by wire transfer of immediately 
available funds for credit (not later than 12:OO noon, New York City time, on the date due) to the account or accounts as specified in the 
Purchaser Schedule attached hereto ox such other account or accounts in the United States as any Purchaser may designate in writing, 
notwithstanding any contrary provision herein or in any Note with respect to the place of  payment. Each Purchaser agrees that, before 
disposing of any Note, such Purchaser will make a notation thereon (or on a schedule attached thereto) of all principal payments previously 
made thereon and of the date to which interest thereon has been paid. The Company agrees to afford the benefits of this paragraph 8 ,  I to any 
transferee of any Note which shall have iriade the same agreement as made in this paragraph 8.1.  

Secf ion 8.2 Isme Taxes. 

The Company will pay all issuance, stamp and similal- taxes in connection with the issuance and sale of the Nates to the Purchasers 
and in connection with any modification of the Notes and will save each Purchaser harmless against any and all liabilities relating to such taxes. 
The obligations of the Company under this Sectlpii. 8.2 shall survive the payment of the Notes and the termination of this Agreement. 

The Coinpany will cause to be kept a register for the registration and transfer of the Notes. The names and addresses of the holders of 
the Notes, and all transfers of and the names and addresses of the transferees of any of the Notes, will be registered in the register. The Person 
in whose name any Note is registel-ed shall be deemed and treated as the owner thereof for all purposes of this Agreement, and the Coinpanp 
shall not be affected by any notice or ltnowleclge to the contrary. 

Sectiori 8 4 Evchniige ?{Notes. 

Upon surrender of any Note to the Company, the Company. upon request, will execute ancl deliver at its expense (except as providec1 
below), new Notes, i n  denominations of at least $1,000,000 (or, if less, the outstanding principal amount of the surrendered Note), i n  an 
aggregate principal amount equal to the outst~~ncling principal amount of the surrenclered Note. Each new Note (,a) shall be payabie to any 
Person as the surrendering holder inay request and (b) shall be dated and bear interest from the date to which interest has been paid on the 
surrendered Note or dated the date of the surrendered Note if no interest has been paid thereon. The Company niay require payment of a sum 
sufficient to cover any stamp tax or governmental charge imposed in respect of any transfer. 

Upon ieceipt by the Coiiipaiiy of evidence reasonably satisfactoiy to it ( provided that If the holdel of the Note is an Institutional 
Holcler, its own certification sliall be cleeinecl to be satisfactoty evidence) of the ownership of and the loss, theft, clestmction or lnutilation of 
any Note and 

(4 in the case of loss, theft or destmction, of indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it ( provided. that if the holder of the Note is 
an Instihitional Holcler. its own agreement of indemnity shall be deemed to be satisfactory), or 

(b) in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of the Note, 



the Company at its expense will execute and deliver a new Note, dated and bearing interest from the date to which interest has been paid on the 
lost, stolen, destroyed or niutilated Note or dated the date of the lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Note if no interest has been paid thereon. 

SECTION 9 .  MISCELLANEOUS 

(4 All notices, requests, demands or other coininunications under this Agreement or under the Notes will be in writing and 
will be given by telecopy, telex, first class registered or certified inail (postage prepaid) or personal delivery: 

(i> if to Prudential or any holder of any Note, in the manner provided in the Purchaser Schedule or in any 
other manner as Prudential or such holder may have most recently advised the Company in writing, or 

(ii) if to the Company, at its address shown at the beginning of this Agreement, or at any other address as it 
may have most recently furnished in writing to Prudential and each Purchaser and to all other holders of the Notes. 

(b) Notice shall be deemed to be given upon the receipt thereof at the notice address specified. 

SectioiT 9.2 Pay men fs Due on No n- Bus iness Days 

Anything in this Agreement or the Note to the contrary notwithstanding, any payment of principal of or interest on any Note that is 
due on a date other than a Business Day shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day. 

Section 9.3 Reproduction of Dociirnents 

This Agreement and all related docuiiients, including (a> consents, waivers and modifications which may subsequently be executed, 
(b) documents received by each Purchaser at the closing of each Purchaser’s purchase of the Notes (except the Notes themselves), and (cj  
financial statements, certificates and other information previously or subsequently fiimished to any Purchaser, may be I-epi-oducecl by any 
Purchaser by any photographic, photostatic, inicrofilm, micro-card, miniature photographic or other similar process and any Purchaser ]nay 
destroy any oi-iginal document so reproduced. The Coiiipaiiy agrees and stipulates that any such reproduction shall, to the extent permitted by 
applicable law, be admissible in evidence as the origiiial itself iii any judicial or administrative proceeding (whether or not the original is in 
existence and whether or not the reproduction was made by any Purchaser in the regular course of business) and that any enlargeinent, 
facsimile or fLirther reproduction of the reproductioii shall likewise be admissible in evidence. 

Each Pu~-chaser represents to the Company that sucli Purchaser (i) is a “qualified institutional buyer” as defined by Rule 144A and (ii) 
is purchasing the Notes for its owti account for iiivestment or foi- resale under Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as aiiiendecl, and 
with no present intention of distributing or  ireselling a n y  of the Notes, but without prejudice to such Purchaser’s right at all times til sell or 
otherwise dispose of all 01’ part of the Notes under an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as aniendecll or under a 
reg is trat i on ex e in12 t i on a v a i I ab 1 e under that Act . 

Each Purchaser represents to the Coinpany that at least one of the following statements is an accurate representatlon as to each sollrcc 
of funds (a “ Source ”) to be used by such Purchaser to pay the purchase price of the Notes to be purchased by it hereunder: 

(a> the Source is an “insurance company general account” (as that term is defined in the United States 
Department of Labor’s Prohibited Transaction Exemption ( “PTE” ) 95-60) In respect of which the reserves and liabilities 
(as defined by the annual statement For- life insurance companies approved by the National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners (the “NAlC Annual Statement” )) for the general account contract(s) held by or on behalf of any employee 
benefit plan together with the amourit of the reserves and liabilities for the general account contract(s) held by or 011 behalf of 
any other employee benefit plans maintained by the same employer (or affiliate thereof as defined in PTE 95-60) ot- by the 
same employee organization in the general account do not exceed 10% of the total reserves and Iiabiiities of the general 
account (exclusive of separate account Iiabilities) plus S U ~ ~ ~ U S  as set forth in the NAIC Anii~ial Statement filed with such 
Purchaser’s state of domicile; or 

(b) the Source is a separate account that is inaintained solely in connection with such Purchaser‘s fixed 
contractual obligations undel- which the amounts payable, or credited, to any employee benefit plan (or its related trust) that 



has any interest in such separate account (or to any participant or beneficiary of such pian (including any annuitant)) 
are not affected in any manner by the investment perforiiiance of the separate account: 0 1  

( c) tlic Source is either ( 1 )  an tiisui-ance company pooled separate account, within lhe meaning of PTE 90- I ,  
or ( i i )  a bank collectivc investment fund within tlie meaning of the PTE 91 -38 and, cscept as disclosed by sLicIi Purchaser to 
the Coi-npany in the writing most 1-ecently delivered pursuant to this clause (c )  befoi-o the date the Company’s represcntation 
in Section 6.9 is being macle or repeated, no employee benefit pian or group of pIans maintained by the same eiiiployer or 
employee organization beneficially owns more than 10% of all assets allocated to such pooled separate account or collective 
investment hind; or 

(d) the Source constitutes assets of an “investment fund” (within the meaning of Part V of PTE 84-14 (the 
“QPAM Exemption” >) managed by a “qualified professional asset manager” or “QPAM” (within the meaning of Part V of 
the QPAM Exemption), no employee benefit plan’s assets that are included in such investment fund, when combined with the 
assets of all other employee benefit plans established or maintained by the same employer or by an affiliate (within the 
meaning of Section V(c)(l) of the QPAM Exemption) of such employer or by the same employee organization and managed 
by such QPAM, exceed 20% of the total client assets inanaged by such QPAM, the conditions of Part I(c) and (g) of the 
QPAM Exemption are satisfied, neither the QPAM nor a person controlling or controlled by the QPAM (applying the 
definition of “control” in Section V(e) of the QPAM Exemption) owns a 5% or more interest in the Company and ( j )  the 
identity of such QPAM and (ii) the names of all employee benefit plans whose assets are included in such investment find 
have been disclosed to the Company in writing pursuant to this clause (d); or 

(e )  the Source constitutes assets of a “plan(s)” (within the meaning of Section 117 of PTE 96-23 (the 
“INHAM Exemption” )) inanaged by an “in-house asset manager” or “INHAM” (within the meaning of Part IV of the 
INHAM Exemption), the conditions of Part I(a), (g) and (h) of the INHAM Exeinption are satisfied, neither the INHAM 1101’ 
a person controlling or controller1 by the INHAM (applying the definition of “control” in Section IV(h) of the INHAM 
Exemption) owiis a 5% or more interest in the Company and (i) the identity of such INHAM and (ii) tlie naine(s) of the 
employee benefit planjs) whose assets constitute the Source have been disclosed to the Company in writing pursuant to this 
clause (e); or 

(9 the Source is a governmental plan; or 

(8) the Source is one or more employee benefit pians, or a separate account or trust fLmd coinprised of one or 
more empIoyee benefit plans. each of which has been identified to the Coiiipany in writing pursuant to this clause (g); or 

(h? 
coverage of ERISA. 

the Source does not include assets of any employee benefit plan, other than a plan exempt from the 

As used in this SectLon 9.5, the terms “employee benefit plan” , “governmental plan” . and “separate account” shall have the respective 
meanings assigned to such tcniis i n  Section 3 of ERISA 

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successoi-s and assigns of each of the parties except that each 
Purchaser’s obligations to purchase the Notes (as  provided in Section 1.2 ’) shall be a right which is personal to the Company and such right 
shall not be tl-ansfel-able or assignable by the Company to any other Person (including successors at law) whether voluntarily or involuntarily. 
The provisions of this Agreeiiient are intended to be for the benefit of all holders, from t h e  to time, of the Notes, and shall be enforceable by 
any holder, whether or not an express assignment of rights under this Agreement has been made by any Purchaser or any Purchaser’s successor 
or assign. 

(a> Amendment arid Waiver This Agreement may be amended, and the observance of any term of this Agreement may be 
waived, with (and only with) the written consent of the Cornpany and the holders of at least 66-2/3% of the outstanding principal amount of the 
Notes (exclusive of Notes then owned by the Coinpany, Subsidiaiies and Affiliates), provided that no amendment or waiver of any of the 
provisions of Sections 1 , 6 and 8 shall be effective as to any holder of the Notes unless consented to by such holder in writing, and provided 
ftnther , that no ainendinent or waiver shall, without the written consent of the holders of all the outstanding Notes, ( 1  ) subject to Section 5 2 
(b) , change the amount or time of any prepayment, payment of principal or premiuin or the rate or time of payment of interest, (2) amend 
Section 5 , or (3) amend thIs Section 9.7(a) Executed or complete and correct copies of any amendment or waiver effected pursuant to the 
provisions of this Section 9.7(a) shall be delivered by the Company to each holder of outstanding Notes promptly following the date on which 



the same shall become effective 

(b) Acquis.ition of Notes , The Company will not. and will cause each Subsidiary and, insofar as it i s  with in  its powei- to do so, 
each Affiliate not to, directly 01- inclircctlq, acquire OL' make any offer to acquire any Notes unless the Company or such Subsidiary 01- Affiliate 
shall contempol-aneously offer- to acq~ i r - e  Notes, pro rata ,  fi.oni all holders of the Notes and upon the same terms. Any Notes acquired by the 
Company, any Subsidiary 01- any Affiliate sliall riot be considered outstanding for a n y  purpose under this Agreement. 

Two or more duplicate originals of this Agreement inay be signed by the parties, each of which shall be an original but all of which 
together shall constihlte one and the same insti-~iment. 

Section 9.9 Confider? tial h fonna fiorz. 

Each Purchaser shall maintain the confidentiality of such Confidential Inforination in accordance with procedures adopted by such 
Purchaser in good faith to protect confidential inforination of third parties delivered to such Purchaser, provided that such Purchaser may 
deliver or disclose Confidential Information to (a) its directors, officers, employees, agents, attorneys and affiliates (to the extent such 
disclosure reasonably relates to the adininistration of the investment represented by its Notes), (b) its financial advisors and other professional 
advisors who agree to hold confidential the Confidential Information substantially in accordance with the t e r m  of this Section 9.9, (c) any 
other holder of any Note, (d) any Institutional Holder to which it sells or offers to sell such Note or any part thereof or any participation therein 
(if such Person has agreed in writing prior to its receipt of such Confidential Information to be bound by the provisions of this Section 9.9), (e) 
any Person froin which it offers to purchase any security of the Company (if such Person has agreed in writing prior to its receipt of such 
Confidential Information to be bound by the provisions of this Section 9.9), (f) any federal or state regulatory authority having jurisdiction over 
such Purchaser, (g) the National Association of lnsurance Commissioners or the Securities Valuation Office of the National Association of 
Insurance Coinmissioners (or any successor to such Office) or, in each case, any similar organization, or any nationally recognized rating 
agency that requires access to information about such Purchaser's investment portfolio, or (h) any other Person to which such delivery or 
disclosure may be necessary or appropriate (w) to effect compliance with any law, rule, regulation or order applicable to such Purchaser, (x) in 
response to any subpoena or other legal process, (y) in connection with any litigation to which such Purchaser i s  a party or ( 2 )  if an Eveiit of 
Default has occun-ed and is continuing, to the extent such Purchaser may reasonably determine such deliveiy and disclosure to be necessary OJ- 

appropriate in the enforcement or for the protection of the rights and remedies under such Purchaser's Notes and this Agreement. Each holder 
of a Note, by its acceptance of a Note, will be deemed to have agreed to be bound by and to be entitled to the benefits of this Section 9.9 as 
though it were a party to this Agreement. On reasonable request by the Company in connection with the deliveiy to any holder of a Note of 
information required to be delivered to such holder under- this Agreement or requested by such holder (other than a holder that is a party to this 
Agreement or its nominee), such holder will enter into an agreement with the Coinpany einbodying the provisions of this Section 9.9. 

[ S i gnahires F o 11 ow] 



If this Agizeinent is satisfactoiy to each Purchasei-, please so indicate by signing the acceptance at the foot of a countei-part of this 
Agreement and return ;I cnuntci-part to t h e  Company, whereupon this Agccmen t  will become binding between lis i n  accot-daiicc ivltll Its tcrms 

Vcr-y truly yours. 

CHESAPEAKE UTlLITlES CORPORATION 

By : 

Name : 

Title: 

Accepted: 

THE PRUDENTIAL INSURANCE COMPANY 

OF AMERICA 

By:  

V ice Pres i de 11 t 

P K I1 D E N T  I AL RET I R E n/l EN T I h’ S U RAN C E 

AND ANNUITY COMPANY 

By : Prudential I iivestiiieti t Management, lnc.. 

as investineiit manager 



By : 

Vice PI-esiclent 



UNITED OF O M A H A  LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

By: 

By : 

By : 

P rucl en t i a 1 P r i v a te P 1 acein en t 1 iiv e s to I-s, L . P 

(as Investment Advisor) 

Prudential Private Placement Investors, Inc. 

(as its General Partner) 

Vice President 



P U RC I-I ASE R SC H E DU LE 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

5.50% Senior Notes 

Aggregate 
Principal 

Amount of Notes 
to be Purchased 

Note 
Denomination(s) 

AMERICA 50,000 

Account No.: P86188 (please do not include spaces) (in the case ofpayments 
on a ote origi e principal amount of 
$6,0 

spaces) (in the case of payments 
e principal amount o f  

JPMorgan Chase Bank 
New York, NY 
ABA NO.: 021-000-02 1 

Each sucli wire transfer shall set forth the name of the Company, a reference to 
"5.50% Senior Notes, Security 

(2) Address for all notices relating to payments: 

The Prudential lnsuraiice Company of America 
c/o Investment Operations Group 
Gateway Center Two, 10th Floor 
100 Mulberry Street 
Newark. N J  07102-4077 

Attention: Manager, Billings and Collections 

( 3 )  Address for all other coniiiiunications and notices: 

The Prudential Insurance Company of America 
c/o Prudential Capital Group 
2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 4200E 
Dallas. TX 75201 

Attention: Managing Director 

(4) Recipient of telephonic prepayment notices: 



Manager, Trade Management Group 

Telephone. (973) 367-3141 
Facs in1 I I c ( 8 00) 2 2 4-22 7 8 

(5)  Addi-ess foi- Delivery of Notes: 

Send physical security by nationwide ovenlight. delivery service to: 

Prudential Capital Group 
2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 4200E 
Dallas, TX 75201 

Attention: Thomas P. Donahue 
Telephone: (2 14) 720-6202 

Tax Identification No.: 22-121 1670 (6) 



PRUDENTIAL RETIREMENT INSURANCE AND 
ANNUITY COMPANY 

All payments on account of Notes held by such purchaser shall be made by 
wire transfer of immediately available finds for credit to: 

Aggregate 
Principal 

Amount of Notes 
to be Purchased 

Note 
Denomination(s) 

Company, a reference to 

e-Whole Amount) of the 
" and the due date 

and application (as among 
ent being made. 

Address for all notices relating to payments: 

irement Insurance and Annuity Coinpany 
Investment Management, Inc. 

Private Placement Trade Management 
PRlAC Adininistration 
Gateway Center FOW, 7th Floor 
100 Mulberry Street 
Newark, NJ 071 02 

Telephone: (973) 802-8 107 
FacsiiniIe: (800) 224-2278 

Acldress for all other coiiiniunications and notices: 

Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company 
c/o Prudential Capital Group 
2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 4200E 
Dallas. TX 75201 

Attention: Managing Director 

Address for Delivery of Notes: 

Send physical security by nationwide overnight delivery service to: 

Prudential Capital Group 
2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 4200E 
Dallas, TX 75201 

Attention: Thomas P. Donahue 
Telephone: (214) 720-6202 

Tax Ideiitification No.: 06-1 050034 

$4,000,000 $4,000,000 





Aggregate 
Pi-i n cipa I 

Amount of Notes 
to be Purchased 

Note 
De 11 o mi n at i o 11 (s) 

UNITED OF OMAHA LlFE lNSURANCE COMPANY $3,550,000 $3,550,000 

All principal, interest and Make-Whole Amount payments on account of Notes 
held by such purchaser shall be made by w 
available funds for credit to: 

transfer of immediately 

principal, interest and Mak 

All payments, other than 
account of Notes heId b 
iimnediately available funds for credit to: 

ade by wire transfer o 

JPMorgan Chase Bank 

Account No. GO9588 
Account Name: United of Omaha Life Insurance Co. 

ABA NO. 021 -000-02 I 

Each such wire transfer shall set forth t 
“5.50% Senior Notes, PPN -’’ and th 
fee) of the payment being made. 

name of the Company, a 
ue date and application (e 

Address for all notices relating to payments: 

JPMorgan Chase Bank 
14201 Dallas Parkway - 13th Floor 
Dallas, TX 75254-291 7 

Attn: Income Processing - G. Ruiz 
aic: GO9588 

Address for all other coimnunications and notices: 

Prudential Private Placement Investors, L.P. 
Gateway Center 3, 18th Floor 
100 Mulberry Street 
Newark, NJ 07 I02 

Attention: Albert Trank, Managing Director 
Telephone: (973) 802-8608 
F acsiiiii le : (9 7 3 ) 3 6 7 - 3 2 34 



( 5 )  Address for Delivery of Notes: 

(a) Send physical security by nationwide ow-night delivety service to: 

JPMorgan Chase Bank 

Newark, NJ 07 102 

Attention: Trade Management, Manager 
Telephone: (973) 367-31 41 

(6) Tax Identification No.: 47-03221 11 



EXHIBIT A 

IFORM OF NOTE] 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

5.50% Senior Note due [Insert the Maturity Date] 

No. R- PPN 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), for value received, hereby 
Dollars ($ on [Insert the promises to pay to 

Maturity Date]; and to pay interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) on the unpaid principal balance hereof 

[Insert Quarterly Interest Payment Dates] in each year, commencing on the first such date after tlie date hereof, until the principal amoullt 
hereof shall become due and payable; and to pay on deimand interest on any overdue principal (iiicluding any overdue prepayiiient of principal) 
and premium, if any, and  (to tlie extent permitted by applicable taw) on any overdue payment of interest, at a rate per a n ~ i u m  from time to tiiiie 
equal to tlie greater of ( i )  7.50% or ( i i )  the rate of interest publicly atinouriced by JPMorgaii Chase Bank, 01- its successor, from time to tiille in 

New York City as its Prime Rate. 

or registered assigns the principal slim of 

from the date of this Note at the rate of 5.50% per annum, quarterly on the ~ day of 5 and 

Subject to Section 8.1 of the Note Agreement referred to below, payments of principal, premium, if any. and interest shall be 
made in such coin or currency of the United States of America as at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of p b I i c  and private 
debts by check mailed and addressed to the registered holder hereof at the address shown in the register maintained by the Company for such 
purpose, or, at the option of the holder hereof, in such manner and at such other place in the United States of America as the holder hereof sl~al]  
have designated to the Company in writing. 

This Note is one of an issue of Notes of the C‘ompany issued in an aggregate principal amount Iimitecl to $20,000.000 
pursuant to the Company’s Note Agreement dated as o-f October 18, 2005 between the Company and the respective Purchasers rlamed tlierci11 
and is entitled to tlie benefits thereof. As provided in  such Agreement, this Note is subject to prepayment, i n  whole 01- in part, with a premiun? 
as specified in said Agreement. The Company agrees to make required payments on account of said Notes in accorciance with the provisions of 
said Agree 111 ent. 

This Note is a registered Note and is transfei-able only by sun-ender hereof at the principal office of  the Company in Dover, 
Delaware, duly endorsed or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer duly executed by the registered holdel- of this Note or his attoi-ney 
duly authorized in writing. 

Under certain circumstances, as specified i n  said Agreement, the principal of this Note may be declared due and payable in 
the mannei’ and with tlie effect provided in said Agreement. 

This Note and said Agreement are governed by and construed in accordance with Ne\?: York law. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 



(CORPORATE SEAL)  

Name: 

Title: 

By: 



EXHIBIT E-l  

ICOVINGTON & EWRLINGI 

[Closing Date] 

[Purchasers] 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as special counsel for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), in 
connection with the Note Agreement, dated as of October 18, 2005, between the Company and each of you (the “Note Agreement”), pursuant 
to which the Company has issued to each of you on the date hereof its 5.50% Senior Notes due in the aggregate principal 
amount of $20,000,000. Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used herein have the respective meanings specified in the Note 
Agreement. This letter is being delivered to each of you pursuant to Section 1.4(c) of the Note Agreement. 

In rendering the opinions set forth herein, we have reviewed (i) the Note Agreement, (ii) the Notes and (iii) such corporate 
records, certificates and other documents, and such questions of law, as we have deemed necessary or appropriate for the purposes of this 
opinion. 

We have assumed that all signatures are genuine (other than, in the case of the Note Agreement and the Notes, those of the 
Company), that all documents submitted to us as originals are authentic and that all copies of documents submitted to us conform to the 
originals. We also have assumed: 

(1) as to factual matters, the accuracy of the warranties and representations contained in the Note Agreement, 
including the I-epi-esentations of the Purchasers i n  Section 9.4 of the Note Agreement and in the certificates delivered by officers of the 
Company pursuant to Section 1 .4(4 of the Note Agreement; 

( i i )  that any authorization, consent, approval, exemption or other action by, or notice to or filing with, any court, 
administrative or governmental body that is required for the execution and delivery of the Note Agreement and the Notes or the consummation 
of the transactions contemplated thereby in accordance with the terms thereof (other than to the extent addressed in paragraph 6 below) has 
been duly obtained or made or shall be timely and duly obtamed or made; 

(iii) that, other than tu the extent acldressed in paragraph 7 beiow, the execution and clelivery of the Note Agreement 
and the Notes, the offering, issuance and sale of the Notes and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated in the Note 
Agreement and the Notes in accordance with the terins thereof do not violate or contravene any statute, l a w ,  rule or regulation or any judgment, 
ordei-, decree or perinit issued by any court, arbitrator 01- governmental or regulatory authority; and 

that the Note Agreeinciit is a binding and enforceable agi cement of each party thereto othei than the Cotiipaii~~ 

We have made no iiivestigatioii for the purpose of verifying these assumptions. 

Where statements in this opinion are qmllified by the expression “known to us,’’ such statements refer to the actual 
knowledge, but not constructive or iniputecf knowleclge, of the attorneys iii our firm who have given substantive attention to the transaction that 
is tile subject of this opinion, without any representation or implication that any inquiry has been iiiadc with respect to such statements. 

Based 011 the foregoing, and sub.ject to the qLiallftcations and assuinptions set forth herein, we are of the opinion that, insofar 
as the law of the State of New York, the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”) and the Federal law of the United States of 
America are concerned: 

1 .  
Delaware. 

The Company is a corporation duly incor-poratecl, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of 

2.  The Company has the corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under the Note 
Agreement and the Notes. 



3. The Note Agreement and the Notes have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action and duly executed and 
deliver-ecl bv authorizcd officei-s of the Company and constitute the val icl and bindin? obligations of the Company. enforceable a p i n s t  the 
C n tiipa n y in accorda 11 c e w i t h tli e i I' terms, SH b-j ect to bank rup t cy, in so 1 veil c y . frau clu 1 e 11 t transfer, reo I-g aniza t i on 111 orato t- i uni, a 11 d o t 11 t' r s i m i 1 a]- 
l a ~ v s  of general applicability relating to or affecting ci.cc!itors' rights and to general equity pt-incipks. 

4. It is not necessary in connection with the offer, issuance, sale and  delivery of the Notes to the Purchasers undcr the 
circuinstances conteiiiplated by the Note Agreement to register the Notes under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or to qualify an 
iiidenture in respect of the Notes under the Tmst Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. 

5 .  Neither the issuance and the sale of the Notes by the Company nor the use of the proceeds thereof as described in the Note 
Agreement violates Regulation X of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or will cause any of the Purchasers to violate 
Regulation T OT U of the Board of  Governors of the Federal Reserve System to the extent any of them may be subject thereto. 

6. No consent, approval, authorization or other action by or filing with any govemmentaI agency or instrLunentality of the 
State of  New York or the United States of America or under the DGCL is required on the part of the Company for the execution and delivery of 
the Note Agreement and the Notes or for the consuinmation by the Company of the transactions contemplated thereby, or the performance of 
its obligations thereunder, in accordance with the t e r m  thereof . 

7. The execution and delivery of the Note Agreement and the Notes, the offering, issuance and sale of the Notes and the 
consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated thereby, and the performance of its obligations thereunder, in accordance with 
the terms thereof (i) do not violate the DGCL, any New York or Federal statute, law, ivle or regulation to which the Company is subject, or the 
usury laws of the State of New York or (ii) do not conflict with, breach the terms, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under. 
violate, or result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of  the Company pursuant to (A) the Certificate of Incorporation 
or Bylaws of the Company or (B) m y  of the instruments or agreements listed on Schedule 6.7 of the Note Agreement. 

The foregoing opinion is subject to the following qualifications: 

(a> W e  express no opinion as to: 

waivers of the rights to ob-ject to venue or other rights 01- benefits bestowed by operation of law; 

provisions for liquidated damages and penalties, penalty interest and interest on interest, it being understood that the 
provisions of Section 2.2 and 5.2 of the Note Agreement are not excluded under this clause (ii); 

provisions purporting to require a prevailing party in a dispute to pay attorneys' fees and expenses, or other costs, to 
a non-prevailing party; 

pro v i s i on s purport i 11 g to  supersede eclu i ta b I c p ri II c i p le s . i n c I u d i ng p ro v i s i on s requ ir i n g a men dmcn t s and Lva I v c rs t o 
be in writing; 

provisions purporting tu make a party's deterinination conclusive: 01. 

ex c I u s i v e .j u t-i sd I c t i on o I- v e nile pr ov i s i on s . 

(b) We express no opinion with regard to (i) any state securities or Blue Sky Jaws, ( i i )  any comiiiodities, insurance or tax laws 
or (iii) the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or any comparable state laws. 

(c> Except as addressed in paragraphs 5 and 7(1), w e  cxpress no opinion as to any legal requirements 01- restrictions apl2licable 
to the Purchasers 

Our opinions in paragraphs 6 a i d  7(i) above are limited to laws and regulations norinally applicable to transactions oftlie 
~ 1 1 ~  conteIllplatec1 by the Note Agreement and do not extend to laws or regulations relating to, 01- to licenses, pennits, approvals and filings 
necessary for, the conduct of the business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including, without limitation, any environmental laws 01' 
regulations. 

We are members of the bars of the District of Columbia and the State of New York, We do not express any opinion lierein 011 
any laws other than the laws of the State of New York, the DGCL and the Federal law of  the United States. 



This letter is given solely for your benefit as Purchasci~s o f  Notes and foi- the benefit of any other person or entity to whoin 
you may transfer any of the Notes. It may not be relied upon by any other person or entity and, except with respect to regulatory authorities 
exercisinz jut-isdiction over any of you (which shall be deeiiied to include the National Association of Iiisumce Commissioners), this opinion 
may not be disclosed to any  othci- pci-son 01- entity without OUI' written conscnt. 

Veqi truly yours, 



EXHIBIT B-2 

IPARKOWSKI, GUERKE & SWAYZE, P.A.1 

[Closing Date] 

[Pm-chasers] 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as special Delaware counsel for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (the “Company”) in connection with the 
Note Agreement, dated as of October 18, 2005, between the Company and each of you (the “Note Agreement”), pursuant to which the 
Company has issued to each of you today 5.50% Senior Notes due of the Company in the aggregate principal amount of 
$20,000,000. All terms used herein that are defined in the Note Agreement have the respective meanings specified in the Note Agreement. This 
letter is being delivered to each of you in satisfaction of the condition set forth in Section 1.4(c) of the Note Agreement and with the 
understanding that each of you is purchasing the Notes in reIiance on the opinions expressed herein. 

In this connection, we have examined such certificates of public officials, certificates of officers of the Company and copies 
certified to our satisfaction of corporate documents and records of the Company and of other papers, and have made such other investigations, 
as we have deemed relevant and necessary as a basis for our opinion hereinafter set forth. We have relied upon such certificates of public 
officials and of officers of the Company with respect to the accuracy of inaterial fachrai matters contained therein which were not 
independently established. With respect to the opinion expressed in paragraph 3 below, we have also relied upon the representations made by 
each of you in Sections 9.4 and 9.5 of the Note Agreement. 

Based on the foregoing, it is our opinion that: 

a The Company has the corporate power and authority to cariy on the business as now being conducted 

b. The execution and delivery of the Note Agreement and the Notes, the offering, issuance and sale of the Notes and 
f~iIfillinen t of and compliance with the respective provisions of the Note Agreement and the Notes will not require any authorization, consent, 
approval, exemption or other action by 01- notice to or filing with any Delaware court, Delaware aclininistrative or Delaware governmental body 
(other than the State of Delaware Public Service Commission and routine filings after the date hereof with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and/or State Blue Sky authorities) pursuant to, any Delaware applicable law (including any securities or Blue Sky law), statute, 
lxle or regulation of the State of Delaware. The Public Service Commission of the State of Delaware has duly entered Order N o .  6708 in PSC 
Docket No. 05-290 dated September 6, 2005, such Order is final and in full force and effect, no appeal, review o t  contest thereof is pending, 
and no further action by the Public Service Commission of the State of Delaware is a requirement to execution and  delivei-y of the Note 
Agreement or the Notes or the uffering, issuance or sale of the Notes or the fdfilliiient of compliance with the requisite ptovisions of the Note 
Agreement and the Notes 

Our opinions may not be relied upon by any person or entity othci. than each of you, transferees of each of you and  Sclliff 
Hardin LLP,  your special counsel, in connection with the matters referred to herein. 

Om opinions are limited to the laws of the State of Delaware 

Sincerely yours, 

PARKOWSKI, GUERKE & SWAYZE. P A .  



BY: 

William A .  Denman. Esq 



DLA Piper. Rridnick Gray Cary US LLP 
‘Thc Marbury Buildmg 
6225 Smith Avenue 
Baltimore, Maryland 21 209-3600 
T 410.580.3000 
F 41 0.580.3001 
W www.dlapiper.com 

Marta D. Harting 
maxta. h arting apiperrudnick. coin 
T 410.580.4171 F 410.580.3794 

[Closing Date] 

[Purchasers] 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as special Maryland regulatory counsel for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (the “Company”) m connection 
with the Note Agreement, dated as of October 18, 2005, between the Company and each of you (the “Note Agreement”), pursuant to which the 
Company has issued to each of you today 5.50% Senior Notes due of the Coinpany in the aggregate principal amount of 
$20,000,000. All teniis used herein that are defined in the Note Agreement have the respective meanings specified in the Note Agreement This 
letter is being delivered to each of you with the understanding that each of you 1s purchasing the Notes 111 reliance on the opinions expressed 
11 erein. 

Docket No .  
Based on the foregoing and assuming approval of the subject transaction by the Delaware P u b k  Service Coinmission in  PSC 

~ it is our opinion that. 

The execution and delivery of the Note Agreement and the Notes, the offering, issuance and sale of the Notes and fulfillment 
of and compliance with the respective provisions of the Note Agreement and the Notes do not require any authorization, consent, approval, 
exemption or other action by or notice to or filing with any Maryland state administrative or governmental body, including, without limitation, 
the Public Service Commission of Maryland, pursuant to any applicable law (including any securities or Blue Sky law), statute, nile, regulation 
or other requirement of the State of Maryland. 

Our opiiiion niay not be relied upon by any pei-soo” or entity other than each of you. transferees of each of you and Schiff 
Hardin LLP your special counsel in connection with the matters referred to herein, and neither this  opinion nor this opinion letter may be 
circulated, quoted, or relied upon by any other person for any other purpose without prior written consent (except to regulatoiy authorities 
h av i n g j uri sd i c t i o n nv e r you i n c I udi n g t h e N at i ona 1 .4 s s o c ia ti on of 1 II sural1 c e Coin m i s s i on ers 1. 

Very truly yours, 

Marta D. Harting 

MDHivc 



EXHIBIT B-4 

[ROSE, SUNDSTKOM 6: BENTLEY, LLP] 

[Closing Date] 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as special Florida counsel for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (the “Company”) in connection with the Note 
Agreement, dated as of October 18, 2005, between the Company and each of you (the “Note Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has 
issued to each of you today 5.50% Senior Notes due of the Company in the aggregate principal amount of $20,000,000. 
All terms used herein that are defined in the Note Agreement have the respective meanings specified in the Note Agreement. This letter is 
being delivered to each of you in satisfaction of the condition set forth in Section 1.4(c) of the Note Agreement and with the understanding that 
each of you is purchasing the Notes in reliance on the opinions expressed herein. 

In this connection, we have exainined such certificates of public officials, certificates of officers of the Company and copies 
certified to our satisfaction of corporate documents and records of the Company and of other papers, and have made such other investigations, 
as we have deemed relevant and necessary as a basis for our opinion hereinafter set forth. We have relied upon such certificates of public 
officials and of officers of the Company with respect to the accuracy of material factual matters contained therein which were not 
independently established. 

Based on the foregoing, it is our opiniori that: 

a. The Company is qualified to do business and is i n  good standing under the laws of the State of Florida. 

b. ‘The execution and cteliveiy of the Note Agreement and the Notes, the issuance and sale of the Notes and fulfillment of and 
compliance with the respective provisions o f  the Note Agreement and the Notes will not require any authorization, coiisent, approval, 
exemption 01’ other action by or notice to or filing with any court, administrative or governmental body (other than the Public Service 
Commission of tlie State of Florida) pursuant to any applicable law, statute, nile or regulation of the State of Florida. The Public Service 
Commission of the State of Florida has duly entered Order No. , which order is final and in full force and 
effect, no appeal, review 01- contest thereof is pending and the time for appeal or to seek review or reconsideration thereof has expired and no 
fL1rther action by the Public Service Cominission of tlie State of Florida Is a requirement to execution and delivery of the Note Agreement or 
the Notes or the issuance or sale of the Notes or the fulfillment of compliance with the requisite provisions of the Note Agreement and the 
Notes. 

dated 

Oui- opinion m a y  not be relied upon by any person or entity other than each of you, transferees of  each o f  you and Schiff 
Hardin LLP your  special counsel in  connection with the matters referred to herein 

Our opinion ts limited to the laws of the State of Florida. 

Sincerely, 



SCHEDULE 4.6 

EXISTING INDEBTEDNESS 

The Exrsting Indebtedness of the Company and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005 is as follows: 

Funded Debt: 

$ 2,463,000 8.25% Convertible Debentures, Due March 1, 2014 
$ 3,000,000 7.97% Senior Unsecured Notes, due February 1 ,  2008 
$ 5,454,545 6.91% Senior Unsecured Note, due October I ,  2010 
$ 7,000,000 6.85% Senior Unsecured Note, due January 1, 2012 

$ 20,000,000 7.83% Senior Unsecured Note, due January 1, 201 5 
$ 30,000,000 6.64% Senior Unsecured Notes, due October 3 1, 2017 

$ 120,000 Promissory Note of Sharp Energy 

Current Debt : 

$ 0 

$ 0 

$ 0 

Short-term borrowing under line of credit agreements 
with Bank of America 
Short-term borrowing under line of credit agreements 
with PNC Bank 
Short-term borrowing under line of crectit agreement 
with W i 1113 i 12 g t on Trust 



SCHEDULE 4.8(e) 

EXISTlNG LIENS 

The Liens of Property of the Company and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005 (other than Liens of the types described in clauses (i) 
through (iv) of S e c ~ i ~ 1 4 . 8 ( a )  ) and the obligations secured thereby are as follows: 

None. 



SCHEDULE 6.1(s) 

SUBSIDIARIES 

Subsidiarv Jurisdiction of Incorporation 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Eastern Shore Nahiral Gas 
Company 
Skipjack, Inc. 
Sharpgas, Inc. 
Bravepoint, Tnc. 
Sharp Energy, Inc. 
Chesapeake Investment Company 
Chesapeake Service Company 
Tri-County Gas Co., Inc. 
Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. 
Sam Sliannahan Well Co., Inc. 
Xeron, lnc. 
Sharp Water, Inc. 
Sharp Water of Minnesota, lnc. 
Sharp Water of Idaho, Inc. 
AQuality Company, Inc. 
P eiii n s ul a P i p e 1 in e C omp an y ~ In c . 
OnSight Energy, LLC 
Peninsula Energy Services 
Company, Inc. 

Delaware 
Delaware 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Georgia 
Delaware 
D elaw are 
D el aw are 
Mary land 
Mary land 
Maryland 
Mississippi 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 



SCHEDULE 6.7 

LiST OF AGREEMENTS RESTRICTING DEBT 

The contracts or agreements of the Company or a Subsidiary which restrict the right of ability of the Coiiipany to issue the Notes or to 
perform its obligation under the Agreement are as follows: 

a. 8.25% Convertible Debentures, due March 1 ,  2014. 

b. 7.97% Senior Unsecured Notes, due February 1,  2008, by and between Chesapeake UtiIities Corporation, Massachusetts 
Mutual Life Insurance Company and Massachusetts Mutual Life Pension Insurance Company, 

C. 6.9 1% Senior Unsecured Note, due October 1, 2010, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Prudential 
Insurance Company of America. 

d. 
Company. 

6.85% Senior Unsecured Note, due January I ,  201 2, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Swanbird and 

e. 
Iiisurance Company. 

7.83% Senior Unsecured Note, due January 1, 2015, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Pacific Life 

f. 6.64% Senior Unsecured Notes, due October 31, 2017, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, The State Life 
Insurance Company, Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company, C.M. Life lnsurance Company, American United Life Insurance 
Coinpany and Pioneer Mutual Life Insurance Company. 

g. 
PNC Bank 

$10,000,000 Committed Line of Credit for short-term borrowing, 1 3 ~  and between Chesapeake Utilities Corpoi-ation and 

h 
Bank of America. 

$5,000,000 Committed Line of Credit for short-tenn borrowing, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and 



SCHEDULE 7.1 

EXISTING INVESTMENTS 

The outstanding Investments of the Company and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005, are as follows: 

1) 

2) 

Rabbi Trust - lnvestment of $335,000 associated with the acquisition of Xeron, Inc. 

Rabbi Trust - 401(k) Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan of $1,247,000 



Exhi bit 10.1 

EXECUTIVE E M P L O Y M E N T  A G R E E M E N T  

AN EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") dated this I 
Energy, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and S. Robei-t Zola ("Executive"). 

day of Januaiy, 2006, by and between Sharp 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Company is currently obtaining the benefit of Executive's services as a hill-time executive employee in the 
capacity of President; 

WHEREAS, the Company's Board of Directors (the "Board") has authorized the Company to agree to provide for Executive's 
con-tinued employment pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Executive is willing, in consideration of the covenants hereinafter provided, to continue to be employed by the 
Company in the capacity of President and to render services incident to such position during the term of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the m u h ~ d  promises and covenants contained herein, the Company and Executive 
hereby agree as follows: 

1. - Emp1.o-yment ..̂ .̂ 
. The Company agrees to employ Executive, and Executive agrees to accept employment, as an executive 

officer of the Company in the capacity of President, with such reasonable duties and responsibilities as are consistent with the By-laws of 
the Company as of the date hereof, inchding, but not limited to, establishing policies and procedures and inanaging the data processing, 
human resources, communication and other administrative areas of the Company. 

2. Term ' 

i a )  

(b) 

( 4  

Term of Agreement . The term of this Agreement ("Tei-m") shall be the Initial Term (as defiriecl in Par-agraph 
2(b) hereof), and, if applicable, the Extended Term (as defined in Paragraph 2(c) hereof). 

Initial Terrn . Subject to Paragraph 2(c) hereof, the InitiaI Term of this Agreement shall extend for oiie ( 1 )  
year coininencing 011 tlie date of this Agreement. 

Extended Terig-. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control {as defined in Paragraph 2(d) hereof), the 
Initial Term shall end and the Term of this Agreement shall thereupon automatically be extended, coniiiiencing on the date of such Change 
in ControI, for the shorter of three (3) years or the period until Executive attains the earliest age, if any, at which his compulsory retirement 
is pennittecl under section 12(c) of the Age Discrimination in EinpIoyment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. 8 631(c), or its sLiccessor 
(such extended three-year or shorter term constituting the "Extended Term"). 

For the purposes of this Agreement, Change in Control shall mean a change in the 
control of the Company during the Term of this Agreement, which shall be cleeinecl to have occurred if 

( i )  The registration of the Company's voting securities untlcr the Securities Exchange Act of 19-34, as amcnrlecl 
(the "1 034 Act"), terminates or the Company shall have fewer than 300 stockholders of  record; or 

(ii) any person or group (within the meaning of Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the 1934 Act), other- t h a n  the 
Company or any of its ina.jority-cot-tti~olled subsidiai-ies, becomes the beneficial owner (within the meaning of Rule 13cl-3 
under the 1934 Act) of 30 percent or more of the combined voting powe1- of tlie Company's then outstanding voting 
securities; or 

(iii) a tender offer or exchange offer (other than an offer by the Coinpany or a majority-con-trolled subsidiary), 
pursuant to which 30 percent or more of the combined voting power of the company's then outstanding voting securities 
w a s  purchasecl, expires; or 

(iv) the stockholders of the Company approve an agreement to merge or consolidate with another corporation 
(other than a majority-controlled subsidiary of the Company) uiiIess the stockholders of  the Company immediately 
before the merger or consolidation are to own inore than 70 percent of the combined voting power of the resulting 
entity's voting securities; or 

(v)  the Company's stockholders approve an agreement (including. without limitation, a plan of liquidation) to 
sell 01- otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the business 01- assets of the Company; or 

such period, constituted the Board cease for any reason to constihite at least a majority thereof, unless the election 01- the 
nomination for election by the Conipany's stockholders of each new director was approved by a vote of at least two- 
thirds of the directors then still in office who were directors at the beginning of the period; or 

of the Company's then outstanding voting securities by any person or group is approved over the foniial objection of the 

( 4  Change In ConLrol 

(vi) during any period of two consecutive years, individuals who, at the beginning of 

(vii) the acquisition of direct or indirect beneficial ownership of inore than 15 percent 



Company by the Securities and Exchange Coinmission pursuant to Section 9 of the Public 
Utility Holding Company Act o f  1935, as amended. 

However. no Change in Control shall be deemed to have occur-red by reason of any event involving a transaction in which Executivc. or a 
group of persons or entities with which Executive acts in concert, acquires, (lit-ectly or inclirectly, more than 30 percent of the coniiiioii 
stock or the business or assets oftl ie Company; any event Involving or arising out of a ~ ~ x ~ e e d i i i g  under Title 1 1 of the United States Code 
(or the provisions of any future United States bankruptcy law), an assignment for the benefit of creditors or an insolvcncy proceeding 
under state or  local law; or any event constituting approval by the Company's stockholders of a merger or consolidation if a majority of the 
group consisting of the President and Vice Presidents of the Company who are parties to agreements conferring rights upon a Change in 
Control shall have agreed in writing prior to such approval that approval shall be deemed not to constitute a Change in Control. 

Tij?l_e__. Executive agrees to devote all reasonable f L d l  time and best efforts for the benefit of the Company and any 
subsidiary of the Company, and not to serve any other business enterprise or organization in any capacity during the Teiin hereof without 
the prior written consent of the Colnpany, which consent shall not be unreasonably with-held. 

3.  

4. ~. Office. 
(a> 

(b) 

Company at least equal to that of the office described and contemplated in Paragraph 1 hereof; and 

be required, without his written consent, to change his office location or to be absent therefrom on business for more 
than 60 working days in any year. 

(a> Initial Term . The Company shall compensate Executive for his services hereunder during the Initial Term at a rate of 
$130,000 per annum, payable in equal semi-monthly installments, or such greater or lesser amount as the Board inay determine ("Base 
Compensation"). The Base Compensation rate shall be reviewed annually and may be increased or decreased from time to time. 

~- Extended ~ Terin- . During the Extended Term, the Company shall compensate Executive for his services 
hereun-der at a rate per annum, payable in equal semi-monthly installments. equal to his Base Compensation at the time the Extended 
Term con-1111 en ce s increased : 

(i) effective 011 each anniversary of the date of this Agreement during the Extended Term by an aiiiount equal to 
the product of such Base Compensation times the increase in the preceding calendar year of the Consumer Price Index 
for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers for the Philadelphia metropolitan region as reported by the U.S. 
Department of Labor (or, if such index is no longer reported, the corresponding increase in a comparable index); and 

by such additional amounts as the Board may deterinine from time to time based, in part, on an 
annual review of Executive's compensation. 

Ex-penses-. During the Term of this Agreement, the Company shall pay all necessary and reasonable business expenses 
incurred by Executive on behalf of the Cornpaiiy in the course of his employment hereunder, including, without limitation, expenses 
incurred in the conduct of the Company's business while away froin his domicile and expenses for travel, meals, lodging, entertainment 
and related expenses that are for- the benefit of the Company. 

. Initial _ _  .-__ Term During the Initial Term, the Company shall elect Executive as its President of Sharp Energy, 

. Extended Term . During the Extended Term of this Agreement: 
Inc, 

(il Executive shall hold and perform an office with the responsibility, importance and scope within the 

(ii) Executive's office shall be located in Salisbury, Maryland, and Executive shall not 

5. ~ O m p c m l i i ? ? .  . 

(b) 

(ii) 

6. 

7.  0ttie.l- Benefits . 

(a) Executive shall be entitled to participate in all profit-sharing, insurance, medical and retirement benefit plans, 
together with vacation and other eniployee benefits of the Company, now in effect or as hereafter amended or established. i n  which the 
Company executive employees are permitted to participate. The Executive's participation shall be in accordance with the terms and 
provisions o f  such plans. 

fil~-liit~ire and furnishings for such office. The Company further agrees that Executive shall have the use of a Company-owned 01- Conipany- 
leased and Company-maintained automobile, new eveiy three years, of a kind and model appropriate to his position with the Company. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall preclude the Company from amending or terminating any employee benefit 
plan or practice, but, it being the intent of the parties that the Executive shaIl continue to be entitled during the Extended Term to benefits 
and perquisites as set forth in Paragraphs 7(a) and 7(b) hereof at least equal to those attached to his position on the date of this Agreement, 
nothing in this Agreement shall operate as, or be construed to authorize, a recluction during the Extended Term without Executive's written 
consent in the level of such benefits or perquisites as in effect on the date of a Change in  Control. If and to the extent that such benefits or 
pequisites are not payable or provided to Executjve under any such plan or practice by reason of an ainendiiien t thereto 01' tei-inination 
thereof during the Extended Term, the Company shall pay or provide such benefits or perquisites lo Executive. 

ib )  The Company shall fumish Executive with a suitable office, necessary administrative support and customary 

(c> 

8. T e rniiij at i o 11. . 
(a) Tecniii1ation for Cause . This Agreement and Executive's einployinent hereunder may be terminated by the Company 

at any time for Cause. In the event of termination for Cause, the Executive sliall not be entitled to any severance benefits under this 
agreement. During the Initial Term, Cause shall be as the Board may reasonably determine. During the Extended rem, termination of this 
Agreement and the Executive's employment shall be deemed to have been for Cause only if it shall have been the result of 

(i) conduct by Executive that coiistitutes a felony under the laws of the United States or a state in which 



Executive works or resides; 
(ii) an act or acts of dishonesty by Execu-tive resuiting or intended to result dil-ectly 01- indirectly in  material 

gain to 01' personal enrichment o f  Executive at the Coinpany's expense: 
(iii) a deliberate and intentional refkal by Executive clui-ing the Extended Term (except by reason of incapacity 

clue to illness or accident) to comply w i t h  the provisions of Paragraph 1 hereof. pivvidecl that such bi-cadi shall have 
resul ted i n  demonstrably material injuty to the Company and the Executive shall have failed to I-emedy such breach 
within thirty days after notice from the Secretaiy of the Company demanding that the Executive ,remedy such breach; or 

(iv) the engagement in conduct by Executive that is materially injurious to the Company if such conduct was 
undeitaken without good faith and the reasonable belief that such conduct was in the best interest of the Company. 
(b) T-en-ination Durin.g ExJended.Te-nm . During the 

Extended Term of this Agreement, the term "Terniination" shall mean: 
(i) Termination by the Company of Executive's employment; or 
(ii) Termination by Executive of his employ-nient following the occurrence of any of the following events: 

(A) Failure to elect or reelect Execu-tive to, or removal of Executive from, the office or offices set 
forth in Paragraph I hereof, or the Board if Executive shall have been a member of the Board immedi-ately 
prior to a Change in Control of the Company; 

(B) Executive's good-faith determination that there has been a significant change in the nature or scope 
of his authorities, powers, fiinctions, duties or responsibilities attached to the positions contemplated in 
Paragraph I hereof or a reduction in his compensation as provided in Paragraph 5 hereof or his benefits as 
provided in Para-graph 7, which change or reduction is not remedied within thirty days after notice to the 
Company by Executive; 

(C) Any other breach by the Coinpany of any provision of this Agreement (including, without 
limitation, relocation of Executive in violation of Paragraph 4(b) hereof), which breach is not remedied within 
thirty days after notice to the Company by Executive; or 

(D) The liquidation, dissolution, consolidation or merger of the Company or transfer of all or a 
significant portion of its assets unless a successor or successors (by merger, consoIidation or otherwise) to 
which all or a significant portion of its assets has been transferred shall have assumed all duties and obligations 
of the Coinpany under this Agreement; 

provided that in any event set forth in this Paragraph 8(b)(ii), Executive shall have elected to terminate his employment under this 
Agreement upon not less than forty (40) and not more than ninety (90) clays' notice to the Board, attention of the Secretary, given, 
except i n  the case of a continuing breach, within three calendar- months after ( 1 )  faillire to be so elected or reelected, or such 
removal, (2) expiration of the 30-day cure period with respect to such event, or (3) the closing date of such liquidation, 
dissolution. consolidation, merger or transfer of assets. 
An election by Executive to terminate his einployment under the provisions of this Paragraph shall not be deemed a voluntary 

termination of employment by Executive for the purpose of this Agreement or any plan or practice of the Company. 
~~ Pslyment ~~~~~~ Upon Terinination During E@nded Term. . In the event of a Termination of this Agreement during 

the Extended Term hereof for any reason other than Cause or Executive's death, the Company shall, subject to Paragraph 9 hereof, pay to 
Executive (or, in the event of his death followiiig the Tennination, his Iegal representative) i n  cash within thirty (30) days after the date of 
such Termination (the "Tennination Date"): 

( 4  

( i )  An amount equal to the product of multiplying the monthly rate of Base 
Compensation to which Executive w a s  entitled under Paragi-apli 5(b) hereof on the day inimecliately prior to the 
Termination Date by the lesser of (A) twelve ( I  2) months or (€3) the numhei- of months remaining in the Term of this 
Agreement (the shorter of such periods constituting the "Covered Period"); 

An amount equal to the present value of the additional benefits that would have 
been paid Executive under the Company's retirement plans if he had continued to be employed pursuant to this 
Agreement during the Covered Period and the retirement plans had continued during such period without change from 
the date of the Change in Control; 

( i i i )  For each share of Company stock subject to a stock option that was awwded to Executive under a Company 
stock option plan, was held by Executive on the day iininediately prior to his Termination Date, was not exercisable on 
that date but woulcl have become exercisable during the Covered Period if Executive's eniployment with the Company 
had continued during that period, an amount equal to the excess of (A) the daily average closing price for a share of the 
Company's stock on the New York Stock Exchange, or such other national securities exchange on which such stock may 
be listed, during the 30-day period ending upon the date of the Change in Control, or, if higher, during the 30-day period 
ending upon the Termination Date (adjusted as appropriate for any changes in the capital structure of the Company) over 
(B) the option price for a share of the Company's stock subject to the option; and 

An amount equal to the aggregate of the Company's contributions to the Company's savings plan in 
respect of Executive that were not vested on the day immediately prior to the Termination Date but that would have been 
vested at the end of the Covered Period if Executive had remained einployed by the Company for the duration of that 
period. 

( i i )  

(iv) 



For purposes of calculating the present value specified in Paragraph 8(c)(ii), the discount rate shall equal the PBGC interest rate for 
iinmediate annuities, as provided in 29 C.F.R. Part 4044, Appendix B, Table I 1  or its successoi-, i n  effect for a valuation date coinciding 
with the Tei-mination Date. I f  that rate should no  longer be published, the discount rate shall h e  such closely comparable interest rate as the 
Coni pa 11 y 111 ay  i-eason a b I y cle term i n e. 

Payment Upon Tei-minatiori During Initial Term , In the event that the Company teriiiinates this Agreement 
cturing, or elects p ~ i ~ ~ ~ i a i i t  to Paragraph 17 hereof not to rciicw this Agreement at  the end of, the Initial Term hereof for any reason other 
than Cause or Executive’s death, the Company shall continue to pay to Executive (01- in the event of his death following such termination, 
his legal representative) his Base Compensation under Paragraph 5(a) hereof, at the semi-monthly rate in effect immediately prior to the 
date of such termination (“Termination Date”), for a period of six months following the Termination Date. 

~~ Maximum PaEnent Upon T.eunination-. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the Company 
should determine, in consultation with tax advisors satisfactory to Executive, that any amount payable to Executive pursuant to Paragraph 
S of this Agreement during tlie Extended Term, either alone or in conjunc-tion with any payments or benefits to or on behalf of Executive 
pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, would not be deductible by the Company, in whole or in part, for federal income tax purposes by 
reason of section 280G of the lntemal Revenue Code or its successor, then the aggregate amount payable to Executive pursuant to 
Paragraph 8 shall be reduced to the largest amount that, in the opinion of such tax advisors, the Company could pay Executive under Para- 
graph 8 without any part of that amount being nondeductible by the Company as a result of Section 280G or its successoi-. 

either by seeking other employment or otherwise. The amount of any payment provided for herein shall not be reduced by any 
remuneration that Executive may eam from employment with another employer or otherwise following his Termination Date. 

notice pursuant to Paragraph 8(b)(ii) hereof, for a period of 1 5  months foIlowing the giving of such notice, Executive shall assist no 
individual or entity other than the Coinpany to acquire any entity with respect to which a proposal to acquire was presented to the Board 
prior to the beginning of the period. 

12. ~~ lndeinnjfication . The Company shall indemnify Executive to the fiillest extent pel-mitted by applicable Delaware law 
(as may be amended from time to time), includ-ing the advance of expenses permitted therein. 

13. PerfbLniance , The failure of either party to this Agreement to insist upon strict performance of any provision hereof 
shall not constitute a waiver of its rights subse-quently to insist upon strict performance of such provision or any other provision of this 
Agl-eem en t . 

14. Non-Assignability . Neither party shall have the right to assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder 
without the consent of the other party. 

15. Invafidity . If any provisions of this Agreement shall be found to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such finding shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, all of the which shall remain in fir11 force and effect. 

16. Arbjtration- aid Leg31 Fees , In the event of any dispute regarding a ref~isal or failure by the Coinpany to make 
payments 01- provide benefits hereunder for any reason, Executive shall have the right, in addition to all other rights and remedies provided 
by law, to arbitration of such dispute under the mles of the American Arbitration Asso-ciation, which right shall be invoked by serving 
tipon the Company a notice to arbitrate, stating the place of arbi-tration, within ninety (90) days of receipt of notice in any form (including, 
without limitation, failure by the Coinpany to respond to a notice from Executive within thirty (30) days) that the Company is withholding 
01- proposes to withhold payments 01- provisions of benefits. In the event of any such dis-pute, whether or not Executive exercises his right 
to arbitration, if it shall ultimately be cletei-mined that the Company’s refusal 01- failure to make payments or provide benefits hereuncler was 
wrongful or otherwise inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, the Company shall indemni-fy and hold harmless Executive from and 
against any and al I expenses incurred in connection with such determination, including legal and other fees and expenses. Without 
limitation of or by the foregoing, the Company shall, within ten ( 1  0) days after notice from Executive, provicle Executive with a n  
irrevocable letter of credit i n  the amount of $1 00,000 from a bank satisfactoiy to Executive against which Executive may draw to pay legal 
fees and other fees and expenses in connection with any attempt by Executive to enforce any of his rights under this Agreement during the 
Extended Term. Said letter of credit shall not expire before ten ( I O )  years following the date of this Agreement. 

.. Renewal . .. . If the Initial Term of this Agreement expires without there having been a Change in Control, this 
Agreement shall be renewed, as of the day following such expiration, unless, during the period beginning 90 days prior and ending 30 days 
prior to such day, either the Company or Executive shall have given notice to the other that this Agreement will not be renewed. If this 
A_greel-lient is renewed as provided under this Paragraph, the new Agreement shall be identical to this Agreement (except insofar as the 
Company and Executive may otheiwise agree in writing) except that the date of the new Agreement shalI be as of the day following the 
expii-ation of the Initial Term of this Agreement. 

Successoj-s . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Executive (and his personal 
representative), the Company and any successor organization or organizations that shall succeed to substantially all of the business and 
property of  the Company, whether by means of merger, consolidation, acquisition of substantially all of the assets of tlie Company or 
otherwise, including by operation of law. 

Sgt,off. The Coinpany shall have no right of set-off or counterclaim in respect of any  claim, debt or obligation against 
any payments or benefits provided for in this Agreement. 

Ainendments . No Amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both the Company 
and Executive. 

(d )  

9. 

10. Mitigation , Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for in this Agreement 

11. Noncompetition Covenant.. For a period of one year following the Termination Date and, if Executive has given a 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 



21. Gpvernjjg .Law. . This Agreement shall be interpret-ed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Delaware. 

Notices . Unless otherwise stated herein. all notices hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be given 
when personally cleliveid or rnailecl by United States registered or certified ma i l ,  postage piqmid, to, if  to the Company. 909 Silvci- Lake 
Boulevai-cl. Dover, Lklawar-e 19904, and, if to Executive, the last address thci.cfor.c sliowii 011 the records of the Company Either thc 
Company or Executive may, by notice to the other, designate an adclress other than thc foregoing for the receipt of subsequent noticos. 

Withholdiilg , The Company may withhold froiii any amounts payable to Executive hereuiider all federal, state. city 01- 

other taxes that the Company may reasonably determine are required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation. 
Nature of..Pgyments Upon Termination . All payinents to Executive pursuant to Paragraphs 8 and 9 of this Agreement 

shall be considered as liquidated damages or, in the case of certain payments pursuant to Paragraph &(d), as severance payments in 
consideration of Executive’s past services to the Company, and no such payment shall be regarded as a penalty to the Company. 

25.  Acknowledgment . The parties hereto each acknowl-edge that each has read this Agreement and understands 

22. 

23. 

24. 

same and that each enters into this Agreement freely and voluntarily. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written. 

SHARP ENERGY, INC. 

[CORPORATE SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Chairman 

Secretary EXECUTIVE 



Exhibit 10.2 

PERFORMANCE SHARE AGREEMENT 

pursuant to the 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATIOR 
PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN 

AGREEMENT dated as of December 30, 2005, and entered into, in duplicate, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a 
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and [name of executive - each of John R. Schimkaitis, Paul M. Barbas and Michael P. McMasters] (the 
“Grantee”) who resides at [address of executive]. 

WITNESSETH that: 

WHEREAS, the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Perfonnance Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), to be effective January 1, 2006, has been 
duly adopted by action of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) on February 24, 2005 and by its shareholders on May 5 ,  2005; and 

WHEREAS, the Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company referred to in the Plan (the “Coininittee”) has determined that it 
is in the best interests of the Company to grant the Performance Share Award described herein pursuant to the Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the shares of the Common Stock of the Company (“Shares”) that are subject to this Agreement, when added to the other 
shares of Common Stock that are subject to awards granted under the Plan, do not exceed the total number of shares of Common Stock with 
respect to which awards are authorized to be granted under the Plan; 

N O W ,  THEREFORE, it is hereby covenanted and agreed by and between the Company and the Grantee as ~ O H O W S :  

Section 1 .  Performance Share Award 

The Company hereby grants to the Grantee a Performance Share Award for the year ending December 3 1 ,  2006 (the ‘’Award Year”). 
As inore fd ly  described herein, the Grantee may earn a maximum total of [number of shares - 9,600 for John R. Schimkaitis, 6,820 foi- Paul M .  
Barbas and 5,120 for Michael P. McMasters] Shares (the “Contingent Perforinance Shares”) upon the Company‘s achievement of the 
Perforinance Goals set forth in Section 2. Alternatively, the Grantee may elect to receive [number of shares - 2,400 for John R. Schimkaitis, 
1,705 for Paul M.  Barbas and 1,280 for Michael P. McMasters] Shares (the “Forfeitable Performance Shares”), as detailed in Section 3, in lieu 
of 1-eceiving any Contingent Perforniance Shares. The Forfeitable Perforinance Shares shall be subject to forfeiture conditions, as set forth in 
Section 3(c). 

Sect 1 o 11 2 Con ting en t Per for ni an ce Shares 

( a )  As soon as practicable after the Company’s independent auditors have certified the Company’s financial statements for the Award 
Year, thc Coininittee shall ctetenninc for purposes of this Agreement the Company’s ( 1  ) earnings growth (“EG”),  (2) achievement 
of established milestones and objectives under the Coinpany’s long-tenn strategic plan (“SP”), and (3) Shareholder Value as of 
the end of the Award Year. The EG, SP and Shareholder Value shall be determined by tlie Coiiimittee in accordaiice with the 
terms of the Plan and this Agreement based on financial results reported to shareholders in the Coinpany’s annual reports and 
slid1 be subject to adjustment by the Coininittee for extraordiiiary events during the Award Year. The Coinmittee shall promptly 
notify the Grantee of its cletennination. 

(b) The Grantee may earn up to [number of shares - 9,600 for Joliii R .  Schimkaitis, 6,S20 for Paul M.  Barbas and 5,120 for Michael 
P. McMasters] Contingent Performance Shares (the “Maximuiii Award”) as follows: 

(1 1 The performance measured for Shareholder Value will be the value of $10,000 invested 111 the Company stock 
compared to a Utility Index. If the Company’s performance exceeds the Utility Index, the Grantee will be eligible to earn up to 30% of 
tlie Maximum Award for the Award Year. If the value of $1 0,000 invested for the Award Year does not exceed the Utility Index for 
the Award Year, the Grantee shall not earn any Contingent Perfonnance Shares under this Paragraph (b)( 1).  

(2) The performaiice measured for EG will be based upon achieving a growth in earnings per share of 3% to 5% for 
the award year. if the Company earnings per share for 2006 is equal to or exceeds [’re-determined target 11, the Grantee is eligible to 



earn 25% of the maxiinuiii award. If the earnings per share is equal to or greater than [pre-determined target 21, the Grantee is 
eligible to earn an additional 15% of the maxiilium award but in no event dial1 the Grantee earn inore than 40Y0 of the maximum 
award uiider this paragraph (b) (2). Tf any of the award under this paragraph is unearned in tlie current year. the Grantee is eligible to 
earn those shares, i f  the accumulative earnings pel- share for 2005 to 2007 equals or exceeds [pre-detel-mined accumulative target]. 

(3)  The pcrforiiiance ineasurec-l for SG will be based upon execution of the C~ompany's long-term strategic plan, assuming 
attainment of pre-authorized milestones and objectives as established by the Compensation Committee. If the long-term strategy is 
executed, the Grantee will be eligible to earn 30% of the Maxirnuin Award. After approval from the Company's Board of Directors, if 
the long-term strategic plan is not executed, the Grantee shall not eam any Contingent Perforinance Shares under this paragraph (b) 
(31, 

(c) Contingent Performance Shares that are earned by the Grantee pursuant to this Section 2 shall be issued promptly, without 
payment of consideration by the Grantee, within 2 % months of the end of the Award Year. The Grantee shall have the right to vote the 
Contingent Performance Shares and to receive the dividends distributable with respect to such Shares on and after, but not before, the date on 
which the Grantee is recorded on the Company's ledger as holder of record of the Contingent Performance Shares (the "Issue Date"). If, 
however, the Grantee receives Shares as part of any dividend or other distribution with respect to the Contingent Performance Shares, such 
Shares shall be treated as if they are Contingent Performance Shares, and such Shares shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions 
imposed by this Section 2.  

(d) Sale, transfer, pledge, or hypothecation of the Contingent Performance Shares shall be prohibited for a period of three (3) 
years after the Issue Date (the "Limitation Period"), and the Perfonnance Shares shall bear a restrictive legend to that effect. Any attempt to 
dispose of Contingent Performance Shares in contravention of this Agreement shall be ineffective. Upon expiration of the Limitation Period, 
the transfer restrictions imposed by this Section shall expire, and new certificates representing the Contingent Performance Shares, without the 
restrictive legend described in this paragraph (a), shall be issued, subject to the provisions of paragraph (e) of this Section 2. 

(e> The Performance Shares will be not registered for resale under the Securities Act of 1933 or the laws of any state except 
when and to the extent determined by the Board pursuant to a resolution. Until a registration statement is filed and becoiiies effective, however, 
transfer of the Contingent Performance Shares after expiration of the Limitation Period shall require the availability of an exemption from S U C ! ~  

registration, and prior to the issuance of new certificates, the Company shall be entitled to take such measures as it deems appropriate 
(including but not limited to obtaining from the Grantee an investment r-epresentation letter a n d o r  f~irther legending the new certificates) to 
ensure that the Contingent Performance Shares are not transferred in the absence of such exemption. 

(0 In the event of a Change in Control, as defined in the Plan, during the Award Year, tlie Grantee shall earn at least the 
Maxrinuiii Award of Contingent Performance Shares set forth in thls Section 2, as if a11 employment and performance criteria were satisfied, 
without any pro ration based on the proportion of the Award Year that has expired as of the date of such Change in Control. 

( 9 )  If, during the Award Year, the Grantee IS separated from employment. Contingent Performance Shares shall be deemed 
earned 01' forfeited as follows, 

( 1 )  Upon voIuntary termination by the Grantee (other than for retirement at age 65 or as accepted by the Committee) 
oi- termination by the Conipaiiy for failure of -job perforiiiance or other- just cause as determined by the Committee, all unearned 
Contingent Performance Shares shall be forfeited inimediately; 

(2) If the Grantee separates fi-om employinent by reason of death or total and permanent clisabilit), (as determinecl by 
the Committee), the number of Contingent Performance Shares that would otherwise have been earned at the end of the Award Year 
shall be reduced by pro rating such Contingent Performance Shares based on the proportion of the Award Year during which the 
Grantee was employed by the Company, unless the Coininittee deterinines that the Contingent Perforinance Shares shall not be so 
re du c e d; 

(3) Retirement of the Grantee at age 65 or as accepted by the Coiniiiittee shall not affect the Contingent Perforniance 
Shares, which shall continue to be earned through the remainder of the Award Ycar, as set forth abovc. 

(h1 The Grantee shaII be solely responsible for any federal, state and local taxes of any kind imposed in connection with the delivery of 
Contingent Performance Shares. Prior to the transfei- of any Contingent Performance Shares to the Grantee, the Grantee shall remit to the 
Company an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirements. The Grantee may elect to have all or 
part of any withholding tax obligation satisfied by having the Company withhold Shares otheiwise deliverable to the Grantee as Contingent 
Performance Shares, unless the Corninittee determines otherwise by resolution. If the Grantee fails to make such payments or election, the 
Company and its subsidiaries shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct froin any payinents of any kind otherwise due to the 
Grantee any taxes required by law to be withheld with respect to the Contingent Performance Shares. 



Section 3. Forfeitable Performance Shares 

(a) In lieu of ear-ning Contingent Performance Shares, the Grantee may elect to receive [n~iimber of shares - 2,400 for John K. 
Schimkaitis, 1,705 for Paul M .  Barbas ancl 1,280 for Michael P. McMasterx ] Forfeitable Performance Shares, irrespective of whether the 
Coinpany meets any Performance Goals. The Grantee must make any such election on or before Scpteinbci- 30, 2006, and the election must he 
made in writing, in a manner prescribed by tlie Committee. Once made, the election is irrevocable. If a Grantee makes such an election, he shall 
not receive any Contingent Performance Shares under this Agreement. 

(b) Any Forfeitable Perforinance Shares received by the Grantee pursuant to this Section 3 shall be issued as promptly as 
possible after December 31, 2006, without payment of consideration by the Grantee. The Grantee shall have the right to vote the Forfeitable 
Performance Shares and to receive the dividends distributable with respect to such Shares on and after, but not before, the date on which the 
Grantee is recorded on the Company's ledger as holder of record of the Forfeitable Performance Shares (the "Issue Date"). If, however, the 
Grantee receives Shares as part of any dividend or distribution with respect to the Forfeitable Performance Shares, such Shares shall be treated 
as if they are Forfeitable Performance Shares, and such Shares shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions imposed by this Section 3 ,  

(4 The Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be subject to the following restrictions: 

(1) Sale, transfer, pledge or hypothecation of the Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be prohibited for a period of 
three (3) years after the Issue Date (the "Restriction Period"), and the certificates evidencing the Forfeitable Performance Shares shafl 
bear an appropriate restrictive legend that refers to the terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth in this Agreement. Any attempt to 
dispose of Forfeitable Perfotmance Shares in contravention of this Agreement shall be ineffective. Upon expiration of the Restriction 
Period, the transfer restrictions imposed by this Section shall expire, and new certificates representing the Forfeitable Performance 
Shares, without the restrictive legend described in this paragraph (c)( I ) ,  shall be issued, subject to the provisions of paragraph ( f )  of 
this Section 3. 

(2) If, during the Restriction Period, the Grantee separates from employment for any reason other than death, normal 
retirement, total and permanent disability (as deterniined by the Coininittee), or invoiuntal-y termination without cause (as determined 
by the Committee)? all Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be forfeited i~nniediately. 

(dl  All restrictions under paragraph (c) of this Section 3 shall iiniiiediately expire on the earliest of: (A) the Grantee's 
separation from employment because of death, total and permanent disability (as determined by the Coininittee), or involuntary termination 
without cause (as determined by the Committee), (B) a Change in Control, as defined in the Plan, or (C) the end of the Restriction Period. 

(e) If, after the Grantee has made an election to receive Forfeitable Performance Shares pursuant to Section 3(a), a Change in 
Control, as defined in the Plan, occurs dtiring the Award Year, the Grantee shall receive at least the total number of Forfeitable Performance 
Shares due under this Agreement, without any pro ration based on the proportion of the Award Year that has expired as of the date of such 
Change in Control Pursuant to Section 3(cl), such Shares shall not be subject to any of the restrictions imposed by this Section. 

(0 The Forfeitable Perfonnance Shares shall be riot registered for resale under the Securities Act of 1933 or the  la^ of any 
state except when and to thc extent deter-mined by the Board pursuant to a resolution. Until a registration statement is filed and becvines 
effective, hc)wever, transfer of the Forfeitable Performance Shares after expiration of the Restriction Period shall require the availability of an 
exeinption from such registration, ancl prior to the issuance of new certificates, the Company shall be entitled to take such measures as it &ems 
appropriate (~nclucling but not limited to obtaining from the Grantee an investment representation letter and/or further legending the I I C ~  

certificates) to ensure that the Forfeitable Performance Shares are not transferred in tlie absence of such exemption. 

(g) The Grantee shall be solely responsible for any federal, state and local taxes of any kind imposed in connection with 
receipt of the Forfeitable Perforniance Shares: 

(1  1 The Grantee agrees that, no later than tlie date that the restrictions set forth in Section 3(c) lapse, he shall reiiiit to 
the Company an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirements. 

(2) The Grantee may elect to have all or part of any withholding tax obligation satisfied by having the Company 
withhold Shares otherwise deliverable to the Grantee in connection with the Award of Restricted Stock, unless the Coininittee 
determines otherwise by resolution. 

(3 1 If the Grantee properly elects, within 30 days of the Issue Date, to include in gross income for federal incoiiie tax 
pui-poses an amount equal to the fair market value of the Forfeitable Performance Shares, he shall make arrangements satisfactory to 
the Coininittee to remit in the year of issue an aiiiount sufficient to satisf)? any federal, state, local and other withholding tax 



requirements with respect to such Forfeitable Performance Shares 

(4) If the Grantcc fails to make satisfactory arrangements to meet all withholding tax obligations, the Coinpany and 
its subsidiaries shall, to the extent perniittecl by law, have the right to deduct from any payinents of any kind othei-wise due to the 
Grantee any taxes i-equired by law to be withheld with rcspect to the Forfeitable Perforinaiice Shares 

Section 4 Additional CoIiditions to Issuance of Shares 

Each transfer of Contingent Performance Shares or Forfeitable Performance Shares (together, the "Award Shares") shall be subject to 
the condition that if at any time the Corninittee shall determine, in its sole discretion, that it is necessary or desirable as a condition of, or in 
connection with, transfer of Award Shares (i) to satisfy withholding tax or other withholding liabilities, (ii) to effect the listing, registration or 
qualification on any securities exchange or under any state or federal law of any Shares deliverable in connection with such exercise, or (iii) to 
obtain the consent or approval of any regulatoiy body, then in any such event such transfer shall not be effective unless such withholding, 
listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any conditions not acceptable to the 
Company. 

Section 5 .  AAListment of Shares 

(4 If the Company shall become involved in a merger, consolidation or other reorganization, whether or not the Company is 
the surviving corporation, any right to earn Contingent Performance Shares or to elect to receive Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be 
deemed a right to earn or to elect to receive the consideration into which the Shares represented by the Contingent Performance Shares or by 
the Forfeitable Performance Shares would have been converted under the terms of the merger, consolidation or other reorganization. If the 
Company is not the surviving corporation, the surviving corporation (the "Successor") shall succeed to the rights and obligations of the 
Company under this Agreement. 

(b) If any subdivision or combination of Shares or any stock dividend, capital reorganization or recapitalization occurs after 
the adoption of the Plan, the Committee shal1 make such proportionate adjustments as are appropriate to the number of Contingent Performance 
Shares to he earned and/or to the minibet- of Forfeitable Performance Shares to be received 111 order to prevent the dilution or  enlargement of the 
rights of the Grantee 

Section 6. No Right to Eiiipioyiiient 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed by implication or otherwise to confer upon the Grantee any right to continued 
employment by the Company or any affiliate of the Coinpany. 

Section 7. Notice 

Any notice to be given hereunder by the Grantee shall be sent by inail addressed to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 909 Silver Lake 
Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904, for the attention of the Committee. c/o the Secretary, and any notice b y  the Company to the Grantee shall 
be sent by mail addressed to the Grantee at the address of the Grantee shown on the first page hereof. Either party may, by noticc given to the 
other in accordance with the provisions of this Section, change the address to which subsequent notices shall be sent. 

Section 8.  Assumption of Risk 

It is expressly understood and agreed that the Grantee assumes all risks incident to any change hereafter in the applicable laws or 
regulations or incident to any change in the market value of the Award Shares. 

Section 9. Teriiis of Plhn 

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Plan (a copy of which has been delivered to the Grantee). This Agreement is subject to 
all of the terins and provisions of the Plan, which are incorporated into this Agreement by reference, and the actions taken by the Coinmittee 
pursuant to the Plan. I n  the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern. All determi1iat.iol1s 
by the Coininittee sliaIl be in its sole discretion and sliall be binding on the Conipany and the Grantee. 

Section 10 GoverDiis Law; Amendment 

This Agreement shall be governed by, and shaIl be constmed and administered in accordance with, the laws of the State of Delaware 
(without regard to its choice of law rules) and the requirements of any applicable federal law. This Agreement may be niodified or amended 
only by a writing signed by the parties hereto. 



Section 1 I Ternis of Agreement 

This Asreeiiient shall remain in frill force and effect and shall be binding on the parties hereto for- so Iong as any Award Shares issued 
to the Grantee uncler this Agi-eement continue to be held by the GI-antee. 

1N WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed in its corporate name, and the Grantee has 
executed the same in evidence of the Grantee's acceptance hereof, upon the terms and conditions herein set forth, as of the day and year first 
above written. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

[name of executive], Grantee 



Exhibit 10.3 

PERFORMANCE SHARE AGREEMENT 

pursuant to the 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN 

AGREEMENT dated as of December 23, 2005, and entered into, in duplicate, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a 
Delaware corporation (the “Coiiipany”), and Stephen C .  Thompson (the ”Grantee”) who resides [address of executive]. 

WITNESSETH that: 

WHEREAS, the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan (the “Plan1’), to be effective January 1, 2006, has been 
duly adopted by action of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) on February 24, 2005 and by its shareholders on May 5 ,  2005; and 

WHEREAS, the Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 1-efeired to in the Plan (the l l C ~ ~ ~ i i i i t t e e l l )  has determined that it 
is in the best interests of the Company to grant the Performance Share Award described herein pursuant to the Ptan; and 

WHEREAS, the shares of the Common Stock of the Company (“Shares”) that are subject to this Agreement, when added to the other 
shares of Common Stock that are subject to awards granted under the Plan, do not exceed the total number of shares of Coinnion Stock with 
respect to which awards are authorized to be granted under the Plan; 

NOW, THEREFORE, i t  is hereby covenanted and agreed by and between the Company and the Grantee as follows: 

Section 1 Per forin ail ce Sh are Award 

The Company hereby grants to the Grantee a Perfoniiance Share Award for the year ending December 31, 2006 (the “Award Year”) 
and the three years ending December 3 1, 2008 (the “Awarcl Period”). As more f d l y  described herein, the Grantee inay earn a maxinium total of 
9,600 Shares (the “Contingent Perforinance Shares“) upon the Cornpany‘s achieveinent of the Performance Goals set forth in Section 2. 
Alternatively, the Grantee inay elect to receive 2,400 Shares (the “Forfeitable Performance Shares”), as detailed in Section 3 ,  in lieu of 
receiving any Contingent Perforinance Shares. The Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be subject to forfeiture conditions, as set forth in 
Section 3(c) 

Section 2.Contmgent Performance Shares 

(a )  As soon as practicable aftei- the Company’s independent auditors have certified the Company’s financial stateinents for the 
Award Year, the Committee shall determine for purposes of this Agreement the Company’s ( 1 )  Shareholder Vaiue ancl ( 2 )  
earnings growth (“EG”) as of the end of the Award Year. The Shareholcler Value and EG shall be deterinined by the 
Committee in  accordance with the terms of the Plan and this Agreement based on financial results reported to shareholders in 
the Company’s annual reports and shall be subject to adjustinent by the Committee for extraordiiiaiy events during the Award 
Year. The Coininittee shall promptly notify the Grantee of its determination. 

(b) The Grantee may earn up to 960 Contingent Performance Shares for each Award Year (the “Annual Award”) of the Award 
Period, as follows: 

( 1 )  The performance measured for S1iareholder Value will be the value of $10,000 invested in the Coinpany stock 
compared to a Utility Index. If the Company’s perfo~mance exceeds the Utility Index, the Grantee wil l  be eligible for the AIinLiaI 
Award. If the value of $10,000 invested for each Award Year does not exceed the Utility Index for the respective Award Year, the 
Grantee shall not earn any Contingent Performance Shares under this Paragraph (b)( 1 ) .  

(c) The Grantee may earn LIP to 6.720 Contingent Performance Shares at the end of the Award Period (the “Three-Year Award”) 
as follows, subject to the restrictioiis specified in Section 3(a), and fiirther described in Section 2(c)(2) below: 

( 1 )  The performance measured for EG will be based upon the Coiiipany’s regulated natural gas operations achieving 



at least 90% of the average allowed pre-tax return on investinent ("target return on investment"). If the Company's regulated 
operations achieve the target return on investiiient over the Award Period, the Grantee will be eligible for- tlie Three-Year Award. I f  
the target I-etwii on investment is not achieved i n  the Company's regulated natural gas operations, the Grantee shall not earn any 
Contingent Performance Shares under- this Palmgraph (c)( 1 ). 

(2) If t he  Grantee IS eligible to receive thc Thrce-Y ear Award, but has recetvctl Forfeitabic Perforinance Shares "io1 
2006 and/or 2007, the number of Contingent Perforniance Shares awarded at the end of the Award Period shall equal 6,720 less any 
Forfeitable Performance Shares received. 

(4 Contingent Performance Shares that are earned by the Grantee pursuant to this Section 2 shall be issued promptly, 
without payment of consideration by the Grantee, within 2 % months of the end of the Award Year. The Grantee shall have the right to vote the 
Contingent Performance Shares and to receive the dividends distributable with respect to such shares on and after, but not before, the date on 
which the Grantee is recorded on the Company's ledger as holder of record of the Contingent Performance Shares (the "Issue Date"). If, 
however, the Grantee receives Shares as part of any dividend or other distribution with respect to the Contingent Perforinance Shares, such 
Shares shaIl be treated as if they are Contingent Performance Shares, and such Shares shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions 
imposed by this Section 2. 

(e )  Sale, transfer, pledge, or hypothecation of the Contingent Performance Shares shall be prohibited for a period of three (3) 
years after the ISSLE Date (the "Limitation Period"), and the Performance Shares shall bear a restrictive legend to that effect. Any attempt to 
dispose of Contingent Performance Shares in contravention of this Agreement shall be ineffective. Upon expiration of the Limitation Period, 
the transfer restrictions imposed by this Section shall expire, and new certificates representing the Contingent Performance Shares, without the 
restrictive legend described in this paragraph (d), shall be issued, subject to the provisions of paragraph (e) of this Section 2. 

( f ,  The Perforinance Shares will be not registered for resale under the Securities Act of 1933 or the laws of any state except 
when and to the extent determined by the Baard pursuant to a resolution. Until a registration statement is filed and becomes effective, however, 
transfer of the Contingent Perforinance Shares after expiration of the Limitation Period shall require the availability of an exemption from such 
registration, and prior to the issuance of new certificates, the Company shall be entitled to take such measures as it deems appropriate 
(including but not limited to obtaining from the Grantee an investment representation letter and/or filrthei- legending the new certificates) to 
eiisure that the Contingent Performance Shares are not transferred i11 the absence of such exemption. 

( 9 )  In the event of a Change in Control, as defined in the Plan, during tlie Award Period, the Grantee shall eam at least the 
Maxiiiium Award of Contingent Perforinance Shares set forth in this Section 2, as if all eiiipIoyrnent and performance criteria were satisfied, 
without any pro ration based on the proportion of the Award Period that has expired as of the date of such Change in Control. 

/h) If, during the Award Period, the Grantee is separated froin employment, Contingent Performance Shares shall be deemed 
earned or forfeited as follows: 

(1 1 Upon voluntary termination by the Grantee (other than for retirement at age 65 or as accepted by the 
Coinmittec) or termination by the Company foi- failure of -job performance or other just cause as detei-mined by the Committee, all uneal+lied 
Co lit i ngen 1 P cr form an ce Shares sha I 1 be fo I-fe i ted i i n  media tel y ; 

(2) If the Grantee separates from einpioyiiient by reason of  death or total and perinanent disability (as deterrnineci 
by the Committee), the number of Contingent Perforinance Shares that would otherwise have been earned at the end of the Award Period shall 
be recluced by pro rating such Contingent Performance Shares based on the proportion of the Award Period during which thc Grantee was 
ernployecl by the Company, unless the Coininittee determines that the Contingent Perforinance Shares shall not be so reduced; 

(3 1 Retirement of the Grantee at age 65 or as accepted by the Coininittee shall not affect the Contingent 
Performance Shares, which shall continue to be earned through the remainder of the Award Period, as set forth above. 

( 1 )  The Gtantee shall be solely responsible for any federal, state and local taxes of any kind imposed in connection with the 
delivei-y of Contingent Performance Shares. Prior to the transfer of any Contingent Performance Shares to the Grantee, the Grantee shall remit 
to tlie Company an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, Iocal and other withholding tax requirements. The Grantee may elect to have 
all 01- part of any withholding tax obligation satisfied by having the Company withhold Shares otherwise deliverable to the Grantee as 
Contingent Performance Shares, unless the Committee deteniiines otherwise by resolution. If the Grantee fails to make such payments or 
election, the Company and its subsidiaries shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct from any payments of any kind 
otherwise due to the Grantee any taxes required by law to be withheld with respect to the Contingent Performance Shares. 

Section 3. Forfeitable Perforinance Shares 



(a> In lieu of earning Contingent Performance Shares, the Grantee may elect to receive 2,400 Forfeitable Performance Shares, 
irrespective of whether the Company meets any Pe~-forinance Goals. For each of the three years of the Award Period, the Grantee may elect to 
I-eceive 800 Forfeitable Performance Shares pel- year. The Grantee must make any such election on or before September 30, of the respective 
year, and the election must be made in  writing, in  a inanner presci-ibetl by the Cotnmittee. Once inade, the election is irrevocable. If a Grantee 
m a k e s  such an election, he shall not receive any Contingent Pcrforniance Shares under this Agreement. 

(b) Any Forfeitable Performance Shares received by the Grantee pursuant to this Section 3 shall be issued as promptly as 
possible after December 3 1, of the year the respective election is made, without payment of consideration by the Grantee. The Grantee shall 
have the right to vote the Forfeitable Performance Shares and to receive the dividends distributable with respect to such Shares on and after, but 
not before, the date on which the Grantee is recorded on the Company‘s ledger as holder of record of the Forfeitable Performance Shares (the 
“Issue Date”). If, however, the Grantee receives Shares as part of any dividend or distribution with respect to the Forfeitable Performance 
Shares, such Shares shall be treated as if they are Forfeitable Performance Shares, and such Shares shall be subject to all of the terms and 
conditions imposed by this Section 3 .  

(c> The Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be subject to the following restrictions: 

(1) Sale, transfer, pledge or hypothecation of the Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be prohibited for a period of 
three (3) years after the Issue Date (the “Restriction Period”), and the certificates evidencing the Forfeitable Performance Shares shall bear an 
appropriate restrictive legend that refers to the terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth in this Agreement. Any attempt to dispose of 
Forfeitable Performance Shares in contravention of this Agreement shall be ineffective. Upon expiration of the Restriction Period, the transfer 
restrictions imposed by this Section shall expire, and new certificates representing the Forfeitable Perfonnance Shares, without the restrictive 
legend described in this paragraph (c)(l), shall be issued, subject to the provisions of paragraph (f) of this Section 3. 

(2) If, during the Restriction Period, the Grantee separates from employment for any reason other than death, 
normal retirement, total and perinanent disability (as determined by the Committee), or involuntary termination without cause (as determined 
by the Committee), all Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be forfeited immediately. 

(d) All  restrictions under paragraph i c )  of this Section 3 shall immediately expire on the earliest of: (A) the Grantee’s 
separation froiii employment because of death, total and permanent disability (as determined by the Committee), or invohntaiy termination 
without cause (as determined by the Committee), (3) a Change i n  Control, as defined in the Plan, or (C) the end of the Restriction Period. 

(e> If, after the Grantee has made an election to receive Forfeitable Performance Shares pursuant to Section 3(a), a Change 
in Control, as defined in the Plan, occurs during the Awat-d Period, the Grantee shall receive at least the total number of Forfeitable 
Performance Shares due under this Agreement, without any pro ration based on the proportion of the Award Period that has expired as of the 
date of such Change in Control. Pursuant to Section 3(d), such Shares shall not be subject to any of the restrictions imposed by this Section. 

(9 The Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be not registered for resale under the Securities Act of 1933 or the laws of any 
state except when and to the extent determined by the Board pursuant to a resolution. Until a registration statement is filed and becomes 
effective, however, transfer of the Forfeitable Performance Shares after expiration of the Restriction Period shall require the availability of an 
exemption from such registration, and prior to the issuance of new certificates, the Company shall be entitled to take such measures as it deems 
appropriate (including but not limited to obtaining from the Grantee an iiivestment representation letter and/or further legencling the new 
certificates) to ensure that the Foi-fei table Perfo~mance Shai-es are not ti-ansferred in the absence of such exemption. 

(g 1 The Grantee shall be solely responsible foi- any federal, state and local taxes of any  kind imposed in  coniiection wrth 
receipt of the Forfeitable Perforinancc Shares: 

(1 )  The Grantee agrees that, no later than the date that the restrictions set forth in Section 3(c) lapse, lie shall remit 
to the Company an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirements. 

(2) The Grantee may elect to have all or part of any withholding tax obligation satisfied by having the Company 
wrthhold Shares otherwise deliverable to the Grantee in connection with the Award of Restricted Stock, unless the Conimittee deterinrnes 
o t h erw I se by res o lu t I on 

( 3 )  If the Grantee properly elects, within 30 days of the Issue Date, to include In gross income for feder a I income . 

tax purposes an amount equal to the fair market value of the Forfeitable Performance Shares, he shall make arrangements satisfactory to the 
Committee to remit in the year of issue an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirements with 
respect to such Forfeitable Perforinance Shares. 

(4) If the Grantee fails to make satisfactory arrangements to meet all withholding tax obligations, the Company anci 



its subsidiaries shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct from any payi-nents of any kind otherwise due 
to the Grantee any taxes required by law to be withheld with respect to the Forfeitable Petforinance Shares. 

Section 4. Aclclitional Conditions to Issuance of Shares 

Each transfer of Contingent Performance Shares or Forfeitable Performance Shares (togethcr-, thc “Award Shares”) shall be subject to 
the condition that if at any time the Coininittee shall determine, in its sole discretion, that it is necessary or desirable as a condition of, or in 
connection with, transfer of Award Shares (i) to satisfy withholding tax or other withholding liabilities, (ii) to effect the listing, registration or 
qualification on any securities exchange or under any state 01- federal law of any Shares deliverable in  connection with such exercise, or (iii) to 
obtain the consent or approval of any regulatory body, then in any such event such transfer shall not be effective unless such withholding, 
listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any conditions not acceptable to the 
C oinpany . 

Section 5. Adj s tin ent of Shares 

( 4  If the Company shall become involved in a merger, consolidation or other reorganization, whether or not the Company is 
the surviving corporation, any right to earn Contingent Performance Shares or to elect to receive Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be 
deemed a right to earn or to elect to receive the consideration into which the Shares represented by the Contingent Performance Shares or by 
the Forfeitable Perfoiinance Shares would have been converted under the terms of the merger, consolidation or other reorganization. If the 
Company is not the surviving corporation, the surviving corporation (the “Successor”) shall succeed to the rights and obligations of the 
Company under this Agreement. 

(b) If any subdivision or combination of Shares or any stock dividend, capital reorganization or recapitalization occurs after 
the adoption of the Plan, the Committee shall inake such proportionate adjustments as are appropriate to the nuinber of Contingent Performance 
Shares to be earned and/or to the number of Forfeitable Performance Shares to be received in order to prevent the dilution or enlargement of the 
rights of the Grantee. 

Section 5. N o  Right to Employment 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed by implication or otherwise to confer upon the Grantee any right to contimed 
employment by the Coiiipany or any affiliate of the Coinpany 

Section 7. Notice 

Any notice to be given hereunder by the Grantee shall be sent by mail addressed to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 909 Silver Lake 
Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904, for the attention of the Coinmittee, c/o the Secretary, and any notice by the Company to the Grantee shall 
be sent by mail addressed to the Grantee at the address of  the Grantee shown on the first page hereof. Either party may, by notice given to the 
other in accordance with the provisions of this Section, change the address to which subsequent notices shall be sent. 

Section 8. Assumption of Risk 

I t  is expressly untlerstoocl aiid agreed that the GIantee assiriiies all  risks incident to a n y  change hereafter in the applicable la\lis or  
regulations or incident to any change in the market value of the Award Shares. 

Section 9. Terns of Plan 

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Plan (a copy of which has been delivered to the Grantee). This Agreement is subject 
to all of the terms and pl-ovisions of the Plan, which are incorporated into this Agreement by reference, and the actions taken by the Coiiimittee 
pursuant to the Plan. I n  the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern. All determii1atio11s 
by the Coininittee shall be in its sole discretion and shall be binding on the Company and the Grantee. 

Section I O  Governing Law; Amendment 

This Agreement shall be governed by, and shall be constiued and administered jn accordance with, the laws of the State of 
Delaware (without regard to its choice of law rules) and the requirements of any applicable federal law. This Agreement may be inodified 01‘ 

amended only by a writing signed by the parties hereto. 

Section 1 I .  Terms of Agreeinent 



This Agreement shaIl remain in fiill force and effect and shall be binding on the parties hereto for so long as any Award Shares 
issued to the Grantee under this Agreement continue to be held by the Grantee.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Company has caused this Agi-eement to be executed i n  its corporate name, and the Grantee has 
executed the same in cvicleiice of the Grantee's acceptance hereof, upon the tei-ms aticl conditions hcrein set forth, as of the day a n d  year first 
above writtcn. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATlON 

By: 

Stephen C. Thompson, Grantee 



Exhibit 10.4 

PERFORMANCE S H A K E  AGREEMENT 

pursuant to the 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN 

AGREEMENT dated as of December 26, 2005, and entered into, in duplicate, by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, a 
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and S. Robert Zola (the “Grantee”) who resides at [address of executive]. 

WITNESSETH that: 

WHEREAS, the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), to be effective January 1,  2006, has been 
duly adopted by action of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) on February 24,2005 and by its shareholders on May 5 ,  2005; and 

WHEREAS, the Coininittee of the Board of Directors of the Company referred to in the Plan (the “Committee“) has determined that it 
is in the best interests of the Company to grant the Perforiiiance Share Award described herein pursuant to the Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the shares of the Corninon Stock of the Company (“Shares”) that are subject to this Agreement, when added to the other 
shares of Common Stock that are subject to awards granted under the Plan, do not exceed the total number of shares of Common Stock with 
respect to which awards are authorized to be granted under the Plan; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby covenantecl and agreed by and between the Company and the Grantee as follows: 

Section 1 .  Performance Share Award 

The Company hereby grants to the Grantee a Performance Share Award for the year ending December 31, 2006 (the “Award Year“) 
and the three years ending December 3 1 , 2008 (the “Award Period”). As niore fiilly described herein, the Grantee may eam a inaximuiii total of 
9,600 Shares (the “Contingent Performance Shares”) upon the Company’s achievement of the Performance Goals set forth in Section 2. 
Alternatively, the Grantee may elect to receive 2,400 Shares (the “Forfeitable Performance Shares“), as detailed in Section 3, in lieu of 
receiving any Contingent Performance Shares. The Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be subject to forfeiture conditions, as set forth in 
Section 3(c). 

Section 2.Contingent Perform~nce Shares 

(a) As soon as practicable after the Company’s independent auditors have certified the Company’s financial statements for the 
Award Year. the Conmiittee shal I determine for purposes of this Agreement the C‘oimpany’s ( I )  Shareholdel- Value and (2)  
earnings gl-owth (“EG“) as of the end of the Award Year. The Shareholder Value a i d  EG shall be cleterminecl by the 
Coin~nittee in accordance with the terms of the Plan and this Agreement based on financial results reported to shareholders in 
the Coinpany’s annual reports and shall be subject to adjustment by the Coininittee for extraordinary events during the Award 
Year. The Coininittee shalI promptly notify the Grantee of its determination. 

(b) The Grantee may earn ~ i p  to 960 Contingent Perforinance Shares for each Award Year (the “Annual Award”) of the Award 
Period, as follows: 

( 1 )  The performance measured for Shareholder Value will be the value of $10,000 invested ~ J I  the Company stock 
coinpared to a Utility Index. If the Company’s yerfoiinance exceeds the Utility lndex, the Grantee w i l l  be eligible for the Annual 
Award. If the value of $10,000 invested foi- each Award Year does not exceed the Utility Index fot- the respective Award Yeai-, the 
Grantee shaIl not earn any Contingent Performance Shares under this Paragraph (b)( 1).  

(c) The Grantee may earn up to 6,720 Contingent Performance Shares at the end of the Award Period (the “Three-Year Awarcl”) 
as follows, subject to the restrictions specified in Section 3(a), and fhrther described in Section 2(c)(2) below. 



(1) The performance measured for earnings growth will be based upon the Company's Delinarva propane distribution 
operation generating at least tlie target level of earnings, before interest expense and income taxes ("target EB lT"), over the Award 
Period. If the Delmarva propane distribution operation achieves the target EBIT, the Gi-antee will be eli_rible for the Three-Year 
A\vard. If the target EB IT i n  the Co~i~pany ' s  Delmarva propane distribution operation is not achIeved for the Award Period, the 
Grantee will not be eligible to any Contingent Perfomiance Shai-es under this Paragraph (c)( 1 ). 

(21 If the Grantee is eligible to receive the Three-Year Award, but has received Forfeitable Perforinance Shares for 
2006 and/or 2007, the iiumber of Contingent Performance Shares awarded at the end of the Award Period shall equal 6,720 less any 
Forfeitable Performance Shares received. 

(dl Contingent Performance Shares that are earned by the Grantee pursuant to this Section 2 shall be issued promptly, 
without payment of consideration by the Grantee, within 2 % months of the end of the Award Year. The Grantee shall have the right to vote the 
Contingent Performance Shares and to receive the dividends distributable with respect to such shares on and after, but not before, the date on 
which the Grantee is recorded on the Company's ledger as holder of record of the Contingent Performance Shares (the "Issue Date"). If, 
however, the Grantee receives Shares as part of any dividend or other distribution with respect to the Contingent Performance Shares, such 
Shares shall be treated as if they are Contingent Performance Shares, and such Shares shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions 
imposed by this Section 2. 

(e) Sale, transfer, pledge, or hypothecation of the Contingent Performance Shares shall be prohibited for a period of three (3) 
years after the Issue Date (the "Limitation Period"), and the Performance Shares shall bear a restrictive legend to that effect. Any attempt to 
dispose of Contingent Performance Shares in contravention of this Agreement shall be ineffective. Upon expiration of the Limitation Period, 
the transfer restrictions imposed by this Section shall expire, and new certificates representing the Contingent Perforinance Shares, without the 
restrictive legend described in this paragraph (d), shall be issued, subject to the provisions of paragraph ( e )  of this Section 2. 

(f) The Performance Shares will be not registered for resale under the Securities Act of 1933 or the laws of any state except 
when and to the extent determined by the Board pursuant to a resolution. Until a registration statement is filed and becomes effective, however, 
transfer of the Contingent Performance Shares after expiration of the Limitation Period shall require the availability of an exemption from such 
registration, and prior to the issuance of new certificates. the Company shall be entitled to take such measures as it deems approp-iatte 
(including but not limited to obtaining from the Grantee an investment representation letter andioi- further legendiiig the new certificates) to 
ensure that the Contingent Performance Shares are not transferred in the absence of such exemption. 

(g) 111 the event of a Change in Control, as defined in the Plan, during the Award Period, the Grantee shall earn at least the 
Maxiinuni Award of Contingent Performance Shares set forth in this Section 2, as if all employment and perfonnance criteria were satisfied, 
without any pro ration based on the proportion of the Award Period that has expired as of the datc of such Change in Control. 

(h) If, during the Award Period, the Grantee is separated from employment, Contingent Performance Shares shall be deemed 
earned or forfeited as follows, 

( ' 1  Upon voluntary tcrinination by the Grantee (other than for retirement at age 65 01 as accepted by the 
Committee) or termination by the Conipany for failure of job performance or other just cause as determined by the Corninittee, all unearned 
Contingent Performance Shares shall be foi fcited iiiinicciiately. 

(2) If the Grantee separates from einployment by reason of death or total and permanent disability (as deteriilined 
by the Committee). the number of Contingent Performance Shares that  would othel-wise have been eaiiied at the end of the Award Period shall 
be reduced by pi-o rating such Contingent Performance Shares based on the proportion of the Award Period during which the Grantee was 
employed by the Company, unless the Corninittee determines that the Contingent Performance Shares shall not be so reduced; 

( 3  1 Retirement of the Grantee at age 65 or as accepted by the Committee shall not affect the Contingent 
Perforiiiaiice Shares, which shall contiiiue to be earned through the remainder of the Award Period, as set forth above. 

(9 The Grantee shall be solely responsible for any federal, state and local taxes of any kind imposed in connection with the 
delivei-y of Contingent Performance Shares. Prior to the transfer of any Contingent Performance Shares to the Grantee, the Grantee shall reillit 
to the Company an ainount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirements. The Grantee may elect to have 
all or part of any withholding tax obligation satisfied by having the Company withhold Shares otherwise deliverable to the Grantee as 
Contingent Performance Shares, unless the Committee determines otherwise by resolution. If the Grantee fails to make such payments 01- 

election, the Company and its subsidiaries shall, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct from any payments of any kind 
otherwise due to tlie Grantee any taxes required by l aw to be withheld with respect to the Contingent Performance Shares, 

Section 3 F orfeitabl e P gfornian c e Shares 



( a )  In lieu of eaining Contingent Performance Shares, the Grantee may elect to receive 2,400 Forfeitable Performance 
Shares, ii-respective of whether the Company meets any Performance Goals. For each of the three years of the Award Period, the Grantee may 
elect to receive 800 Forfeitable Performance Shares per year. The Grantee must make any such election on or before September 3 0 ,  of the 
respective year, and the election must be made in writing. in a manner prescribed by the Committee. Once macle, the election is irrevocable. lf a 
Grantec niakes such an election, he shall not receive any Contingent Performance Shares under this hgreeiiiei~t. 

(b) Any Forfeitable Performance Shares received by the Grantee pursuant to this Section 3 shall be issued as promptly as 
possible after December 31, of the year the respective election is made, without payment of consideration by the Grantee. The Grantee shall 
have the right to vote the Forfeitable Perfonnance Shares and to receive the dividends distributable with respect to such Shares on and after, but 
not before, the. date on which the Grantee is recorded on the Company's ledger as holder of record of the Forfeitable Performance Shares (the 
"lssue Date"). If, however, the Grantee receives Shares as part of any dividend or distribution with respect to the Forfeitable Performance 
Shares, such Shares shall be treated as if they are Forfeitable Performance Shares, and such Shares shall be subject to all of the tenns and 
conditions imposed by this Section 3. 

( 4  The Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be subject to the following restrictions: 

(11 Sale, transfer, pledge or hypothecation of the Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be prohibited for a period of 
three (3 j years after the Issue Date (the "Restriction Period"), and the certificates evidencing the Forfeitable Perfonnance Shares shall bear an 
appropriate restrictive legend that refers to the tenns, conditions, and restrictions set forth in this Agreement. Any attempt to dispose of 
Forfeitable Performance Shares in contravention of this Agreement shall be ineffective. Upon expiration of the Resbiction Period, the transfer 
restrictions iinposed by this Section shall expire, and new certificates representing the Forfeitable Perforinance Shares, without the restrictive 
legend described in this paragraph (cj(l) ,  shall be issued, subject to the provisions of paragraph (f) of this Section 3. 

(2) If, during the Restriction Period, the Grantee separates from einployinent for any reason other than death, 
normal retirement, total and permanent disability (as determined by the Committee), or involuntary termination without cause (as determined 
by the Corninittee), all Forfeitable Perforinance Shares shall be forfeited immediately. 

(d) All restrictions under paragraph (c) of this Section 3 shall immediately expire on the earliest o f  (A) the Grantee's 
separation fI-OllJ employment because of death, total and pennanent disability (as determined by the Committee), or jnvoluntary termination 
wrthout cause (as determined by the Coinmittee), ( 6 )  a Change in Control, as defined in the Plan, or (C) the end of the Restriction Period 

(e) If, after the Grantee has made an election to receive Forfeitable Perforinance Shares pursuant to Section 3(a). a Change 
rn Control, as defined in the Plan, occurs during the Award Period, the Grantee shall receive at least the total number of Forfeitable 
Performance Shares due under this Agreement, without any pro ration based on the proportion of the Award Period that has expired as of the 
date of such Change in Control. Pursuant to Section 3(d), such Shares shall not be subject to any of the restrictions imposed by this Section. 

(0 The Forfeitable Perforiiiance Shares shall be not registered for resale under the Securities Act of 1933 or the laws of any 
state except whcn and to the extent deterinined by the Board pursuant to a resolution. Until a registration statement i s  filed and becomes 
effective, however, transfer of the Forfeitable Performance Shares after expiration of the Restriction Period shall require the availability of  an 
exemption from such registration, and prior to tlie issuance of new certificates, the Company shall be entitled to tale such measures as i t  deerns 
appri>priatc (.including but not liinitecl to obtaining from the Grantee an investment representation letter and/or further legending the new 
certificates) to ensure that the Forfeitable Performance Shares are not transferred in the absence of such exemption. 

(g> The Grantee shall be solely responsible for any federal, state and local taxes of any kind iinposed in connection with 
receipt of the Forfeitable Performance Shares: 

( 1 )  The Grantee agrees that, no later than the date that the restrictions set forth in Section 3(c) lapse, he shall remit 
to the Company an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirements. 

(2 1 The Grantee inay elect to have all or part of any withholding tax obiigation satisfied by having the Company 
withhold Shares otheiwise cleIiverable to the Grantee in connection with the Award of Restricted Stock, unless tlie Coininittee cleterinines 
otherwise by resolution. 

( 3  1 If the Grantee properly elects, within 30 days of the lssue Date, to inchde in gross income for federal income 
tax purposes an amount equal to the fair market value of the Forfeitable Performance Shares, he shall inake arrangements satisfactory to the 
Colllinittee to remit in the year of issue an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local and other withholding tax requirenients with 
respect to such Forfeitable Perfonnance Shares. 



(4 1 If the Grantee fails to make satisfactory arraiigernents to meet all withholding tax obligations, the Company and 
its subsidiaries shafl, to the extent permitted by law, have the right to deduct from any payments of  any kind otherwise due to the Grantee any 
taxes required by law to he withheld with respect to the Forfeitable Performance Shares. 

Section 4 .  Additional Conditions to Issuance of Shares 

Each transfer of Contingent Perforinance Shares or Forfeitable Performance Shares (together, the “Award Shares”) shall be sub.ject to 
the condition that if at any time the Coininittee shall determine, in its sole discretion, that it is necessary or desirable as a condition of, or in 
connection with, transfer of Award Shares (i) to satis@ withholding tax or other withholding liabilities, (ii) to effect the listing, registration or 
qualification on any securities exchange or under any state or federal law of any Shares deliverable in connection with such exercise, or (iii) to 
obtain the consent or approval of any regulatoiy body, then in any such event such transfer shall not be effective unless such withholding, 
listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained free of any conditions riot acceptable to the 
Coinpany. 

Section 5 .  Adj us tm e-nt of Shares 

(a> If the Company shall become involved in a merger, consolidation or other reorganization, whether or not the Company is 
the surviving corporation, any right to earn Contingent Performance Shares or to elect to receive Forfeitable Performance Shares shall be 
deemed a right to earn or to elect to receive the consideration into which the Shares represented by the Contingent Performance Shares or by 
the Forfeitable Perfonnance Shares would have been converted under the terms of the merger, consolidation or other reorganization. If the 
Company is not the surviving corporation, the surviving corporation (the “ S U C C C S S ~ ~ ~ ~ )  shall succeed to the rights and obligations of the 
Company under this Agreement. 

04 If any subdivision or combination of Shares or any stock dividend, capital reorganization or recapitalization occurs after 
the adoption of the Plan, the Coniinittee shall make such proportionate adjustments as are appropriate to the number of Contingent Performance 
Shares to be earned and/or to the number of Forfeitable Perforinance Shares to be received in order to prevent the dilution or enlargement of the 
rights of the Grantee. 

Section 6 .  No Right to Einployinent 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed by implication or otherwise to confer upon the Grantee any right to cont~nued 
einployineiit by the Coinpany or any affiliate of the Company. 

Section 7.  Notice 

Any notice to be given hereunder by the Grantee shall be sent by mail addressed to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 909 Silver Lake 
Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904, for the attention of the Committee, c/o the Secretary, and any notice by the Company to the Grantee shall 
be sent by inail addressed to the Grantee at the address of the Grantee shown on the first page hereof. Either party may. by notice given to the 
other in accordance with the provisions of thls Section, change the address to which subsequent notices shall be sent 

Section 8.  Assumption of Risk 

It IS expiessly understood and agreed that the Grantee assumes all risks incident to any change hereafter in the appIicabIe laws or 
regulations 01’ incident to any change in the market value of the Award Shares. 

Section 9. T a m s  of Plan 

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Plan (a copy of which has been delivered to the Grantee). This Agreement is subject 
to all of the terms and provisions of the Plan, which are incorporated into this Agreement by reference, and the actions taken by the Coininittee 
Iiursuant to the Plan. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions 0% the Plan shall govern. All determinations 
by the Committee shall be in its sole discretion and shall be binding on the Company and the Grantee. 

Section 10 Governing Law, Amendment 

This Agreement shall be governed by, and shall be construed and administered in accordance with, the laws of the State o f  
Delaware (without regard to its choice of law mles) and the requirements of any applicable federal law. This Agreement may be modified 01- 

amended only by a writing signed by the parties hereto. 

Section 1 1 .  TeiJ-ns of Agreement 



This Agreement shall remain i n  full force and effect and shall be binding on the parties hereto for so long as any  Award Shares 
issued to the GI-antee under t h i s  Agi.eement continue to be held by the Grantee. 

IN WITNESS W H E R E O F ,  t he  Company has caused this Ayeement to be executed 111 its coipoiatc iiaine, a i d  the Graitec has 
cxccutccl the same in eviclence o f  the Grantee's acceptance hereof, upon thc t e r m  and conditions herein set forth, as of the day a n d  yeai fjist 
above written. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: 

S. Robert Zola, Grantee 



Exhibit 10.5 

EX ECU T I V E 0 F F I C ER CO M P E N SAT I ON A I i  RA N G EM E N  TS 

The followi~ig table sets forth for cach naiiicd executive officer o f  Chcsapcakc Utilities Corpoi-atioii (“Chcsapcake“) (whicli officcrs 
were determined by reference to Jtein 402(a)(3) of SEC Regulation S-K based on 2005 coinpensation) infomation concerning determinations 
made with respect to the conipeiisatioii paid or payable for services in all capacities to Chesapeake and its subsidiaries, which compensation 
decisions may be deemed the entry into or the amendment of a material contract within the meaning of Item 601(b)(10) of SEC Regulation S- 
K. These decisions consisting of (i) the establishment of the executive’s base salary for 2006, (ii) the determination of the executive’s annual 
bonus for 2005 under the Cash Bonus Incentive Plan , (iii) the establishment of the executive’s 2006 target cash bonus (as a percentage of 
salary) under the Cash Bonus Incentive Plan, (iv) determination of the executive’s restricted stock award for 2005 under the Performance 
Incentive Plan and (v) the establishment of the executive’s target restricted stock award for a performance cycle ending December 3 1, 2006 
under the Performance Incentive Plan. 

2006 

2006 Cash Restricted Stock 
2005 Restricted 

2006 Base 2005 Cash Bonus Stock Awards 
Name and Pricipal Position Salary Bonus Target (‘1 Awards (3) Target (4) 

$ 360,000 $ 134,703 40% 8,400 9,600 

President and COO $ 290,000 $ 81,032 35% 4,480 6,820 

$ 76,947 30% 4,480 5,120 
Stephen C. Tliompson, Sr Vice 
President $ 243,000 $ 55,202 25% 7,680 3,200 (’) 
S. Robert Zola, President, Sharp 
Energy, Inc. $ 135,000 $ 28,456 30% (‘1 7,680 3,200”’ 

Up to 150% of this cash bonus target can be earned to the extent certain performance targets are 
achieved. The performance tar 
per share, (ii) pretax return on 

nnance criteria: (i} earnings 
nt of the Company ’ s regulated natural gas 

ii) earnings before interest and taxes of the Company ’ s D e h a r v a  propane 
ations. 

(?) Mr. Zola has an additional cash bonus arrangement under which he can earn a cash bonus equal to 
10% of actual propane distribution net income in excess of the upper end of a target income range 

( 3 )  Represents the shares of Chesapeake stock awarded to each executive for 2005 under the 
Performance Incentive Plan. 

(4) Represents a target restricted share award granted to each executive under the Perforinance Incentive 
Plan for the performance period ending December 3 1 ,  2006. Messrs. Schiinkaitis, Barbas and 
McMasters can earn up to 100% of the target restricted stock award to the extent the following 
pel forinance criteria are attained: ( i )  earnings growth based on the achieveiiicnt of targeted iiieasuit‘s 
of eai-nings for the Company ’ s regulated natural gas operations, Delmarva propane distribution 
operations, and overall corporate results, (11) growth in non-I-egulated investments based up011 the 
ac h i eve men t o f est ab 1 I she d i n  i I est ones an d o bj ec t i v e s u n der the C o n y x ”  ’ s I ong - t ern1 strat eg I c p 1 an, 
and ( ~ i >  shareholder value as measured by the perfoi-inance of the Company’s stock price (including 
the reinvestment of clividends), in relationship to an index of industry peers. 

upon Chesapeake achieving specified performance goals relative to the lndustiy Peer Group relating 
to stockholder value performance- Mr. Thompson is also entitled to em1 2,240 shares of restricted 
stock if the Company ’ s natural gas segiiie~it achieves at least 90% of the target pre-tax return on 
investment over the three-year period January 1, 2006 to December 3 1, 2008. Mr. Zola is also 
entitled to earn 2,240 shares of restricted stock if the Coiiipany ’ s propane distiibution income 
exceeds the incoine target for the three-year period January 1,2006 to December 3 1,2008. 

(’I For 2006, Messrs. Tlioiizpson and Zola can earn up to 940 shares of restricted stock , contingent 



Exhibit I 2  

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 

For the Years Ended 
December 31, 2005 2004 2003 

ing 
467,414 $ 9,549,667 $10,079,483 

6,312,016 5,701,090 6,032,445 
Add: 

representative of interest 
factor 278,846 309,446 35 1,445 

Amortization of debt 
5,077, 5,20 5 ,  

discount and expens e 55,802 6 1,422 89,155 
Earnings as adjusted $22,19 1,971 $20,828,348 $22,169,284 

Fi 
ts 

representative of interest 
factor $ 278,846 $ 309,446 $ 351,445 
Interest on indebtedness 5,077 
Amortization of debt 
discount and expense 55,802 6 1,422 89,155 

,341 $ 5,577,591 $ 6,057,356 Fixed Charges 

Ratio o f  Earnings to Fixed 
Charges 4.10 3.73 3.66 



Exhibit 21 

Chesapeake Utili ties Cor par a tion 
Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

Subsidiaries Stat e I n cor D o rated 
aQuality Company, Inc 

Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company 
Sharp Energy, lnc. 

Chesapeake Service Company 
Xeron, Inc. 

Sam Shannahan Well Company, Inc. 
Sharp Water, Inc. 

OnSight Energy, LLC 
Peninsula Energy Services Company, Inc. 

Peninsula Pipeline Company, Inc. 

Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Mississippi 
Maryland 
Del aware 
Del aware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Subsidiaries of Sharp Energy, Inc. 

Tri-County Gas Co., Incorpomted 

State Incorporated 
Sharpgas, Inc. Delaware 

Mary lari d 

Subsidiaries of Chesapeake Service Company State lncorporated 
Skipjack, Inc. Delaware 

Brave P o i 11 t , I n  c. G e 01-g I a 
C h esa p e a k e 1 ti ves t in en t C o mp any Del aware 

Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. M ary land 

Subsidiaries of Sharp Water, Inc. 
Sharp Water of Idaho, Inc. 

Sharp Water of Minnesota, lnc. 

State Incorporated 
Delaware 
Delaware 



Exhibit 23 

Consent 0 1  Independent Registered PuIiIic Accounting Firm 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Fonn S-3 (Nos. 333-63381 and 333-121524) and Form 
5-8 (Nos. 333-01 175 ,333-94159, 333-124646,333-124694 and 333-324717) of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation of our report dated March 6, 
2006 relating to the consolidated financial statements, financial statement schedule, management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K. 

i s /  PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Bo ston, M ass achuse tts 
March 6, 2006 



Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE lSA-I4(A) 
UNIIEK THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

1, John R. Schimkaitis, certify that: 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form IO-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a inaterial fact or omit to state a inaterial fact necessary to make 
the statements made, in light of the circuinstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered 
by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-I5(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(E) and 
15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and we have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed uiider our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made hiown to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be desigiied 
under OUT supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures a n d  presented i n  this repoi-t OUI conclusions 
about the effectrveness of the disclosure controls and procedures. as of the elid of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluations; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscaI quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant ‘s internal control over financial reporting; and 

The registrant’s other certifying ofFicer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatton of internal conti ol over financ~al reporting, 
to the registrant’s auditors and the aridit committee of the registrant‘s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions). 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in thc design or operation of internal control over financial repoi-ti112 wl1iclI 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record. process. summarize and report financial inforiiiation: 
and 

b) any fraud, whether or not inaterial. that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant ‘s 
internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: March 6, 2006 

/s/ John R. Schiiiikaitis 
John R. Schiiiikaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 



Exhibit 31.2 

CEKTIFICATE PURSUANT To R U L E  ~ ~ A - M ( A )  
U N D E R  THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I ,  Micliael P. McMasters, certify that: 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a inaterial fact necessary to make 
the statements made, in light of the circuinstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered 
by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial. statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules l?a-l5(e) and lSd-fS(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(f) and 
15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and we have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is iiiade known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b) designed such intei-nal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial stateinen ts for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles: 

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the clisclosui-e controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluations; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over fiiiaiicial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant ‘s internal conti-ol over financial reporting; and 

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, 
to thc registrant’s auditors and the audit coriiiiiittee of the registrant’s board o f  directors (or persons performing the equivalent fLinctions): 

a )  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affcct the registrant‘s ability to record. process, summarize and report financial information; 
and 

b) any fraud, whether 01- not material, that involves imanagement or other- employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control ova-  financial reporting. 

Date: March 6, 2006 

i s /  Michael P. McMasters 
Michael P. McMasters 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32. I 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I, John R. Schimkaitis, President and Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, certi& that, to the best of my 
knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake”) for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (i) fd ly  coinplies with the requirements of  section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1434, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein fairly presents, in all inaterial respects, the financial 
condition and results of operations of Chesapeake. 

/si John R. Schjinkaitis 
John R. Schiinkaitis 
March 6, 2006 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 904 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or other document authenticating, 
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed fonn within the electronic version of this written statement required 
by Section 906, has been provided to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and will be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Coiporatioii and fiimislied 
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 



Exhibit 32.2 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I, Michael P. McMasters, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, certify that, to the 
best of my knowledge, the Annual Report on Form IO-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake”) for the year ended December 3 I ,  
2005, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (i) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) the information contained therein fairly presents, in all material respects, the 
financial condition and results of operations of Chesapeake. 

Is1 Michael P. McMasters 
Michael P. McMasters 
March 6, 2006 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or other document authenticating, 
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required 
by Section 906, has been provided to Chesapeake Utilities Coi-poratioii and will be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and hri-tiished 
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 


